

Ninepoint Partners LP

NINEPOINT GOLD AND PRECIOUS MINERALS FUND

NINEPOINT ENERGY FUND

NINEPOINT GOLD BULLION FUND

NINEPOINT DIVERSIFIED BOND FUND

NINEPOINT HIGH INTEREST SAVINGS FUND

NINEPOINT SILVER BULLION FUND

NINEPOINT GLOBAL INFRASTRUCTURE FUND

NINEPOINT RESOURCE FUND

NINEPOINT SILVER EQUITIES FUND

NINEPOINT RISK ADVANTAGED U.S. EQUITY INDEX FUND

NINEPOINT GLOBAL REAL ESTATE FUND

NINEPOINT FOCUSED GLOBAL DIVIDEND FUND

NINEPOINT ALTERNATIVE HEALTH FUND

NINEPOINT FX STRATEGY FUND

NINEPOINT ALTERNATIVE CREDIT OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NINEPOINT CARBON CREDIT ETF

NINEPOINT ENERGY INCOME FUND

NINEPOINT TARGET INCOME FUND

Annual Financial Statements

December 31

2022

Contents

- 6 Ninepoint Gold and Precious Minerals Fund
- 17 Ninepoint Energy Fund
- 27 Ninepoint Gold Bullion Fund
- 35 Ninepoint Diversified Bond Fund
- 57 Ninepoint High Interest Savings Fund
- 65 Ninepoint Silver Bullion Fund
- 73 Ninepoint Global Infrastructure Fund
- 82 Ninepoint Resource Fund
- 93 Ninepoint Silver Equities Fund
- 104 Ninepoint Risk Advantaged U.S. Equity Index Fund
- 115 Ninepoint Global Real Estate Fund
- 124 Ninepoint Focused Global Dividend Fund
- 134 Ninepoint Alternative Health Fund
- 148 Ninepoint FX Strategy Fund
- 158 Ninepoint Alternative Credit Opportunities Fund
- 174 Ninepoint Carbon Credit ETF
- 184 Ninepoint Energy Income Fund
- 195 Ninepoint Target Income Fund
- 206 Notes to Financial Statements

Independent auditor's report

To the Unitholders of

Ninepoint Gold and Precious Minerals Fund

Ninepoint Energy Fund

Ninepoint Gold Bullion Fund

Ninepoint Diversified Bond Fund

Ninepoint High Interest Savings Fund

Ninepoint Silver Bullion Fund

Ninepoint Global Infrastructure Fund

Ninepoint Resource Fund

Ninepoint Silver Equities Fund

Ninepoint Risk Advantaged U.S. Equity Index Fund

Ninepoint Global Real Estate Fund

Ninepoint Focused Global Dividend Fund

Ninepoint Alternative Health Fund

Ninepoint FX Strategy Fund

Ninepoint Alternative Credit Opportunities Fund

Ninepoint Carbon Credit ETF

Ninepoint Energy Income Fund

Ninepoint Target Income Fund

[collectively, the "Funds"]

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Funds, which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2022, and the statement of comprehensive income (loss), statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Funds as at December 31, 2022, and their financial performance and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ["IFRSs"].

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the *Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements* section of our report. We are independent of the Funds in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other matter

The financial statements of the Funds for the period ended December 31, 2021, where applicable, were audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on March 31, 2022.

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Management Report of Fund Performance of the Funds. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information, and in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

We obtained the Management Report of Fund Performance of the Funds prior to the date of this auditor's report. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact in this auditor's report. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Funds' ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Funds or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Funds' financial reporting process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Funds' internal control.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Funds' ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Funds to cease to continue as a going concern.
- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Queenie Chung.

Chartered Professional Accountants Licensed Public Accountants

Crost & young LLP

Toronto, Canada March 30, 2023

Statements of Financial Position

As at December 31	2022	2021
	s	\$
Assets		
Current assets		
Investments (note 3,5)	93,120,713	146,590,892
Due from broker	364,197	208,121
Subscriptions receivable	36,895	44,985
Dividends receivable	77,088	60,041
Total assets	93,598,893	146,904,039
Liabilities		
Current liabilities		
Bank indebtedness	254,077	362,581
Redemptions payable	86,549	15,871
Management fees payable (note 11)	7,243	-
Accrued expenses	76,324	113,180
Total liabilities	424,193	491,632
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	93,174,700	146,412,407
Note to the state of the state		
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per series	55.064.465	00.440.265
Series A	55,064,467	99,418,367
Series D	19,477,415	2,324,320
Series F	17,860,692	27,306,561
Series QF	-	15,481,375
ETF Series	772,126	1,881,784
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per series per unit (note 3)		
Series A	44.42	54.75
Series D	13.39	16.30
Series F	52.35	63.78
Series QF	-	18.40
ETF Series	15.44	18.82

See accompanying notes which are an integral part of these financial statements

On behalf of the Manager, Ninepoint Partners LP, by its General Partner, Ninepoint Partners GP Inc.

John Wilson

DIRECTOR

James Fox DIRECTOR

Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
	s	s
Income		
Interest income for distribution purposes (note 3)	-	326,845
Dividends (note 3)	1,288,951	2,163,292
Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investments	3,733,372	7,810,499
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) in the value of investments	(29,084,847)	(24,855,445)
Net realized gains (losses) on foreign exchange	(46,077)	(15,851)
Securities lending income	215,245	291,355
Other income	-	47,647
Total income (loss)	(23,893,356)	(14,231,658)
Emperor (rate 11-12)		
Expenses (note 11, 12)	2,656,032	2 (04 1(1
Management fees		3,684,161
Unitholder reporting fees	214,830	180,776
Transaction costs (note 3, 13)	161,271	240,821
Administrative fees	84,614	90,802
Withholding taxes	81,235	215,783
Audit fees	30,034	38,459
Filing fees	21,874	25,379
Custodial fees	21,726	23,887
Legal fees	19,546	21,337
Interest expense and bank charges	8,014	6,112
Independent Review Committee fees (note 14)	5,067	4,962
Total expenses	3,304,243	4,532,479
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations	(27,197,599)	(18,764,137)
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series		
Series A	(12,266,468)	(13,231,337)
Series D	(5,682,779)	(363,166)
Series F	(5,497,644)	(3,391,903)
Series QF	(3,228,612)	(1,410,222)
ETF Series	(522,096)	(367,509)
Weighted arrange number of undermakle puits		
Weighted average number of redeemable units Series A	1,415,527	1,909,204
Series D	1,117,943	
		190,998
Series F	402,461	466,728
Series QF	588,927	805,262
ETF Series	82,898	132,329
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3)		
Series A	(8.67)	(6.93)
Series D	(5.08)	(1.90)
Series F	(13.66)	(7.27)
Series QF	(5.48)	(1.75)
ETF Series	(6.30)	(2.78)
LII Seles	(0.30)	(2.76)

Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
	s	\$
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, beginning of year		
Series A	99,418,367	125,528,005
Series D	2,324,320	3,784,570
Series F	27,306,561	31,093,605
Series QF	15,481,375	15,335,604
ETF Series	1,881,784	4,158,193
	146,412,407	179,899,977
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations		
Series A	(12,266,468)	(13,231,337)
Series D	(5,682,779)	(363,166)
Series F	(5,497,644)	(3,391,903)
Series OF	(3,228,612)	(1,410,222)
ETF Series	(522,096)	(367,509)
	(27,197,599)	(18,764,137)
Redeemable unit transactions (note 8) Proceeds from redeemable units issued		
Series A	2,322,234	3,512,545
Series D	24,943,980	1,047,882
Series F	8,478,247	14,618,028
Series OF	922,288	2,590,155
ETF Series	2,542,978	2,390,133
	2,342,978	-
Redemption of redeemable units Series A	(34,409,666)	(16,390,846)
Series D	(2,108,106)	(2,144,966)
Series F	(12,426,472)	(15,013,169)
Series QF	(13,175,051)	(1,034,162)
ETF Series	(3,130,540)	(1,908,900)
	(26,040,108)	(14,723,433)
Net increase (decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units		
Series A	(44,353,900)	(26,109,638)
Series D	17,153,095	(1,460,250)
Series F	(9,445,869)	(3,787,044)
Series QF	(15,481,375)	145,771
ETF Series	(1,109,658)	(2,276,409)
	(53,237,707)	(33,487,570)
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, end of year		
Series A	55,064,467	99,418,367
Series D	19,477,415	2,324,320
Series F	17,860,692	27,306,561
Series QF	-	15,481,375
ETF Series	772,126	1,881,784
ETI SGRO	772,120	1,001,704

Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units continued

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
Units, beginning of year		
Series A	1,815,930	2,051,144
Series D	142,574	209,748
Series F	428,141	441,001
Series QF	841,576	756,686
ETF Series	100,000	200,000
ETF Series	3,328,221	3,658,579
	3,320,221	3,036,379
Redeemable unit transactions (note 8)		
Redeemable units issued		
Series A	46,667	62,823
Series D	1,451,950	59,942
Series F	143,058	228,636
Series QF	53,474	141,126
ETF Series	150,000	_
Redemption of redeemable units		
Series A	(623,060)	(298,037)
Series D	(139,547)	(127,116)
Series F	(229,989)	(241,496)
Series QF	(895,050)	(56,236)
ETF Series	(200,000)	(100,000)
	(242,497)	(330,358)
Helte and of second		
Units, end of year Series A	1,239,537	1,815,930
	1,259,557	1,815,930
Series D		
Series F	341,210	428,141
Series QF	-	841,576
ETF Series	50,000	100,000
	3,085,724	3,328,221

Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
	s	\$
Cash flows from operating activities		
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations	(27,197,599)	(18,764,137)
Adjustments for:		
Foreign exchange (gains) losses on cash	12,461	(15,963)
Net realized (gains) losses on sales of investments	(3,733,372)	(7,810,499)
Change in unrealized (appreciation) depreciation in the value of investments	29,084,847	24,855,445
Purchases of investments	(19,152,902)	(57,483,153)
Proceeds from sale of investments	47,115,530	70,661,156
Net increase (decrease) in other assets and liabilities	(46,660)	(227,552)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities	26,082,305	11,215,297
Cash flows from financing activities		
Proceeds from redeemable units issued	36,796,680	20,911,937
Redemption of redeemable units	(62,758,020)	(35,710,098)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities	(25,961,340)	(14,798,161)
Foreign exchange gains (losses) on cash	(12,461)	15,963
Net increase (decrease) in cash	120,965	(3,582,864)
Cash (Bank indebtedness), beginning of year	(362,581)	3,204,320
Cash (Bank indebtedness), end of year	(254,077)	(362,581)
Supplemental Information*		560,000
Interest received	-	568,929
Interest paid	8,014	6,112
Dividends received, net of withholding taxes	1,225,140	2,033,891

^{*}Information provided relates to the operating activities of the Fund

Schedule of Investment Portfolio

As at December 31, 2022		Restriction/Expiry Date	Average Cost	Fair Value
SHARES	EQUITIES [95.87%]		s	S
	GOLD [69.52%]			
28,700	Agnico Eagle Mines Limited		1,848,372	2,019,332
2,145,168	Apollo Gold & Silver Corporation		1,608,876	364,679
5,481,928	Banyan Gold Corporation		1,534,940	2,165,362
890,732 425,042	Bellevue Gold Limited Dundee Precious Metals Inc.		324,811 2,516,889	927,890 2,767,019
230,100	Endeavour Mining PLC		5,545,723	6,668,298
2,303,000	Energold Drilling Acquisition L.P.**		607,992	2,689,501
1,070,282	Genesis Minerals Limited		427,774	1,233,329
648,000	i-80 Gold Corporation		2,186,909	2,449,440
549,028	Kinross Gold Corporation		3,147,827	3,030,635
116,566	Kinross Gold Corporation Rights		-	-
182,500 15,445	Lundin Gold Inc.		1,980,711	2,414,475
675,000	New Guinea Gold Corporation Newcore Gold Limited		540,000	155,250
667,515	Northern Star Resources Limited		6,608,705	6,713,617
1,137,219	OceanaGold Corporation		2,624,522	2,934,025
2,176,400	Perseus Mining Limited		2,703,199	4,233,426
5,063,756	Predictive Discovery Limited		1,001,444	840,265
2,688,600	Ramelius Resources Limited		2,196,907	2,305,048
6,659,454	Reunion Gold Corporation		1,689,823	2,796,971
3,732,300	Sable Resources Limited		759,645	410,553
2,368,219 25,000	Saturn Metals Limited Seabridge Gold Inc.		962,388 587,046	392,975 425,000
2,000,000	Seafield Resources Limited**		482,260	425,000
2,156,800	Silver Lake Resources Limited		2,480,282	2,356,129
138,764	Solstice Minerals Limited		13,062	24,945
224,155	SSR Mining Inc.		5,107,708	4,749,844
1,035,850	Trillium Gold Mines Inc.		549,001	212,349
1,074,173	Troilus Gold Corporation		1,110,762	515,603
252,000	Victoria Gold Corporation		1,980,020	1,801,800
227,000 1,929,200	Wesdome Gold Mines Limited Westgold Resources Limited		2,327,474 3,529,991	1,697,960 1,556,167
74,191	Wheaton Precious Metals Corporation		2,016,869	3,924,704
			61,001,932	64,776,591
	PRECIOUS METALS & MINERALS [13.74%]			
1,161,000	Andean Precious Metals Corporation		1,225,436	1,288,710
342,314 1,894,374	Aya Gold & Silver Inc. Benchmark Metals Inc.		2,189,802 2,195,519	3,087,672 748,278
3,344,200	Caldera Resources Inc.**		2,175,517	740,270
2,266,850	Empress Royalty Corporation		1,133,425	906,740
1,419,871	GoGold Resources Inc.		1,434,637	3,081,120
1,169,468	GR Silver Mining Limited		689,986	134,489
1,333,336	GR Silver Mining Limited	Jan 3, 2023*	200,000	152,925
5,397,210	Intellicrypt Taftical Solutions**		1,483,609	-
5,303,290	Shear Diamonds Limited** Sibanye Stillwater Limited		2,159,518	1 920 197
126,800 1,670,000	Silver Mountain Resources Inc.		1,598,782 835,000	1,830,186 509,350
108,900	SilverCrest Metals Inc.		1,257,371	882,090
940,000	Southern Silver Exploration Corporation		470,000	183,300
			16,873,086	12,804,860
	OH NED 15 000/1			
1 204 02 1	SILVER [7.02%]		1 007 177	(10.555
1,384,034	Blackrock Silver Corporation	Jan 2, 2023*	1,027,177	643,576
740,000 430,750	Blackrock Silver Corporation Defiance Silver Corporation	Jan 2, 2023*	370,000 387,675	343,412 73,228
144,900	Fortuna Silver Mines Inc.		710,617	737,541
150,155	Pan American Silver Corporation		3,310,146	3,318,426
336,900	Pan American Silver Corporation, Rights		55,905	260,469
4,216,333	Silver Tiger Metals Inc.		1,514,900	1,159,492
			7,376,420	6,536,144
	DIVERSIFIED METALS & MINING [5.59%]			
3,500,000	AbraSilver Resource Corporation		542,894	1,225,000
1,245,000	Americas Gold & Silver Corporation		1,533,125	958,650
260,462	Emerita Resources Corporation		286,508	167,998
4,209	Luiri Gold Limited**		-	-
1,204,100	OreCorp Limited		886,382	516,162
2,790,000	Palladium One Mining Inc.		809,100	334,800
2,000,000	Pembrook Mining Corporation**	A 22 2022*	2,000,000	102.220
104,500 890,018	Prime Mining Corporation Summa Silver Corporation	Apr 22, 2023*	156,750 780,357	183,328 712,108
713,750	Vizsla Silver Corporation		1,237,888	1,106,313
, , , , ,	<u>'</u>		8,233,004	5,204,359

Schedule of Investment Portfolio continued

Is at December 31, 2022		Restriction/Expiry Date	Average Cost	Fair Valu
SHARES	OIL & GAS EXPLORATION & PRODUCTION [0.00%]		\$	
642,060	Gastem Inc.**		_	
3,582,000	Oilsands Quest Inc.		_	
512,500	Rodinia Oil Coporation**		-	
Cotal equities			93,484,442	89,321,95
•			,,	
OUNCES 115,023	BULLION [4.00%] Silver Bullion		2,156,628	2 720 71
Total bullion	Silver Bullion		2,156,628	3,730,71 3,730,71
SHARES	WARRANTS [0.07%] SILVER [0.06%]			
370,000	Blackrock Silver Corporation	Jan 2, 2023*, Aug 30 2025		
129,200	Blackrock Silver Corporation	Nov 3, 2023		
166,667	Blackrock Silver Corporation	Jun 8, 2023		
277,777	Defiance Silver Corporation	Jun 10, 2023		
1,735,577	Reunion Gold Corporation	Jul 7, 2024	_	52,06
1,691,499	Silver Tiger Metals Inc.	Jul 27, 2023	_	52,00
1,001,100	Ontel Light Metab Lie.	va. 2.1, 2020	-	52,06
	PRECIOUS METALS & MINERALS [0.01%]			
205.050		Dec 9, 2023		
305,850 1,200,000	Benchmark Metals Inc. Empress Royalty Corporation	Mar 25, 2023	-	12,00
683,000	GR Silver Mining Limited	Apr 27, 2023	-	12,00
666,668	GR Silver Mining Limited	Jan 3, 2023*, Aug 30, 2025	-	
835,000	Silver Mountain Resources Inc.	Feb 2, 2024	-	
470,000	Southern Silver Exploration Corporation	Jun 16, 2023	-	
470,000	Southern Silver Exploration Corporation	Jun 10, 2023	-	12,000
	GOLD [0.00%]			
1,194,664		Jul 8, 2023		
	Apollo Gold & Silver Corporation		-	
726,000 546,607	G Mining Ventures Corporation GCM Mining Corporation	Sep 15, 2024 Feb 6, 2023	-	
17,262	Genesis Minerals Limited	Nov 25, 2023	-	3,978
1,200,150	Sable Resources Limited	Sep 10, 2023	-	3,970
517,925	Trillium Gold Mines Inc.	Feb 28, 2024	-	
317,923	Tillium Gold Willes Inc.	1 60 26, 2024	-	3,978
	DIVERSIFIED METALS & MINING [0.00%]			
164,631	Emerita Resources Corporation	Jul 15, 2023	-	
384,500	Euro Sun Mining Inc.	Jun 5, 2023	-	
1,395,000	Palladium One Mining Inc.	Feb 24, 2023	-	
104,500	Prime Mining Corporation	Apr 22, 2023*, Dec 22, 2025	-	
113,500	Summa Silver Corporation	Dec 29, 2025	-	
381,650 254,375	Summa Silver Corporation Vizsla Silver Corporation	Feb 10, 2025 Nov 15, 2024	-	
,	·		-	
Total warrants			(201.112)	68,04
Transaction costs (note 3)	1/1		(201,113) 95,439,957	93,120,71
Total investments [99.94% Cash and other assets less l	,		95,439,95/	53,98
	able to holders of redeemable units [100.00%]			93,174,700

^{*} Securities are restricted for resale until the date indicated, or under Rule 144 of the Securities Act of 1933 for those noted R1933

^{**} Private company

Financial Risk Management (note 6)

Investment Objective

The objective of the Fund is to provide long-term capital growth. In order to achieve its investment objective, the Fund invests primarily in gold, gold certificates, precious metals and minerals, certificates relating to such metals and minerals and/or in equity securities of companies that are directly or indirectly involved in the exploration, mining, production or distribution of gold and precious metals and minerals.

The Schedule of Investment Portfolio presents the securities held by the Fund as at December 31, 2022. Significant risks that are relevant to the Fund are discussed here. General information on risks and risk management is described in *Note 6 Financial Risk Management* of the Generic Notes.

Market Risk

a) Other Price Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, if the S&P/TSX Global Gold Total Return Index were to fluctuate by 10%, with all other variables held constant, Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units would increase or decrease by the amounts shown in the table below. This is a measure based on the historical relationship of the Fund's performance against the index noted above. The composition of this calculation contains several subjective components that, although reasonably estimated, could alter the resulting estimate should these components be modified based on revised assumptions.

December 31, 2022 December 31		cember 31, 2021	
	As a % of Net Assets		As a % of Net Assets
	attributable to holders		attributable to holders
Impact	of redeemable units	Impact	of redeemable units
\$	%	\$	%
8,572,072	9.23	13,540,689	9.25

b) Currency Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's direct exposure to currency risk and potential impact to the Fund's Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units as a result of a 1% change in these currencies relative to the Canadian dollar, with all other variables held constant, are shown in the tables below.

December 31, 2022

		% of Net Assets	Impact on Net Assets
		attributable to holders	attributable to holders
Currency	Fair Value	of redeemable units	of redeemable units
	\$	%	\$
Australian Dollar	21,123,031	22.67	211,230
U.S. Dollar	8,545,403	9.17	85,454
Total	29,668,434	31.84	296,684

December 31, 2021

		% of Net Assets	Impact on Net Assets
		attributable to holders	attributable to holders
Currency	Fair Value	of redeemable units	of redeemable units
	\$	%	\$
Australian Dollar	34,661,438	23.67	346,614
U.S. Dollar	15,504,018	10.59	155,040
Pound Sterling	1,393,766	0.95	13,938
Total	51,559,222	35.21	515,592

c) Interest Rate Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund did not invest in fixed income securities.

Credit Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund did not invest in fixed income securities.

Concentration Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's concentration risk as a percentage of Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units is shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	%	%
Equities:		
Gold	69.52	74.16
Precious Metals & Minerals	13.74	10.88
Silver	7.02	7.63
Diversified Metals & Mining	5.59	3.17
Sectors less than 1%	0.00	0.00
Silver Bullion	4.00	2.32
Warrants	0.07	1.96
Cash and other assets less liabilities	0.06	(0.12)
Total Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	100.00	100.00

Fair Value Measurements (note 5)

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's financial assets and liabilities, which are measured at fair value, have been categorized based upon the fair value hierarchy as shown in the tables below.

December 31, 2022	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
	\$	\$	\$	\$
Equities	85,692,319	679,665	2,689,501	89,061,485
Warrants and Rights	272,469	56,045	_	328,514
Silver Bullion	3,730,714	_	_	3,730,714
Total	89,695,502	735,710	2,689,501	93,120,713
December 31, 2021	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
	\$	\$	\$	\$
Equities	134,750,190	2,053,459	3,524,948	140,328,597
Warrants and Rights	96,000	17,665	2,757,299	2,870,964
Silver Bullion	3,391,331	_	_	3,391,331
Total	138,237,521	2,071,124	6,282,247	146,590,892

During the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, there were no significant transfers between levels other than the transfers indicated below.

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the reconciliation of investments measured at fair value using unobservable inputs (Level 3) are shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022		December 31, 20		:021
	Equities	Warrants	Equities	Warrants	Loans
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
Balance, beginning of year	3,524,948	2,757,299	2,081,357	8,119,918	3,862,854
Purchases	_		_	_	_
Sales and paydowns	_		(23,683)	_	(3,802,629)
Net transfers in (out)	_	(1,724,729)	(3,904,077)	(87,340)	_
Realized gains (losses)	_	(1,033)	(8,118,785)	_	_
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) in the value of investments	(835,447)	(1,031,537)	13,490,136	(5,275,279)	(60,225)
Balance, end of year	2,689,501	_	3,524,948	2,757,299	_
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) during the year for					
investments held at end of year	(835,447)	_	1,443,591	(3,170,056)	_

The Fund's Level 3 securities consist of private equity, private warrant and private loan positions. The Manager determines their fair value by utilizing a variety of valuation techniques such as the use of comparable recent transactions, discounted cash flows and other techniques used by market participants. As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, these positions were not significant to the Fund and any changes in reasonable possible assumptions used in their valuation would not have a significant impact to the Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units of the Fund.

Management Fees (note 11)

Management fees differ among the series of units of the Fund as shown in the table below.

Series	Management Fees (Up to)
Series A	2.50%
Series D	1.50%
Series F	1.50%
Series I*	Negotiated by the Unitholder
Series QF	1.15%
ETF Series	1.50%

^{*} The management fee for Series I units of the Fund is negotiated by the investor and paid directly by the investor or by the Fund, and would not exceed the management fee for Series A units of the Fund.

Tax Loss Carryforwards (note 3)

For the taxation year ended December 15, 2022, the Fund had capital and non-capital losses available for tax purposes as shown in the table below.

Capital losses	Non-capital losses	Non-capital losses year of expiry
\$	\$	
189,030,139	167,088	2034
	2,887,641	2035
	2,209,077	2037
	6,342,827	2038
	0,542,827	2038

Related Party Holdings

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, Ninepoint Financial Group Inc., the parent company of the Manager, and its respective subsidiaries, held the following investments as shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
Units held		
Series F	25	25
Value of units held (\$)	1,301	1,585

Securities Lending (note 3)

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the market values of securities loaned and related collateral amounts are shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	\$	\$
Securities loaned	4,797,026	20,919,721
Collateral	5,038,610	22,308,177
Collateral as a percentage of securities loaned (%)	105	107

During the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, securities lending income and charges are shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	\$	\$
Gross securities lending income	335,749	456,649
Securities lending charges	120,504	(165,294)
Net securities lending income	215,245	291,355
Withholding taxes on securities lending income	(34,471)	(77,137)
Net securities lending income received by the Fund	180,774	214,218
Net securities lending income as a percentage of gross securities lending income (%)	54	47

Sharing Arrangements (note 13)

During the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, total transaction costs incurred to certain brokers for research provided to the portfolio manager are shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	\$	\$
Soft dollar broker commissions	12,724	9,699

Statements of Financial Position

As at December 31	2022	2021
	s	\$
Assets		
Current assets		
Investments (note 3, 5)	1,919,939,731	909,601,690
Cash	13,393,901	25,186,558
Due from broker	-	14,476,385
Subscriptions receivable	2,015,628	1,663,290
Dividends receivable	4,338,001	1,422,500
Total assets	1,939,687,261	952,350,423
Liabilities		
Current liabilities		
Distribution payable to unitholders	1,308	749,244
Due to broker	6,638,250	-
Redemptions payable	2,762,468	563,552
Incentive fees payable (note 11)	-	7,775,358
Accrued expenses	394,920	236,946
Total liabilities	9,796,946	9,325,100
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	1,929,890,315	943,025,323
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per series		
Series A	364,472,055	217,011,344
Series D	50,450,202	35,740,053
Series F	879,827,733	494,873,382
Series I1	98,116,518	-
Series 12	45,353,960	-
Series 13	45,353,960	-
ETF Series	446,315,887	195,400,544
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per series per unit (note 3)		
Series A	26.32	19.35
Series D	17.79	12.87
Series F	30.86	22.48
Series I1	8.97	-
Series I2	8.29	-
Series I3	8.29	-
ETF Series	45.96	30.53
ETF Series \$US Purchase Option	33.94	-

See accompanying notes which are an integral part of these financial statements

On behalf of the Manager, Ninepoint Partners LP, by its General Partner, Ninepoint Partners GP Inc.

DIRECTOR

DIRECTOR

Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
	s	S
Income	***	4.050.400
Dividends (note 3)	20,848,058	4,968,429
Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investments	435,031,513	309,150,189
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) in the value of investments	103,494,424	129,611,912
Net realized gains (losses) on foreign exchange	684,188	386,727
Securities lending income	173,291	365,292
Total income (loss)	560,231,474	444,482,549
Expenses (note 11, 12)		
Management fees	31,937,147	9,647,308
Transaction costs (note 3, 13)	15,601,071	14,958,332
Administrative fees	1,124,810	289,290
Unitholder reporting fees	776,073	304,840
Withholding taxes	284,234	58,722
Custodial fees	111,356	34,771
Filing fees	66,842	27,337
Audit fees	32,151	27,043
Interest expense and bank charges	19,429	34,165
Legal fees	19,022	20,768
Independent Review Committee fees (note 14)	4,931	4,830
	-	7,775,358
Incentive tees		
Incentive fees Tatal expenses	49,977,066	33 182 764
Total expenses Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations	49,977,066 510,254,408	33,182,764 411,299,785
Total expenses		
Total expenses Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series	510,254,408	411,299,785
Total expenses Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series Series A	510,254,408 108,876,028	411,299,785 113,613,929 18,734,730
Total expenses Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series Series A Series D	510,254,408 108,876,028 19,517,027	411,299,785 113,613,929
Total expenses Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series Series A Series D Series F	510,254,408 108,876,028 19,517,027 279,595,546	411,299,785 113,613,929 18,734,730
Total expenses Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series Series A Series D Series F Series I1	510,254,408 108,876,028 19,517,027 279,595,546 (1,883,479)	411,299,785 113,613,929 18,734,730
Total expenses Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series Series A Series D Series F Series I1 Series 12	510,254,408 108,876,028 19,517,027 279,595,546 (1,883,479) (4,646,040)	411,299,785 113,613,929 18,734,730
Total expenses Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series Series A Series D Series F Series 11 Series 12 Series 13 ETF Series	510,254,408 108,876,028 19,517,027 279,595,546 (1,883,479) (4,646,040) (4,646,040)	411,299,785 113,613,929 18,734,730 245,644,001
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series Series A Series D Series F Series I1 Series 12 Series I3 ETF Series Weighted average number of redeemable units	510,254,408 108,876,028 19,517,027 279,595,546 (1,883,479) (4,646,040) (4,646,040) 113,441,366	411,299,785 113,613,929 18,734,730 245,644,001 - - - 33,307,125
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series Series A Series D Series F Series I1 Series 12 Series 13 ETF Series Weighted average number of redeemable units Series A	510,254,408 108,876,028 19,517,027 279,595,546 (1,883,479) (4,646,040) (4,646,040) 113,441,366	411,299,785 113,613,929 18,734,730 245,644,001 - - 33,307,125
Total expenses Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series Series A Series D Series F Series I1 Series I2 Series I3 ETF Series Weighted average number of redeemable units Series A Series D	510,254,408 108,876,028 19,517,027 279,595,546 (1,883,479) (4,646,040) (4,646,040) 113,441,366 12,475,339 2,840,143	411,299,785 113,613,929 18,734,730 245,644,001 - - 33,307,125 9,231,146 2,646,667
Total expenses Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series Series A Series D Series I1 Series I2 Series I3 ETF Series Weighted average number of redeemable units Series A Series D Series F	510,254,408 108,876,028 19,517,027 279,595,546 (1,883,479) (4,646,040) (4,646,040) 113,441,366 12,475,339 2,840,143 26,339,302	411,299,785 113,613,929 18,734,730 245,644,001 - - 33,307,125
Total expenses Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series Series A Series D Series I1 Series I2 Series I3 ETF Series Weighted average number of redeemable units Series D Series D Series F Series I1	510,254,408 108,876,028 19,517,027 279,595,546 (1,883,479) (4,646,040) (4,646,040) 113,441,366 12,475,339 2,840,143 26,339,302 10,011,101	411,299,785 113,613,929 18,734,730 245,644,001 - - 33,307,125 9,231,146 2,646,667
Total expenses Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series Series A Series D Series I1 Series I2 Series I3 ETF Series Weighted average number of redeemable units Series A Series D Series F Series I1 Series I1 Series I2	510,254,408 108,876,028 19,517,027 279,595,546 (1,883,479) (4,646,040) (4,646,040) 113,441,366 12,475,339 2,840,143 26,339,302 10,011,101 5,008,134	411,299,785 113,613,929 18,734,730 245,644,001 - - 33,307,125 9,231,146 2,646,667
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series Series A Series D Series I1 Series I2 Series I3 ETF Series Weighted average number of redeemable units Series A Series D Series F Series I1 Series I2 Series I2 Series I3 Series I3 Series I3 Series I3 Series I3 Series I3 Series I2 Series I3	510,254,408 108,876,028 19,517,027 279,595,546 (1,883,479) (4,646,040) (4,646,040) 113,441,366 12,475,339 2,840,143 26,339,302 10,011,101 5,008,134 5,008,134	411,299,785 113,613,929 18,734,730 245,644,001
Total expenses Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series Series A Series D Series I1 Series I2 Series I3 ETF Series Weighted average number of redeemable units Series A Series D Series F Series I1 Series I1 Series I2	510,254,408 108,876,028 19,517,027 279,595,546 (1,883,479) (4,646,040) (4,646,040) 113,441,366 12,475,339 2,840,143 26,339,302 10,011,101 5,008,134	411,299,785 113,613,929 18,734,730 245,644,001 - - 33,307,125 9,231,146 2,646,667
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series Series A Series D Series F Series 11 Series 12 Series 13 ETF Series Weighted average number of redeemable units Series A Series D Series F Series F Series I1 Series I2 Series I3 Series I3 Series I3 Series I3 Series I3 Series I2 Series I3	510,254,408 108,876,028 19,517,027 279,595,546 (1,883,479) (4,646,040) (4,646,040) 113,441,366 12,475,339 2,840,143 26,339,302 10,011,101 5,008,134 5,008,134	411,299,785 113,613,929 18,734,730 245,644,001
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series Series A Series D Series F Series 11 Series 12 Series 13 ETF Series Weighted average number of redeemable units Series A Series D Series F Series I1 Series I2 Series I3 ETF Series I3 ETF Series I3 ETF Series I1 Series I1 Series I2 Series I1 Series I2 Series I3 ETF Series I3	510,254,408 108,876,028 19,517,027 279,595,546 (1,883,479) (4,646,040) (4,646,040) 113,441,366 12,475,339 2,840,143 26,339,302 10,011,101 5,008,134 5,008,134	411,299,785 113,613,929 18,734,730 245,644,001
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series Series A Series D Series I1 Series I2 Series I3 ETF Series Weighted average number of redeemable units Series A Series D Series F Series I1 Series I2 Series I3 ETF Series ETF Series I3	510,254,408 108,876,028 19,517,027 279,595,546 (1,883,479) (4,646,040) (4,646,040) 113,441,366 12,475,339 2,840,143 26,339,302 10,011,101 5,008,134 5,008,134 9,535,330	411,299,785 113,613,929 18,734,730 245,644,001 33,307,125 9,231,146 2,646,667 17,435,440 2,915,598
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series Series A Series D Series I1 Series I2 Series I3 ETF Series Weighted average number of redeemable units Series A Series D Series F Series I1 Series I2 Series I3 ETF Series I1 Series I2 Series I3 ETF Series I1 Series I2 Series I3 Series I4 Series I5 Series I5 Series I6 Series I7 Series I8 Series I8 Series I8 Series I9 Series II Ser	510,254,408 108,876,028 19,517,027 279,595,546 (1,883,479) (4,646,040) (4,646,040) 113,441,366 12,475,339 2,840,143 26,339,302 10,011,101 5,008,134 5,008,134 9,535,330	411,299,785 113,613,929 18,734,730 245,644,001 33,307,125 9,231,146 2,646,667 17,435,440 2,915,598
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series Series A Series D Series I1 Series I2 Series I3 ETF Series Weighted average number of redeemable units Series A Series D Series I1 Series I2 Series I3 ETF Series Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3) Series A Series D	510,254,408 108,876,028 19,517,027 279,595,546 (1,883,479) (4,646,040) (4,646,040) 113,441,366 12,475,339 2,840,143 26,339,302 10,011,101 5,008,134 5,008,134 9,535,330	411,299,785 113,613,929 18,734,730 245,644,001 33,307,125 9,231,146 2,646,667 17,435,440 2,915,598 12.31 7.08
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series Series A Series D Series F Series 11 Series 12 Series 13 ETF Series Weighted average number of redeemable units Series A Series D Series F Series I1 Series I2 Series I3 ETF Series Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3) Series A Series D Series F	510,254,408 108,876,028 19,517,027 279,595,546 (1,883,479) (4,646,040) (4,646,040) 113,441,366 12,475,339 2,840,143 26,339,302 10,011,101 5,008,134 5,008,134 9,535,330 8.73 6.87 10.62	411,299,785 113,613,929 18,734,730 245,644,001 33,307,125 9,231,146 2,646,667 17,435,440 2,915,598 12.31 7.08
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series Series A Series D Series I1 Series I2 Series I3 ETF Series Weighted average number of redeemable units Series A Series D Series F Series I1 Series I2 Series I3 ETF Series Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3) Series A Series A Series I3 ETF Series	510,254,408 108,876,028 19,517,027 279,595,546 (1,883,479) (4,646,040) (4,646,040) 113,441,366 12,475,339 2,840,143 26,339,302 10,011,101 5,008,134 5,008,134 9,535,330 8.73 6.87 10.62 (0.19)	411,299,785 113,613,929 18,734,730 245,644,001 33,307,125 9,231,146 2,646,667 17,435,440 2,915,598 12.31 7.08

Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, beginning of year	s	S
Series A	217,011,344	57,034,161
Series D	35,740,053	8,597,541
	494,873,382	104,749,570
Series F	494,873,382	104,749,370
Series II	-	-
Series 12	-	-
Series I3	-	-
ETF Series	195,400,544 943,025,323	170,381,272
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations Series A	108,876,028	113,613,929
Series D	19,517,027	18,734,730
	279,595,546	
Series F		245,644,001
Series II	(1,883,479)	-
Series I2	(4,646,040)	-
Series I3	(4,646,040)	-
ETF Series	113,441,366	33,307,125
	510,254,408	411,299,785
Distributions to holders of redeemable units		
From net capital gains on investments		
Series A	(31,088,165)	(4,184,663)
Series D	(4,299,596)	(682,012)
Series F	(77,507,710)	(9,618,588)
Series I1	(8,304,823)	_
Series I2	(3,838,870)	_
Series I3	(3,838,870)	_
ETF Series	(40,654,081)	(3,755,776)
ETI SCIRS	(169,532,115)	(18,241,039)
Redeemable unit transactions (note 8) Proceeds from redeemable units issued		
	160 504 202	96 690 564
Series A	160,594,292	86,680,564
Series D	39,141,653	33,297,345
Series F	465,593,971	267,119,603
Series I1	100,000,000	-
Series I2	50,000,000	-
Series I3	50,000,000	-
ETF Series	270,387,080	168,001,556
Reinvestments of distributions to holders of redeemable units		
Series A	29,929,672	4,049,519
Series D	4,151,962	654,702
Series F	67,306,218	9,031,798
Series I1	8,304,820	-
Series 12	3,838,870	_
Series I3	3,838,870	_
ETF Series	40,654,081	3,755,776
Redemption of redeemable units		-,,,,,,
Series A	(120,851,116)	(40,182,166)
Series D	(43,800,897)	(24,862,253)
Series F	(350,033,674)	(122,053,002)
Series I1	-	-
Series I2	-	-
Series I3	-	-
ETF Series	(132,913,103)	(5,908,137)
	646,142,699	379,585,305
Net increase (decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units		
Series A	147,460,711	159,977,183
Series D	14,710,149	27,142,512
Series F		390,123,812
	384,954,351	390,123,812
Series I1	98,116,518	-
	45,353,960	-
Series I2 Series I3	45,353,960	-
		195,400,544 772,644,051

Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units continued

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, end of year		
Series A	364,472,055	217,011,344
Series D	50,450,202	35,740,053
Series F	879,827,733	494,873,382
Series I1	98,116,518	-
Series I2	45,353,960	-
Series I3	45,353,960	-
ETF Series	446,315,887	195,400,544
	1,929,890,315	943,025,323

Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units continued

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
Units, beginning of year		
Series A	11,214,791	8,158,338
Series D	2,777,740	1,688,193
Series F	22,010,487	13,070,957
	22,010,467	13,070,937
Series I1 Series I2	-	-
Series I3	·	-
	- 6,400,000	-
ETF Series	42,403,018	22,917,488
	42,403,016	22,917,466
Redeemable unit transactions (note 8)		
Redeemable units issued		
Series A	5,916,571	5,871,076
Series D	2,069,307	3,662,053
Series F	15,143,512	16,223,633
Series I1	10,000,000	-
Series I2	5,000,000	-
Series I3	5,000,000	-
ETF Series	6,310,000	6,600,000
Reinvestments of distributions to holders of redeemable units		
Series A	1,158,334	209,272
Series D	237,889	50,884
Series F	2,221,807	401,708
Series I1	943,579	-
Series I2	471,791	_
Series I3	471,791	_
ETF Series	-	_
Redemption of redeemable units		
Series A	(4,442,180)	(3,023,895)
Series D	(2,248,343)	(2,623,390)
Series F	(10,864,655)	(7,685,811)
Series I1	-	-
Series I2	_	_
Series I3	_	_
ETF Series	(3,000,000)	(200,000)
	34,389,403	19,485,530
Units, end of year	12.048.817	11 214 701
Series A	13,847,516	11,214,791
Series D	2,836,593	2,777,740
Series F	28,511,151	22,010,487
Series II	10,943,579	-
Series I2	5,471,791	-
Series I3	5,471,791	-
ETF Series	9,710,000	6,400,000
	76,792,421	42,403,018

Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
	s	\$
Cash flows from operating activities		
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations	510,254,408	411,299,785
Adjustments for:		
Foreign exchange (gains) losses on cash	(160,740)	448,108
Net realized (gains) losses on sales of investments	(435,031,513)	(309,150,189)
Change in unrealized (appreciation) depreciation in the value of investments	(103,494,424)	(129,611,912)
Purchases of investments	(3,792,832,035)	(2,213,050,227)
Proceeds from sale of investments	3,342,134,566	1,893,524,696
Net increase (decrease) in other assets and liabilities	(10,532,885)	6,712,066
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities	(489,662,623)	(339,827,673)
Cash flows from financing activities		
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable units, net of reinvested distributions	(12,255,558)	-
Proceeds from redeemable units issued	1,095,167,000	547,861,732
Redemption of redeemable units	(605,202,216)	(186,548,509)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities	477,709,226	361,313,223
Foreign exchange gains (losses) on cash	160,740	(448,108)
Net increase (decrease) in cash	(11,953,397)	21,485,550
Cash (Bank indebtedness), beginning of year	25,186,558	4,149,116
Cash (Bank indebtedness), end of year	13,393,901	25,186,558
Supplemental Information*		
Interest paid	19,429	34,165
Dividends received, net of withholding taxes	17,687,823	3,774,669
with the state of		

^{*}Information provided relates to the operating activities of the Fund

Schedule of Investment Portfolio

As at December 31, 2022		Average Cost	Fair Value
		\$	\$
SHARES	EQUITIES [99.48%]		
	OIL & GAS EXPLORATION & PRODUCTION [91.31%]		
58,000,000	Athabasca Oil Corporation	133,513,934	139,780,000
30,000,000	Baytex Energy Corporation	141,979,576	182,400,000
650,000	Chord Energy Corporation	133,556,359	120,406,481
8,000,000	Enerplus Corporation	130,405,332	191,200,000
2,000,000	Freehold Royalties Limited	34,073,976	31,660,000
22,750,000	Headwater Exploration Inc.	115,769,975	134,680,000
47,500,000	Lucero Energy Corporation	19,000,000	26,125,000
10,000,000	MEG Energy Corporation	132,951,883	188,500,000
13,000,000	NuVista Energy Limited	89,907,295	162,240,000
9,250,000	Surge Energy Inc.	88,962,660	84,238,550
44,000,000	Tamarack Valley Energy Limited	175,140,533	196,169,700
6,000,000	Vermilion Energy Inc.	159,143,545	143,820,000
15,000,000	Whitecap Resources Inc.	163,060,956	161,100,000
		1,517,466,024	1,762,319,731
	INTEGRATED OIL & GAS [8.17%]		
6,000,000	Cenovus Energy Inc.	150,144,015	157,620,000
		150,144,015	157,620,000
Total equities		1,667,610,039	1,919,939,731
Transaction costs (note 3)		(3,561,539)	-
Total investments [99.489	· /6	1,664,048,500	1,919,939,731
Cash and other assets less l	iabilities [0.52%]		9,950,584
Total Net Assets attributa	able to holders of redeemable units [100.00%]		1,929,890,315

Ninepoint Energy Fund Notes to financial statements — Fund specific information December 31, 2022

Financial Risk Management (note 6)

Investment Objective

The Fund seeks to achieve long-term capital growth. The Fund invests primarily in equity and equity-related securities of companies that are involved directly or indirectly in the exploration, development, production and distribution of oil, gas, coal, or uranium and other related activities in the energy and resource sector.

The Schedule of Investment Portfolio presents the securities held by the Fund as at December 31, 2022. Significant risks that are relevant to the Fund are discussed here. General information on risks and risk management is described in *Note 6 Financial Risk Management* of the Generic Notes.

Market Risk

a) Other Price Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, if the S&P/TSX Capped Energy Total Return Index were to fluctuate by 10%, with all other variables held constant, Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units would increase or decrease by the amounts shown in the table below. This is a measure based on the historical relationship of the Fund's performance against the noted index. The composition of this calculation contains several subjective components that, although reasonably estimated, could alter the resulting estimate should these components be modified based on revised assumptions.

December 31, 2022		December :	31, 2021
	As a % of Net Assets		As a % of Net Assets
attributable to holders			attributable to holders
Impact	of redeemable units	Impact	of redeemable units
\$	%	\$	%
252,815,631	13.07	124,942,549	13.25

b) Currency Risk

As at December 31, 2022, the Fund's direct exposure to currency risk and potential impact to the Fund's Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units as a result of a 1% change in these currencies relative to the Canadian dollar, with all other variables held constant, are shown in the table below.

December 31, 2022

		% of Net Assets	Impact on Net Assets
		attributable to holders	attributable to holders
Currency	Fair Value	of redeemable units	of redeemable units
	\$	9/0	\$
U.S. Dollar	120,406,481	6.24	1,204,065

As at December 31, 2021, the Fund did not have a significant exposure to currency rate risk.

c) Interest Rate Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund did not have a significant exposure to interest rate risk.

Credit Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund did not have a significant exposure to credit risk.

Ninepoint Energy Fund Notes to financial statements — Fund specific information December 31, 2022

Concentration Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's concentration risk as a percentage of Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units is shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	⁰ / ₀	%
Equities:		
Oil and Gas Exploration and Production	91.31	94.81
Integrated Oil and Gas	8.17	1.65
Cash and other assets less liabilities	0.52	3.54
Total Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	100.00	100.00

Fair Value Measurements (note 5)

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's financial assets and liabilities, which are measured at fair value, have been categorized based upon the fair value hierarchy as shown in the tables below.

December 31, 2022	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
	\$	\$	S	\$
Equities	1,919,939,731	_	-	1,919,939,731
December 31, 2021	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
	\$	\$	\$	\$
Equities	909,601,690	_	-	909,601,690

During the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, there were no significant transfers between levels.

Management Fees (note 11)

Management fees differ among the series of units of the Fund as shown in the table below.

Series	Management Fees (Up to)
Series A	2.50%
Series D	1.50%
Series F	1.50%
Series I1*	Negotiated by the Unitholder
Series 12*	Negotiated by the Unitholder
Series 13*	Negotiated by the Unitholder
ETF Series	1.50%

^{*} The management fee for Series I1 units, Series I2 units and Series I3 units of the Fund is negotiated by the unitholder and may be paid directly by the Fund or by the unitholder.

Tax Loss Carryforwards (note 3)

For the taxation year ended December 15, 2022, the Fund had no capital and non-capital losses available for tax purposes.

Related Party Holdings

As at December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, Ninepoint Financial Group Inc., the parent company of the Manager, and its respective subsidiaries, held the following investments as shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
Units held		
ETF Series	200	_
Value of units held (\$)	9,213	

Ninepoint Energy Fund Notes to financial statements — Fund specific information December 31, 2022

Related Party Broker Commissions

During the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, brokerage commissions paid by the Fund to Sightline Wealth Management ("Sightline"), a related party of Ninepoint Financial Group Inc., the parent company of the Manager, for brokerage services provided to the Fund are shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	\$	\$
Broker commissions to Sightline	748,991	1,096,628

Securities Lending (note 3)

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the market values of securities loaned and related collateral amounts are shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	\$	\$
Securities loaned	53,219,455	20,308,217
Collateral	56,170,493	21,504,196
Collateral as a percentage of securities loaned (%)	106	106

During the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, securities lending income and charges are shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	\$	\$
Gross securities lending income	262,480	679,774
Securities lending charges	(89,189)	(314,482)
Net securities lending income	173,291	365,292
Withholding taxes on securities lending income	(39,502)	(14,587)
Net securities lending income received by the Fund	133,789	350,705
Net securities lending income as a percentage of gross securities lending income (%)	51	52

Sharing Arrangements (note 13)

During the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 total transaction costs incurred to certain brokers for research provided to the portfolio manager are shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	\$	\$
Soft dollar broker commissions	158,377	132,377

Statements of Financial Position

As at December 31	2022	2021
	S	\$
Assets		
Current assets		
Investments (note 3, 5)	166,944,061	176,050,941
Cash	864,553	-
Due from broker	-	915,372
Subscriptions receivable	19,952	50,151
Total assets	167,828,566	177,016,464
Liabilities		
Current liabilities		
Bank indebtedness	-	232,156
Redemptions payable	93,269	46,276
Accrued expenses	95,169	110,866
Total liabilities	188,438	389,298
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	167,640,128	176,627,166
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per series		
Series A	75,642,836	89,049,230
Series D	10,033,684	,,
Series F	81,963,608	87,577,936
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per series per unit (note 3)		
Series A	18.25	17.31
Series D	10.05	
Series F	19.08	18.04
Series A \$US Purchase Option	13.48	13.68
Series F \$US Purchase Option	14.09	14.26

See accompanying notes which are an integral part of these financial statements

On behalf of the Manager, Ninepoint Partners LP, by its General Partner, Ninepoint Partners GP Inc.

DIRECTOR

James Fox DIRECTOR

Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
	s	\$
Income		
Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investments	6,372,890	10,819,701
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) in the value of investments	4,512,415	(21,402,916)
Net realized gains (losses) on foreign exchange	(70,470)	(148,576)
Total income (loss)	10,814,835	(10,731,791)
Expenses (note 11, 12)		
Management fees	1,203,914	1,394,288
Unitholder reporting fees	255,711	258,474
Administrative fees	70,390	42,803
Custodial fees	38,575	36,026
Filing fees	25,507	26,013
Legal fees	19,600	43,001
Audit fees	17,838	17,334
Interest expense and bank charges	7,279	4,990
Independent Review Committee fees (note 14)	5,081	4,949
Total expenses	1,643,895	1,827,878
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations	9,170,940	(12,559,669)
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series		
Series A	4,268,584	(5,819,963)
Series D	118,529	-
Series F	4,783,827	(6,739,706)
Weighted average number of redeemable units		
Series A	4,576,374	5,455,131
Series D	1,054,223	5,455,151
Series F	4,490,037	5,758,952
SCHES I	4,490,037	3,736,932
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3)		
Series A	0.93	(1.07)
Series D	0.11	(1.07)
Series F	1.07	(1.17)
	2.07	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •

Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
	s	\$
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, beginning of year		
Series A	89,049,230	104,081,484
Series D	-	-
Series F	87,577,936	118,391,193
	176,627,166	222,472,677
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations		
Series A	4,268,584	(5,819,963)
Series D	118,529	(3,819,903)
Series F	4,783,827	(6,739,706)
Series F	9,170,940	(12,559,669)
	7,170,740	(12,339,009)
Redeemable unit transactions (note 8)		
Proceeds from redeemable units issued		
Series A	10,105,337	9,007,065
Series D	11,104,942	-
Series F	17,117,282	32,162,114
Redemption of redeemable units		
Series A	(27,780,315)	(18,219,356)
Series D	(1,189,787)	-
Series F	(27,515,437)	(56,235,665)
	(18,157,978)	(33,285,842)
Net increase (decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units		
Series A	(13,406,394)	(15,032,254)
Series D	10,033,684	(10,002,201)
Series F	(5,614,328)	(30,813,257)
Delites I	(8,987,038)	(45,845,511)
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, end of year		
Series A	75,642,836	89,049,230
Series D	10,033,684	-
Series F	81,963,608	87,577,936
	167,640,128	176,627,166

Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units continued

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
Units, beginning of year		
Series A	5,144,533	5,684,290
Series D	-	-
Series F	4,854,587	6,223,820
	9,999,120	11,908,110
Delegando de la contractica del la contractica del la contractica de la contractica		
Redeemable unit transactions (note 8)		
Redeemable units issued		
Series A	574,279	525,910
Series D	1,124,036	-
Series F	934,258	1,815,193
Redemption of redeemable units		
Series A	(1,573,198)	(1,065,667)
Series D	(125,586)	-
Series F	(1,492,798)	(3,184,426)
	(559,009)	(1,908,990)
Units, end of year		
Series A	4,145,614	5,144,533
Series D	998,450	
Series F	4,296,047	4,854,587
	9,440,111	9,999,120

Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
	s	\$
Cash flows from operating activities		
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations	9,170,940	(12,559,669)
Adjustments for:		
Foreign exchange (gains) losses on cash	25,732	3,768
Net realized (gains) losses on sales of investments	(6,372,890)	(10,819,701)
Change in unrealized (appreciation) depreciation in the value of investments	(4,512,415)	21,402,916
Purchases of investments	(1,920,302)	(8,282,687)
Proceeds from sale of investments	22,827,858	40,654,764
Net increase (decrease) in other assets and liabilities	(15,697)	(10,141)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities	19,203,226	30,389,250
Cash flows from financing activities		
Proceeds from redeemable units issued	34,398,884	37,781,780
Redemption of redeemable units	(52,479,669)	(70,743,871)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities	(18,080,785)	(32,962,091)
Foreign exchange gains (losses) on cash	(25,732)	(3,768)
Net increase (decrease) in cash	1,122,441	(2,572,841)
Cash (Bank indebtedness), beginning of year	(232,156)	2,344,453
Cash (Bank indebtedness), end of year	864,553	(232,156)
Supplemental Information*		
Supplemental Information*	7,279	4,990
Interest paid	1,219	4,990

^{*}Information provided relates to the operating activities of the Fund

Schedule of Investment Portfolio

As at December 31, 2022		Average Cost	Fair Value
		S	\$
OUNCES	BULLION [99.58%]		
67,596	Gold Bullion	113,341,520	166,944,061
Total investments [99.58%	6]	113,341,520	166,944,061
Cash and other assets less li	abilities [0.42%]		696,067
Total Net Assets attributa	ble to holders of redeemable units [100.00%]		167,640,128

Ninepoint Gold Bullion Fund Notes to financial statements — Fund specific information December 31, 2022

Financial Risk Management (note 6)

Investment Objective

The investment objective of the Fund is to seek to provide a secure, convenient alternative for investors seeking to hold gold. The Fund will invest primarily in unencumbered, fully allocated gold bullion and permitted gold certificates, the underlying interest of which is gold. The Fund may also invest a portion of its assets in cash, money market instruments and/or treasury bills. The Fund will only purchase and expects to only own "Good Delivery Bars" as defined by the London Bullion Market Association ("LBMA"), with each bar purchased being verified against the LBMA source.

The Schedule of Investment Portfolio presents the investments held by the Fund as at December 31, 2022. Significant risks that are relevant to the Fund are discussed here. General information on risks and risk management is described in *Note 6 Financial Risk Management* of the Generic Notes.

Market Risk

a) Other Price Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, if the price of gold bullion were to fluctuate by 10%, with all other variables held constant, the Fund's Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units would increase or decrease by the amounts shown in the table below.

December 31, 2022		December 3	1, 2021
	As a % of Net Assets		As a % of Net Assets
	attributable to holders		attributable to holders
Impact	of redeemable units	Impact	of redeemable units
\$	%	\$	%
16,694,406	9.96	17,605,094	9.97

b) Currency Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's direct exposure to currency risk and potential impact to the Fund's Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units as a result of a 1% change in these currencies relative to the Canadian dollar, with all other variables held constant, are shown in the tables below.

December 31, 2022

Currency	Fair Value	% of Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	Impact on Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units
Currency	ran value	%	S S
U.S. Dollar	166,944,061	99.58	1,669,441
December 31, 2021			
		% of Net Assets	Impact on Net Assets
		attributable to holders	attributable to holders
Currency	Fair Value	of redeemable units	of redeemable units
	\$	%	\$
U.S. Dollar	177,198,747	100.32	1,771,987

c) Interest Rate Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund did not have a significant exposure to interest rate risk.

Credit Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund did not have a significant exposure to credit risk.

Ninepoint Gold Bullion Fund Notes to financial statements — Fund specific information December 31, 2022

Concentration Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's concentration risk as a percentage of Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units is shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	%	%
Gold Bullion	99.58	99.67
Cash and other assets less liabilities	0.42	0.33
Total Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	100.00	100.00

Fair Value Measurements (note 5)

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's financial assets and liabilities, which are measured at fair value, have been categorized based upon the fair value hierarchy as shown in the tables below.

December 31, 2022	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
	\$	\$	S	\$
Gold Bullion	166,944,061	_	_	166,944,061
December 31, 2021	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
	\$	\$	\$	\$
Gold Bullion	176,050,941	_	_	176,050,941

During the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, there were no significant transfers between levels.

Management Fees (note 11)

Management fees differ among the series of units of the Fund as shown in the table below.

Series	Management Fees (Up to)
Series A	0.80%
Series D	0.50%
Series F	0.50%
Series I*	Negotiated by the Unitholder

^{*} The management fee for Series I units of the Fund is negotiated by the investor and paid directly by the investor or by the Fund, and would not exceed the management fee for Series A units of the Fund.

Tax Loss Carryforwards (note 3)

The taxation year ended December 15, 2022, the Fund had no capital and non-capital losses available for tax purposes.

Related Party Holdings

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, Ninepoint Financial Group Inc., the parent company of the Manager, and its respective subsidiaries, held the following investments shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
Units held		
Series D	100	_
Value of units held (\$)	1,005	

Ninepoint Diversified Bond Fund

Statements of Financial Position

As at December 31	2022	2021
	s	\$
Assets		
Current assets		
Investments (note 3, 5, 10)	333,170,513	802,203,270
Cash (note 10)	1,407,214	77,104,978
Broker margin (note 10)	-	9,963,144
Options purchased (note 3, 5)	5,416	-
Currency options purchased (note 3, 5)	62,518	-
Unrealized appreciation on forward currency contracts (note 3, 5)	13,955	696,945
Due from broker	-	315,368
Subscriptions receivable	454,352	188,479
Interest receivable	3,183,637	5,828,453
Interest receivable on swap contracts	1,107	-
Total assets	338,298,712	896,300,637
Liabilities		
Current liabilities		
Investments sold short (note 3, 5)	5,321,385	65,522,125
Option written (note 3, 5)	2,708	03,322,123
	157,415	-
Currency options written (note 3, 5)	137,413	430,140
Swaptions Written (note 3, 5)	- 8,675	702,512
Unrealized depreciation on swap contracts (note 3, 5)	8,075	
Distribution payable to unitholders	467,822	68,330
Redemptions payable	467,822 295	835,896
Management fees payable (note 11)		- 116 604
Interest payable on securities sold short	11,040	116,694
Interest payable on swap contracts	102.002	344,257
Accrued expenses	182,893	172,912
Total liabilities Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	6,152,233 332,146,479	68,192,866
Net Assets attributable to noiders of redeemable units	332,146,479	828,107,771
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per series		
Series A	40,429,239	69,603,700
Series D	766,503	752,698
Series F	186,665,075	379,542,660
Series FT	5,127,275	9,579,162
Series I	-	-
Series PF	17,708,835	51,128,617
Series PFT	3,337,993	4,017,423
Series Q	-	4,445,813
Series QF	62,175,681	249,078,821
Series QFT	10,687,526	45,571,888
Series QT	506,589	593,080
Series T	3,706,808	5,413,341
ETF Series	1,034,955	8,380,568

Ninepoint Diversified Bond Fund

Statements of Financial Position continued

As at December 31	2022	2021
	s	\$
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per series per unit (note 3)		
Series A	9.43	10.73
Series D	8.74	9.93
Series F	9.63	10.96
Series FT	7.50	8.71
Series I	-	-
Series PF	9.29	10.56
Series PFT	8.24	9.56
Series Q	-	10.02
Series QF	9.00	10.27
Series QFT	8.63	10.00
Series QT	8.57	10.02
Series T	6.48	7.61
ETF Series	17.25	19.72

See accompanying notes which are an integral part of these financial statements

On behalf of the Manager, Ninepoint Partners LP, by its General Partner, Ninepoint Partners GP Inc.

John Wilson DIRECTOR James Fox DIRECTOR

Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Tame
Description for dimbion propose (1967.) (1969.)
Description (1997年) (199
District sensors (price 5) 25,25 15,700 District sensors (price 5) (18,154) 21,25 15,25 Not reliable gains (posses) on suite of increments (18,154) 21,25 21,25 Not reliable gains (posses) on speciments (18,155) 32,25 15,25
broken place
Mer malloag jami (basis) son inspirace orimentes (1,000,50) (20,000,50) Ner malloag jami (basis) son synopica corrects (1,000,50) (20,000,50) Ner malload jami (basis) son synopica corrects (1,000,50) (20,000,50) Ner malload jami (basis) son synopic corrects (1,000,50) (20,000,50) Ner malload jami (basis) son synopic corrects (1,000,50) (20,000,50) Change in smealled apprecision (deprecisional new policy contracts) (10,000,50) (20,000,50) Change in smealled apprecisions (deprecisional new synopic contracts) (10,000,50) (20,000,50) Change in smealled apprecisions (deprecisional new synopic contracts) (10,000,50) (20,000,50) Change in smealled apprecisions (deprecisional new synopic contracts) (10,000,50) (20,000,50) Change in smealled apprecisional (deprecisional new synopic contracts) (10,000,50) (20,000,50) Change in smealled apprecisional (deprecisional new synopic contracts) (10,000,50) (20,000,50) Change in smealled apprecisional (deprecisional new synopic contracts) (10,000,50) (20,000,50) Change in smealled apprecisional (deprecisional new synopic contracts) (10,000,50) (10,000,50) Chair in
Act
Internation Content
Met mailed gains (lose) on some contracts (14,10%) (14,10%) Circ recited gain (precented kypecasted) in the value of investments (14,10%) (14,10%) Change in unrealized greecates (kypecasted) on points contracts (14,00%) (14,10%) Change in unrealized greecation (kypecasted) on options contracts (10,00%) (14,00%) Change in unrealized greecation (kypecasted) on options contracts (10,00%) (10,00%) (10,00%) Change in unrealized greecation (kypecasted) on options contracts (10,00%) <
Met mailed gains (lose) on some contracts (14,10%) (14,10%) Circ recited gain (precented kypecasted) in the value of investments (14,10%) (14,10%) Change in unrealized greecates (kypecasted) on points contracts (14,00%) (14,10%) Change in unrealized greecation (kypecasted) on options contracts (10,00%) (14,00%) Change in unrealized greecation (kypecasted) on options contracts (10,00%) (10,00%) (10,00%) Change in unrealized greecation (kypecasted) on options contracts (10,00%) <
Identification planes in the value of insertances(84,8748)(14,2014)Chappia simuralized appreasation (spreasation) an equito contracts(34,576)(34,576)Chappia in simuralized appreasation (spreasation) an equitor contracts(34,576)(34,576)Chappia in simuralized appreasation (spreasation) an equitor contracts(36,276)(36,276)Chappia in contracts(36,276)(36,276)Chappia in contracts(36,276)(36,276)Chappia in Chappia in
Clamp in murabad apprecisation (partecisation) in the value of investments(58,47%)(58,45%)Chappin in murabad apprecisation (partecisation) or quint contracts(16,30%)1.50%Chappin in murabad apprecisation (partecisation) or magnitude protection (partecisation) on supprison and partecisation) or partecisation (partecisation) on supprison and partecisation) on supprison and partecisation (partecisation) on super advantages(16,00%)10,00%Chappin uncalized pair question (disposation) on super advantages(16,00%)10,00%Chappin uncalization (partecisation) on super advantages10,00%10,00%Chappin uncalization (partecisation) on super advantages10,00%10,00%Chappin (partecisation) on super advantages40,00%10,00%Chappin (partecisation) on super advantages10,00%10,00%Chappin (partecisation) on super advantages10,00%10,0
Bune mumeled appreaching (negreation) on gronzey not contents (3,87) (5,86) Change a numerized oppreaching (negreation) on surreacy miss contents (64,76) 10,43 Change a numerized oppreaching (negreation) on warped contents (62,90) (64,15) Change a numerized oppreaching (negreation) on warpe centres (71,60) (71,60) Cert realized gainy (negreation) on warpe centres (71,60) (13,00) Cert realized gainy (negree content) (71,60) (13,00) Cert realized gain (negree content) (71,60) (13,00) Cert realized gain (negree content) (71,00) (71,00) Total Carlon (negree content) (71,00) (71,00) Cert realized gain (negree content) (71,00) (71,00) Charles (negree content) (71,00) (71,00) Charles (negree) (71,00) (
Biname and appreciation (precination) conventions (18,50) 16,250 16,2
日本日本 日本日本 日本日本 日本日本 日本日本 日本日本 日本日本 日本
日本日本 日本 日
Embate pure sure large quiron (origen calvange) (90,80%) (70,00%) Ker caller gian (oxine) 17,146 2,00% Che real (oxine) 34,00% 13,00% Che rice (oxine) (54,00%) 13,50% Topic (oxine) (54,00%) 13,50% Topic (oxine) 44,77,57 30,00% Unable (oxine) 44,77,57 30,00% Unable (oxine) 44,77,57 30,00% Company (oxine) 44,77,57 30,00% Company (oxine) 44,77,57 30,00% Company (oxine) 40,00% 40,00% Company (oxine) 40,00% 50,00%
Bernale plant (lose) on froits) (note) (1,84) (2,80) Cestification (3,64) (3,10) Tolk (more) (3,64) (3,10) Tolk (more) (3,64) (3,10) Description (more) (3,64) (3,04) Included rough (more) (3,64) (3,04) Admissible (more) (3,64) (3,04) Admissible (more) (3,64) (3,04) Admissible (more) (3,64) (3,04) Equity (more) (3,04) (3,04) Equity (more)
Securit planting framome 1,144 2,100 Obsertion (Monte) 36,469 1,300 Tourse (Monte) 56,469,10 1,300 Improvement I, 1.7 1 2,100 Response (M. 1.7) 4,427,75 1,013,42 Unifolder reporting fees 40,427,57 20,103,42 Claim feet 90,44 20,100 Claim feet 90,40 20,100 Claim feet 90,40 20,200 Claim feet 90,40 20,20 Claim feet 90,40 20,20
Observations 5,046 1,010 Instrume (bins) 5,66,040 1,010 Expense (mil. 1/2) 1 1 Minage of II. 1/20 44,27,757 3,104,326 Minage of II. 1/20 44,27,757 1,010,326 Chillisheler reporting fees 400,04 4,000,00 Chilisheler reporting fees 100,04 4,000,00 Fling fee 95,44 52,720 Interest on short positions 55,456 94,44 Interest on short positions 53,755 94,44 Interest on planting states 43,40 52,720 Interest of planting states 3,40 52,720 Interest common positions 3,40 4,720 Interest common state fees fired states 1,12 2,02 Legal Se 1,02 2,02 Legal Se 1,02 2,02 Legal Se 1,02 2,02 Retries of Commistion for feeder state stat
Page
Pages Page
Management fees 447,75% 30,103,79 Untitiobler reporting fees 400,44 400,008 Securities formwing fees 190,44 50,007 Elias fees 95,44 52,77 Interest on short positions 95,961 52,725 Interest qual on wany contracts 53,75 96,448 Carsadila Fees 13,129 12,725 Catalla Fees 14,501 2,680 Logs fees 19,251 2,680 Logs fees 19,251 2,780 2,712 Interest express and brusk charges 19,251 2,780 2,712 Report Express 1,725 2,712 2,712 Report Express 4,990 2,743 2,752 Methodian tees (referred feed feed feed feed feed feed f
Management fees 447,75% 30,103,79 Untitiobler reporting fees 400,44 400,008 Securities formwing fees 190,44 50,007 Elias fees 95,44 52,77 Interest on short positions 95,961 52,725 Interest qual on wany contracts 53,75 96,448 Carsadila Fees 13,129 12,725 Catalla Fees 14,501 2,680 Logs fees 19,251 2,680 Logs fees 19,251 2,780 2,712 Interest express and brusk charges 19,251 2,780 2,712 Report Express 1,725 2,712 2,712 Report Express 4,990 2,743 2,752 Methodian tees (referred feed feed feed feed feed feed f
Inchalcular reporting fees 597,47 300,709 Administrative fees 402,043 402,003 Scortins betrowing fees 10,657 20,018 Pling fees 98,244 58,272 Interest on short positions 55,358 572,200 Interest paid on ways centracts 53,358 64,448 Armancian cost state 3, 13) 50,229 15,758 Chastial fees 35,029 15,758 Legal fees 24,003 26,758 Legal fees 24,003 26,758 Legal fees 24,003 26,758 Legal fees eyes and bank charges 12,229 17,120 Interest eyes committee fees intel 4) 40,203 4,788 Validolifique toxic feeds 40,103 3,988 Ricrease (Decrease) in Net Assets stributable to holders of redeemable units from operations 66,625,232 7,978 Series F 60,21,732,61 1,903,783 67,878 67,878 67,878 67,878 67,878 67,878 67,878 67,878 67,878 67,878 67,878 67,8
Administrative fee 48,048 48,008 Scurities horney 192,647 52,27 Elige Se 59,414 53,27 Interest pation swap contracts 59,648 57,200 Timesed const now J, IJ 53,755 64,048 Clustoinfee 33,755 15,078 Audit Se 43,048 62,048 Legal Fee 19,251 25,008 Ricard sequence and bank charges 19,251 25,008 Interest opene and bank charges 4,090 4,748 Ricard Secretary in Net Assets stributable banked redemals units from operations 6,652,533 5,58,087 Response Decrease) in Net Assets stributable banked redemals units from operations per series 6,652,533 5,58,087 5,58,5
Issentifies browing fies 192,45 \$2,23 Intires for obsert positions 95,081 57,23 Interest positions 95,081 57,23 Interest positions of some supportances 55,75 64,64 Transcriptores (note 3, 15) 51,20 15,70 Cutodial fee 20,01 4,00 Audit fees 20,01 2,00 Legif Soc 19,21 2,00 Interest expanse and bank changes 19,22 2,00 Interest expanse and bank changes 4,00 4,70 Interest (rechims) 4,00 4,70 Veliability (rechims) 4,00 4,70 Veliability (rechims) 6,00 2,00 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of recleenable units from operations per series 6,065,252 6,00 Scries F (0,00 1,00 1,00 Scries G (0,00 1,00 Scries G (0,00 1,00 Scries F (0,00 1,00 Scries F (0,00 1,00 <
Files (See 1986) 98,14 (52.27) Interes paid on swap contexts 96,85 (57.20) Interest paid on swap contexts 55,75 (57.20) Closidal fixed 35,75 (37.20) Closidal fixed 35,75 (37.20) Closidal fixed 35,75 (37.20) Closidal fixed 36,80 (37.20) Use of Experience and bank charges 19,20 (37.20) 7,230 (37.20) Interest experience and bank charges 4,90 (41.24) 3,90 (41.24) Melegating Review Committee fees front I-I) 4,90 (41.24) 3,90 (41.24) Melegating Review Committee fees front I-I 4,90 (41.24) 3,90 (41.24) Melegating Review Committee fees front I-I 4,90 (41.24) 3,90 (41.24) Melegating Review Committee fees front I-I 4,90 (41.24) 3,90 (41.24) Review Committee fees front I-I 4,90 (41.24) 3,90 (41.24) Review Committee fees front I-I 4,90 (41.24) 3,90 (41.24) Review Committee fees front I-I 4,90 (41.24) 3,90 (41.24) Series Developed Series (Feedeath Interest) 4,90 (41.24) 3,90 (41.24) Series F 4,90 (41.24) 3,90 (41.24)<
Interest pations was peatmented \$5,85 60-4648 Iterase pation was peatmented \$3,75 60-6404 Tansaction cost (note 3, 13) \$3,209 152,768 Clusida Es 20,301 20,308 Legal Es 19,251 20,508 Interest quee and bank charges 7,236 7,112 Interest experience frome 1-1 4,909 4,708 Withballing taxes (rechains) 4,904 4,909 Withballing taxes (rechains) 4,904 7,904 Withballing taxes (rechains) 66,452,503 5,904,100 Terrest Decrease in Net Asset attributable to holders of redeemble units from operations 66,452,503 2,203,405 Series D (8,652,503 2,203,405 2,203,405 Series D (8,072,104) 1,500,40 2,500,40 Series P (3,002,104) 1,500,40 2,500,40 2,500,40 2,500,40 2,500,40 2,500,40 2,500,40 2,500,40 2,500,40 2,500,40 2,500,40 2,500,40 2,500,40 2,500,40 2,500,40 2,500,40 2,500,40
Interest paid on swap contracts 53,755 964,443 Transaction costs (note 3, 13) 55,229 15,768 Custodial fees 28,013 26,088 Legal fees 28,013 20,088 Incept capense and bank changes 7,250 7,126 7,126 Independant review Committer fees (note 14) 4,040 3,040 4,788 Melondonian transcriptions 5,83,095 5,95,841 Net request 6,652,539 2,755,025 Net request 6,652,539 2,755,025 Series D (00,167) 1,815 Series F (6,652,539) 1,015 Series F (79,02) 1,015 Series F (30,172,60) 1,016 Series F (30,22,60) 1,016 Series F (30,32,30) 1,016 Series F (30,32,30) 1,016 Series Q (30,35) 1,016 Series Q (30,35) 1,016 Series Q (25,79,60) 1,516 Series A (50,30)
Tames 19,20 1
Case of
Audit fee 28.013 2.0,808 Legal Fees 19.251 2.0,808 Legal Fees 7.250 7.121 Independent Review Committee (see (note 14)) 4.909 4.788 Withholding taxes (reclaims) 6.4194 3.98 Withholding taxes (reclaims) 5.830,657 5.986,410 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations 4.6652,532 2.023,455 Series D (90,107) 1.818 5.850,675 1.818 5.850,675 1.818 5.875 1.818 5.875 1.818 5.826,675 1.818 5.826,675 1.818 5.826,675 1.818 5.826,675 1.818 5.826,675 1.818 5.826,675 1.818 5.826,675 1.818 5.826,675 1.818 5.826,675 1.818 5.826,675 1.818 5.826,675 1.818 5.826,675 1.818 5.826,675 1.818 5.826,675 1.818 5.826,675 1.818 5.826,675 1.818 5.826,675 1.818 5.826,675 1.818 5.826,675 1.8
Legal fees 19,251 20,888 Interse expense admak charges 77,290 7,118 Undependent Review Committee fees (note 14) 4,909 4,788 With Long Seed 58,80,875 58,80,875 58,80,875 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations 8,750,875 6,652,523 2,755,878 Series A (8,652,523) (2,735,878) 2,755,878 Series F (30,722,66) 1,308,788 Series PT (30,721,76) 1,212,739 Series QF (30,723,76) 1,22,725 Series QF (30,723,76) 1,221,725 Series QF (30,723,76) 1,221,725 Series QF (30,723,76) 2,223,725 Series QF (30,723,725,725 2,223,725 2,223,725
Interest expense and bank charges 7,250 7,112 Independent Review Committee fees (note 14) 4,90 4,784 With bolding bases (reclaims) 5,800,057 5,906,140 Net capses 5,800,057 5,906,140 Increase (Decreas) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations cere (cereas) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series cere (cereas) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series cere (cereas) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series cere (cereas) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series cere (cereas) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series cere (cereas) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series cere (cereas) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series cere (cereas) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series cere (cereas) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series cere (cereas) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series cere (cereas) in Net Assets attributable to defende per series cere (cereas) in Net Assets attributable to defende per series cere (cereas) in Net Assets attributable to defende per series cere (cereas) in Net Assets attributable to defende
Independent Review Committee fee (note 14) 4,788 Withlohing taxes (reclaims) (1,12) 3,798 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations (2,479,56) 7,556,782 Berriess A (6,625,23) (2,735,785) Series B (90,167) 1,815 Series F (30,722,26) 1,90,672 Series PF (35,823,30) 1,90,622 Series PF (35,823,30) 1,90,622 Series PF (35,823,30) 1,90,622 Series QF (30,431) 1,223 Series QF (30,431) 1,223 Series QF (30,231) 1,224 Series QF (30,237) 1,524 Series QF (30,237) 2,521,502 Series A 5,251,604 3,735,702
Withholding taxes (reclaims) 4,124) 3,940 Net capuess 5,830,057 5,968,410 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations 6,627,932 7,755,768,78 Geries A (6,625,32) (273,455) 5,876,55 6,91,67 1,815 5,876,55 6,91,67 1,815 5,876,55 6,91,67 1,815 5,876,54 6,662,532 (273,455) 5,976,54 5,976,54 5,976,54 5,976,54 5,976,54 5,976,54 5,976,54 5,976,54 5,976,54 5,976,54 5,976,54 5,976,54 5,976,54 5,976,54 5,976,54 6,976,54 3,976,54 5,976,54 6,976,54 9,976,54 3,976,54 6,976,54 1,976,54
Net expenses 5,830,057 5,968,410 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series c(6,2479,361) 7,556,782 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series series S (90,167) 1,815 Series D (90,167) 1,815 5,876,878 Series F (782,982) 20,399 Series I 1 5,975,414 Series PF (3,828,839) 190,612 Series PF (392,117) 17,253 Series QF (30,71,276) 11,498 Series QF (16,228,415) 973,688 Series QF (16,228,415) 973,688 Series QF (2,577,961) 152,217 Series QF (5,50,956) (2,460) EF Series (525,00) (2,460) EF Series QF (50,956) (2,460) EF Series A 5,251,604 3,919,302 Series PF 25,507,566 15,736,739 Series F 25,07,566 15,736,739 <t< td=""></t<>
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series (6,479,361) 7,556,782
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series Series A
Series A (6,652,532) (273,455) Series D (90,167) 1.815 Series F (30,722,263) 1.308,768 Series FT (782,982) 20,399 Series I - 5,075,414 Series PF (3,582,839) 190,612 Series QF (392,117) 17,253 Series QF (20,576) 11,498 Series QF (2,577,961) 152,217 Series QF (353,936) (2,466) Series QT (353,936) (2,466) Series QT (350,936) (2,460) Series T (350,936) (2,460) Series S (47,003) 80,135 Series S (47,003) 80,135 Series S (525,604) 3,919,302 Series S (47,003) 80,135 Series S (527,506) 15,736,736 Series P (52,507,566) 15,736,736 Series PF (27,53,202) 20,755,266 Series PF (27,53,202) 20,755,2
Series A (6,652,532) (273,455) Series D (90,167) 1.815 Series F (30,722,263) 1.308,768 Series FT (782,982) 20,399 Series I - 5,075,414 Series PF (3,582,839) 190,612 Series QF (392,117) 17,253 Series QF (20,576) 11,498 Series QF (2,577,961) 152,217 Series QF (353,936) (2,466) Series QT (353,936) (2,466) Series QT (350,936) (2,460) Series T (350,936) (2,460) Series S (47,003) 80,135 Series S (47,003) 80,135 Series S (525,604) 3,919,302 Series S (47,003) 80,135 Series S (527,506) 15,736,736 Series P (52,507,566) 15,736,736 Series PF (27,53,202) 20,755,266 Series PF (27,53,202) 20,755,2
Series D (90,167) 1,815 Series F (30,722,63) 1,308,768 Series FT (782,982) 20,309 Series PE (3,582,839) 190,612 Series PFT (392,117) 17,253 Series Q (203,576) 11,498 Series QF (16,228,415) 973,058 Series QF (2,577,961) 152,217 Series QT (536,936) (2,466) ETF Series (536,936) (2,466) ETF Series 5,251,604 3,919,302 Series D 94,917 20,181 Series D 94,917 20,181 Series D 94,917 20,181 Series D 25,507,566 15,736,739 Series F 25,507,566 15,736,739 Series F 25,153,626 27,53,022 2075,260 Series PF 412,746 348,74 343,432 343,432 343,432 343,432 343,432 343,432 343,432 343,432 343,432 343,432 343,4
Series F (30,722,63) 1,308,768 Series FT (782,982) 20,399 Series PF (3,582,839) 190,612 Series PFT (392,117) 17,253 Series QF (302,177) 17,253 Series QF (16,228,45) 973,058 Series QT (62,579) 1,52,217 Series QT (62,579) 1,534 Series QT (647,003) 80,135 EFF Series (530,936) (2,466) EFF Series 5,251,604 3,919,302 Series DF 94,917 20,181 Series F 25,507,566 15,736,739 Series F 25,507,566 15,736,739 Series F 25,150,626 51,736,739 Series FF 27,530,62 52,753,062 Series PF 27,530,62 20,752,600 Series QF 412,746 348,74 Series QF 21,035,602 34,702 Series QF 21,035,602 34,702 Series QF 22,055,206
Series FT (782,982) 20,399 Series I - 5,075,414 Series PF (3,582,839) 190,612 Series PFT (392,117) 17,225 Series QF (203,576) 11,498 Series QF (16,228,415) 973,058 Series QFT (62,570) 1,534 Series QT (536,936) (2,466) EF Series (536,936) (2,466) EF Series A 5,251,604 3,919,302 Series D 94,917 20,181 Series F 25,507,566 15,736,739 Series FI 81,535 517,540 Series FF 2,753,202 2,075,200 Series PF 412,746 348,774 Series QF 12,635,602 8,708,255 Series QF 2,005,774 668,162 Series QF 2,005,774 668,162
Series I - 5,075,414 Series PF (3,582,839) 190,612 Series PFT (392,117) 17,253 Series QF (203,576) 11,498 Series QFT (2,577,961) 152,217 Series QT (536,936) (2,6460 ETF Series (536,936) (2,6460 ETF Series 5,251,604 3,919,302 Series D 94,917 20,181 Series F 25,507,566 15,736,739 Series FT 831,535 517,540 Series PF 2,753,202 2,075,260 Series PFT 412,746 348,774 Series QF 412,746 348,774 Series QF 11,635,602 8,708,255 Series QF 12,635,602 8,708,255 Series QF 2,005,774 668,102
Scries PF (3,582,839) 190,612 Scries PFT (392,117) 17,253 Scries QF (203,576) 11,498 Scries QF (6,2577,961) 152,217 Scries QT (6,2570) 1,534 Scries T (536,936) (2,466) ETF Scries (536,936) 3,919,302 Scries A 5,251,604 3,919,302 Scries D 94,917 20,181 Scries F 25,507,566 15,736,739 Scries F 25,507,566 15,736,739 Scries FF 2,753,202 2,075,206 Scries PF 412,464 348,774 Scries QF 211,333 443,724 Scries QF 12,635,602 8,708,255 Scries QF 668,105 668,105
Series PFT (392,117) 17,253 Scries Q (203,576) 11,498 Scries QF (16,228,415) 973,058 Scries QFT (2,577,961) 152,217 Scries QT (62,570) 1,534 Scries T (536,936) (2,466) ETF Scries (647,003) 80,135 Scries D 94,917 20,181 Scries F 25,507,566 15,736,739 Scries FT 81,535 517,56,736 Scries PF 2,753,202 2,075,206 Scries PFT 412,746 348,774 Scries QF 412,746 348,774 Scries QF 12,63,602 8,708,255 Scries QF 12,63,602 8,708,255 Scries QF 12,63,602 8,708,255 Scries QFT 668,102 9,708,255
Series Q (203,576) 11,498 Series QF (16,228,415) 973,058 Series QFT (2,577,961) 152,217 Series QT (62,570) 1,534 Series T (647,003) 80,135 Weighted average number of redeemable units Series A 5,251,604 3,919,302 Series D 94,917 20,181 Series FF 25,507,566 15,736,739 Series FT 831,535 517,540 Series PF 2,753,202 2,075,206 Series PFT 412,746 348,774 Series QF 112,635,602 8,708,255 Series QF 12,635,602 8,708,255 Series QF 12,635,602 8,708,255 Series QF 12,605,602 8,708,255 Series QF 12,055,602 8,708,255 Series QF 12,055,602 8,708,255
Series QF (16,228,415) 973,058 Series QFT (2,577,961) 152,217 Series QT (62,570) 1,534 Series T (536,936) (2,466) ETF Series (647,003) 80,135 Weighted average number of redeemable units Series A 5,251,604 3,919,302 Series D 94,917 20,181 Series F 25,507,566 15,736,739 Series FT 831,535 517,540 Series PF 2,753,202 2,075,260 Series PFT 412,746 348,774 Series QF 211,635,602 8,708,225 Series QF 12,635,602 8,708,225 Series QF 2,005,774 668,102
Series QFT (2,577,961) 152,217 Series QT (62,570) 1,534 Series T (536,936) (2,466) ETF Series (647,003) 80,135 Weighted average number of redeemable units Series A 5,251,604 3,919,302 Series D 94,917 20,181 Series F 25,507,566 15,736,739 Series I 831,535 517,540 Series PF 2,753,202 2,075,260 Series PFT 412,746 348,774 Series QF 211,333 443,432 Series QF 12,635,602 8,708,255 Series QF 2,005,774 668,162
Series QFT (2,577,961) 152,217 Series QT (62,570) 1,534 Series T (536,936) (2,466) ETF Series (647,003) 80,135 Weighted average number of redeemable units Series A 5,251,604 3,919,302 Series D 94,917 20,181 Series F 25,507,566 15,736,739 Series I 831,535 517,540 Series PF 2,753,202 2,075,260 Series PFT 412,746 348,774 Series QF 211,333 443,432 Series QF 12,635,602 8,708,255 Series QF 2,005,774 668,162
Series QT (62,570) 1,534 Series T (536,936) (2,466) ETF Series (647,003) 80,135 Weighted average number of redeemable units Series A \$251,604 3,919,302 Series D 94,917 20,181 Series FF 25,507,566 15,736,739 Series I 31,535 517,540 Series PF 2,753,202 2,075,260 Series PFT 412,746 348,732 Series Q 211,333 443,432 Series QF 12,635,602 8,708,255 Series QF 12,635,602 8,708,255 Series QF 2,005,774 668,162
Series T (536,936) (2,466) ETF Series (647,003) 80,135 Weighted average number of redeemable units Series A 5,251,604 3,919,302 Series D 94,917 20,181 Series FF 25,507,566 15,736,739 Series FT 831,535 517,540 Series PF 2,753,202 2,075,260 Series PFT 412,746 348,774 Series QF 211,333 443,432 Series QF 12,635,602 8,708,255 Series QFT 668,162
ETF Series (647,003) 80,135 Weighted average number of redeemable units Series A 5,251,604 3,919,302 Series D 94,917 20,181 Series FF 25,507,566 15,736,739 Series FT 831,535 517,540 Series PF 2,753,202 2,075,260 Series PFT 412,746 348,774 Series QF 211,333 443,432 Series QF 12,635,602 8,708,255 Series QFT 668,162
Weighted average number of redeemable units Series A 5,251,604 3,919,302 Series D 94,917 20,181 Series F 25,507,566 15,736,739 Series FT 831,535 517,540 Series PF 2,753,202 2,075,260 Series PFT 412,746 348,774 Series QF 211,333 443,432 Series QF 12,635,602 8,708,255 Series QFT 668,162
Series A 5,251,604 3,919,302 Series D 94,917 20,181 Series F 25,507,566 15,736,739 Series FT 831,535 517,540 Series PF 2,753,202 2,075,260 Series PFT 412,746 348,752 Series QF 211,333 443,432 Series QF 12,635,602 8,708,255 Series QFT 668,162
Series A 5,251,604 3,919,302 Series D 94,917 20,181 Series F 25,507,566 15,736,739 Series FT 831,535 517,540 Series PF 2,753,202 2,075,260 Series PFT 412,746 348,752 Series QF 211,333 443,432 Series QF 12,635,602 8,708,255 Series QFT 668,162
Series D 94,917 20,181 Series F 25,507,566 15,736,739 Series FT 831,535 517,540 Series PF 2,753,202 2,075,260 Series PFT 412,746 348,775 Series QF 211,333 443,432 Series QF 12,635,602 8,708,255 Series QFT 668,162
Series F 25,507,566 15,736,739 Series FT 831,535 517,540 Series I - 52,153,626 Series PF 2,753,202 2,075,260 Series PFT 412,746 348,774 Series QF 12,635,602 8,708,255 Series QFT 668,162
Series FT 831,535 517,540 Series I - 52,153,626 Series PF 2,753,202 2,075,260 Series PFT 412,746 348,774 Series Q 211,333 443,432 Series QF 12,635,602 8,708,255 Series QFT 668,162
Series I 52,153,626 Series PF 2,753,202 2,075,260 Series PFT 412,746 348,774 Series Q 211,333 443,432 Series QF 12,635,602 8,708,255 Series QFT 668,162
Series PF 2,753,202 2,075,260 Series PFT 412,746 348,774 Series Q 211,333 443,432 Series QF 12,635,602 8,708,255 Series QFT 2,005,774 668,162
Series PFT 412,746 348,774 Series Q 211,333 443,432 Series QF 12,635,602 8,708,255 Series QFT 2,005,774 668,162
Series Q 211,333 443,432 Series QF 12,635,602 8,708,255 Series QFT 2,005,774 668,162
Series QF 12,635,602 8,708,255 Series QFT 2,005,774 668,162
Series QFT 2,005,774 668,162
a : om
Series QT 59,156 59,162
Series T 633,180 236,209
ETF Series 232,033 332,192

Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) continued

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
	s	\$
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3)		
Series A	(1.27)	(0.07)
Series D	(0.95)	0.09
Series F	(1.20)	0.08
Series FT	(0.94)	0.04
Series I	-	0.10
Series PF	(1.30)	0.09
Series PFT	(0.95)	0.05
Series Q	(0.96)	0.03
Series QF	(1.28)	0.11
Series QFT	(1.29)	0.23
Series QT	(1.06)	0.03
Series T	(0.85)	(0.01)
ETF Series	(2.79)	0.24

Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units

Kontant antibulative in bulber of redeemake units, peginning of year 5 10.001,55 Seen A 0.000,50 0.001,55 Seen B 0.900,50 0.001,55 Seen B 0.951,40 1.54,100 Seen B 9.751,42 1.61,200 Seen BF 4.01,25 1.05,25,25 Seen BF 4.01,20 1.001,20 Seen G 4.01,20 1.001,20 Seen G 4.001,20 4.001,20 Seen G 6.000,20 4.000,20	For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
Sales A 95,00,00,00 40,00,00 Sales F 375,42,00 313,44,45 Sales F 575,42,41 313,44,45 Sales F 51,224,41 312,222,20 Sales F 51,224,41 312,222,20 Sales F 51,224,41 312,222,20 Sales GF 240,834 61,25,56 Sales OF 240,838 44,848 Sales OF 51,324,41 61,02,56 Sales OF 51,324,41 61,02,57 Sales OF 51,324,41 61,02,57 Sales OF 51,324,41 61,02,57 Sales OF 51,324,41 61,02,57 Sales OF 68,232,30 (27,338) Sales OF 68,232,30 (27,338) Sales OF 68,232,30 (30,500,40 Sales OF 69,323,30 (3		S	S
### 1985年		60 603 700	42 401 552
See 7			
Scried 1 1,12,22,10 1,12,52,10 1,05,23 1,05,23 1,05,23 1,05,23 1,05,23 1,05,23 1,05,23 1,05,23 1,05,23 1,05,23 1,05,25 1,05,20			
Sea FF		7,377,102	
Sen FT		51 128 617	
Seis Q 4445月 2055年 1967年 1			
Sens OFF 1,200,79.25 4,200,79.25 1,200,79.25			3,012,331
Sires QT 58.08 Sq Sens QT 58.08 Sq Fire Trained 58.08 Sq The Trained 58.08 Sq Increase Discrease Institution for selectable smits from operations 58.08 Sq Sens Q 606.52 Sq Sens D 606.52 Sq Sens PT 109.20 Sq Sens PG 109.20 Sq Sens Q 109.20 Sq Sens QF 109.20 Sq <td></td> <td></td> <td>60 256 762</td>			60 256 762
Scriot (1) \$1,14,14 1,64,14			
Sries T \$1,00.00			,,
FF Series			1,674,183
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations			
Series A (6,62,523) (27,455) Series B (80,172,263) 1,087,68 Series F (878,2982) 20,39 Series IT (878,2982) 20,39 Series PF (3,828,399) 190,01 Series PF (392,117) 17,25 Series QF (302,577) 11,27 Series QF (2,577,60) 152,27 Series QF (2,577,60) 152,27 Series QF (2,577,60) 152,27 Series QF (3,50,30) (2,466) EFF Series (3,50,30) (2,466) EFF Series (3,50,30) (2,466) EFF Series (2,77,90) 813,27 Series A (2,79) (3,53,37 Series A (2,79) (3,53,37 Series A (2,79) (3,53,37 Series A (2,79) (3,51,37 Series A (3,79) (3,51,37 Series F (3,60) (3,78,18 Series F (3,60) (3,78,18 <tr< td=""><td>211 04140</td><td></td><td>780,869,734</td></tr<>	211 04140		780,869,734
Series A (6,62,523) (27,455) Series B (80,172,263) 1,087,68 Series F (878,2982) 20,39 Series IT (878,2982) 20,39 Series PF (3,828,399) 190,01 Series PF (392,117) 17,25 Series QF (302,577) 11,27 Series QF (2,577,60) 152,27 Series QF (2,577,60) 152,27 Series QF (2,577,60) 152,27 Series QF (3,50,30) (2,466) EFF Series (3,50,30) (2,466) EFF Series (3,50,30) (2,466) EFF Series (2,77,90) 813,27 Series A (2,79) (3,53,37 Series A (2,79) (3,53,37 Series A (2,79) (3,53,37 Series A (2,79) (3,51,37 Series A (3,79) (3,51,37 Series F (3,60) (3,78,18 Series F (3,60) (3,78,18 <tr< td=""><td>Lawrence (December 2) Not Asset at the behavior had been been decembered to</td><td></td><td></td></tr<>	Lawrence (December 2) Not Asset at the behavior had been been decembered to		
Seris D		(6 652 522)	(272 455)
Series F (30,22,26) 1,08,76 Series I (30,23) 2,03,54 Series PT (3,52,339) 1,90,41 Series QF (30,21) 1,72,55 Series QF (16,228,45) 1,13,55 Series QF (16,228,45) 13,13,55 Series QF (16,228,45) 13,13,55 Series QF (2,577,66) 12,217 Series QF (3,50,36) 1,26,65 Series QF (3,50,36) 1,26,65 Series QF (3,50,36) 1,26,65 Series QF (3,50,36) 1,26,65 Series QF (3,70,60) 3,53,73 Series A (27,94) 3,53,73 Series A (27,94) 3,53,73 Series A (3,97,60) 3,53,73 Series A (3,97,60) 3,53,13 Series A (3,97,60) 3,53,13 Series A (3,97,60) 3,53,13 Series A (3,97,60) 3,53,13 Series A (3,97,60) 3,53,23			
Scrist FT (32,38) 20,39 Scrist PE (3,82,39) 190,61 Scrist PT (32,17) 172,55 Scrist QT (40,257) 11,90 Scrist QT (62,70) 12,35 Scrist QT (62,70) 1,53 Scrist AT (64,70) 80,13 ETF Scrie (64,70) 80,13 Scrist AT (67,70) (67,70) Scrist AT (61,70) (71,10) Scrist AT (61,70) (71,81) Scrist AT (71,90)			
Series I 5,058,439 30,051 Series PF (92,117) 17.25 Series QF (20,357) 17.25 Series QF (62,2415) 973,05 Series QF (62,570) 15.2 Series QT (62,570) 15.3 Series QT (64,700) 15.3 Series QT (64,700) 10.13 Series QT (67,700) (53,373) Series A (70,704) (53,373) Series P (50,700) (70,801) Series P (61,102) (49,604) Series PF (81,104) (62,271) Series PF (81,104) (62,271) Series PF (81,104) (62,271) Series QF (70,204) (71,204) Series			
Series PF (382,139) 190.01 Series PG (321,50) 11.49 Series Q (6228,415) 97.305 Series Q (6236,41) 97.305 Series Q (627,94) 15.221 Series Q (627,94) 15.221 Series Q (627,94) 15.221 Series Q (627,94) 15.221 Series Q (647,94) 15.221 Series A (647,94) 18.03 Series F (647,94) 18.35,39 Series D (794) (35,37) Series PF (601,22) (36,07) Series PF (601,22) (49,04) Series		(782,982)	
Series PT (30.17) 1.71.25 Series QF (16,228.45) 93.05.5 Series QF (16,228.45) 93.05.2 Series QF (16,228.45) 15.22.1 Series QF (16,50.40) 15.22.1 Series QF (46,70.40) 2.46.6 EFF Series (46,70.40) 30.01.2 EFF Series (47,70.40) 30.01.2 Series D (17,50.3) (5,57.70) Series D (17,50.3) (3,50.71) Series D (17,50.3) (3,50.71) Series D (17,50.3) (3,50.71) Series PF (10,10.10) (10,10.10) Series PF (10,10.10) (10,10.10) Series PF (10,10.10) (10,10.10) Series QF (10,10.10) (10,10.10) Series QF (10,10.10) (10,10.10) Series QF (10,00.10) (10,10.10) Series QF (10,00.10) (10,10.10) Series QF (10,00.10) (10,10.10) Series QF		(3 582 830)	
Series Q (16,22,415) 97.10 Series QF (16,22,415) 97.10 Series QF (62,577) 15.22 Series QF (62,570) 1.53 Series T (64,700) 30.13 EFF Series (64,700) 7.55,782 Distributions to holders of reteenable units Series A (62,704) (53,337) Series A (67,704) (53,317) Series F (50,972) (3,471) Series F (50,972) (3,471) Series F (60,121) (49,042) Series PT (10,121) (49,042) Series QF (10,122) (49,042) Series QF (10,022) (49,042) Series QF (10,022) (49,042) Series QF (10,022) (49,042) <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>			
Series QF (16,228,415) 937,955 Series QT (2,577,94) 15,237 Series QT (35,636) 2,456 ETF Series (62,79) 3,635 ETF Series (62,79) 5,557,82 Double of redeemble units Town net investient income Series A (62,794) (35,537) Series PF (60,702) (3,780,118 Series PG (101,607) (101,107 Series PF (601,221) (49,602) Series PG (601,221) (49,602) Series PG (601,221) (49,602) Series PG (601,221) (49,602) Series PG (60,001) (50,002) Series PG (49,602) (2,02,898) Series PG (49,602) (2,02,898) Series PG (5,002) (2,02,898) Series PG (5,002) (2,02,898) Series PG (5,002) (2,02,898) Series PG (5,002) (2,02,988) S			
Series QF (2,577,961) 15.221 Series QT (6,567) 1.535 Series GT (647,003) 3.033 EFF Series (647,003) 7,557,878 Distributions to holders of releemble units Former to westermatic westerm			
Series QT (82,579) 1,33 Series T (836,936) 2,466 ETF Series (647,000) 30,33 Distributions to holders of redeemable units Series A (627,094) (535,337 Series D (17,582) (5,871,100) Series F (14,607) (19,1107 Series FF (14,607) (19,1107 Series PF (18,135,629 (81,135,629 Series PF (18,104) (82,135,629 Series PF (18,104) (18,135,629 Series QF (18,104) (18,104) Series QF (18,104) (18,104) Series QF (18,104) (17,104) Series QF (18,04) (19,107) Series QF (18,04) (19,104) Series QF (18,04) (19,1			
Series T (56,93) 2,466 ETF Series (647,03) 3,233 Distributions bolders of redeemable units Tomate investment income Series A (627,04) (535,337 Series A (67,04) (535,337 Series F (5,07) (1,10,10) Series F (601,21) (19,10) Series PF (601,22) (49,612) Series QF (601,22) (49,612) Series QF (16,04) (52,03) Series QF (601,22) (20,239) Series QF (30,40) (20,239) Series QF (30,40) (20,217) Series QF (30,40) (20,20) Series QF (30,40) (20,20) Series PF (30,40) (30,20) Series A (30,40) (20,20) Series QF (30,40) (30,20) Series A (30,40) (30,20) Series AF (30,40) (30,20) Series AF (30,4			
EFF Series (647,003) 80.13* (5247,936) 7.556,78* Distributions to holders of redeemable units From net investment income Series A (627,094) (35.337) Series D (17,882) (3,607) Series FF (5,697,206) (3,780,118 Series FF (61,47,607) (10,1107) Series PF (81,943) (82,127) Series QF (81,943) (82,127) Series QF (81,943) (22,127) Series QF (81,943) (22,127) Series QF (81,943) (21,217) Series QF (31,756,92) (20,202,828) Series QF (31,942) (21,717) Series QF (31,943) (21,217) Series QF (35,943) (17,957) Series QF (89,94) (17,957) Series D (89,94) (19,577) Series A (30,94) (49,672) Series D (89,94) (49,672) <t< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td></t<>			
Distributions to holders of redeemable units From net investment income Series A (627,094) (353,337 Series D (17,582) (3,617 Series F (5,697,206) (3,781,18 Series F (5,697,206) (3,781,18 Series F (61,212) (49,612) Series Q (16,021) (49,612) Series Q (16,020) (530 Series Q (16,020) (530 Series Q (16,020) (530 Series Q (16,020) (530 Series Q (18,943) (12,177 Series QF (317,962) (20,283,985) Series QF (52,791) (20,701) Series QF (52,791) (20,701) Series D (80,905) (43,649) (14,717 Series D (80,905) (43,649) (43,957) Series D (80,905) (80,907) (50,907) Series F (20,402) (20,902) (20,902) Series F			
Distributions to holders of redeemable units From net investment income (627,094) (353,337) Series A (627,094) (353,337) Series D (147,607) (30,118) Series FT (61,207) (101,107) Series PF (601,221) (499,612) Series PF (601,221) (499,612) Series PF (61,043) (821,277) Series QF (3,19,602) (530,808) Series QF (3,19,602) (2,02,895) Series QF (43,044) (21,717) Series QF (3,19,602) (2,02,895) Series QF (3,19,602) (2,02,895) From return of capital (5,791) (20,701) Series A (3,995) (5,997) Series PF (3,19,602) (3,997) Series PF (3,19,602) (3,997) Series PF (3,19,602) (3,997) Series PF (3,19,602) (3,997) Series PF (3,19,602) (3,19,602) Series QF<	ETT Series	, , ,	
From net investment income (627,094) (537,374) Series A (627,094) (53,617) (36,617) Series F (5,697,206) (3,79,118) (30,118) Series FT (611,221) (499,612) (499,612) Series PF (611,221) (499,612) (32,797)		(, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	.,,,,,,,,
Series A (627,094) (535,337 Series D (17,822) (3,617) Series FT (5,697,206) (3,780,118 Series FT (147,607) (101,107 Series Q (60,1221) (499,612 Series QF (16,022) (530) Series QF (16,022) (520,895) Series QF (33,179,692) (202,895) Series QF (33,179,692) (202,895) Series QF (33,179,692) (71 Series QF (33,179,692) (207,902) Series QF (33,904) (121,717 Series QF (38,940) (121,717 Series QF (38,940) (129,707) Series QF (38,940) (149,577) Series D (38,940) (49,577) Series D (38,940) (49,577) Series Q (38,940) (59,907) Series Q (39,901) (59,907) Series QF (38,940) (59,907) Series QF (38,90) <	Distributions to holders of redeemable units		
Series D (17,582) (3,617 Series F (5,672,06) (3,781,18 Series D (147,60) (10,107 Series Q (61,221) (499,612 Series Q (16,02) (530 Series QF (3179,629) (2,02,835) Series QF (430,60) (22,718) Series QF (430,60) (22,718) Series QF (5,701) (20,701) Series QF (5,701) (20,701) Series QF (5,701) (20,701) ETF Series (3,602) (20,701) ETF Series (3,602) (20,701) Series P (3,602) (20,701) Series P (3,602) (20,701) Series P (3,602) (5,907) Series P (3,002) (5,907) Series P (3,002) (5,907) Series QF (3,002) (5,907) Series QF (3,002) (5,907) Series QF (3,002) (5,907)			
Series F (5,697,206) (3,780,118) Series FT (14,1607) (18,135,629) Series PF (601,221) (499,612) Series QF (81,943) (82,127) Series QF (31,79,629) (2,092,895) Series QF (43,949) (12,171) Series QF (439,649) (12,171) Series QF (5,079,40) (7,949) Series QF (87,689) (149,577) Series QF (87,689) (149,577) Series QF (87,689) (149,577) Series QF (83,995) (149,577) Series QF (83,995) (149,577) Series QF (15,004) (59,077) Series QF (15,004) (59,077) Series QF (15,004) (59,004) Series QF (15,004) <td></td> <td></td> <td>(535,337)</td>			(535,337)
Series FT (147,607) (101,107) Series Is (601,211) (499,612 Series PF (601,221) (499,612 Series QF (610,201) (530 Series QF (16,000) (530 Series QF (499,612 (570) Series QF (499,612 (570) Series QF (499,612 (570) (570) Series QF (499,612 (490,402) (570) <t< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td></t<>			
Series I (601,221) (499,612) Series PF (601,221) (499,612) Series QF (16,020) (530) Series QF (3,179,629) (2,002,895) Series QT (439,641) (71,217) Series QT (52,791) (20,701) Series T (52,791) (20,701) Series SA (63,985) (49,572) Series D (63,985) (52,791) Series FF (136,681) (69,907) Series FF (136,681) (69,907) Series PF (136,681) (69,907) Series PF (136,681) (69,907) Series QF (85,958) (52,407) Series QF (85,958) (52,407) Series QF (15,707) (69,900) Series QF (15,707) (69,900) Series QF (15,707) (75,904) (75,904) Series QF (15,707) (75,904) (75,904) (75,904) Series QF (15,707) (75,904)			
Series PF (601,221) (499,612 Series PFT (81,943) (82,127 Series Q (16,020) (530) Series QF (317,962) (20,928) Series QT (439,649) (121,717 Series T (52,791) (20,701 EFF Series (87,688) (149,577 From tetum of capital (63,995) (52,791) (20,701 Series A (63,995) (52,794) (20,701 ((147,607)	
Series PFT (81,943) (82,127 Series Q (16,020) (530 Series QFT (31,716,622) (20,928,895 Series QFT (439,649) (121,717 Series QT (52,791) (20,701 Series T (52,791) (20,701 EFT Series (63,995) (149,577 Forner Baptal (63,995) (69,977 Series D (859) (69,977 Series FF (136,041) (69,977 Series FF (136,041) (54,947) Series PF (15,972) (54,947) Series QF (15,973) (54,947) Series QF (28,991) (69,907) Series QF (28,901) (28,901) Series QF (28,901) (28,902)		-	
Series Q (16,020) (530) Series QF (3,179,620) (2,028,895) Series QFT (439,642) (212,171) Series QT (79,442) (71 Series T (87,683) (149,577) Form return of capital (63,955) (72,524) Series A (63,955) (72,524) (73,642) (74,524) (74,524) (74,524) (74,524) (74,524) (75,444) (75,447)			
Series QF (3,179,62) (2,028,85) Series QF (439,64) (121,717 Series QT (7,984) (7) Series T (87,688) (149,577 Form return of capital (63,95) (889) Series D (859) (899) Series FF (136,081) (69,077 Series FF (136,081) (69,077 Series PF (15,73) (54,487) Series QF (85,958) (54,487) Series QF (85,958) (54,407) Series QF (15,737) (69,097) Series QF (15,737) (75,846) Series QF (15,737) (75,846) Series QF (15,737) (75,846) Series QF (15,737) (75,846) Series QF (15,737) (75,846) <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>			
Series QT (439,649) (121,717 Series QT (7,984) (71 Series T (52,791) (20,701 ETF Series (87,688) (149,577 From return of capital (63,995)			
Series QT (7,984) (71 Series T (52,791) (20,701 ETF Series (87,688) (149,577 From return of capital (63,995) (79,844) Series A (859) (859) Series F (236,492) (79,707) Series FT (136,081) (69,077) Series QF (75,846) (54,407) Series QF (855) (54,407) Series QF (85,958) (54,407) Series QF (89,958) (59,900) Series QT (15,737) (59,900) Series QT (138,034) (45,243) Series QF (138,034) (45,			
Series T (52,791) (20,701) ETF Series (87,688) (149,577 From return of capital (63,995) — Series D (859) — Series D (236,492) — Series FF (136,081) (69,077 Series PF (21,973) — Series PFT (75,846) (54,407 Series QF (85,958) — Series QFT (289,091) (69,090 Series QFT (15,737) — Series QFT (15,304) (45,243) Series QF			
ETF Series (87,688) (149,577 From return of capital (63,995) (52,595) Series D (859) (859) Series FF (136,081) (69,077) Series FT (21,973) (52,407) Series PF (21,973) (54,407) Series QF (855) (54,407) Series QF (85,98) (54,407) Series QF (85,98) (54,407) Series QF (85,98) (54,407) Series QF (85,98) (69,090) Series QF (13,001) (69,090) Series QF (13,001) (45,243)			
From return of capital 663,995 55			
Series A (63,995) Series D (859) Series F (236,492) Series FT (136,081) (69,077 Series PF (21,973) - Series PFT (75,846) (54,407 Series Q (855) - Series QF (88598) - Series QF (289,991) (69,090) Series QT (15,737) - Series T (138,034) (45,243) ETF Series (3,190) (3,381)		(87,688)	(149,577)
Series D (859) Series F (236,492) Series FT (136,081) (69,077 Series PF (21,973) (54,007 Series PFT (75,846) (54,407 Series QF (855) (855) Series QF (89,901) (69,090) Series QF (15,737) (52,431) Series QT (138,034) (45,243) Series TF Series (3,190) (3,381)	1		
Series F (236,492) (50,007) Series FT (136,081) (69,007) Series I (21,973) (50,007) Series PF (75,846) (54,407) Series QF (855) (855) Series QF (85,958) (69,000) Series QT (15,737) (69,000) Series QT (138,034) (45,243) EFF Series (3,190) (3,381)			-
Series FT (136,081) (69,077 Series I - - Series PF (21,973) - Series PFT (75,846) (54,407) Series Q (855) - Series QF (85,958) - Series QFT (289,991) (69,090) Series QT (13,737) - Series T (138,034) (45,243) ETF Series (3,190) (3,381)			-
Series I -<			
Series PF (21,973) Series PFT (75,846) (54,407 Series Q (855) 55 Series QF (85,98) 69,909 Series QFT (289,091) (69,090 Series QT (15,737) 55 Series QF (138,034) (45,243) Series QF (3,190) (3,381)		(136,081)	(69,077)
Series PFT (75,846) (54,407 Series Q (855) (54,407 Series QF (85,958) (69,090 Series QFT (289,091) (69,090 Series QT (15,737) (57,243) Series T (138,034) (45,243) ETF Series (3,190) (3,381)	Series I	-	-
Series Q (855) Series QF (85,958) Series QFT (289,091) (69,090 Series QT (15,737) (52,43) Series T (138,034) (45,243) ETF Series (3,190) (3,381)		(24 0=2)	
Series QF (85,958) Series QFT (289,091) (69,090 Series QT (15,737)	Series PF		
Series QFT (289,091) (69,090 Series QT (15,737)	Series PF Series PFT	(75,846)	(54,407)
Series QT (15,737) Series T (138,034) (45,243) ETF Series (3,190) (3,381)	Series PF Series PFT Series Q	(75,846) (855)	(54,407)
Series T (138,034) (45,243 ETF Series (3,190) (3,381	Series PF Series PFT Series Q Series QF	(75,846) (855) (85,958)	-
ETF Series (3,190) (3,381	Series PF Series PFT Series Q Series QF Series QF	(75,846) (855) (85,958) (289,091)	-
	Series PF Series PFT Series Q Series QF Series QFT Series QT	(75,846) (855) (85,958) (289,091) (15,737)	(69,090)
	Series PF Series PFT Series Q Series QF Series QFT Series QT Series T	(75,846) (855) (85,958) (289,091) (15,737) (138,034)	(54,407) - (69,090) - (45,243)

Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units continued

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
	s	\$
Redeemable unit transactions (note 8)		
Proceeds from redeemable units issued Series A	3,888,661	44 967 097
Series D	634,555	44,867,087 626,742
Series F	49,482,651	309,313,660
Series FT	28,176	8,709,080
Series I	-	132,376,594
Series PF	4,504,037	49,370,567
Series PFT	-	2,710,473
Series Q	-	4,434,315
Series QF	37,892,867	216,154,745
Series QFT	258,000	41,326,535
Series QT	-	591,617
Series T	-	4,815,231
ETF Series	1,969,238	8,924,491
Reinvestments of distributions to holders of redeemable units		
Series A	618,592	453,993
Series D	17,880	3,617
Series F	4,605,897	3,004,876
Series FT	458	3,639
Series I	-	18,135,629
Series PF	486,723	349,917
Series PFT	712	394
Series Q	16,875	530
Series QF	1,514,984	75,802
Series QFT	180,122	179,469
Series QT	-	-
Series T	145	84
ETF Series	-	-
Redemption of redeemable units		
Series A	(26,338,093)	(18,310,141)
Series D	(530,022)	(44,685)
Series F	(210,310,172)	(63,847,981)
Series FT	(3,413,851)	(2,624,814)
Series I	-	(649,674,306)
Series PF	(34,204,509)	(15,938,104)
Series PFT	(130,236)	(1,586,714)
Series Q	(4,242,237)	-
Series QF	(206,816,926)	(26,288,651)
Series QFT	(32,015,783)	(184,674)
Series QT	(200)	-
Series T	(978,917)	(1,007,747)
ETF Series	(8,576,970)	(1,475,779)
	(421,457,343)	65,445,491
Not increase (degreese) in Not Assats attributable to heldow of redeemable units		
Net increase (decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units Series A	(29,174,461)	26,202,147
Series D	13,805	583,872
Series F	(192,877,585)	245,999,205
Series FT	(4,451,887)	5,938,120
Series I	(1,007)	(512,222,298)
Series PF	(33,419,782)	33,473,380
Series PFT	(679,430)	1,004,872
Series Q	(4,445,813)	4,445,813
Series QF	(186,903,140)	188,822,059
Series QF Series QFT	(34,884,362)	41,282,740
Series QT	(86,491)	593,080
Series T	(1,706,533)	3,739,158
ETF Series	(7,345,613)	7,375,889
A. A. Oyled	(495,961,292)	47,238,037
	(475,701,272)	+1,230,037

Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units continued

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
	\$	S
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, end of year		
Series A	40,429,239	69,603,700
Series D	766,503	752,698
Series F	186,665,075	379,542,660
Series FT	5,127,275	9,579,162
Series I	-	-
Series PF	17,708,835	51,128,617
Series PFT	3,337,993	4,017,423
Series Q	-	4,445,813
Series QF	62,175,681	249,078,821
Series QFT	10,687,526	45,571,888
Series QT	506,589	593,080
Series T	3,706,808	5,413,341
ETF Series	1,034,955	8,380,568
	332,146,479	828,107,771

Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units continued

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
Units, beginning of year		
Series A	6,487,283	3,961,939
Series D	75,786	16,655
Series F	34,622,874	11,938,723
Series FT	1,100,031	402,358
Series I	-	45,505,537
Series PF	4,841,159	1,638,622
Series PFT	420,057	303,431
Series Q	443,484	-
Series QF	24,254,767	5,751,398
Series QFT	4,556,196	413,479
Series QT	59,162	-
Series T	711,239	209,511
ETF Series	425,000 77,997,038	50,000 70,191,653
	11,771,030	70,191,033
Redeemable unit transactions (note 8)		
Redeemable units issued	200 (2)	
Series A	390,434	4,178,555
Series D	67,842	63,246
Series F	4,905,284	28,205,504
Series FT	3,419	997,941
Series I	450.020	11,870,592
Series PF	459,030	4,674,053
Series PFT	-	279,432
Series Q	2 969 475	443,431 21,041,678
Series QF	3,868,475 27,382	4,143,300
Series QFT Series QT	27,362	59,162
Series T		633,687
ETF Series	110,000	450,000
Reinvestments of distributions to holders of redeemable units	110,000	450,000
Series A	62,812	42,140
Series D	1,977	363
Series F	456,656	273,054
Series FT	61	412
Series I	-	1,637,087
Series PF	49,819	33,016
Series PFT	84	41
Series Q	1,755	53
Series QF	159,102	7,365
Series QFT	19,912	17,741
Series QT	-	-
Series T	20	11
ETF Series	-	-
Redemption of redeemable units		
Series A	(2,651,292)	(1,695,351)
Series D	(57,927)	(4,478)
Series F	(20,607,408)	(5,794,407)
Series FT	(419,516)	(300,680)
Series I	- (2.112.00°)	(59,013,216)
Series PF	(3,443,700)	(1,504,532)
Series PFT	(15,102)	(162,847)
Series Q	(445,239)	(0.545.65)
Series QF	(21,370,774)	(2,545,674)
Series QFT	(3,364,652)	(18,324)
Series QT	(23)	(121.052)
Series T	(139,566)	(131,970)
ETF Series	(475,000)	(75,000)
	(42,406,135)	7,805,385

Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units continued

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
Units, end of year		
Series A	4,289,237	6,487,283
Series D	87,678	75,786
Series F	19,377,406	34,622,874
Series FT	683,995	1,100,031
Series I	-	-
Series PF	1,906,308	4,841,159
Series PFT	405,039	420,057
Series Q	-	443,484
Series QF	6,911,570	24,254,767
Series QFT	1,238,838	4,556,196
Series QT	59,139	59,162
Series T	571,693	711,239
ETF Series	60,000	425,000
	35,590,903	77,997,038

Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
	\$	5
Cash flows from operating activities		
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations	(62,479,361)	7,556,782
Adjustments for:		
Foreign exchange (gains) losses on cash	(912,386)	315,285
Distribution income	-	(210,800)
Net realized (gains) losses on sales of investments	41,814,402	287,360
Net realized (gains) losses on option contracts	1,080,325	2,266,739
Net realized (gains) losses on swaption contracts	7,984,942	-
Net realized (gains) losses on swap contracts	(14,698,263)	(1,418,051)
Change in unrealized (appreciation) depreciation in the value of investments	38,847,848	14,231,106
Change in unrealized (appreciation) depreciation on option contracts	132,827	50,660
Change in unrealized (appreciation) depreciation on currency options contracts	94,897	-
Change in unrealized (appreciation) depreciation on swaption contracts	168,260	(168,260)
Change in unrealized (appreciation) depreciation on forward currency contracts	682,990	364,151
Change in unrealized (appreciation) depreciation on swap contracts	693,837	700,447
Purchases of investments	(231,810,818)	(1,170,141,147)
Proceeds from sale of investments	563,807,340	1,181,846,682
Net increase (decrease) in other assets and liabilities	12,167,218	(10,572,154)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities	357,574,058	25,108,800
Cook flows from financing activities		
Cash flows from financing activities Distributions paid to holders of redeemable units, net of reinvested distributions	(4,650,530)	(3,789,988)
Proceeds from redeemable units issued	78,066,929	809,579,805
Redemption of redeemable units	(507,600,607)	(763,241,304) 42,548,513
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities	(434,184,208)	42,348,313
Foreign exchange gains (losses) on cash	912,386	(315,285)
Net increase (decrease) in cash	(76,610,150)	67,657,313
Cash (Bank indebtedness), beginning of year	77,104,978	9,762,950
Cash (Bank indebtedness), end of year	1,407,214	77,104,978
Supplemental Information*		
Interest received	23,218,269	27,812,289
Interest paid	605,967	1,089,884
Dividends received, net of withholding taxes	221,522	1,624,820
*Information provided relates to the operating activities of the Fund		

^{*}Information provided relates to the operating activities of the Fund

Schedule of Investment Portfolio

at December 31, 2022		Maturity Date	Average Cost	Fair Valu
			S	
PAR VALUE*	BONDS [89.11%]			
2.500.000	INVESTMENT GRADE BONDS [65.13%]	A 21 2025	2 277 200	2 200 50
2,500,000 5,000,000	Allied Properties Real Estate Investment Trust, Callable, 3.636% AltaGas Limited, Callable, 2.477%	Apr 21, 2025 Nov 30, 2030	2,377,300 4,780,429	2,390,59 4,059,99
5,875,000	Artis Real Estate Investment Trust, 3.824%	Sep 18, 2023	6,055,614	5,755,63
7,000,000		Apr 9, 2024	6,598,160	6,605,48
3,900,000	Athene Global Funding, 1.250% Aviva PLC, 4.000%	Oct 2, 2030	3,561,870	3,474,67
1,400,000	Bank of Montreal, Callable, 4.300%	Nov 26, 2080	1,462,495	1,283,62
9,000,000	Barclays PLC, Callable, 2.166%	Jun 23, 2027	8,427,450	7,878,88
5,500,000	BNP Paribas SA, Callable, 2.538%	Jul 13, 2029	5,500,000	4,618,52
7,800,000	Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce, Callable, 4.000%	Jan 28, 2082	7,461,498	6,156,52
5,000,000	Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce, Callable, 4.200%	Apr 7, 2032	4,846,100	4,710,20
3,000,000	Chartwell Retirement Residences, Callable, 4.211%	Apr 28, 2025	3,209,780	2,885,05
5,500,000	Choice Properties Real Estate Investment Trust, Callable, 3.556%	Sep 9, 2024	5,393,630	5,333,61
8,300,000	Co-operators Financial Services Limited, Callable, 3.327%	May 13, 2030	8,356,476	7,101,04
6,500,000	CT Real Estate Investment Trust, Callable, 2.371%	Jan 6, 2031	6,220,965	5,120,92
8,900,000	Enbridge Inc., Callable, 5.375%	Sep 27, 2077	8,653,630	8,130,34
USD 1,150,000	Enbridge Inc., Callable, 6.000%	Jan 15, 2077	1,572,339	1,434,28
7,300,000	Fairfax Financial Holdings Limited, Callable, 3.950%	Mar 3, 2031	7,372,983	6,398,59
USD 7,000,000	Fairfax India Holdings Corporation, Callable, 5.000%	Feb 26, 2028	8,758,050	8,480,44
3,000,000	Federation des caisses Desjardins du Quebec, Callable, 5.035%	Aug 23, 2032	3,000,000	2,920,10
3,900,000	First National Financial Corporation, Callable, 2.961%	Nov 17, 2025	3,910,472	3,578,44
10,500,000	Great-West Lifeco Inc., Callable, 3.600%	Dec 31, 2081	10,500,000	7,877,05
3,000,000	HSBC Holdings PLC, 3.196%	Dec 5, 2023	2,945,640	2,936,25
1,900,000	Intact Financial Corporation, Callable, 4.125%	Mar 31, 2081	1,900,000	1,590,40
4,000,000	Macquarie Group Limited, Callable, 2.723%	Aug 21, 2029	4,000,000	3,402,23
4,000,000	Manulife Financial Corporation, Callable, 4.100%	Mar 19, 2082	3,766,250	3,028,28
6,394,000	MCAP Commercial L.P., 3.743%	Aug 25, 2025	6,295,951	6,003,44
3,000,000	MCAP Commercial L.P., 4.151%	Jun 17, 2024	2,971,620	2,905,78
5,900,000	MCAP Commercial L.P., Callable, 3.384%	Nov 26, 2027	5,955,389	5,197,20
8,150,000	National Australia Bank Limited, Callable, 3.515%	Jun 12, 2030	8,602,437	7,566,83
1,500,000	Primaris Real Estate Investment Trust, 4.267%	Mar 30, 2025	1,500,000	1,443,90
4,000,000	Royal Bank of Canada, Callable, 1.670%	Jan 28, 2033	3,346,720	3,311,73
8,900,000	Royal Bank of Canada, Callable, 3.650%	Nov 24, 2081	8,021,250	6,729,09
2,800,000	Royal Bank of Canada, Callable, 4.000%	Feb 24, 2081	2,800,000	2,429,57
3,900,000	Sagen MI Canada Inc., Callable, 4.950%	Mar 24, 2081	3,903,656	3,124,13
2,000,000	SmartCentres Real Estate Investment Trust, Callable, 2.987%	Aug 28, 2024	1,923,640	1,914,33
4,000,000	Sun Life Financial Inc., Callable, 3.600%	Jun 30, 2081	3,843,000	3,016,96
10,500,000	The Bank of Nova Scotia, Callable, 3.700%	Jul 27, 2081	10,473,346	7,948,47
7,400,000	The Bank of Nova Scotia, Callable, 3.934%	May 3, 2032	7,062,916	6,904,04
5,419,000	The Empire Life Insurance Company, Callable, 3.625%	Apr 17, 2081	5,432,574	4,329,86
5,000,000	The Empire Life Insurance Company, Callable, 3.664%	Mar 15, 2028	4,963,150	4,977,85
5,000,000	The Goldman Sachs Group Inc., Callable, 4.933%	Apr 29, 2025	5,000,000	4,897,86
2,300,000	The Independent Order of Foresters, Callable, 2.885%	Oct 15, 2035	2,318,441	1,888,79
6,800,000	The Manufacturers Life Insurance Company, Callable, 3.375%	Jun 19, 2081	6,797,379	5,115,82
10,500,000	The Toronto-Dominion Bank, Callable, 3.600%	Oct 31, 2081	10,456,444	7,962,91
2,500,000	TransCanada Trust, Callable, 4.200%	Mar 4, 2081	2,324,750	1,996,72
7,400,000	TransCanada Trust, Callable, 4.650%	May 18, 2077	7,708,004	6,622,71
1,000,000	Transcontinental Inc., 2.667%	Feb 3, 2025	948,490	938,73
2,000,000	Wells Fargo & Company., 3.874%	May 21, 2025	1,941,200	1,929,45
			245,221,488	216,307,59
	HIGH VIELD DONING [21 (00/1			
2 000 000	HIGH YIELD BONDS [21.60%]	0.00.000	2 000 000	2012 -
2,000,000	Bonterra Energy Corporation, Callable, 9.000%	Oct 20, 2025	2,000,000	2,012,5
3,000,000	Brookfield Finance II Inc., Callable, 5.431%	Dec 14, 2032	3,000,000	2,941,4
5,500,000	Brookfield Property Finance ULC, Callable, 4.300%	Mar 1, 2024 Jul 3, 2023	5,578,272	5,358,4
	D. 1-5-11 D			1,360,4
1,375,000	Brookfield Property Finance ULC, Callable, 4.346%		1,375,000	
1,000,000	Canadian Western Bank, Callable, 5.000%	Jul 31, 2081	1,003,250	794,9
1,000,000 1,000,000	Canadian Western Bank, Callable, 5.000% Canadian Western Bank, Callable, 5.937%	Jul 31, 2081 Dec 22, 2032	1,003,250 1,000,000	794,9 987,8
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000	Canadian Western Bank, Callable, 5.000% Canadian Western Bank, Callable, 5.937% Cominar Real Estate Investment Trust, Callable, 5.950%	Jul 31, 2081 Dec 22, 2032 May 5, 2025	1,003,250 1,000,000 1,000,000	794,9 987,8 967,7
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 4,000,000	Canadian Western Bank, Callable, 5.000% Canadian Western Bank, Callable, 5.937% Cominar Real Estate Investment Trust, Callable, 5.950% Ford Credit Canada Company, 4.460%	Jul 31, 2081 Dec 22, 2032 May 5, 2025 Nov 13, 2024	1,003,250 1,000,000 1,000,000 3,882,500	794,9 987,8 967,7 3,858,7
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 4,000,000 1,500,000	Canadian Western Bank, Callable, 5.000% Canadian Western Bank, Callable, 5.937% Cominar Real Estate Investment Trust, Callable, 5.950% Ford Credit Canada Company, 4.460% Ford Credit Canada Company, Callable, 2.961%	Jul 31, 2081 Dec 22, 2032 May 5, 2025 Nov 13, 2024 Sep 16, 2026	1,003,250 1,000,000 1,000,000 3,882,500 1,473,125	794,9 987,8 967,7 3,858,7 1,317,6
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 4,000,000 1,500,000 7,000,000	Canadian Western Bank, Callable, 5.000% Canadian Western Bank, Callable, 5.937% Cominar Real Estate Investment Trust, Callable, 5.950% Ford Credit Canada Company, 4.460% Ford Credit Canada Company, Callable, 2.961% Gibson Energy Inc., Callable, 5.250%	Jul 31, 2081 Dec 22, 2032 May 5, 2025 Nov 13, 2024 Sep 16, 2026 Dec 22, 2080	1,003,250 1,000,000 1,000,000 3,882,500 1,473,125 7,055,000	794,9 987,8 967,7 3,858,7 1,317,6 5,965,1
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 4,000,000 1,500,000 7,000,000 USD 1,585,000	Canadian Western Bank, Callable, 5.000% Canadian Western Bank, Callable, 5.937% Cominar Real Estate Investment Trust, Callable, 5.950% Ford Credit Canada Company, 4.460% Ford Credit Canada Company, Callable, 2.961% Gibson Energy Inc., Callable, 5.250% Hudbay Minerals Inc., Callable, 6.125%	Jul 31, 2081 Dec 22, 2032 May 5, 2025 Nov 13, 2024 Sep 16, 2026 Dec 22, 2080 Apr 1, 2029	1,003,250 1,000,000 1,000,000 3,882,500 1,473,125 7,055,000 2,085,725	794,9 987,8 967,7 3,858,7 1,317,6 5,965,1 1,945,6
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 4,000,000 1,500,000 7,000,000 USD 1,585,000 5,000,000	Canadian Western Bank, Callable, 5.000% Canadian Western Bank, Callable, 5.937% Cominar Real Estate Investment Trust, Callable, 5.950% Ford Credit Canada Company, 4.460% Ford Credit Canada Company, Callable, 2.961% Gibson Energy Inc., Callable, 5.250% Hudbay Minerals Inc., Callable, 6.125% Inter Pipeline Limited, Callable, 2.734%	Jul 31, 2081 Dec 22, 2032 May 5, 2025 Nov 13, 2024 Sep 16, 2026 Dec 22, 2080 Apr 1, 2029 Apr 18, 2024	1,003,250 1,000,000 1,000,000 3,882,500 1,473,125 7,055,000 2,085,725 4,850,400	794,9 987,8 967,7 3,858,7 1,317,6 5,965,1 1,945,6 4,833,7
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 4,000,000 1,500,000 7,000,000 USD 1,585,000 5,000,000 5,398,000	Canadian Western Bank, Callable, 5.000% Canadian Western Bank, Callable, 5.937% Cominar Real Estate Investment Trust, Callable, 5.950% Ford Credit Canada Company, 4.460% Ford Credit Canada Company, Callable, 2.961% Gibson Energy Inc., Callable, 5.250% Hudbay Minerals Inc., Callable, 6.125% Inter Pipeline Limited, Callable, 2.734% Inter Pipeline Limited, Callable, 6.625%	Jul 31, 2081 Dec 22, 2032 May 5, 2025 Nov 13, 2024 Sep 16, 2026 Dec 22, 2080 Apr 1, 2029 Apr 18, 2024 Nov 19, 2079	1,003,250 1,000,000 1,000,000 3,882,500 1,473,125 7,055,000 2,085,725 4,850,400 5,293,519	794,99 987,80 967,70 3,858,72 1,317,60 5,965,11 1,945,6 4,833,73 5,022,5°
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 4,000,000 1,500,000 7,000,000 5,000,000 5,398,000 1,750,000	Canadian Western Bank, Callable, 5.000% Canadian Western Bank, Callable, 5.937% Cominar Real Estate Investment Trust, Callable, 5.950% Ford Credit Canada Company, 4.460% Ford Credit Canada Company, Callable, 2.961% Gibson Energy Inc., Callable, 5.250% Hudbay Minerals Inc., Callable, 6.125% Inter Pipeline Limited, Callable, 2.734% Inter Pipeline Limited, Callable, 6.625% Laurentian Bank of Canada, Callable, 5.095%	Jul 31, 2081 Dec 22, 2032 May 5, 2025 Nov 13, 2024 Sep 16, 2026 Dec 22, 2080 Apr 1, 2029 Apr 18, 2024 Nov 19, 2079 Jun 15, 2032	1,003,250 1,000,000 1,000,000 3,882,500 1,473,125 7,055,000 2,085,725 4,850,400 5,293,519 1,750,140	794,99 987,86 967,74 3,858,7: 1,317,65 5,965,18 1,945,6: 4,833,7: 5,022,5: 1,656,90
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 4,000,000 7,000,000 1,585,000 5,000,000 5,398,000 1,750,000 4,800,000	Canadian Western Bank, Callable, 5.000% Canadian Western Bank, Callable, 5.937% Cominar Real Estate Investment Trust, Callable, 5.950% Ford Credit Canada Company, 4.460% Ford Credit Canada Company, Callable, 2.961% Gibson Energy Inc., Callable, 5.250% Hudbay Minerals Inc., Callable, 6.125% Inter Pipeline Limited, Callable, 6.625% Laurentian Bank of Canada, Callable, 5.095% Laurentian Bank of Canada, Callable, 5.300%	Jul 31, 2081 Dec 22, 2032 May 5, 2025 Nov 13, 2024 Sep 16, 2026 Dec 22, 2080 Apr 1, 2029 Apr 18, 2024 Nov 19, 2079 Jun 15, 2032 Jun 15, 2081	1,003,250 1,000,000 1,000,000 3,882,500 1,473,125 7,055,000 2,085,725 4,850,400 5,293,519 1,750,140 4,819,226	794,95 987,86 967,76 3,858,73 1,317,65 5,965,18 1,945,61 4,833,75 5,022,57 1,656,90 3,902,94
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 4,000,000 1,500,000 7,000,000 5,000,000 5,398,000 1,750,000	Canadian Western Bank, Callable, 5.000% Canadian Western Bank, Callable, 5.937% Cominar Real Estate Investment Trust, Callable, 5.950% Ford Credit Canada Company, 4.460% Ford Credit Canada Company, Callable, 2.961% Gibson Energy Inc., Callable, 5.250% Hudbay Minerals Inc., Callable, 6.125% Inter Pipeline Limited, Callable, 2.734% Inter Pipeline Limited, Callable, 6.625% Laurentian Bank of Canada, Callable, 5.095%	Jul 31, 2081 Dec 22, 2032 May 5, 2025 Nov 13, 2024 Sep 16, 2026 Dec 22, 2080 Apr 1, 2029 Apr 18, 2024 Nov 19, 2079 Jun 15, 2032	1,003,250 1,000,000 1,000,000 3,882,500 1,473,125 7,055,000 2,085,725 4,850,400 5,293,519 1,750,140	794,99 987,86 967,76 3,858,73 1,317,65 5,965,18 1,945,61 4,833,75 5,022,57 1,656,90 3,902,94 4,788,23 1,411,50

Schedule of Investment Portfolio continued

As at December 31, 2022		Maturity/Expiry Date	Average Cost	Fair Value
D.D.W.C.T.	WOUNTED DOUBLE IN COMA		S	\$
PAR VALUE*	HIGH YIELD BONDS [21.60%] continued	Y 05 0004	5.562.725	5 220 770
5,500,000	Morguard Corporation, Callable, 4.715%	Jan 25, 2024	5,563,725	5,328,770
7,000,000 5,400,000	National Bank of Canada, Callable, 4.050%	Aug 15, 2081 Jan 25, 2081	6,709,033	5,378,391 4,426,072
1,048,073	Pembina Pipeline Corporation, Callable, 4.800% Source Energy Services Canada L.P./Holdings Limited, 10.500%	Jan 25, 2081 Mar 15, 2025	5,372,206 415,983	728,411
1,576,000	SNC-Lavalin Group Inc., Callable, 3.800%	Aug 19, 2024		
	1 / /		1,625,008	1,516,928
1,000,000	SNC-Lavalin Group Inc., Callable, 7.000% Tamarack Valley Energy Limited, Callable, 7.250%	Jun 12, 2026 Feb 10, 2022***May 10, 2027	1,000,000 4,045,000	1,015,000 3,752,500
4,000,000 500,000	Tamarack Valley Energy Limited, Callable, 7.250% Tamarack Valley Energy Limited, Callable, 7.250%	Sep 22, 2022***May 10, 2027	470,000	3,732,300 470,625
300,000	Tamarack variety energy emitted, Canable, 7.250%	Sep 22, 2022***May 10, 2027	77,767,112	71,743,322
	GOVERNMENT BONDS [2.38%]			
8,000,000	Government of Canada Real Return Bond, 0.500%	Dec 1, 2050	10,798,561	7,909,793
8,000,000	Government of Canada Real Return Bond, 0.30076	Dec 1, 2030	10,798,561	7,909,793
Total bonds			333,787,161	295,960,713
Total Condo			333,707,101	2,5,5,00,715
PAR VALUE*	ASSET-BACKED SECURITIES [4.15%]			
392,850	Classic RMBS Trust, Callable, 1.433%	Nov 15, 2051	392,850	374,879
2,000,000	Cologix Canadian Issuer L.P., Callable, 4.940%	Jan 25, 2052	1,999,242	1,827,760
1,000,000	Cologix Canadian Issuer L.P., Callable, 5.680%	Jan 25, 2052	999,903	907,680
4,000,000	Fairstone Financial Issuance Trust I, Callable, 2.509%	Oct 20, 2039	4,011,000	3,787,680
2,075,316	Ford Auto Securitization Trust II, Callable, 4.956%	Oct 15, 2024	2,075,316	2,075,660
1,500,000	Glacier Credit Card Trust, 4.138%	Sep 20, 2023	1,500,000	1,477,055
244,014	MCAP RMBS Issuer Corporation, 2.750%	May 15, 2023	240,852	242,591
1,928,097	Real Estate Asset Liquidity Trust, Callable, 2.395%	Jan 12, 2030	1,928,020	1,727,707
1,002,522	Real Estate Asset Liquidity Trust, Callable, 3.072%	Aug 12, 2053	1,001,827	995,049
394,577	Real Estate Asset Liquidity Trust, Callable, 3.641%	Jun 14, 2061	394,575	381,777
Total asset-backed securitie		VIII 1 1, 2001	14,543,585	13,797,838
D.D.W.C.T.	MODIFICA OF DA CHED OF CARDITIES IN ARRAY			
PAR VALUE*	MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES [3.37%]			
11,500,000	New Latitude Mortgage Trust, 3.250%**	Dec 15, 2023	11,500,000 11,500,000	11,179,150
Total mortgage-backed sect	intiles		11,500,000	11,179,150
PAR VALUE*	LOANS [1.48%]			
2,500,000	Location d-Autos All-Star Inc., 9.750%**	Dec 18, 2023	2,500,000	2,465,000
2,500,000	Quality Rugs of Canada, 10.000%**	May 31, 2024	2,500,000	2,465,000
Total loans			5,000,000	4,930,000
PAR VALUE*	STRUCTURED NOTES [1.38%]			
40,000	Royal Bank of Canada, 2.900%		4,000,000	4,594,000
Total structured notes			4,000,000	4,594,000
PAR VALUE*	GUARANTEED LINKED NOTES [0.82%]			
USD 2,000,000	Manitoulin USD Ltd., Muskoka Series 2022-1 Class E**	Nov 10, 2027	2,753,400	2,708,812
Total guaranteed linked not			2,753,400	2,708,812
SHARES	EQUITIES [0.00%]			
SHAKES	INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY [0.00%]			
004	. ,		1 421	
994 749	Xplore Mobile Inc.** Xplornet Wireless Inc.**		1,421 3,670	-
Total equities	Apiornet wireless inc.***		5,091	-
AV. 1777	WARD INTO TO COOK			
SHARES	WARRANTS [0.00%] ENERGY [0.00%]			
112,000	Bonterra Energy Corporation	Oct 20, 2025	-	-
Total warrants			-	
Transaction costs (note 3)			(45,615)	
Total investments owned	100.31%]		371,543,622	333,170,513

Schedule of Investment Portfolio continued

As at December 31, 2022		Maturity/Expiry Date	Average Cost	Fair Value
	SHORT POSITIONS [-1.60%]			
PAR VALUE*	BONDS [-1.60%]			
	GOVERNMENT BONDS [-1.60%]			
(3,100,000)	Government of Canada, 1.000%	Jun 1, 2027	(2,818,220)	(2,805,790)
(1,150,000)	Government of Canada, 1.500%	Sep 1, 2024	(1,110,095)	(1,103,154)
(1,500,000)	Government of Canada, 2.250%	Jun 1, 2029	(1,414,470)	(1,412,441)
Total investment sold shor	t [-1.60%]		(5,342,785)	(5,321,385)
Net investments [98.71%]			366,200,837	327,849,128
Options purchased [0.00%]	(Schedule 1)			5,416
Options written [-0.00%] (S	chedule 1)			(2,708)
Currency options purchased	[0.02%] (Schedule 2)			62,518
Currency options written [-	0.05%] (Schedule 2)			(157,415)
Total unrealized appreciation	on on forward currency contracts [0.00%] (Schedule 3)			13,955
Total unrealized depreciation	on on swap contracts [-0.00%] (Schedule 4)			(8,675)
Cash and other assets less li	abilities [1.32%]			4,384,260
Total Net Assets attributal	ble to holders of redeemable units [100.00%]			332,146,479
* All par values are in Cana	dian Dollars unless otherwise noted			
** Private company				
*** T 1.4.				

^{***} Issue date

Option Contracts (Schedule 1)

As at December 31, 2022

O	ntions	Purchased
v	puons	r ur chaseu

					Premium	rair
		Number of	Expiration	Strike	Paid	Value
Option Details	Option Type	Contracts	Date	Price (\$)	\$(CAD)	\$(CAD)
iShares 20 Plus Year Treasury Bond ETF	Call	2,000	20-Jan-23	125.00 USD	237,042	5,416
Total					237,042	5,416

Options Written

Option Details	Option Type	Number of Contracts	Expiration Date	Strike Price (\$)	Received \$(CAD)	Value \$(CAD)
iShares 20 Plus Year Treasury Bond ETF	Call	(2,000)	20-Jan-23	135.00 USD	(100,082)	(2,708)
Total					(100,082)	(2,708)

Premium

Currency Option Contracts (Schedule 2)

As at December 31, 2022

Currency Option Purchased

Description	Currency Option Type	Number of Contracts	Expiration Date	Strike Price (\$)	Paid \$(CAD)	Value \$(CAD)
Bought USD Put CAD Call	Put	5,000,000	1-Sep-23	1.30	177,620	62,518
Total					177,620	62,518

Currency Option Written

					Premium	Fair
	Currency Option	Number of	Expiration	Strike	Received	Value
Description	Type	Contracts	Date	Price (\$)	\$(CAD)	\$(CAD)
Sold USD Put CAD Call	Call	(5,000,000)	1-Sep-23	1.32	(157,884)	(151,850)
Sold Knock In USD Call CAD Put	Put	(5,000,000)	1-Sep-23	1.20	(19,736)	(5,565)
Total					(177,620)	(157,415)

Forward Currency Contracts (Schedule 3)

As at December 31, 2022

					Unrealized
					Appreciation
		Settlement	Contract Cost	Forward Value	(Depreciation)
Bought (\$)	Sold (\$)	Date	\$(CAD)	\$(CAD)	\$(CAD)
11,941,160 Canadian Dollar	(8,800,000) US Dollar	9-Jan-23	(11,941,160)	(11,914,905)	26,255
1,800,000 US Dollar	(2,449,440) Canadian Dollar	9-Jan-23	(2,449,440)	(2,437,140)	(12,300)
Total	·	· ·		· ·	13,955

Swap Contracts (Schedule 4)

Credit Default Swap Contracts

As at December 31, 2022

			Notional		Fair
		Maturity	Amount	Cost	Value
Reference Entity	Fixed Received Rate (%)	Date	\$(CAD)	\$(CAD)	\$(CAD)
Virgin Media Finance PLC	1.00	20-Jun-23	2,500,000	(2,065)	(8,675)
Total	·		•	(2,065)	(8,675)

Financial Risk Management (note 6)

Investment Objective

The Fund's investment objective is to maximize the total return of the Fund and provide income by investing primarily in debt and debt-like securities of corporate and government issuers from around the world.

The Schedule of Investment Portfolio presents the securities held by the Fund as at December 31, 2022. Significant risks that are relevant to the Fund are discussed here. General information on risks and risk management is described in *Note 6 Financial Risk Management* of the Generic Notes.

Market Risk

a) Other Price Risk

The Fund's most significant exposure to market price risk arises from its investments in equity, preferred equity and/or warrant securities. As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, if the equity, preferred equity and/or warrant securities were to fluctuate by 10%, with all other variables held constant, Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units would increase or decrease by the amounts shown in the table below.

December 31, 2022		De	ecember 31, 2021
	As a % of Net Assets		As a % of Net Assets
	attributable to holders		attributable to holders
Impact	of redeemable units	Impact	of redeemable units
\$	0/0	\$	%
207,674	0.06	613,416	0.07

b) Currency Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's direct exposure to currency risk and potential impact to the Fund's Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units as a result of a 1% change in these currencies relative to the Canadian dollar, with all other variables held constant, are shown in the tables below.

December 31, 2022

				% of Net Assets	Impact on Net Assets
	Fo	rward Currency		attributable to holders	attributable to holders
Currency	Fair Value	Contracts	Net Exposure	of redeemable units	of redeemable units
	\$	\$	S	%	\$
U.S. Dollar	14,376,476	(9,477,765)	4,898,711	1.47	48,987
Euro	(7,567)	_	(7,567)	(0.00)	(76)
Total	14,368,909	(9,477,765)	4,891,144	1.47	48,911

December 31, 2021

				% of Net Assets	Impact on Net Assets
]	Forward Currency		attributable to holders	attributable to holders
Currency	Fair Value	Contracts	Net Exposure	of redeemable units	of redeemable units
	\$	\$	S	%	\$
U.S. Dollar	79,103,538	(77,486,536)	1,617,002	0.20	16,170
Euro	23,123	_	23,123	0.00	231
Total	79,126,661	(77,486,536)	1,640,125	0.20	16,401

c) Interest Rate Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's exposure to interest rate risk categorized by the earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturity dates, and potential impact to the Fund's Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units had interest rates increased or decreased by 1%, with all other variables remaining constant, are shown in the table below. In practice, the actual results may differ from this sensitivity analysis and the difference could be material. The Fund's short-term assets and liabilities are not subject to a significant amount of risk due to fluctuations in the prevailing level of market interest rates.

Term to Maturity	Total Exposure			
	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021		
	\$	\$		
Less than 1 year	34,798,381	34,612,418		
1-5 years	89,816,065	100,436,172		
>5 years	203,234,682	595,498,400		
Total	327,849,128	730,546,990		
Impact on Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units (\$)	11,146,870	15,268,432		
Impact on Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units (%)	3.36	1.84		

Credit Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund held debt instruments, which have a credit rating as rated primarily by Dominion Bond Rating Services, Standard & Poor's or Moody's. The Fund generally invests in fixed income securities issued or generated by the Canadian government or its agencies, other Canadian issuers, foreign governments or their agencies, other foreign issuers, and supranational organizations. The ratings of securities that subject the Fund to credit risk, as a percentage of Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, are shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021	
	%	%	
AAA	2.53	1.27	
AA	1.14	(7.43)	
A	29.36	29.03	
BBB	44.31	52.70	
BB	10.81	8.10	
В	1.72	2.90	
Not Rated	2.90	1.65	
Total	98.71	88.22	

As at December 31, 2022, 4.85% (December 31, 2021 – 1.98%) of the Fund's Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units were invested private loans and private mortgage-backed securities. The maximum credit risk of the private loans and private mortgage-back securities is limited to the carrying value of these investments and is moderated through various means. Prior to investing into a private loan or private mortgage-backed security, thorough due diligence is executed by the Manager. The Manager also maintains continuous monitoring of the credit quality of the borrower to assess and evaluate the credit risk of these private loans and private mortgage-backed securities.

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund was also exposed to credit risk from over-the-counter derivative contracts with counterparties. The credit risk is considered minimal as these counterparties have a minimum credit rating of A by Standard & Poor's or equivalent.

Concentration Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's concentration risk as a percentage of Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units is shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	%	%
Bonds and Convertible Debentures:		
Investment Grade Bonds	65.13	69.31
High Yield Bonds	21.60	16.32
Government Bonds	2.38	2.17
Asset-Backed Securities	4.15	2.19
Mortgage-Backed Securities	3.37	1.39
Loans	1.48	0.59
Structured Notes	1.38	0.54
Guaranteed Linked Notes	0.82	_
Short-term Investments	_	3.62
Equities:		
Information Technology	0.00	0.00
Warrants	0.00	0.00
Preferred Equities	_	0.74
Bonds – Short		
Government Bonds	(1.60)	(7.91)
Options Purchased	0.00	_
Options Written	(0.00)	_
Currency Options Purchased	0.02	_
Currency Options Written	(0.05)	_
Swaptions Written	_	(0.05)
Unrealized appreciation on forward currency	_	0.09
Unrealized depreciation on swap contracts	(0.00)	(0.09)
Cash and other assets less liabilities	1.32	11.09
Total Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	100.00	100.00

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's investment portfolio is concentrated in the geographic segments as shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	%	%
Canada	85.67	85.63
United States	4.04	(2.75)
United Kingdom	4.30	2.30
Australia	3.30	1.98
France	1.40	0.90
Saudi Arabia	0.00	0.90
Options purchased	0.00	0.00
Option written	0.00	0.00
Currency Options purchased	0.02	0.00
Currency Options written	(0.05)	_
Swaptions Written	_	(0.05)
Unrealized appreciation on forward currency contracts	0.00	0.09
Unrealized depreciation on swap contracts	(0.00)	(0.09)
Cash and other assets less liabilities	1.32	11.09
Total Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	100.00	100.00

Fair Value Measurements (note 5)

Total

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's financial assets and liabilities, which are measured at fair value, have been categorized based upon the fair value hierarchy as shown in the tables below.

December 31, 2022	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
-	\$	\$	\$	\$
Equities	_	_	_	_
Warrants	_	_	_	_
Bonds	_	295,960,713	_	295,960,713
Asset-Backed Securities	_	13,797,838	_	13,797,838
Mortgage-Backed Securities	_	_	11,179,150	11,179,150
Loans	_	_	4,930,000	4,930,000
Structured Notes	_	4,594,000	_	4,594,000
Guaranteed Linked Notes	_	_	2,708,812	2,708,812
Bonds – Short	_	(5,321,385)	_	(5,321,385)
Option Written	(2,708)	_	_	(2,708)
Option Purchased	5,416	_	_	5,416
Currency Options Written	_	(157,415)	_	(157,415)
Currency Options Purchased	_	62,518	_	62,518
Forward Currency Contracts	_	13,955	_	13,955
Swap Contracts	_	(8,675)	_	(8,675)
Total	2,708	308,941,549	18,817,962	327,762,219
December 31, 2021	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
-	\$	\$	\$	\$
Equities	_	_	_	_
Preferred Equities	6,134,155	_	_	6,134,155
Warrants	_	_	_	_
Bonds	_	727,042,903	_	727,042,903
Short-term Investments	_	29,984,400	_	29,984,400
Asset-Backed Securities	_	18,136,112	_	18,136,112
Mortgage-Backed Securities	_	_	11,488,500	11,488,500
Loans	_	_	4,900,000	4,900,000
Structured Notes	_	4,517,200	_	4,517,200
Bonds – Short	_	(65,522,125)	_	(65,522,125)
Swaptions Written	_	(430,140)	_	(430,140)
Forward Currency Contracts	_	696,945	_	696,945
Swap Contracts	_	(702,512)	_	(702,512)

713,722,783

16,388,500

736,245,438

During the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, there were no significant transfers between levels.

During the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the reconciliation of investments measured at fair value using unobservable inputs (Level 3) are shown in the table below.

]	December	31, 2022			Decem	ber 31, 20)21	
	Guaranteed Linked			Mortgage- Backed		Guaranteed Linked			Mortgage- Backed	
	Notes	Warrants	Equities	Securities	Loans	Notes	Warrants	Equities		Loans
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$		\$	\$
Balance, beginning of year	_	_	_	11,488,500	4,900,000	_	_	_	_	_
Purchases	2,753,400	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	11,500,000	5,000,000
Sales	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_
Net transfers in (out)	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_
Realized gains (losses) in										
the value of investments	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) in the value of investments	(44,588)	_	_	(309,350)	30,000	-	-	-	(11,500)	(100,000)
Balance, end of year	2,708,812	_	_	11,179,150	4,930,000	_	_	_	11,488,500	4,900,000
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) during the year for investments held at end of year	(44,588)	_	_	(309,350)	30,000	_	_	_	(11,500)	(100,000)

The Fund's Level 3 securities consist of private equity, private loan, private guaranteed linked notes, private warrant and private mortgage-backed securities positions. The Manager determines their fair value by utilizing a variety of valuation techniques such as the use of comparable recent transactions, discounted cash flows and other techniques used by market participants. As at December 31, 2022, these positions were significant to the Fund and the significant unobservable input used in these valuation techniques can vary considerably over time depending on company specific factors and economic or market conditions. The potential impacts of applying reasonable possible alternative assumptions for valuing material Level 3 financial assets or liabilities are shown in the table below.

December 31, 2022

Description	Fair Value	Valuation Technique	Unobservable Inputs	Weighted average input	Reasonable possible shift +/- (absolute value)	Change in Valuation +/-
Guaranteed Linked Notes	2,708,812	Discounted cash flows	Cost of capital	0.28%	1%	(32,506) / 32,506
Mortgage-Backed Securities	11,179,150	Discounted cash flows	Cost of capital	6.30%	1%	(103,966) / 103,966
Loans	4,930,000	Discounted cash flows	Cost of capital	11.17%	1%	(27,115) / 26,869

As at December 31, 2021, these positions were not significant to the Fund and any changes in reasonable possible assumptions used in their valuation would not have a significant impact to the Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units of the Fund.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

In the normal course of business, the Fund enters into various master netting arrangements or other similar agreements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting in the Statements of Financial Position but still allow for the related amounts to be set off in certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or termination of the contracts. As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the following tables present the over-the-counter derivatives that are offset, or subject to enforceable master netting agreements or other similar agreements but that are not offset. The "Net" column shows what the impact on the Fund's Statements of Financial Position would be if all set-off rights were exercised.

Financial assets and liabilities	A	Amounts offset			offset	Net
				Subject to		
		Gross	Net	master	Cash	
	Gross	assets/liabilities	amounts	netting	collateral	
December 31, 2022	assets/liabilities	offset	t presented arrangements		received	
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
Forward currency contracts						
Derivative assets	26,255	(12,300)	13,955	_	_	13,995
Derivative liabilities	(12,300)	12,300	_	_	_	_

Financial assets and liabilities	A	Amounts offset		Amounts not	Net	
		Gross	Net	Subject to	Cash	
	Gross	assets/liabilities	amounts	master netting	collateral	
December 31, 2021	assets/liabilities	offset	presented	arrangements	received	
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
Swap contracts						
Derivative assets	693,312	(693,312)	_	_	_	_
Derivative liabilities	(1,395,824)	693,312	(702,512)	_	9,963,144	9,260,632

Management Fees (note 11)

Management fees differ among the series of units of the Fund as shown in the table below.

Series	Management Fees (Up to)
Series A	1.65%
Series D	0.75%
Series F	0.75%
Series FT	0.75%
Series I*	Negotiated by the Unitholder
Series P	1.55%
Series PF	0.65%
Series PFT	0.65%
Series PT	1.55%
Series Q	1.45%
Series QF	0.55%
Series QFT	0.55%
Series QT	1.45%
Series T	1.65%
ETF Series	0.75%

^{*} The management fee for Series I units of the Fund is negotiated by the unitholder and may be paid directly by the Fund or by the unitholder.

Tax Loss Carryforwards (note 3)

For the taxation year ended December 15, 2022, the Fund had capital and non-capital losses available for tax purposes as shown in the table below.

Capital losses	Non-capital losses	Non-capital losses year of expiry
\$	\$	
28,953,774	_	_

Restricted Cash and Investments (note 10)

As at December 31, 2022, restricted cash and investments held for the Fund were \$8,605,434 (December 31, 2021 - \$78,153,002).

Related Party Holdings

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, Ninepoint Financial Group Inc., the parent company of the Manager, and its respective subsidiaries, held the following investments as shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
Units held		
ETF Series	200	_
Value of units held (\$)	3,444	<u> </u>

Related Party Syndicated Loans

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund held loans which were syndicated by an investment fund, for which Ninepoint Partners LP is also the Manager. The amount syndicated is shown in the table below.

Loan	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	\$	\$
Location d-Autos All-Star Inc.	2,500,000	2,500,000
Quality Rugs of Canada	2,500,000	2,500,000

Securities Lending (note 3)

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the market values of securities loaned and related collateral amounts are shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	\$	\$
Securities loaned	23,460,963	12,138,166
Collateral	24,652,252	12,758,444
Collateral as a percentage of securities loaned (%)	105	105

During the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, securities lending income and charges are shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	\$	\$
Gross securities lending income	36,387	41,421
Securities lending charges	(14,546)	(18,371)
Net securities lending income	21,841	23,050
Withholding taxes on securities lending income	_	_
Net securities lending income received by the Fund	21,841	23,050
Net securities lending income as a percentage of gross securities lending income (%)	60	56

Fund Merger

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Fund acquired all the assets of the funds listed below (the "Acquired Fund"), and in exchange, it issued units to the Acquired Fund which in turn were distributed to the shareholders of the Acquired Fund. The Manager was the investment advisor to the Acquired Fund.

		Fair Value of assets	Number of units issued by the
Transfer Date	Acquired Fund	acquired by the Fund	Fund to the Acquired Fund
December 10, 2021	Ninepoint Diversified Bond Class	\$488,036,864	46,562,961

Leverage and Short-Selling Risk

In 2022, the Fund exercised leverage through participating in short-selling transactions, which expose the Fund to short-selling risk. During the year ended December 31, 2022, the lowest aggregated fair value amount of the short-selling leverage exercised by the Fund was nil and the highest aggregated fair value amount of the short-selling leverage used during the year was \$5,371,069 (1.6% of NAV).

Statements of Financial Position

As at December 31	2022	2021
	s	\$
Assets		
Current assets		
Investments (note 3, 5)	282,710,991	177,985,067
Cash	4,937	7,336
Subscriptions receivable	1,601,049	15,335
Interest receivable	1,033,511	105,104
Prepaid expenses	3,756	3,756
Total assets	285,354,244	178,116,598
Liabilities		
Current liabilities		
Distribution payable to unitholders	34,505	14,829
Redemptions payable	832,399	91,072
Total liabilities	866,904	105,901
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	284,487,340	178,010,697
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per series		
Series A	63,183,326	20,815,957
Series F	209,657,620	123,552,770
Series I	125,516	1,619,096
ETF Series	11,520,878	32,022,874
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per series per unit (note 3)		
Series A	9.76	9.73
Series F	9.74	9.72
Series I	9.93	9.98
ETF Series	50.09	50.04

See accompanying notes which are an integral part of these financial statements

On behalf of the Manager, Ninepoint Partners LP, by its General Partner, Ninepoint Partners GP Inc.

James Fox DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
	s	\$
Income		
Interest income for distribution purposes (note 3)	5,044,472	1,747,826
Total income (loss)	5,044,472	1,747,826
Expenses (note 11, 12)		
Management fees	378,626	374,555
Unitholder reporting fees	105,250	110,114
Administrative fees	153,742	104,647
Filing fees	67,193	85,534
Legal fees	19,417	21,029
Audit fees	6,748	6,540
Independent Review Committee fees (note 14)	5,033	4,890
Custodial fees	2,011	1,524
Interest expense and bank charges	10	152
Total expenses	738,030	708,985
Expenses waived or absorbed by the Manager (note 12)	(359,394)	(334,278)
Net expenses	378,636	374,707
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations	4,665,836	1,373,119
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series		
Series A	777,695	97,136
Series F	3,620,975	674,765
Series I	6,420	20,906
Series I1	-	462,370
ETF Series	260,746	117,942
Weighted average number of redeemable units		
Series A	3,210,258	3,098,048
Series F	14,742,847	11,722,206
Series I	38,807	279,769
Series I1	-	7,814,340
ETF Series	284,505	400,110
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3)		
Series A	0.24	0.03
Series F	0.25	0.06
Series I	0.17	0.07
Series I1	-	0.06
ETF Series	0.92	0.29

Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, beginning of year	,	,
Series A	20,815,957	39,386,215
Series F	123,552,770	86,910,847
Series I	1,619,096	548,358
Series I1	-	220,055,258
ETF Series	32,022,874	2,999,936
	178,010,697	349,900,614
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations	777,695	97,136
Series A Series F	3,620,975	674,765
Series I	6,420	20,906
Series I1	0,420	462,370
ETF Series	260,746	117,942
EIT SCHES	4,665,836	1,373,119
Distributions to holders of redeemable units		
From net investment income		
Series A	(670,716)	(101,158)
Series F	(3,267,402)	(657,863)
Series I	(6,732)	(19,929)
Series II	-	(475,341)
ETF Series	(244,046)	(108,340)
	(4,188,896)	(1,362,631)
Redeemable unit transactions (note 8)		
Proceeds from redeemable units issued		
Series A	76,203,182	19,974,562
Series F	410,000,679	318,447,543
Series I	-	3,559,748
Series I1	-	104
ETF Series	23,537,450	35,016,636
Reinvestments of distributions to holders of redeemable units		
Series A	654,225	101,042
Series F	3,266,801	657,863
Series I	6,732	19,929
Series I1	-	475,341
ETF Series	-	-
Redemption of redeemable units		
Series A	(34,597,017)	(38,641,840)
Series F	(327,516,203)	(282,480,385)
Series I	(1,500,000)	(2,509,916)
Series I1	-	(220,517,732)
ETF Series	(44,056,146)	(6,003,300)
	105,999,703	(171,900,405)
Net increase (decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units		
Series A	42,367,369	(18,570,258)
Series F	86,104,850	36,641,923
Series I	(1,493,580)	1,070,738
Series I1	-	(220,055,258)
ETF Series	(20,501,996)	29,022,938
	106,476,643	(171,889,917)
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, end of year Series A	63,183,326	20,815,957
Series F	209,657,620	123,552,770
Series I	125,516	1,619,096
Series I	125,516	1,019,090
ETF Series	11,520,878	32,022,874
LII ONIN	284,487,340	178,010,697
	204,407,340	1/8,010,09/

Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units continued

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
Units, beginning of year	2 120 070	4.047.420
Series A	2,139,868	4,047,429
Series F	12,716,413	8,946,920
Series I	162,164	54,939
Series I1	-	21,996,864
ETF Series	640,000	60,000
	15,658,445	35,106,152
Redeemable unit transactions (note 8)		
Redeemable units issued		
Series A	7,814,053	2,052,329
Series F	42,116,238	32,770,797
Series I	-	356,415
Series I1	-	-
ETF Series	470,000	700,000
Reinvestments of distributions to holders of redeemable units		
Series A	67,084	10,384
Series F	335,675	67,712
Series I	676	1,995
Series I1	-	47,557
ETF Series	-	· -
Redemption of redeemable units		
Series A	(3,550,518)	(3,970,274)
Series F	(33,643,060)	(29,069,016)
Series I	(150,206)	(251,185)
Series I1	-	(22,044,421)
ETF Series	(880,000)	(120,000)
	12,579,942	(19,447,707)
Units, end of year		
Series A	6,470,487	2,139,868
Series F	21,525,266	12,716,413
Series I	12,634	162,164
Series I1	-	-
ETF Series	230,000	640,000
	28,238,387	15,658,445

Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
	\$	\$
Cash flows from operating activities		
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations	4,665,836	1,373,119
Purchases of investments	(360,194,607)	(372,417,177)
Proceeds from sale of investments	255,468,683	558,520,947
Net increase (decrease) in other assets and liabilities	(928,407)	63,536
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities	(100,988,495)	187,540,425
Cash flows from financing activities		
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable units, net of reinvested distributions	(241,462)	(95,770)
Proceeds from redeemable units issued	507,719,529	377,072,994
Redemption of redeemable units	(406,491,971)	(564,517,571)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities	100,986,096	(187,540,347)
Net increase (decrease) in cash	(2,399)	78
Cash (Bank indebtedness), beginning of year	7,336	7,258
Cash (Bank indebtedness), end of year	4,937	7,336
Supplemental Information*		
Interest received	4,116,065	1,811,363
Interest paid	10	152

^{*}Information provided relates to the operating activities of the Fund

Schedule of Investment Portfolio

As at December 31, 2022	Average Cost	Fair Value
	\$	\$
HIGH INTEREST SAVINGS ACCOUNTS [99.38%]		
Bank of Montreal Cash Account	249,869,834	249,869,834
Toronto Dominion Bank Cash Account	32,841,157	32,841,157
Total investments [99.38%]	282,710,991	282,710,991
Cash and other assets less liabilities [0.62%]		1,776,349
Total Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units [100.00%]		284,487,340

Ninepoint High Interest Savings Fund Notes to financial statements — Fund specific information Decembe 31, 2022

Financial Risk Management (note 6)

Investment Objective

The Fund's objective is to maximize yield on cash balances, while providing easy access to investments with daily liquidity. The Fund invests in high interest savings accounts offered at Schedule 1 Canadian Banks.

The Schedule of Investment Portfolio presents the holdings of the Fund as at December 31, 2022. Significant risks that are relevant to the Fund are discussed here. General information on risks and risk management is described in *Note 6 Financial Risk Management* of the Generic Notes.

Market Risk

a) Other Price Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund did not have a significant exposure to other price risk.

b) Currency Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund did not have a significant exposure to currency risk.

c) Interest Rate Risk

The Fund held deposit accounts with Schedule 1 Canadian Banks. The Fund is exposed to the risk that a bank, with which it has a deposit account, may change the interest rate of a deposit account. The potential impact, on an annual basis, to the Fund's Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units had interest rates increased or decreased by 0.5% as at December 31, 2022 is \$1,417,398 (December 31, 2021 - \$889,925).

Credit Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund held deposit accounts with Schedule 1 Canadian Banks. The Fund is exposed to the risk that a bank, with which it has a deposit account, will be unable to pay amounts in full when due. This credit risk is considered low.

Concentration Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's concentration risk as a percentage of Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units is shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	9/0	%
High Interest Savings Accounts	99.38	99.99
Cash and other assets less liabilities	0.62	0.01
Total Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	100.00	100.00

Fair Value Measurements (note 5)

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's investments were in high interest savings accounts offered by Schedule 1 Canadian banks.

Management Fees (note 11)

Management fees differ among the series of units of the Fund as shown in the table below.

Series	Management Fees (Up to)
Series A	0.39%
Series F	0.14%
Series I*	Negotiated by the Unitholder
ETF Series	0.14%

^{*} The management fee for Series I units of the Fund is negotiated by the unitholder and may be paid directly by the Fund or by the unitholder.

Ninepoint High Interest Savings Fund Notes to financial statements – Fund specific information Decembe 31, 2022

Tax Loss Carryforwards (note 3)

For the taxation year ended December 15, 2022, the Fund had capital and non-capital losses available for tax purposes as shown in the table below.

Capital losses	Non-capital losses	Non-capital losses year of expiry
\$	\$	<u> </u>
520,043	_	_

Related Party Holdings

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, Ninepoint Financial Group Inc., the parent company of the Manager, and its respective subsidiaries, held the following investments as shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
Units held		
ETF Series	100	_
Value of units held (\$)	5,011	

Statements of Financial Position

As at December 31	2022	2021
	\$	\$
Assets		
Current assets		
Investments (note 3, 5)	90,391,504	82,683,765
Cash	281,390	245,795
Subscriptions receivable	115,872	10,855
Total assets	90,788,766	82,940,415
Liabilities		
Current liabilities		
Redemptions payable	13,961	11,705
Accrued expenses	90,891	73,670
Total liabilities	104,852	85,375
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	90,683,914	82,855,040
Not Accept attailmentals to holders of redomnable units non-course		
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per series Series A	40,528,001	44 220 016
	6,247,012	44,328,816
Series D Series F	43,908,901	38,526,224
SCHES F	43,908,901	30,320,224
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per series per unit (note 3)		
Series A	6.62	6.14
Series D	10.32	-
Series F	7.00	6.46
Series A \$US	4.89	4.85
Series F \$US	5.17	5.11

See accompanying notes which are an integral part of these financial statements

On behalf of the Manager, Ninepoint Partners LP, by its General Partner, Ninepoint Partners GP Inc.

John Wilson DIRECTOR

James Fox DIRECTOR

Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
	s	S
Income		
Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investments	164,404	215,880
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) in the value of investments	7,779,940	(11,548,888)
Net realized gains (losses) on foreign exchange	(5,836)	(10,168)
Other income	-	28,652
Total income (loss)	7,938,508	(11,314,524)
Expenses (note 11, 12)		
Management fees	945,673	1,053,052
Custodial fees	148,410	106,829
Unitholder reporting fees	107,060	102,783
Administrative fees	72,161	35,069
Legal fees	19,630	37,483
Filing fees	18,782	19,267
Audit fees	17,866	17,579
Independent Review Committee fees (note 14)	5,088	5,019
Interest expense and bank charges	1,725	1,651
Total expenses	1,336,395	1,378,732
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations	6,602,113	(12,693,256)
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series		
Series A	3,055,554	(6,957,814)
Series D	226,882	-
Series F	3,319,677	(5,735,442)
Weighted average number of redeemable units		
Series A	6,496,643	7,077,383
Series D	541,062	-
Series F	6,141,446	5,786,457
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3)		
Series A	0.47	(0.98)
Series D	0.42	-
Series F	0.54	(0.99)

Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
	s	s
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, beginning of the year		
Series A	44,328,816	46,304,870
Series D	-	-
Series F	38,526,224	41,175,124
	82,855,040	87,479,994
Towns (Downs) is Not Asset at the table to be bloom for all on the first own of the		
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations Series A	3,055,554	(6,957,814)
Series D	226,882	(0,937,814)
	3,319,677	(5,735,442)
Series F	6,602,113	
	6,602,113	(12,693,256)
Redeemable unit transactions (note 8)		
Proceeds from redeemable units issued		
Series A	5,116,014	11,688,026
Series D	6,483,957	-
Series F	8,776,975	10,612,892
Redemption of redeemable units		
Series A	(11,972,383)	(6,706,266)
Series D	(463,827)	-
Series F	(6,713,975)	(7,526,350)
	1,226,761	8,068,302
Net increase (decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units Series A	(3,800,815)	(1.076.054)
Series D		(1,976,054)
	6,247,012	(2.648.000)
Series F	5,382,677 7,828,874	(2,648,900)
	7,020,074	(4,624,954)
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, end of the year		
Scries A	40,528,001	44,328,816
Series D	6,247,012	-
Series F	43,908,901	38,526,224
	90,683,914	82,855,040

Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units continued

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
77.56.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.		
Units, beginning of the year		
Series A	7,218,645	6,503,174
Series D	-	-
Series F	5,961,022	5,520,938
	13,179,667	12,024,112
Redeemable unit transactions (note 8)		
Redeemable units issued		
Series A	844,876	1,700,270
Series D	660,086	-
Series F	1,369,888	1,561,865
Redemption of redeemable units		
Series A	(1,941,385)	(984,799)
Series D	(54,611)	-
Series F	(1,059,095)	(1,121,781)
	(180,241)	1,155,555
Thete and effective		
Units, end of the year	(120.12)	# 21 0 c1#
Series A	6,122,136	7,218,645
Series D	605,475	-
Series F	6,271,815	5,961,022
	12,999,426	13,179,667

Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
	s	S
Cash flows from operating activities		
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations	6,602,113	(12,693,256)
Adjustments for:		
Foreign exchange (gains) losses on cash	(3,801)	6,249
Net realized (gains) losses on sales of investments	(164,404)	(215,880)
Change in unrealized (appreciation) depreciation in the value of investments	(7,779,940)	11,548,888
Purchases of investments	(3,540,059)	(10,146,025)
Proceeds from sale of investments	3,776,665	3,233,876
Net increase (decrease) in other assets and liabilities	17,221	(38,669)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities	(1,092,205)	(8,304,817)
Cash flows from financing activities		
Proceeds from redeemable units issued	19,745,185	21,855,921
Redemption of redeemable units	(18,621,186)	(13,738,818)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities	1,123,999	8,117,103
Foreign exchange gains (losses) on cash	3,801	(6,249)
Net increase (decrease) in cash	31,794	(187,714)
Cash (Bank indebtedness), beginning of the year	245,795	439,758
Cash (Bank indebtedness), end of the year	281,390	245,795
Supplemental Information*		
Interest paid	1,725	1,651
1	, -	,

^{*}Information provided relates to the operating activities of the Fund

 $See\ accompanying\ notes\ which\ are\ an\ integral\ part\ of\ these\ financial\ statements$

Schedule of Investment Portfolio

As at December 31, 2022		Average Cost	Fair Value
•		S	S
OUNCES	BULLION [99.68%]		
2,786,903	Silver Bullion	76,951,089	90,391,504
Total investments [99.68	%]	76,951,089	90,391,504
Cash and other assets less	liabilities [0.32%]		292,410
Total Net Assets attribut	able to holders of redeemable units [100.00%]		90,683,914

Financial Risk Management (note 6)

Investment Objective

The investment objective of the Fund is to seek to provide a secure, convenient alternative for investors seeking to hold silver. The Fund will invest primarily in unencumbered, fully allocated silver bullion and silver certificates. The Fund may also invest a portion of its assets in cash, money market instruments and/or treasury bills. The Fund will only purchase and expects only to own "Good Delivery Bars" as defined by the London Bullion Market Association ("LBMA"), with each bar purchased being verified against the LBMA source.

The Schedule of Investment Portfolio presents the investments held by the Fund as at December 31, 2022. Significant risks that are relevant to the Fund are discussed here. General information on risks and risk management is described in *Note 6 Financial Risk Management* of the Generic Notes.

Market Risk

a) Other Price Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, if the price of silver bullion were to fluctuate by 10%, with all other variables held constant, the Fund's Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units would increase or decrease by the amounts shown in the table below.

December 31, 2022		December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021	
	As a % of Net Assets		As a % of Net Assets
attributable to holders		attributable to hold	
Impact	of redeemable units	Impact	of redeemable units
\$	%	\$	%
9,039,150	9.97	8,268,377	9.98

b) Currency Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's direct exposure to currency risk and potential impact to the Fund's Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units as a result of a 1% change in these currencies relative to the Canadian dollar, with all other variables held constant, are shown in the tables below.

December 31, 2022

		% of Net Assets attributable to holders	Impact on Net Assets attributable to holders
-		*****	
Currency	Fair Value	of redeemable units	of redeemable units
	\$	%	\$
U.S. Dollar	90,409,510	99.70	904,095
December 31, 2021			
		% of Net Assets	Impact on Net Assets
		% of Net Assets attributable to holders	•
Currency	Fair Value		attributable to holders
Currency	Fair Value	attributable to holders	Impact on Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units

c) Interest Rate Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund did not have a significant exposure to interest rate risk.

Credit Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund did not have a significant exposure to credit risk.

Concentration Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's concentration risk as a percentage of Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units is shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	%	%
Silver Bullion	99.68	99.79
Cash and other assets less liabilities	0.32	0.21
Total Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	100.00	100.00

Fair Value Measurements (note 5)

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's financial assets and liabilities, which are measured at fair value, have been categorized based upon the fair value hierarchy as shown in the tables below.

December 31, 2022	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
	\$	\$	S	\$
Silver Bullion	90,391,504	_		90,391,504
December 31, 2021	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
	\$	\$	\$	\$
Silver Bullion	82,683,765	_		82,683,765

During the year ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, there were no significant transfers between levels.

Management Fees (note 11)

Management fees differ among the series of units of the Fund as shown in the table below.

Series	Management Fees (Up to)
Series A	1.30%
Series D	0.85%
Series F	0.85%
Series I*	Negotiated by the Unitholder

^{*} The management fee for Series I units of the Fund is negotiated by the unitholder and may be paid directly by the Fund or by the unitholder.

Tax Loss Carryforwards (note 3)

For the taxation year ended December 15, 2022, the Fund had capital and non-capital losses available for tax purposes as shown in the table below.

Capital losses	Non-capital losses	Non-capital losses year of expiry
\$	\$	
50,458,046	_	

Related Party Holdings

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, Ninepoint Financial Group Inc., the parent company of the Manager, and its respective subsidiaries, held the following investments shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
Units held		
Series D	100	_
Value of units held (\$)	1,032	_

Statements of Financial Position

As at December 31	2022	2021
	s	\$
Assets		
Current assets		
Investments (note 3,5)	34,075,883	32,179,035
Cash	1,099,080	185,636
Subscriptions receivable	56,489	92,212
Dividends receivable	80,509	55,735
Total assets	35,311,961	32,512,618
Liabilities		
Current liabilities		
Distribution payable to unitholders	43	63,494
Due to broker	295,218	-
Redemptions payable	14	60,287
Accrued expenses	17,500	6,881
Total liabilities	312,775	130,662
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	34,999,186	32,381,956
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per series		
Series A	15,647,259	14,013,275
Series D	650,214	115,237
Series F	18,701,713	18,253,444
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per series per unit (note 3)		
Series A	11.36	12.00
Series D	11.26	11.67
Series F	12.27	12.82

 $See\ accompanying\ notes\ which\ are\ an\ integral\ part\ of\ these\ financial\ statements$

On behalf of the Manager, Ninepoint Partners LP, by its General Partner, Ninepoint Partners GP Inc.

John Wilson

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

For the year ended December 31	2022	2021
	s	\$
Income		
Interest income for distribution purposes (note 3)	-	3,003
Dividends (note 3)	1,153,741	705,443
Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investments	1,430,999	1,248,662
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) in the value of investments	(1,742,635)	2,148,768
Net realized gains (losses) on foreign exchange	(38,343)	(50,116)
Total income (loss)	803,762	4,055,760
Expenses (note 11, 12)		400.04.5
Management fees	535,172	438,815
Administrative fees	86,229	40,388
Transaction costs (note 3, 13)	81,380	64,902
Withholding taxes	74,907	66,410
Unitholder reporting fees	43,102	34,758
Filing fees	18,782	19,267
Legal fees	18,675	20,584
Audit fees	12,194	12,463
Independent Review Committee fees (note 14)	4,841	4,787
Custodial fees	4,143	5,199
Interest expense and bank charges	1,347	2,757
Total expenses	880,772	710,330
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations	(77,010)	3,345,430
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series		
Series A	(106,713)	1,523,240
Series D	(13,036)	17,031
Series F	42,739	1,805,159
JOHNS 1	72,137	1,805,157
Weighted average number of redeemable units		
Series A	1,230,689	1,135,235
Series D	41,917	10,990
Series F	1,522,660	1,101,069
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3)		
Series A	(0.09)	1.34
Series D	(0.31)	1.55
Series F	0.03	1.64
	0.03	1.04

Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units

For the year ended December 31	2022	2021
	s	\$
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, beginning of year		10.000.000
Series A	14,013,275	12,273,508
Series D	115,237 18,253,444	48,108 7,103,740
Series F	32,381,956	19,425,356
	22,001,900	19,120,300
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations		
Series A	(106,713)	1,523,240
Series D	(13,036)	17,031
Series F	42,739	1,805,159
	(77,010)	3,345,430
Distributions to holders of redeemable units		
From net investment income		
Series A	(170,175)	_
Series D	(7,120)	-
Series F	(204,507)	-
From net capital gains on investments		
Series A	(203,826)	(156,633)
Series D	(8,528)	-
Series F	(244,952)	(262,352)
From return of capital		
Series A	(294,803)	(414,788)
Series D	(6,720)	(5,490)
Series F	(431,433)	(337,054)
	(1,572,064)	(1,176,317)
Redeemable unit transactions (note 8)		
Proceeds from redeemable units issued		
Series A	4,304,817	2,715,726
Series D	640,234	295,843
Series F	7,914,229	12,210,128
Reinvestments of distributions to holders of redeemable units	, , ,	
Series A	529,929	429,110
Series D	17,321	5,422
Series F	139,489	132,888
Redemption of redeemable units		
Series A	(2,425,245)	(2,356,888)
Series D	(87,174)	(245,677)
Series F	(6,767,296)	(2,399,065)
	4,266,304	10,787,487
Net increase (decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units		
Series A	1,633,984	1,739,767
Series D	534,977	67,129
Series F	448,269	11,149,704
Delive 1	2,617,230	12,956,600
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, end of year		
Series A	15,647,259	14,013,275
Series D	650,214	115,237
Series F	18,701,713 34,999,186	18,253,444
	34,779,180	32,381,956

Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units continued

For the year ended December 31	2022	2021
Units, beginning of year		
Series A	1,168,163	1,098,355
Series D	9,876	4,476
Series F	1,423,941	601,630
	2,601,980	1,704,461
Redeemable unit transactions (note 8)		
Redeemable units issued		
Series A	369,770	238,532
Series D	53,965	26,758
Series F	633,354	1,010,102
Reinvestments of distributions to holders of redeemable units	033,334	1,010,102
Series A	45,492	37,648
Series D	1,509	489
Series F	11,137	10,983
	11,137	10,963
Redemption of redeemable units Series A	(205,578)	(206,372)
Series D	(7,589)	(21,847)
Series F	(544,515)	(198,774)
Series r	357,545	897,519
	5513515	077,517
Units, end of year		
Series A	1,377,847	1,168,163
Series D	57,761	9,876
Series F	1,523,917	1,423,941
	2,959,525	2,601,980

Statements of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31	2022	2021
	\$	\$
Cash flows from operating activities		
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations	(77,010)	3,345,430
Adjustments for:		
Foreign exchange (gains) losses on cash	9,421	23,694
Net realized (gains) losses on sales of investments	(1,430,999)	(1,248,662)
Change in unrealized (appreciation) depreciation in the value of investments	1,742,635	(2,148,768)
Purchases of investments	(40,601,057)	(53,896,797)
Proceeds from sale of investments	38,687,791	43,933,174
Net increase (decrease) in other assets and liabilities	(14,155)	(45,927)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities	(1,683,374)	(10,037,856)
Cash flows from financing activities		
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable units, net of reinvested distributions	(948,776)	(572,592)
Proceeds from redeemable units issued	12,567,377	14,876,530
Redemption of redeemable units	(9,012,362)	(4,688,146)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities	2,606,239	9,615,792
Foreign exchange gains (losses) on cash	(9,421)	(23,694)
Net increase (decrease) in cash	922,865	(422,064)
Cash (Bank indebtedness), beginning of year	185,636	631,394
Cash (Bank indebtedness), end of year	1,099,080	185,636
Supplemental Information*		
Interest received	-	3,003
Interest paid	1,347	2,757
Dividends received, net of withholding taxes	1,054,060	634,859

^{*}Information provided relates to the operating activities of the Fund

Schedule of Investment Portfolio

As at December 31, 2022		Average Cost	Fair Valu
		\$	
SHARES	EQUITIES [97.36%]		
	UTILITIES [40.99%]		
8,656	American Electric Power Company Inc	988,812	1,112,83
8,235	Constellation Energy Corporation.	494,450	961,25
6,508	DTE Energy Company	998,001	1,035,65
55,651	Engie SA	985,395	1,079,87
16,826	Essential Utilities Inc.	934,670	1,087,40
18,921	Exelon Corporation.	1,208,631	1,107,51
12,257	NextEra Energy Inc.	1,016,373	1,387,42
24,315	Northland Power Inc.	935,884	902,81
17,387	RWE AG	1,049,527	1,048,08
5,567	Sempra Energy	964,989	1,164,87
36,890	The AES Corporation	1,152,938	1,436,53
79,380	TransAlta Corporation	1,016,993	961,29
30,449	Veolia Environnement SA	1,003,199	1,059,17
· ·		12,749,862	14,344,74
4.550	ENERGY [21.81%]	4.000.450	
4,570	Cheniere Energy Inc.	1,022,178	927,91
24,748	Enbridge Inc.	1,323,647	1,309,66
72,133	Energy Transfer L.P.	1,103,751	1,062,34
34,566	Keyera Corporation	1,141,461	1,022,80
22,932	Pembina Pipeline Corporation	952,880	1,053,95
12,393	Targa Resources Corporation	511,413	1,233,33
23,004	The Williams Companies Inc.	651,120	1,024,75
		6,706,450	7,634,77
	INDUSTRIALS [18.69%]		
6,483	Canadian National Railway Company	949,511	1,042,72
10,297	Canadian Pacific Railway Limited	887,176	1,039,48
31,044	Ferrovial SA	980,937	1,101,02
5,895	Quanta Services Inc.	980,937	1,101,02
7,777	Vinci SA	1,022,908	1,051,55
6,521	Waste Connections Inc.	1,014,653 5,845,350	1,170,38 6,542,58
		3,013,330	0,542,50
	REAL ESTATE [15.87%]		
5,789	American Tower Corporation	1,778,260	1,660,62
9,654	Crown Castle Inc.	1,695,650	1,575,77
1,187	Equinix Inc.	1,055,112	1,052,76
3,332	SBA Communications Corporation	1,242,876	1,264,62
- ,- >=	·	5,771,898	5,553,78
Total equities		31,073,560	34,075,88
Transaction costs (note 3)		(36,647)	
Total investments [97.36%	,	31,036,913	34,075,88
Cash and other assets less li			923,30
Total Net Assets attributa	ole to holders of redeemable units [100.00%]		34,999,18

Ninepoint Global Infrastructure Fund Notes to financial statements — Fund specific information December 31, 2022

Financial Risk Management (note 6)

Investment Objective

The investment objective of the Fund is primarily to maximize risk adjusted long-term returns and secondarily to achieve a high level of income. The Fund focuses on achieving growth of capital through securities selection and pursues a long-term investment program with the aim of generating capital gains. The Fund seeks to provide a moderate level of volatility and a low degree of correlation to other asset classes through diversifying across a relatively concentrated group of global infrastructure stocks.

The Schedule of Investment Portfolio presents the securities held by the Fund as at December 31, 2022. Significant risks that are relevant to the Fund are discussed here. General information on risks and risk management is described in *Note 6 Financial Risk Management* of the Generic Notes.

Market Risk

a) Other Price Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, if the MSCI World Core Infrastructure Index (CAD) were to fluctuate by 10%, with all other variables held constant, Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units would increase or decrease by the amounts shown in the table below. This is a measure based on the historical relationship of the Fund's performance against the noted index. The composition of this calculation contains several subjective components that, although reasonably estimated, could alter the resulting estimate should these components be modified based on revised assumptions.

December 31, 2022		December	31, 2021
	As a % of Net Assets		As a % of Net Assets
	attributable to holders		attributable to holders
Impact	of redeemable units	Impact	of redeemable units
S	%	\$	%
2,834,885	8.10	2,566,403	7.93

b) Currency Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's direct exposure to currency risk and potential impact to the Fund's Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units as a result of a 1% change in these currencies relative to the Canadian dollar, with all other variables held constant, are shown in the tables below.

% of Net Assets

Impact on Net Assets

December 31, 2022

		attributable to holders	attributable to holders
Currency	Fair Value	of redeemable units	of redeemable units
	\$	%	\$
U.S. Dollar	19,966,791	57.05	199,668
Euro	5,375,676	15.36	53,757
Australian Dollar	1,291	0.00	13
Total	25,343,758	72.41	253,438
December 31, 2021			
		% of Net Assets	Impact on Net Assets
		attributable to holders	attributable to holders
Currency	Fair Value	of redeemable units	of redeemable units
	\$	%	\$
U.S. Dollar	21,515,089	66.45	215,151
Euro	5,680,590	17.54	56,806
Australian Dollar	1,289	0.00	13
Total	27,196,968	83.99	271,970

Ninepoint Global Infrastructure Fund Notes to financial statements — Fund specific information December 31, 2022

c) Interest Rate Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund did not have a significant exposure to interest rate risk.

Credit Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021 the Fund did not have a significant exposure to credit risk.

Concentration Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's concentration risk as a percentage of Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units is shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	
	%	%
Equities:		
Utilities	40.99	39.01
Energy	21.81	12.49
Industrials	18.69	25.32
Real Estate	15.87	19.39
Information Technology	_	3.16
Cash and other assets less liabilities	2.64	0.63
Total Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	100.00	100.00

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's investment portfolio is concentrated in the geographic segments as shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	%	%
United States	61.15	69.33
Canada	20.95	12.60
France	9.12	3.01
Spain	3.15	11.51
Germany	2.99	2.92
Cash and other assets less liabilities	2.64	0.63
Total Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	100.00	100.00

Fair Value Measurements (note 5)

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's financial assets and liabilities, which are measured at fair value, have been categorized based upon the fair value hierarchy as shown in the tables below.

December 31, 2022	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
	\$	\$	\$	\$
Equities	34,075,885	_	_	34,075,885
December 31, 2021	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
	\$	\$	\$	\$
Equities	32,179,035	_	_	32,179,035

During the year ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, there were no significant transfers between levels.

Ninepoint Global Infrastructure Fund Notes to financial statements — Fund specific information December 31, 2022

Management Fees (note 11)

Management fees differ among the series of units of the Fund as shown in the table below.

Series	Management Fees (Up to)
Series A	2.00%
Series D	1.00%
Series F	1.00%
Series I*	Negotiated by the Unitholder

^{*} The management fee for Series I units of the Fund is negotiated by the unitholder and may be paid directly by the Fund or by the unitholder.

Tax Loss Carryforwards (note 3)

For the taxation year ended December 15, 2022, the Fund had no capital and non-capital losses available for tax purposes.

Related Party Holdings

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, Ninepoint Financial Group Inc., the parent company of the Manager, and its respective subsidiaries, held the following investments as shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
Units held		
Series A	225	215
Series F	234	223
Value of units held (\$)	5,423	5,438

Sharing Arrangements (note 13)

During the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, total transaction costs incurred to certain brokers for research provided to the portfolio manager are shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	\$	\$
Soft dollar broker commissions	7,917	16,537

Statements of Financial Position

As at December 31	2022	2021
	s	\$
Assets		
Current assets		
Investments (note 3, 5)	44,487,200	58,139,857
Due from broker	295,710	-
Subscriptions receivable	25	10
Dividends receivable	200,000	-
Total assets	44,982,935	58,139,867
Liabilities		
Current liabilities		
Bank indebtedness	456,333	6,811
Distribution payable to unitholders	450,555	350
Postribution payable to ununoiders Redemptions payable	103,583	14,473
	19,922	50,067
Accrued expenses Total liabilities	579.838	71,701
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	5/9,838 44,403,097	58,068,166
Net Assets attributable to nolders of redeemable units	77,700,077	36,006,100
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per series		
Series A	11,010,688	15,482,925
Series D	1,459,093	223,476
Series F	31,933,316	42,361,765
Not have a state of the late o		
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per series per unit (note 3)	0.60	0.54
Series A	8.60	9.54
Series D	9.65	10.58
Series F	9.51	10.42

DIRECTOR

 $See\ accompanying\ notes\ which\ are\ an\ integral\ part\ of\ these\ financial\ statements$

On behalf of the Manager, Ninepoint Partners LP, by its General Partner, Ninepoint Partners GP Inc.

John Wilson

DIRECTOR

Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
	s	\$
Income		
Interest income for distribution purposes (note 3)	-	303
Dividends (note 3)	996,246	393,195
Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investments	4,315,551	8,075,350
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) in the value of investments	(4,356,139)	6,972,343
Net realized gains (losses) on foreign exchange	(980)	(2,853)
Securities lending income	93,016	300,690
Other income	9,533	4,094
Total income (loss)	1,057,227	15,743,122
P. (. 11.12)		
Expenses (note 11, 12)	1 022 552	4.006.000
Management fees	1,033,572	1,226,735
Transaction costs (note 3, 13)	98,351	300,025
Unitholder reporting fees	46,430	108,855
Administrative fees	24,546	45,202
Legal fees	20,071	29,200
Filing fees	18,782	19,510
Audit fees	14,462	26,029
Custodial fees	8,667	29,767
Independent Review Committee fees (note 14)	5,083	5,338
Interest expense and bank charges	1,786	6,242
Directors' fees	-	12,207
Withholding taxes	-	1,979
Total expenses	1,271,750	1,811,089
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations	(214,523)	13,932,033
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series		
Series A	172,561	3,555,677
Series D	(415,939)	44,953
Series F	28,855	10,331,403
Weighted average number of redeemable units		
Series A	1,339,447	1,893,052
Series D	123,090	22,715
Series F	3,443,971	4,861,660
561631	3,443,771	4,801,000
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3)		
Series A	0.13	1.88
Series D	(3.38)	1.98
Series F		

Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
	S	\$
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, beginning of year		
Series A	15,482,925	8,910,328
Series D	223,476	180,666
Series F	42,361,765	26,741,655
	58,068,166	35,832,649
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations		
Series A	172,561	3,555,677
Series D	(415,939)	44,953
Series F	28,855	10,331,403
Octivo 1	(214,523)	13,932,033
Distributions to holders of redeemable units		
From net investment income		
Series A	-	(4,666)
Series D	-	(94)
Series F	-	(17,951)
From net capital gains on investments		
Series A	(736,681)	-
Series D	(97,183)	-
Series F	(2,128,480)	-
	(2,962,344)	(22,711)
Redeemable unit transactions (note 8)		
Proceeds from redeemable units issued		
Series A	1,248,705	27,501,224
Series D	2,635,761	173,102
Series F	891,480	68,216,587
Reinvestments of distributions to holders of redeemable units		
Series A	727,430	4,632
Series D	95,892	86
Series F	2,075,315	17,657
Redemption of redeemable units		
Series A	(5,884,252)	(24,484,270)
Series D	(982,914)	(175,237)
Series F	(11,295,619)	(62,927,586)
	(10,488,202)	8,326,195
Notice and the second of the s		
Net increase (decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units Series A	(4,472,237)	6,572,597
Series D	1,235,617	42,810
Series F	(10,428,449)	15,620,110
Series I	(13,665,069)	22,235,517
	(-), - 5, - 5, - 5, - 5, - 5, - 5, - 5,	,
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, end of year		
Series A	11,010,688	15,482,925
Series D	1,459,093	223,476
Series F	31,933,316	42,361,765
	44,403,097	58,068,166

Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units continued

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
Units, beginning of year		
Series A	1,623,779	1,176,187
Series D	21,127	21,695
Series F	4,065,204	3,266,044
	5,710,110	4,463,926
Redeemable unit transactions (note 8)		
Redeemable units issued		
Series A	119,704	3,320,212
Series D	201,461	18,618
Series F	74,214	7,631,667
Reinvestments of distributions to holders of redeemable units	/4,214	7,031,007
Series A	85,461	486
Series D	10,044	8
Series F	220,621	1,695
Redemption of redeemable units		
Series A	(549,024)	(2,873,106)
Series D	(81,417)	(19,194)
Series F	(1,001,253)	(6,834,202)
	(920,189)	1,246,184
Units, end of year		
Series A	1,279,920	1,623,779
Series D	151,215	21,127
Series F	3,358,786	4,065,204
	4,789,921	5,710,110

Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
	S	
Cash flows from operating activities		
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations	(214,523)	13,932,033
Adjustments for:		
Foreign exchange (gains) losses on cash	39	2,764
Net realized (gains) losses on sales of investments	(4,315,551)	(8,075,350)
Change in unrealized (appreciation) depreciation in the value of investments	4,356,139	(6,972,343)
Purchases of investments	(7,923,122)	(102,872,070)
Proceeds from sale of investments	21,239,481	95,766,206
Net increase (decrease) in other assets and liabilities	(230,145)	(2,121)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities	12,912,318	(8,220,881)
Cash flows from financing activities		
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable units, net of reinvested distributions	(64,057)	(1,427)
Proceeds from redeemable units issued	4,380,064	94,932,159
Redemption of redeemable units	(17,677,808)	(86,768,722)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities	(13,361,801)	8,162,010
Foreign exchange gains (losses) on cash	(39)	(2,764)
Net increase (decrease) in cash	(449,483)	(58,871)
Cash (Bank indebtedness), beginning of year	(6,811)	54,824
Cash (Bank indebtedness), end of year	(456,333)	(6,811)
Supplemental Information*		
Interest received		303
	1,786	6,242
Interest paid	796,246	393,195
Dividends received, net of withholding taxes *Information provided relates to the operating activities of the Fund	/96,246	393,193

Schedule of Investment Portfolio

As at December 31, 2022		Restriction/Expiry Date Average Cost	Fair Value
SHARES	EQUITIES [99.34%]	s	\$
511 11425	ENERGY [63.22%]		
495,000	Advantage Energy Limited	1,159,230	4,687,650
455,500	Avila Energy Corporation	125,695	122,985
434,440	Avila Energy Corporation	132,504	108,306
250,000	Birchcliff Energy Limited	2,009,756	2,357,500
500,000	Denison Mines Corporation	495,000	775,000
708,610	Green Shift Commodities Limited	106,292	77,947
475,000	IsoEnergy Limited	453,625	1,382,250
675,000	NexGen Energy Limited	1,803,908	4,043,250
265,500	NG Energy International Corpoation	253,287	252,225
65,000	Parex Resources Inc.	1,138,823	1,309,750
50,000	Pipestone Energy Corporation	1,500	150,412
400,000	Spartan Delta Corporation	1,298,777	5,980,000
67,000	Tourmaline Oil Corporation	955,071	4,577,440
800,000	Yangarra Resources Limited	2,197,226	2,248,000
	g	12,130,694	28,072,715
	MATERIALS [36.12%]		
600,000	Arizona Metals Corporation	2,245,705	2,586,000
767,600	Asante Gold Corporation	931,088	1,051,612
2,929,900	Benchmark Metals Inc.	3,545,179	1,157,311
650,000	Canada Nickel Company Inc.	1,575,426	1,332,500
6,438,000	Clean Air Metals Inc.	2,188,920	836,940
770,600	Collective Mining Limited	2,567,124	1,965,030
79,700	Critical Elements Corporation	184,096	164,979
300,000	Emerita Resources Corporation	330,000	193,500
2,000,000	First Mining Gold Corporation	869,928	400,000
494,820	Fission 3.0 Corporation	127,515	155,868
900,000	Generation Mining Limited	757,427	684,000
150,000	K92 Mining Inc.	507,015	1,150,500
628,500	Lithium Ionic Corporation	1,067,537	1,018,170
367,500	Marathon Gold Corporation	404,250	389,550
376,300	Nighthawk Gold Corporation	106,117	135,468
2,169,400	Roscan Gold Corporation	676,168	368,798
392,000	Shear Diamonds Limited*	-	
456,050	Thesis Gold Inc.	822,838	383,082
3,200,000	Troilus Gold Corporation	3,496,117	1,536,000
1,243,500	White Gold Corporation	1,002,989	528,488
		23,405,439	16,037,796
	EINIANICIAL IO 000/1		
81,250	FINANCIAL [0.00%] Stage Capital Corporation*		
81,230	Stage Capital Corporation	<u> </u>	
-			
	HEALTH CARE [0.00%]		
250,000	Hydrx Pharms Limited*	750,000	-
		750,000	-
Total equities		36,286,133	44,110,511
SHARES	WARRANTS [0.85%]		
SHARES	ENERGY [0.77%]		
217.220		Dec 23, 2024 -	
217,220	Avila Energy Corporation CanAlaska Uranium Limited		
781,250		May 16, 2024 212,920	
708,610	Green Shift Commodities Limited	Dec 22, 2024 -	242.25
2,361,111	Skyharbour Resources Limited	May 1, 2023 346,359	342,361
1,000,000	Standard Uranium Limited	Jun 25, 2023 50,068	2/2.25
		609,347	342,36

Schedule of Investment Portfolio continued

As at December 31, 2022		Expiry Date	Average Cost	Fair Value
			\$	S
SHARES	MATERIALS [0.08%]			
1,666,666	79North Inc.	Jun 12, 2023	56,445	-
268,639	CopAur Minerals Inc.	Jun 2, 2023	179,109	-
227,300	Emerita Resources Corporation	Jul 15, 2023	-	-
125,000	Fokus Mining Corporation	Oct 16, 2023	14,066	-
174,107	GCM Mining Corporation	Feb 6, 2023	207,327	-
183,750	Marathon Gold Corporation	Sep 20, 2024	-	-
159,165	McEwen Mining Inc.	Nov 22, 2024	38,242	32,326
9,090,000	Nickel Creek Platinum Corporation	Jun 11, 2025	703,878	-
1,266,667	Silver Tiger Metals Inc.	Jul 27, 2023	456,010	-
1,030,000	Stillwater Critical Minerals Corporation	May 21, 2023	236,437	-
33,363	Treasury Metals Inc.	Aug 7, 2023	-	2,002
			1,891,514	34,328
Total warrants			2,500,861	376,689
Transaction costs (note 3)			(131,178)	-
Total investments [100.19	0%]		38,655,816	44,487,200
Cash and other assets less l	iabilities [-0.19%]			(84,103)
Total Net Assets attributa	able to holders of redeemable units [100.00%]			44,403,097

^{*} Private company

Financial Risk Management (note 6)

Investment Objective

The investment objective of the Fund is to achieve long-term capital growth. The Fund invests primarily in equity and equity-related securities of companies in Canada and around the world that are involved directly or indirectly in the natural resource sector.

The Schedule of Investment Portfolio presents the securities held by the Fund as at December 31, 2022. Significant risks that are relevant to the Fund are discussed here. General information on risks and risk management is described in *Note 6 Financial Risk Management* of the Generic Notes.

Market Risk

a) Other Price Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, if the S&P/TSX Capped Materials Total Return Index and S&P/TSX Capped Energy Total Return Index were to fluctuate by 10%, with all other variables held constant, Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units would increase or decrease by the amounts shown in the table below. This is a measure based on the historical relationship of the Fund's performance against the noted indices. The composition of this calculation contains several subjective components that, although reasonably estimated, could alter the resulting calculation should these components be modified based on revised assumptions.

December 31, 2022		December	31, 2021
	As a % of Net Assets		As a % of Net Assets
attributable to holders			attributable to holders
Impact	of redeemable units	Impact	of redeemable units
\$	%	\$	%
4,677,379	10.53	9,668,530	16.65

b) Currency Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's direct exposure to currency risk and potential impact to the Fund's Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units as a result of a 1% change in these currencies relative to the Canadian dollar, with all other variables held constant, are shown in the tables below.

December 31, 2022

		% of Net Assets	Impact on Net Assets
		attributable to holders	attributable to holders
Currency	Fair Value	of redeemable units	of redeemable units
	\$	%	\$
U.S. Dollar	32,326	0.07	323
December 31, 2021			
		% of Net Assets	Impact on Net Assets
		attributable to holders	attributable to holders
Currency	Fair Value	of redeemable units	of redeemable units
	\$	%	\$
Australian Dollar	206,277	0.36	2,063
U.S. Dollar	88,224	0.15	882
Pound Sterling	502	0.00	5
Total	295,003	0.51	2,950

c) Interest Rate Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund did not have a significant exposure to interest rate risk.

Credit Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund did not have a significant exposure to credit risk.

Concentration Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's concentration risk as a percentage of Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units is shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	%	%
Equities:		
Energy	63.22	50.39
Materials	36.12	41.77
Sectors less than 1%	0.00	0.00
Warrants	0.85	7.96
Cash and other assets less liabilities	(0.19)	(0.12)
Total Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	100.00	100.00

Fair Value Measurements (note 5)

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's financial assets and liabilities, which are measured at fair value, have been categorized based upon the fair value hierarchy as shown in the tables below.

December 31, 2022	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
	\$	\$	\$	\$
Equities	44,110,511	_	_	44,110,511
Warrants	34,328	342,361	_	376,689
Total	44,144,839	342,361	_	44,487,200
December 31, 2021	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
	\$	\$	\$	\$
Equities	53,514,980	_	_	53,514,980
Warrants	102,770	149,445	4,372,662	4,624,877
Total	53.617.750	149,445	4.372.662	58.139.857

During the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 there were no significant transfers between levels other than the transfers indicated below.

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the reconciliation of investments measured at fair value using unobservable inputs (Level 3) are shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022		Decembe	er 31, 2021
	Equities	Warrants	Equities	Warrants
	\$	\$	\$	\$
Balance, beginning of year	_	4,372,662	_	3,584,650
Purchases	_	_	_	5,354,655
Sales	_	_	_	(326,873)
Net transfers in (out)	_	(2,523,213)	_	_
Realized gains (losses) in the value of investments	_	(1,331,546)	_	(60,493)
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) in the value of investments	_	(517,903)	_	(4,179,277)
Balance, end of year	_	_	_	4,372,662
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) during the year for				
investments held at end of year	_	_	_	(3,528,682)

The Fund's Level 3 securities consist of private equity and private warrant positions. The Manager determines the fair value by utilizing a variety of valuation techniques such as the use of comparable recent transactions, discounted cash flows and other techniques used by market participants. As at December 31, 2022, these positions were not significant to the Fund and any changes in reasonable possible assumptions used in their valuation would not have a significant impact to the Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units of the Fund. As at December 31, 2021, these positions were significant to the Fund and the significant unobservable input used in these valuation techniques can vary considerably over time depending on company specific factors and economic or market conditions. The potential impacts of applying reasonable possible alternative assumptions for valuing material Level 3 financial assets or liabilities are shown in the tables below.

December 31, 2021	Increase	Decrease
Impact on Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	1.85%	(3.64%)

Management Fees (note 11)

Management fees differ among the series of units of the Fund as shown in the table below.

Series	Management Fees (Up to)
Series A	2.50%
Series D	1.50%
Series F	1.50%
Series I*	Negotiated by the Unitholder

^{*} The management fee for Series I units of the Fund is negotiated by the investor and paid directly by the investor or by the Fund and would not exceed the management fee for Series A units of the Fund.

Tax Loss Carryforwards (note 3)

For the taxation year ended December 15, 2022, the Fund had no capital and non-capital losses available for tax purposes.

Related Party Holdings

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, Ninepoint Financial Group Inc., the parent company of the Manager, and its respective subsidiaries, held the following investments shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
Units held		
Series A	132	123
Series F	1	15,001
Value of units held (\$)	1,142	151,180

Securities Lending (note 3)

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the market values of securities loaned and related collateral amounts are shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	\$	\$
Securities loaned	239,447	_
Collateral	252,066	_
Collateral as a percentage of securities loaned (%)	105	_

During the year ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, securities lending income and charges are shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	\$	\$
Gross securities lending income	155.021	534,167
Securities lending charges	(62,005)	(233,477)
Net securities lending income	93,016	300,690
Withholding taxes on securities lending income	_	(1,979)
Net securities lending income received by the Fund	93,016	298,711
Net securities lending income as a percentage of gross securities lending income (%)	60	56

Sharing Arrangements (note 13)

During the year ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, total transaction costs incurred to certain brokers for research provided to the portfolio manager are shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	\$	\$
Soft dollar broker commissions	957	3,839

Fund Mergers

On December 10, 2021, Ninepoint Resource Class transferred its assets to the Fund, which is its trust fund equivalent on a 1:1 basis. The Fund has a substantially similar investment objective, investment portfolio, fee structure as well as valuation procedure, and is managed by the same portfolio management team as Ninepoint Resource Class. The merger occurred on a tax-deferred basis.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Fund acquired all the assets of the flow-through limited partnerships listed below, and in exchange, the Fund issued units to those flow-through limited partnerships. In turn, the units were distributed to the limited partners of the flow-through limited partnerships. The Manager was the investment advisor to the flow-through limited partnerships. The general partners of each of the flow-through limited partnerships were under common control of the Manager. Tax elections were made which allowed the transfer of assets to occur on a tax-deferred basis.

		Number of units	Fair Value of assets acquired
Merger Date	Flow-Through Limited Partnerships	issued by the Fund	by the Fund
February 6, 2021	Ninepoint 2020 Flow-Through Limited Partnership	3,506,408	\$29,242,981
February 6, 2021	Ninepoint 2019 Short Duration Flow-Through Limited Partnership	2,132,266	\$19,030,421
February 6, 2021	Ninepoint 2019 Flow-Through Limited Partnership	4,882,759	\$43,578,490

Statements of Financial Position

As at December 31	2022	2021
	\$	\$
Assets		
Current assets		
Investments (note 3, 5)	148,997,373	194,959,003
Cash	2,031,438	301,878
Due from broker	103,076	123,944
Subscriptions receivable	27,127	8,572
Dividends receivable	21,983	15,572
Total assets	151,180,997	195,408,969
Liabilities		
Current liabilities		
Redemptions payable	27,556	27,019
Incentive fees payable (note 11)	-	758,555
Accrued expenses	60,320	56,652
Total liabilities	87,876	842,226
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	151,093,121	194,566,743
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per series		
Series A	59,951,717	85,556,343
Series D	8,848,498	5,010,258
Series F	80,539,894	101,765,847
ETF Series	1,753,012	2,234,295
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per series per unit (note 3)		
Series A	6.87	8.85
Series D	12.75	16.23
Series F	7.61	9.71
ETF Series	14.02	17.87

See accompanying notes which are an integral part of these financial statements

On behalf of the Manager, Ninepoint Partners LP, by its General Partner, Ninepoint Partners GP Inc.

John Wilson DIRECTOR James Fox DIRECTOR

Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
	s	\$
Income		
Dividends (note 3)	936,792	1,290,528
Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investments	(417,956)	19,184,301
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) in the value of investments	(38,671,179)	(75,526,294)
Net realized gains (losses) on foreign exchange	12,623	15,456
Securities lending income	106,103	435,103
Other income	459	18,362
Total income (loss)	(38,033,158)	(54,582,544)
Expenses (note 11, 12)		
Management fees	3,359,658	5,169,836
Transaction costs (note 3, 13)	139,536	453,181
Administrative fees	124,866	229,325
Unitholder reporting fees	115,513	167,411
Filing fees	22,640	29,625
Legal fees	19,845	28,382
Custodial fees	17,274	27,180
Audit fees	16,136	15,670
Withholding taxes	9,867	36,269
Independent Review Committee fees (note 14)	5,025	5,180
Interest expense and bank charges	1,881	7,172
Incentive fees	-	758,964
Directors fees	_	12,207
Total expenses	3,832,241	6,940,402
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations	(41,865,399)	(61,522,946)
-	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series		
Series A	(17,134,115)	(28,882,622)
Series D	(2,690,915)	(1,269,919)
Series F	(21,559,086)	(30,701,584)
ETF Series	(481,283)	(668,821)
Weighted average number of redeemable units		
Series A	8,987,215	11,038,034
Series D	582,024	322,498
Series F	10,491,058	10,533,935
ETF Series	125,000	125,000
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3)		
Series A	(1.91)	(2.62)
Series D	(4.62)	(3.94)
Series F	(2.05)	(2.91)
ETF Series	(3.85)	(5.35)
LII JORG	(3.83)	(3.33)

Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
	s	\$
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, beginning of year		
Series A	85,556,343	129,333,333
Series D	5,010,258	4,765,066
Series F	101,765,847	139,525,082
ETF Series	2,234,295	4,506,046
	194,566,743	278,129,527
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations		
Series A	(17,134,115)	(28,882,622)
Series D	(2,690,915)	(1,269,919)
Series F	(21,559,086)	(30,701,584)
ETF Series	(481,283)	(668,821)
	(41,865,399)	(61,522,946)
Redeemable unit transactions (note 8) Proceeds from redeemable units issued		
Series A	3,699,940	10,402,306
Series D	8,279,365	3,225,232
Series F	8,270,452	23,525,674
ETF Series	0,270,432	456,457
Redemption of redeemable units	-	450,457
Series A	(12,170,451)	(25,296,674)
Series D	(1,750,210)	(1,710,121)
Series F		(30,583,325)
	(7,937,319)	(2,059,387)
ETF Series	(1 (00 222)	
	(1,608,223)	(22,039,838)
Net increase (decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units		
Series A	(25,604,626)	(43,776,990)
Series D	3,838,240	245,192
Series F	(21,225,953)	(37,759,235)
ETF Series	(481,283)	(2,271,751)
	(43,473,622)	(83,562,784)
Not Access attributable to heldow of redoomable units and of year		
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, end of year Series A	59,951,717	85,556,343
Series D	8,848,498	5,010,258
Series F	80,539,894	101,765,847
ETF Series	1,753,012	2,234,295
ELL OVING	151,093,121	194,566,743

Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units continued

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
Units, beginning of year		
Series A	9,663,542	11,458,092
Series D	308,696	232,357
Series F	10,478,931	11,374,785
ETF Series	125,000	200,000
	20,576,169	23,265,234
Redeemable unit transactions (note 8)		
Redeemable units issued		
Series A	500,670	1,017,443
Series D	510,931	170,194
Series F	1,072,147	2,178,087
ETF Series	-	25,000
Redemption of redeemable units		
Series A	(1,443,553)	(2,811,993)
Series D	(125,533)	(93,855)
Series F	(973,095)	(3,073,941)
ETF Series	-	(100,000)
	(458,433)	(2,689,065)
Units, end of year		
Series A	8,720,659	9,663,542
Series D	694,094	308,696
Series F	10,577,983	10,478,931
ETF Series	125,000	125,000
	20,117,736	20,576,169

Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
	\$	\$
Cash flows from operating activities		
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations	(41,865,399)	(61,522,946)
Adjustments for:		
Foreign exchange (gains) losses on cash	(12,409)	14,870
Net realized (gains) losses on sales of investments	417,956	(19,184,301)
Change in unrealized (appreciation) depreciation in the value of investments	38,671,179	75,526,294
Purchases of investments	(21,022,760)	(86,011,551)
Proceeds from sale of investments	27,916,123	104,075,248
Net increase (decrease) in other assets and liabilities	(761,298)	(1,767,428)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities	3,343,392	11,130,186
Cash flows from financing activities		
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable units, net of reinvested distributions	-	(22,120)
Proceeds from redeemable units issued	19,432,884	38,048,393
Redemption of redeemable units	(21,059,125)	(59,131,633)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities	(1,626,241)	(21,105,360)
Foreign exchange gains (losses) on cash	12,409	(14,870)
Net increase (decrease) in cash	1,717,151	(9,975,174)
Cash (Bank indebtedness), beginning of year	301,878	10,291,922
Cash (Bank indebtedness), end of year	2,031,438	301,878
Supplemental Information*		
Interest paid	1,881	7,172
Dividends received, net of withholding taxes	921,355	1,289,835
*Information provided relates to the operating activities of the Fund		

*Information provided relates to the operating activities of the Fund

Schedule of Investment Portfolio

As at December 31, 2022		Restriction/Expiry Date	Average Cost	Fair Value
SHARES	EQUITIES [97.12%]		3	3
5,013,200	SILVER AND OTHER METALS [97.12%] AbraSilver Resource Corporation		1,421,478	1,754,620
1,060,000	Aftermath Silver Limited		1,376,848	275,600
1,640,000	Americas Gold & Silver Corporation		2,019,539	1,262,800
2,089,000	Andean Precious Metals Corporation		2,249,440	2,318,790
1,872,681	Apollo Gold & Silver Corporation		1,404,511	318,356
706,178	Aya Gold & Silver Inc.		4,347,136	6,369,726
2,586,733	Benchmark Metals Inc.		3,342,863	1,021,760
3,343,200	Blackrock Silver Corporation	1 0 2022*	2,464,560	1,554,588
1,200,000 1,936,000	Blackrock Silver Corporation	Jan 2, 2023* Feb 21, 2023*	600,000 387,200	556,884 445,280
1,000,000	Capitan Mining Inc. Capitan Mining Inc.	reo 21, 2025	200,000	221,873
271,052	Coeur Mining Inc.		2,706,287	1,233,135
1,292,250	Defiance Silver Corporation		1,163,025	219,683
4,447,300	Discovery Silver Corporation		5,426,335	6,092,801
3,270,326	Dolly Varden Silver Corporation		1,426,706	2,943,293
405,944	Dundee Precious Metals Inc.		2,594,964	2,642,695
3,625,900	Empress Royalty Corporation		1,341,583	1,450,360
656,600	First Majestic Silver Corporation		9,559,824	7,406,448
1,382,600	Fortuna Silver Mines Inc.		7,652,949	7,037,434
3,879,050	GoGold Resources Inc.		5,399,470 2,194,027	8,417,538 767,100
6,670,434 3,333,334	GR Silver Mining Limited GR Silver Mining Limited	Jan 3, 2023*	500,000	382,311
2,182,400	Hecla Mining Company	Jan 3, 2023	15,791,136	16,429,631
973,079	Hochschild Mining PLC		3,743,671	1,118,983
233,534	Industrias Penoles SAB de CV		4,742,948	3,864,917
475,500	Kinross Gold Corporation		4,602,519	2,624,760
477,444	Kootenay Resources Inc.**		-	47,744
15,061,108	Kootenay Silver Inc.		3,304,985	2,409,777
3,333,400	Kootenay Silver Inc.	Mar 8, 2023*	300,006	509,166
499,250	Kuya Silver Corporation		948,575	182,226
289,300	Lundin Gold Inc.		3,335,146	3,827,439
333,026	MAG Silver Corporation		5,958,015	7,043,500
5,635,700	Minaurum Gold Inc.		2,615,585 18,595,911	1,014,426 12,185,189
551,366 973,800	Pan American Silver Corporation Pan American Silver Corporation Rights		57,023	752,878
159,500	Prime Mining Corporation	Apr 22, 2023*	239,250	279,816
952,600	Prime Mining Corporation	Арт 22, 2023	2,298,933	1,809,940
2,123,500	Reyna Silver Corporation		532,700	828,165
5,328,000	Sable Resources Limited		1,598,400	586,080
5,339,288	Santacruz Silver Mining Limited		1,355,358	2,162,412
6,225,317	Silver Mines Limited		348,046	1,147,789
4,233,330	Silver Mountain Resources Inc.		1,703,449	1,291,166
13,212,500	Silver Tiger Metals Inc.		7,776,647	3,633,437
3,445,300	Silver Viper Minerals Corporation		1,017,166	585,701
1,852,960	Silver X Mining Corporation		1,230,893	704,125
819,867	Silvercorp Metals Inc.		6,006,604 3,514,098	3,263,071 3,325,609
410,569 1,560,000	SilverCrest Metals Inc. Southern Silver Exploration Corporation		780,000	304,200
477,100	SSR Mining Inc.		11,330,724	10,109,749
3,536,091	Summa Silver Corporation		1,640,403	2,829,022
79,437	Triple Flag Precious Metals Corporation		1,123,519	1,489,444
201,800	Victoria Gold Corporation		3,344,363	1,442,870
1,675,650	Vizsla Silver Corporation		2,844,047	2,597,257
28,311	Wheaton Precious Metals Corporation		1,434,525	1,497,652
200,000	Zacatecas Silver Corporation		100,000	150,000
Total equities			173,993,390	146,741,216
SHARES	WARRANTS [1.49%]			
	SILVER AND OTHER METALS [1.49%]			
2,034,784	Apollo Gold & Silver Corporation	Jul 8, 2023	135,693	-
416,550	Benchmark Metals Inc.	Dec 9, 2023	151,124	-
600,000	Blackrock Silver Corporation	Jan 2, 2023*, Aug 30, 2025	-	79,580
1,000,000	Blackrock Silver Corporation	Feb 19, 2024	152,821	-
171,600	Blackrock Silver Corporation	Nov 3, 2023	19,376	-
500,000	Blackrock Silver Corporation	Jun 8, 2023	49,243	-
833,333	Defiance Silver Corporation	Jun 10, 2023	49,423	-
276,127	Emerita Resources Corporation	Jul 15, 2023	620,455	10.000
1,200,000	Empress Royalty Corporation	Mar 25, 2023	72,000	12,000
	GCM Mining Corporation	Feb 6, 2023 Jan 3, 2023*, Aug 30, 2025	129,477	-
400,000	GR Silver Mining Limited			-
400,000 1,666,667	GR Silver Mining Limited GR Silver Mining Limited		7 049	_
400,000 1,666,667 490,000	GR Silver Mining Limited	Apr 27, 2023	7,049	- 243 614
400,000 1,666,667 490,000 3,125,000	GR Silver Mining Limited Kootenay Silver Inc.	Apr 27, 2023 Mar 9, 2025	7,049 - -	
400,000 1,666,667 490,000	GR Silver Mining Limited	Apr 27, 2023	7,049 - - 33,941	
400,000 1,666,667 490,000 3,125,000 3,333,400	GR Silver Mining Limited Kootenay Silver Inc. Kootenay Silver Inc.	Apr 27, 2023 Mar 9, 2025 Mar 8, 2023*, Nov 8, 2025	-	243,614 334,083

Schedule of Investment Portfolio continued

As at December 31, 2022		Restriction/Expiry Date	Average Cost	Fair Value
			S	\$
SHARES	SILVER AND OTHER METALS [1.49%] continued			
285,000	Prime Mining Corporation	Apr 27, 2024	377,963	-
337,500	Reyna Silver Corporation	Jun 24, 2024	-	53,804
3,333,333	Santacruz Silver Mining Limited	Apr 12, 2024	192,977	451,849
4,545,455	Santacruz Silver Mining Limited	Oct 15, 2023	335,608	773,970
153,800	Silver Elephant Mining Corporation	May 1, 2023	256,682	-
1,666,660	Silver Mountain Resources Inc.	Feb 2, 2025	-	-
450,000	Silver Mountain Resources Inc.	Feb 2, 2024	-	-
780,000	Southern Silver Exploration Corporation	Jun 16, 2023	25,790	-
179,000	Summa Silver Corporation	Dec 29, 2025	-	59,045
402,325	Vizsla Silver Corporation	Nov 15, 2024	-	127,142
Total warrants			2,663,683	2,256,157
Transaction costs (note 3)			(300,223)	-
Total investments [98.61	%]		176,356,850	148,997,373
Cash and other assets less	liabilities [1.39%]			2,095,748
Total Net Assets attribut	able to holders of redeemable units [100.00%]			151,093,121

^{*} Securities are restricted for resale until the date indicated, or under Rule 144 of the Securities Act of 1933 for those noted R1933

^{*} Private company

Financial Risk Management (note 6)

Investment Objective

The investment objective of the Fund is to seek to achieve long-term capital growth by investing primarily in equity securities of companies that are directly or indirectly involved in the exploration, mining, production or distribution of silver. The Fund can also invest in silver and silver certificates.

The Schedule of Investment Portfolio presents the securities held by the Fund as at December 31, 2022. Significant risks that are relevant to the Fund are discussed here. General information on risks and risk management is described in *Note 6 Financial Risk Management* of the Generic Notes.

Market Risk

a) Other Price Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, if the MSCI ACWI Select Silver Miners IMI Net Return Index were to fluctuate by 10%, with all other variables held constant, Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units would increase or decrease by the amounts shown in the table below. This is a measure based on the historical relationship of the Fund's performance against the noted index. The composition of this calculation contains several subjective components that, although reasonably estimated, could alter the resulting calculation should these components be modified based on revised assumptions.

December 31, 2022		Γ	December 31, 2021
	As a % of Net Assets		As a % of Net Assets
	attributable to holders		attributable to holders
Impact	of redeemable units	Impact	of redeemable units
\$	%	\$	%
15,133,767	10.02	29,001,276	14.91

b) Currency Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's direct exposure to currency risk and potential impact to the Fund's Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units as a result of a 1% change in these currencies relative to the Canadian dollar, with all other variables held constant, are shown in the tables below.

December 31, 2022

		% of Net Assets attributable to holders	Impact on Net Assets
Currency	Fair Value	of redeemable units	of redeemable units
-	\$	0/0	\$
U.S. Dollar	18,651,433	12.34	186,514
Mexican Peso	3,864,918	2.56	38,649
Pound Sterling	1,175,545	0.78	11,756
Australian Dollar	1,147,790	0.76	11,478
Total	24,839,686	16.44	248,397

December 31, 2021

		% of Net Assets	Impact on Net Assets
		attributable to holders	attributable to holders
Currency	Fair Value	of redeemable units	of redeemable units
	\$	%	\$
U.S. Dollar	19,547,640	10.04	195,476
Mexican Peso	3,477,352	1.79	34,774
Pound Sterling	3,405,306	1.75	34,053
Australian Dollar	1,260,431	0.65	12,604
Total	27,690,729	14.23	276,907

c) Interest Rate Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund did not have a significant exposure to interest rate risk.

Credit Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund did not have a significant exposure to credit risk.

Concentration Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's concentration risk as a percentage of Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units is shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	%	%
Equities:		
Silver and other metals	97.12	96.69
Warrants	1.49	3.51
Cash and other assets less liabilities	1.39	(0.20)
Total Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	100.00	100.00

Fair Value Measurements (note 5)

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's financial assets and liabilities, which are measured at fair value, have been categorized based upon the fair value hierarchy as shown in the tables below.

December 31, 2022	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
	\$	S	\$	\$
Equities	143,767,137	2,173,457	47,744	145,988,338
Warrants and Rights	764,878	2,244,157	-	3,009,035
Total	144,532,015	4,417,614	47,744	148,997,373
December 31, 2021	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
-	\$	\$	\$	\$
Equities	185,698,631	1,164,583	1,264,949	188,128,163
Warrants and Rights	96,000	_	6,734,840	6,830,840
Total	185,794,631	1,164,583	7,999,789	194,959,003

During the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, there were no significant transfers between levels other than the transfers indicated below.

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the reconciliation of investments measured at fair value using unobservable inputs (Level 3) are shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022		December 31, 2	
	Equities	Warrants	Equities	Warrants
	\$	\$	\$	\$
Balance, beginning of year	1,264,949	6,734,840	1,440,500	11,553,483
Purchases	_	_	1,253,449	_
Sales	_	_	_	_
Net transfers in (out)	(1,272,249)	(6,734,840)	(1,440,500)	_
Realized gains (losses)	_	-	_	_
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) in the value of investments	55,044	-	11,500	(4,818,643)
Balance, end of year	47,744	-	1,264,949	6,734,840
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) during the year for				
investments held at end of year	47,744	-	11,500	(207,025)

The Fund's Level 3 securities consist of private equity and private warrant positions. The Manager determines their fair value by utilizing a variety of valuation techniques such as the use of comparable recent transactions, discounted cash flows and other techniques used by market participants. As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, these positions were not significant to the Fund and any changes in reasonable possible assumptions used in their valuation would not have a significant impact to the Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units of the Fund.

Management Fees (note 11)

Management fees differ among the series of units of the Fund as shown in the table below.

Series	Management Fees (Up to)
Series A	2.50%
Series D	1.50%
Series F	1.50%
Series I*	Negotiated by the Unitholder
ETF Series	1.50%

^{*} The management fee for Series I units of the Fund is negotiated by the investor and paid directly by the investor or by the Fund, and would not exceed the management fee for Series A units of the Fund.

Tax Loss Carryforwards (note 3)

As of the taxation year ended December 15, 2022, the Fund had capital and non-capital losses available for tax purposes as shown in the table below.

Capital losses	Non-capital losses	Non-capital losses year of expiry
\$	\$	
3,855,348	38,515	2041
_	3,258,360	2042

Related Party Holdings

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, Ninepoint Financial Group Inc., the parent company of the Manager, and its respective subsidiaries, held the following investments shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
Units held		
Series F	1	1
Value of units held (\$)	8	10

Securities Lending (note 3)

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the market values of securities loaned and related collateral amounts are shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	\$	\$
Securities loaned	14,589,892	_
Collateral	15,355,824	_
Collateral as a percentage of securities loaned (%)	105	_

During the periods ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, securities lending income and charges are shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	\$	\$
Gross securities lending income	176,271	785,621
Securities lending charges	(70,167)	(350,518)
Net securities lending income	106,103	435,103
Withholding taxes on securities lending income	(841)	(21,909)
Net securities lending income received by the Fund	105,262	413,194
Net securities lending income as a percentage of gross securities lending income (%)	60	53

Sharing Arrangements (note 13)

During the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, total transaction costs incurred to certain brokers for research provided to the portfolio manager are shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	\$	\$
Soft dollar broker commissions	16,091	13,870

Fund Merger

On December 10, 2021, Ninepoint Silver Equities Class transferred its assets to the Fund, which is its trust fund equivalent on a 1:1 basis. The Fund has a substantially similar investment objective, investment portfolio, fee structure as well as valuation procedure, and is managed by the same portfolio management team as Ninepoint Silver Equities Class. The merger occurred on a tax-deferred basis.

Statements of Financial Position

As at December 31	2022	2021
	S	\$
Assets		
Current assets		
Investments (note 3, 5, 10)	49,509,913	68,243,091
Cash (note 10)	-	45,375
Options purchased (note 3, 5)	2,734,379	1,425,706
Due from broker	51,931	-
Subscriptions receivable	650	1,034
Dividends receivable	192,720	174,542
Total assets	52,489,593	69,889,748
Liabilities		
Current liabilities		
Bank indebtedness	73,622	-
Options written (note 3, 5)	984,755	4,915,083
Redemptions payable	30,474	47,881
Accrued expenses	53,763	81,973
<u>Total liabilities</u>	1,142,623	5,044,937
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	51,346,970	64,844,811
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per series		
Series A	41,128,598	52,797,214
Series D	539,785	,,
Series F	9,678,587	12,047,597
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per series per unit (note 3)		
Series A	11.62	12.36
Series D	9.83	
Series F		13.80
Selies I.	13.11	13.80

See accompanying notes which are an integral part of these financial statements

On behalf of the Manager, Ninepoint Partners LP, by its General Partner, Ninepoint Partners GP Inc.

DIRECTOR

DIRECTOR

Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
	s	\$
Income		
Dividends (note 3)	820,010	927,436
Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investments	(1,494,088)	8,211,647
Net realized gains (losses) on option contracts	3,660,113	(10,238,733)
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) in the value of investments	(7,069,465)	7,762,765
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on option contracts	1,640,153	716,984
Net realized gains (losses) on foreign exchange	672	73,724
Securities lending income	4,599	-
Other income	37,583	124,103
Total income (loss)	(2,400,423)	7,577,926
Expenses (note 11, 12)	054.055	1 222 400
Management fees	974,975	1,333,499
Withholding taxes	122,861	146,882
Administrative fees	69,894	102,932
Unitholder reporting fees	57,961	161,412
Filing fees	21,625	23,899
Legal fees	19,788	28,887
Audit fees	17,822	34,264
Transaction costs (note 3, 13)	11,586	17,483
Independent Review Committee fees (note 14)	5,011	5,277
Custodial fees	3,498	6,409
Interest expense and bank charges	957	3,790
Directors' fees	-	12,207
Total expenses	1,305,978	1,876,941
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations	(3,706,401)	5,700,985
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series		
Series A	(3,086,465)	4,501,211
Series D		
Series F	(14,867)	(66) 1,199,840
Series F	(605,068)	1,199,640
Weighted average number of redeemable units		
Series A	3,815,377	5,093,556
Series D	56,839	586
Series F	798,604	1,079,973
	.,.,,	2,472,574
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3)		
Series A	(0.81)	0.88
Series D	(0.26)	(0.11)
Series F	(0.76)	1.11
	\· */	

Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
	s	S
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, beginning of year		
Series A	52,797,214	72,708,256
Series D	-	5,810
Series F	12,047,597	17,564,788
	64,844,811	90,278,854
Towns (Down No. N. A. A. a. a. a. a. a. a. b.		
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations	(3,086,465)	4,501,211
Series A		
Series D	(14,867)	(66)
Series F	(605,068)	1,199,840
	(3,706,400)	5,700,985
Redeemable unit transactions (note 8)		
Proceeds from redeemable units issued		
Series A	1,137,670	372,538
Series D	694,442	-
Series F	472,574	594,105
Redemption of redeemable units		
Series A	(9,719,821)	(24,784,791)
Series D	(139,790)	(5,744)
Series F	(2,236,516)	(7,311,136)
	(9,791,441)	(31,135,028)
Net increase (decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units		
Series A	(11,668,616)	(19,911,042)
Series D	539,785	(5,810)
Series F	(2,369,010)	(5,517,191)
	(13,497,841)	(25,434,043)
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, end of year		
Series A	41,128,598	52,797,214
Series D	539,785	
Series F	9,678,587	12,047,597
	51,346,970	64,844,811

Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units continued

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
Units, beginning of year		
Series A	4,270,173	6,361,496
Series D	-	586
Series F	872,801	1,391,474
	5,142,974	7,753,556
Redeemable unit transactions (note 8)		
Redeemable units issued		
Series A	97,942	31,491
Series D	69,553	-
Series F	36,067	46,017
Redemption of redeemable units		
Series A	(828,372)	(2,122,814)
Series D	(14,613)	(586)
Series F	(170,809)	(564,690)
	(810,232)	(2,610,582)
Units, end of year		
Series A	3,539,743	4,270,173
Series D	54,940	- 1,270,173
Series F	738,059	872,801
	4,332,742	5,142,974

Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
	\$	\$
Cash flows from operating activities		
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations	(3,706,401)	5,700,985
Adjustments for:		
Foreign exchange (gains) losses on cash	(2,078)	(10,831)
Net realized (gains) losses on sales of investments	1,494,088	(8,211,647)
Net realized (gains) losses on option contracts	(3,660,113)	10,238,733
Change in unrealized (appreciation) depreciation in the value of investments	7,069,465	(7,762,765)
Change in unrealized (appreciation) depreciation on option contracts	(1,640,153)	(716,984)
Purchases of investments	(3,277,760)	43,960,289
Proceeds from sale of investments	13,456,721	(12,252,070)
Net increase (decrease) in other assets and liabilities	(46,380)	148,792
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities	9,687,389	31,094,502
Cash flows from financing activities		
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable units, net of reinvested distributions	-	(45,227)
Proceeds from redeemable units issued	2,269,058	476,222
Redemption of redeemable units	(12,077,522)	(31,685,033)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities	(9,808,464)	(31,254,038)
Foreign exchange gains (losses) on cash	2,078	10,831
Net increase (decrease) in cash	(121,075)	(159,536)
Cash (Bank indebtedness), beginning of year	45,375	194,080
Cash (Bank indebtedness), end of year	(73,622)	45,375
	·	
Supplemental Information*		
Interest paid	957	3,790
Dividends received, net of withholding taxes	679,136	946,147
*Information provided relates to the operating activities of the Fund		

^{*}Information provided relates to the operating activities of the Fund

Ninepoint Risk Advantaged U.S. Equity Index Fund

Schedule of Investment Portfolio

As at December 31, 2022		Expiry Date	Average Cost	Fair Value
-			S	\$
UNITS	FUNDS [94.69%]			
93,900	SPDR S&P 500 ETF Trust		43,274,414	48,622,380
Total funds			43,274,414	48,622,380
SHARES	EQUITIES [1.73%]			
SHILLS	COMMUNICATION SERVICES [1.61%]			
2,650,000	Hootsuite Media Inc., Preferred Shares**		744,703	825,263
			744,703	825,263
	INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY [0.12%]			
45,000	Baanto International Limited**		_	-
34,302	Baanto International Limited, Rights**	Dec 31, 2049	-	-
34,302	Baanto International Limited, Class B, Convertible Preferred Shares**		_	-
155,676	Baanto International Limited, Class C, Preferred Shares**		79,395	62,270
			79,395	62,270
Total equities			824,097	887,533
Transaction costs (note 3)			(54)	-
Total investments [96.42°	%]		44,098,458	49,509,913
Options purchased [5.33%]	(Schedule 1)			2,734,379
Options written [-1.92%] (Schedule 1)	·		(984,755)
Cash and other assets less l	liabilities [0.17%]			87,433
Total Net Assets attributa	able to holders of redeemable units [100.00%]	·		51,346,970

^{**} Private company

Ninepoint Risk Advantaged U.S. Equity Index Fund

Option Contracts (Schedule 1)

As at December 31, 2022

Options Purchased						
Option Details	Option Type	Number of Contracts	Expiration Date	Strike Price (\$)	Premium Paid \$(CAD)	Fair Value \$(CAD)
SPDR S&P 500 ETF Trust	Put	75	20-Jan-23	425.00 USD	252,633	426,408
SPDR S&P 500 ETF Trust	Put	55	20-Jan-23	350.00 USD	101,428	4,580
SPDR S&P 500 ETF Trust	Put	64	17-Feb-23	350.00 USD	116,784	21,664
SPDR S&P 500 ETF Trust	Put	135	17-Mar-23	405.00 USD	481,251	479,550
SPDR S&P 500 ETF Trust	Put	100	16-Jun-23	390.00 USD	346,484	327,803
SPDR S&P 500 ETF Trust	Put	63	16-Jun-23	350.00 USD	175,396	92,126
SPDR S&P 500 ETF Trust	Put	120	15-Sep-23	400.00 USD	406,444	544,227
SPDR S&P 500 ETF Trust	Put	175	15-Sep-23	360.00 USD	568,781	426,865
SPDR S&P 500 ETF Trust	Put	140	15-Dec-23	360.00 USD	442,795	411,156
Total					2,891,996	2,734,379

Options Written

Options written					Premium	Fair
		Number of	Expiration	Strike	Received	Value
Option Details	Option Type	Contracts	Date	Price (\$)	\$(CAD)	\$(CAD)
SPDR S&P 500 ETF Trust	Put	(55)	20-Jan-23	295.00 USD	(37,231)	(335)
SPDR S&P 500 ETF Trust	Put	(75)	20-Jan-23	325.00 USD	(85,524)	(1,676)
SPDR S&P 500 ETF Trust	Put	(64)	17-Feb-23	310.00 USD	(45,955)	(3,596)
SPDR S&P 500 ETF Trust	Put	(135)	17-Mar-23	310.00 USD	(178,347)	(19,376)
SPDR S&P 500 ETF Trust	Put	(63)	16-Jun-23	295.00 USD	(70,073)	(25,889)
SPDR S&P 500 ETF Trust	Put	(100)	16-Jun-23	300.00 USD	(122,044)	(45,833)
SPDR S&P 500 ETF Trust	Put	(140)	15-Dec-23	280.00 USD	(137,936)	(115,537)
SPDR S&P 500 ETF Trust	Put	(295)	15-Sep-23	300.00 USD	(371,792)	(245,648)
SPDR S&P 500 ETF Trust	Call	(55)	20-Jan-23	420.00 USD	(75,938)	(856)
SPDR S&P 500 ETF Trust	Call	(100)	16-Jun-23	500.00 USD	(185,586)	(3,859)
SPDR S&P 500 ETF Trust	Call	(120)	15-Sep-23	490.00 USD	(217,070)	(23,235)
SPDR S&P 500 ETF Trust	Call	(64)	17-Feb-23	405.00 USD	(76,456)	(33,753)
SPDR S&P 500 ETF Trust	Call	(63)	16-Jun-23	420.00 USD	(108,387)	(80,568)
SPDR S&P 500 ETF Trust	Call	(175)	15-Sep-23	450.00 USD	(301,526)	(151,530)
SPDR S&P 500 ETF Trust	Call	(140)	15-Dec-23	445.00 USD	(270,333)	(233,064)
Total					(2,284,198)	(984,755)

Financial Risk Management (note 6)

Investment Objective

The Fund's investment objective is to obtain exposure to the performance of the S&P 500 Index, or a successor or replacement index (the "Index") and through the use of option strategies seek to moderate the volatility of that performance.

The Schedule of Investment Portfolio presents the securities held by the Fund as at December 31, 2022. Significant risks that are relevant to the Fund are discussed here. General information on risks and risk management is described in *Note 6 Financial Risk Management* of the Generic Notes.

Market Risk

a) Other Price Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, if a blended index of the S&P/TSX Composite Total Return Index and S&P 500 Total Return Index in Canadian dollar terms were to fluctuate by 10%, with all other variables held constant, Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units would increase or decrease by the amounts shown in the table below. This is a measure based on the historical relationship of the Fund's performance against the noted indices. The composition of this calculation contains several subjective components that, although reasonably estimated, could alter the resulting calculation should these components be modified based on revised assumptions.

December 31, 2022		I	December 31, 2021
	As a % of Net Assets		As a % of Net Assets
attributable to holders			attributable to holders
Impact	of redeemable units	Impact	of redeemable units
\$	%	\$	%
2,613,102	5.09	3,031,086	4.67

b) Currency Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's direct exposure to currency risk and potential impact to the Fund's Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units as a result of a 1% change in these currencies relative to the Canadian dollar, with all other variables held constant, are shown in the tables below.

December 31, 2022

Currency	Fair Value	% of Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	Impact on Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units
	\$	%	\$
U.S. Dollar	51,441,918	100.18	514,419
December 31, 2021			
		% of Net Assets	Impact on Net Assets
		attributable to holders	attributable to holders
Currency	Fair Value	of redeemable units	of redeemable units
-	\$	%	\$
U.S. Dollar	64,868,343	100.04	648,683

c) Interest Rate Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund did not have a significant exposure to interest rate risk.

Credit Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund was exposed to credit risk from over-the-counter derivative contracts with counterparties. The credit risk was considered minimal as these counterparties have a minimum credit rating of A by Standard & Poor's or equivalent.

Concentration Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's concentration risk as a percentage of Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units is shown in the table below.

December 31, 2022		December 31, 2021
	%	%
Funds	94.69	103.95
Equities:		
Communication Services	1.61	1.19
Information Technology	0.12	0.10
Options Purchased	5.33	2.20
Options Written	(1.92)	(7.58)
Cash and other assets less liabilities	0.17	0.14
Total Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	100.00	100.00

Fair Value Measurements (note 5)

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's financial assets and liabilities, which are measured at fair value, have been categorized based upon the fair value hierarchy as shown in the tables below.

December 31, 2022	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
	\$	\$	\$	\$
Equities	_	_	887,533	887,533
Funds	48,622,380	_	_	48,622,380
Options Purchased	2,734,379	_	_	2,734,379
Options Written	(984,755)	_	_	(984,755)
Total	50,372,004	-	887,533	51,259,537
December 31, 2021	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
	\$	\$	\$	\$
Equities	_	_	833,257	833,257
Funds	67,409,834	_	_	67,409,834
Options Purchased	1,425,706	_	_	1,425,706
Options Written	(4,915,083)	_	_	(4,915,083)
Total	63,920,457	_	833,257	64,753,714

During the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, there were no significant transfers between levels.

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the reconciliation of investments measured at fair value using unobservable inputs (Level 3) are shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	Equities	Equities
	\$	\$
Balance, beginning of year	833,257	855,227
Purchases	_	_
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) in the value of investments	54,276	(21,970)
Balance, end of year	887,533	833,257
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) during the year for		
investments held at end of year	54,276	(21,970)

The Fund's Level 3 securities consist of private equity positions. The Manager determines the fair value by utilizing a variety of valuation techniques such as the use of comparable recent transactions, discounted cash flows and other techniques used by market participants. As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, these positions were not significant to the Fund and any changes in reasonable possible assumptions used in their valuation would not have a significant impact to the Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units of the Fund.

Management Fees (note 11)

Management fees differ among the series of units of the Fund as shown in the table below.

Series	Management Fees (Up to)	
Series A	1.80%	
Series D	0.80%	
Series F	0.80%	
Series I*	Negotiated by the Unitholder	
Series PF	0.70%	
Series QF	0.60%	

^{*} The management fee for Series I units of the Fund is negotiated by the investor and paid directly by the investor or by the Fund, and would not exceed the management fee for Series A units of the Fund.

Tax Loss Carryforwards (note 3)

For the taxation year ended December 15, 2022, the Fund had capital and non-capital losses available for tax purposes as shown in the table below.

Capital losses	Non-capital losses	Non-capital losses year of expiry
\$	S	
_	18,435	2041

Restricted Cash and Investments (note 10)

As at December 31, 2022, restricted cash and investments held for the Fund were \$37,126,993 (December 31, 2021 - \$65,694,057).

Related Party Holdings

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, Ninepoint Financial Group Inc., the parent company of the Manager, and its respective subsidiaries, held the following investments shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
Units held		
Series D	100	_
Series F	1	1
Value of units held (\$)	996	14_

Securities Lending (note 3)

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the market values of securities loaned and related collateral amounts are shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	\$	\$
Securities loaned	1,754,352	_
Collateral	1,842,070	_
Collateral as a percentage of securities loaned (%)	105	_

During the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, securities lending income and charges are shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	\$	\$
Gross securities lending income	7,555	_
Securities lending charges	(2,956)	
Net securities lending income	4,599	
Withholding taxes on securities lending income	(165)	
Net securities lending income received by the Fund	4,434	
Net securities lending income as a percentage of gross securities lending income (%)	59	

Fund Mergers

On December 10, 2021, Ninepoint Risk Advantaged U.S. Equity Index Class transferred its assets to the Fund, which is its trust fund equivalent on a 1:1 basis. The Fund has a substantially similar investment objective, investment portfolio, fee structure as well as valuation procedure, and is managed by the same portfolio management team as Ninepoint Risk Advantaged U.S. Equity Index Class. The merger occurred on a tax-deferred basis.

Statements of Financial Position

As at December 31	2022	2021
	s	\$
Assets		
Current assets		
Investments (note 3, 5)	7,855,934	12,496,881
Cash	152,369	112,968
Subscriptions receivable	12,205	503,220
Dividends receivable	34,334	31,460
Prepaid expenses	3,788	3,167
Total assets	8,058,630	13,147,696
Liabilities		
Current liabilities		
Distribution payable to unitholders	_	19,225
Due to broker		510,392
Redemptions payable	18,641	510,572
Total liabilities	18,641	529,617
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	8,039,989	12,618,079
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per series		
Series A	3,268,931	4,811,359
Series D	396,147	494,436
Series F	4,006,677	6,862,821
Series T	368,234	449,463
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per series per unit (note 3)		
Series A	10.00	13.96
Series D	8.35	11.52
Series F	10.99	15.17
Series T	8.26	11.74

 $See\ accompanying\ notes\ which\ are\ an\ integral\ part\ of\ these\ financial\ statements$

On behalf of the Manager, Ninepoint Partners LP, by its General Partner, Ninepoint Partners GP Inc.

John Wilson DIRECTOR James Fox DIRECTOR

Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
Towns.	\$	s
Income Interest income for distribution purposes (note 3)	21,980	33,550
Dividends (note 3)	264,917	186,896
	153,679	455,983
Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investments	(3,130,210)	2,189,135
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) in the value of investments	(3,130,210)	(13,038)
Net realized gains (losses) on foreign exchange Other income	4,962	(13,038)
	(2,687,872)	2,853,491
Total income (loss)	(2,007,072)	2,833,491
Expenses (note 11, 12)		
Management fees	160,367	134,546
Withholding taxes	28,404	21,933
Administrative fees	48,338	32,295
Unitholder reporting fees	26,398	24,405
Transaction costs (note 3, 13)	25,312	23,121
Filing fees	20,072	22,143
Legal fees	19,370	20,350
Audit fees	9,826	9,358
Independent Review Committee fees (note 14)	4,900	4,680
Custodial fees	3,039	2,804
Interest expense and bank charges	244	941
Total expenses	346,270	296,576
Expenses waived or absorbed by the Manager (note 12)	(46,977)	(46,025)
Net expenses	299,293	250,551
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations	(2,987,165)	2,602,940
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series		
Series A	(1,257,034)	1,052,560
Series D	(126,741)	78,232
Series F	(1,495,568)	1,372,391
Series T	(107,822)	99,757
Weighted average number of redeemable units		
Series A	368,057	290,826
Series D	44,800	23,809
Series F	410,663	319,376
Series T	39,993	31,780
Scries 1	39,993	31,/80
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3)		
Series A	(3.42)	3.62
Series D	(2.83)	3.29
Series F	(3.64)	4.30
Series T	(2.70)	3.14

Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
	s	S
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, beginning of year		
Series A	4,811,359	3,361,081
Series D	494,436	51,314
Series F	6,862,821	3,087,151
Series T	449,463	282,355
	12,618,079	6,781,901
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations		
Series A	(1,257,034)	1,052,560
Series D	(126,741)	78,232
Series F	(1,495,568)	1,372,391
Series T	(107,822)	99,757
	(2,987,165)	2,602,940
Distributions to holders of redeemable units		
From net investment income		
Series A	(11,829)	-
Series D	(1,378)	(2,885)
Series F	(14,472)	(24,707)
Series T	(1,330)	-
From return of capital	,	
Series A	(219,296)	(142,795)
Series D	(21,655)	(7,071)
Series F	(264,744)	(147,233)
Series T	(27,034)	(17,649)
Series 1	(561,738)	(342,340)
	(601,100)	(3.12,3.10)
Redeemable unit transactions (note 8)		
Proceeds from redeemable units issued		
Series A	1,367,057	1,857,121
Series D	185,955	496,366
Series F	1,416,323	3,375,288
Series T	54,380	85,000
Reinvestments of distributions to holders of redeemable units	187.415	
Series A	176,415	93,984
Series D	20,778	9,622
Series F	91,591	68,556
Series T	577	-
Redemption of redeemable units		
Series A	(1,597,741)	(1,410,592)
Series D	(155,248)	(131,142)
Series F	(2,589,274)	(868,625)
Series T	(1.000.107)	
	(1,029,187)	3,575,578
Net increase (decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units		
	(1,542,428)	1 450 270
Series A		1,450,278
Series D	(98,289)	443,122
Series F	(2,856,144)	3,775,670
Series T	(81,229) (4,578,090)	167,108 5,836,178
	(4,576,070)	3,030,1/8
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, end of year		
Series A	3,268,931	4,811,359
Series D	396,147	494,436
Series F	4,006,677	6,862,821
Series T	368,234	449,463
GOLIGO I	8,039,989	12,618,079
	0,037,707	12,018,079

Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units continued

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
Units, beginning of year		
Series A	344,661	310,332
Series D	42,921	5,798
Series F	452,293	265,259
Series T	38,274	30,603
	878,149	611,992
Redeemable unit transactions (note 8)		
Redeemable units issued		
Series A	110,786	149,598
Series D	18,415	49,045
Series F	109,914	249,992
Series T	6,255	7,671
Reinvestments of distributions to holders of redeemable units	7,	.,
Series A	15,848	7,765
Series D	2,251	932
Series F	7,517	5,290
Series T	69	-,
Redemption of redeemable units		
Series A	(144,360)	(123,034)
Series D	(16,125)	(12,854)
Series F	(205,126)	(68,248)
Series T	-	(**,= **)
	(94,556)	266,157
Units, end of year	224.025	244.664
Series A	326,935	344,661
Series D	47,462	42,921
Series F	364,598	452,293
Series T	44,598	38,274
	783,593	878,149

Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
	s	\$
Cash flows from operating activities		
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations	(2,987,165)	2,602,940
Adjustments for:		
Foreign exchange (gains) losses on cash	1,069	7,983
Net realized (gains) losses on sales of investments	(153,679)	(455,983)
Change in unrealized (appreciation) depreciation in the value of investments	3,130,210	(2,189,135)
Purchases of investments	(14,112,204)	(13,184,676)
Proceeds from sale of investments	15,266,228	10,424,631
Net increase (decrease) in other assets and liabilities	(3,495)	20,232
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities	1,140,964	(2,774,008)
Cash flows from financing activities		
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable units, net of reinvested distributions	(291,602)	(164,189)
Proceeds from redeemable units issued	3,481,164	5,209,585
Redemption of redeemable units	(4,290,056)	(2,302,006)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities	(1,100,494)	2,743,390
Foreign exchange gains (losses) on cash	(1,069)	(7,983)
Net increase (decrease) in cash	40,470	(30,618)
Cash (Bank indebtedness), beginning of year	112,968	151,569
Cash (Bank indebtedness), end of year	152,369	112,968
Supplemental Information*		
Interest received	21,980	33,550
Interest paid	244	941
Dividends received, net of withholding taxes	233,638	185,324
Note and a solid distance the control of the Ford		

^{*}Information provided relates to the operating activities of the Fund

Schedule of Investment Portfolio

As at December 31, 2022		Average Cost	Fair Value
		s	
SHARES	EQUITIES [97.71%]		
22.160	INDUSTRIAL REITS [24.62%]	201,402	250.05
22,160 3,683	Dream Industrial Real Estate Investment Trust.	291,493 248,709	259,05 240,66
3,497	First Industrial Realty Trust Inc. Granite Real Estate Investment Trust	248,709	240,66
3,133	Prologis Inc.	431,761	478,21
3,392	Rexford Industrial Realty Inc.	316,621	250,949
5,985	STAG Industrial Inc	262,058	261,830
3,207	Terreno Realty Corporation	234,342	246,945
3,207	Terroino Reality Corporation	2,030,733	1,979,22
256	SPECIALIZED REITS [23.29%]	225 020	215.74
356	Equinix Inc.	325,920	315,74
3,851	Gaming and Leisure Properties Inc.	250,425	271,610
4,273	Iron Mountain Inc.	288,856	288,414
1,811	Life Storage Inc	178,301	241,53
653	Public Storage	301,417	247,733
636	SBA Communications Corporation	285,123	241,387
6,064	VICI Properties Inc.	223,928 1,853,970	266,025 1,872,440
		1,055,770	1,072,110
	RETAIL REITS [22.27%]		
2,755	Agree Realty Corporation	242,989	264,58
17,909	Choice Properties Real Estate Investment Trust.	258,036	264,33
15,915	First Capital Real Estate Investment Trust	257,482	267,53
8,648	Kimco Realty Corporation	244,944	248,005
8,997	Kite Realty Group Trust	262,719	256,430
2,880	Realty Income Corporation	254,483	247,347
1,525	Simon Property Group Inc.	233,461	242,579
		1,754,114	1,790,817
	RESIDENTIAL REITS [21.22%]		
5,590	American Homes 4 Rent	228,057	228,125
868	American Tower Corporation	290,097	248,993
1,602	Camden Property Trust.	334,037	242,680
19,852	InterRent Real Estate Investment Trust	234,324	254,106
1,150	Mid-America Apartment Communities Inc.	298,716	244,449
17,362	Minto Apartment Real Estate Investment Trust	251,030	243,936
4,645	UDR Inc.	276,250	243,586
		1,912,511	1,705,875
	REAL ESTATE SERVICES [3.23%]		
2,086	Colliers International Group Inc.	293,673	259,457
,,,,,	1	293,673	259,457
	OFFICE PETER IS 000/3		
1,258	OFFICE REITS [3.08%] Alexandria Real Estate Equities Inc.	277,905	248,124
1,258	Alexandra real estate equities inc.	277,905	248,124
otal equities		8,122,906	7,855,934
ransaction costs (note 3)		6,750	1,055,954
otal investments [97.71%	6	8,129,656	7,855,934
ash and other assets less l		0,122,000	184,055
	ble to holders of redeemable units [100.00%]		8,039,989

Ninepoint Global Real Estate Fund Notes to financial statements — Fund specific information December 31, 2022

Financial Risk Management (note 6)

Investment Objective

The objective of the Fund is to provide stable monthly cash distribution and long-term total return through capital appreciation by providing exposure to the global real estate securities market. The Fund invests primarily in real estate investment trusts ("REITs"), equity-based securities of companies in the global real estate sectors (residential and commercial) and structured products that hold real estate related investments.

The Schedule of Investment Portfolio presents the securities held by the Fund as at December 31, 2022. Significant risks that are relevant to the Fund are discussed here. General information on risks and risk management is described in *Note 6 Financial Risk Management* of the Generic Notes.

Market Risk

a) Other Price Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, if the MSCI World IMI Core Real Estate Index (CAD) were to fluctuate by 10%, with all other variables held constant, Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units would increase or decrease by the amounts shown in the table below. This is a measure based on the historical relationship of the Fund's performance against the index noted above. The composition of this calculation contains several subjective components that, although reasonably estimated, could alter the resulting estimate should these components be modified based on revised assumptions.

De	December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021		cember 31, 2021
	As a % of Net Assets		As a % of Net Assets
	attributable to holders		attributable to holders
Impact	of redeemable units	Impact	of redeemable units
\$	%	\$	%
719,725	8.95	1,060,926	8.41

b) Currency Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's direct exposure to currency risk and potential impact to the Fund's Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units as a result of a 1% change in these currencies relative to the Canadian dollar, with all other variables held constant, are shown in the tables below.

December 31, 2022

		% of Net Assets	Impact on Net Assets	
	attributable to holders		attributable to holders	
Currency	Fair Value	of redeemable units	of redeemable units	
	\$	%	\$	
U.S. Dollar	6,083,130	75.66	60,831	
Euro	10,944	0.14	110	
Total	6,094,074	75.80	60,941	
December 31, 2021				
		% of Net Assets	Impact on Net Assets	
		attributable to holders	attributable to holders	
Currency	Fair Value	of redeemable units	of redeemable units	
	\$	%	\$	

74.22

0.09

74.31

93.654

93,763

109

c) Interest Rate Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund did not have a significant exposure to interest rate risk.

9,365,410

9,376,285

10,875

Credit Risk

U.S. Dollar

Euro

Total

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund did not have a significant exposure to credit risk.

Ninepoint Global Real Estate Fund Notes to financial statements — Fund specific information December 31, 2022

Concentration Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's concentration risk as a percentage of Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units is shown in the table below.

December 31, 2022		December 31, 2021
	%	%
Equities:		
Industrial REITs	24.62	24.77
Specialized REITs	23.29	19.84
Retail REITs	22.27	13.58
Residential REITs	21.22	24.55
Real Estate Services	3.23	2.98
Office REITs	3.08	3.30
Health Care REITs	_	3.25
Internet Services & Infrastructure	_	3.48
Real Estate Operating Companies	_	3.29
Cash and other assets less liabilities	2.29	0.96
Total Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	100.00	100.00

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's investment portfolio is concentrated in the geographic segments as shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	%	%
United States	75.46	76.60
Canada	22.25	22.44
Cash and other assets less liabilities	2.29	0.96
Total Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	100.00	100.00

Fair Value Measurements (note 5)

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's financial assets and liabilities, which are measured at fair value, have been categorized based upon the fair value hierarchy as shown in the tables below.

December 31, 2022	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
	\$	\$	\$	\$
Equities	7,855,934			7,855,934
December 31, 2021	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
	\$	\$	\$	\$
Equities	12,496,881	_	_	12,496,881

During the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, there were no significant transfers between levels.

Ninepoint Global Real Estate Fund Notes to financial statements — Fund specific information December 31, 2022

Management Fees (note 11)

Management fees differ among the series of units of the Fund as shown in the table below.

Series	Management Fees (Up to)
Series A	2.00%
Series D	1.00%
Series F	1.00%
Series FT	1.00%
Series I*	Negotiated by the Unitholder
Series T	2.00%

^{*} The management fee for Series I units of the Fund is negotiated by the investor and paid directly by the investor or by the Fund, and would not exceed the management fee for Series A units of the Fund.

Tax Loss Carryforwards (note 3)

For the taxation year ended December 15, 2022, the Fund had capital and non-capital losses available for tax purposes as shown in the table below.

Capital losses	Non-capital losses	Non-capital losses year of expiry
\$	\$	
219,077	_	_

Related Party Holdings

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, Ninepoint Financial Group Inc., the parent company of the Manager, and its respective subsidiaries, held the following investments as shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
Units held		
Class A	120	113
Value of units held (\$)	1,198	1,581

Sharing Arrangements (note 13)

During the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, total transaction costs incurred to certain brokers for research provided to the portfolio manager are shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	\$	\$
Soft dollar broker commissions	7,263	6,963

Statements of Financial Position

As at December 31	2022	2021
	\$	\$
Assets		
Current assets		
Investments (note 3, 5)	19,288,435	20,502,806
Cash	322,699	141,654
Subscriptions receivable	-	528
Dividends receivable	9,284	4,001
Total assets	19,620,418	20,648,989
Liabilities		
Current liabilities		
Redemptions payable	-	606
Management fees payable (note 11)	241	_
Accrued expenses	32,025	21,746
Total liabilities	32,266	22,352
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	19,588,152	20,626,637
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per series		
Series A	10,837,455	11,685,515
Series A1	1,682,911	2,342,577
Series D	238,247	66,786
Series F	5,575,127	5,364,537
Series F1	1,254,412	1,167,222
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per series per unit (note 3)		
Series A	11.21	12.91
Series A1	11.26	12.96
Series D	10.71	12.19
Scries F	12.17	13.85
Series F1	12.99	14.79

See accompanying notes which are an integral part of these financial statements

On behalf of the Manager, Ninepoint Partners LP, by its General Partner, Ninepoint Partners GP Inc.

DIRECTOR

DIRECTOR

Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
	s	\$
Income		
Dividends (note 3)	388,767	312,324
Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investments	(152,649)	2,958,470
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) in the value of investments	(1,507,422)	233,581
Net realized gains (losses) on foreign exchange	(15,824)	(30,392)
Securities lending income	168	422
Other income	23,426	4,396
Total income (loss)	(1,263,534)	3,478,801
Expenses (note 11, 12)		
Management fees	359,127	372,174
Withholding taxes	43,409	75,495
Administrative fees	39,886	31,587
Transaction costs (note 3, 13)	29,097	31,742
	26,233	33,962
Unitholder reporting fees		
Filing fees	24,468	25,210
Legal fees	19,431	28,586
Audit fees	8,867	8,821
Independent Review Committee fees (note 14)	4,921	5,219
Custodial fees	2,694	5,759
Interest expense and bank charges	616	1,648
Directors' fees	-	12,207
Total expenses	558,749	632,410
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations	(1,822,283)	2,846,391
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series		
Series A	(1,081,299)	1,503,010
Series A1	(208,492)	403,014
Series D	(12,084)	8,300
Series F	(410,357)	751,852
Series F1	(110,051)	180,215
Selies F1	(110,051)	160,213
Weighted average number of redeemable units		
Series A	976,787	873,179
Series A1	156,402	257,773
Series D	18,066	4,769
Series F	395,317	372,529
Series F1	93,433	86,147
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3)		
Series A	(1.11)	1.72
Series A1	(1.33)	1.56
Series D	(0.67)	1.74
Series F	(1.04)	2.02
Series FI	(1.18)	2.02
Series F1	(1.18)	2.09

Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, beginning of year	s	\$
Series A	11,685,515	9,402,695
Series A1	2,342,577	3,568,902
Series D	66,786	32,371
Series F	5,364,537	4,364,648
Series F1	1,167,222	1,211,899
	20,626,637	18,580,515
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations		
Series A	(1,081,299)	1,503,010
Series A1	(208,492)	403,014
Series D	(12,084)	8,300
Series F	(410,357)	751,852
Series FI	(110,051)	180,215
	(1,822,283)	2,846,391
Distributions to holders of redeemable units		
From return of capital		
Series A	(441,076)	(355,216)
Series A1	(70,637)	(102,027)
Series D	(7,834)	(1,849)
Series F	(192,925)	(160,688)
Series F1	(48,407)	(39,230)
	(760,879)	(659,010)
Redeemable unit transactions (note 8)		
Proceeds from redeemable units issued		
Series A	2,998,465	2,136,989
Series A1	4,002	102
Series D	192,460	27,148
Series F	1,734,991	943,223
Series F1	277,513	-
Reinvestments of distributions to holders of redeemable units		
Series A	383,226	317,359
Series A1	47,288	73,644
Series D	7,834	1,835
Series F	137,157	122,938
Series F1	20,908	17,756
Redemption of redeemable units	** *** *** ** ** ** ** *	(4.240.222)
Series A Series A1	(2,707,376)	(1,319,322)
Series D	(431,827)	(1,601,058)
Series F	(8,915)	(1,019)
Series FI	(1,058,276) (52,773)	(657,436) (203,418)
JOHN THE STREET	1,544,677	(141,259)
Net increase (decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	(0.40 0.60)	2 202 020
Series A	(848,060)	2,282,820
Series A1 Series D	(659,666)	(1,226,325)
Series F	171,461 210,590	34,415 999,889
Series F1	87,190	
Series F1	(1,038,485)	2,046,122
		· · ·
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, end of year Series A	10,837,455	11,685,515
Series A1	1,682,911	2,342,577
Series D	238,247	66,786
Series F	5,575,127	5,364,537
Series F1	1,254,412	1,167,222

Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units continued

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
Units, beginning of year		
Series A	905,088	811,388
Series A1	180,790	307,044
Series D	5,478	2,986
Series F	387,320	355,148
Series F1	78,946	92,395
50.0511	1,557,622	1,568,961
Redeemable unit transactions (note 8)		
Redeemable units issued		
Series A	269,187	177,411
Series A1	366	9
Series D	16,869	2,420
Series F	145,998	73,875
Series F1	20,009	-
Reinvestments of distributions to holders of redeemable units		
Series A	33,605	26,333
Series A1	4,118	6,125
Series D	730	162
Series F	11,104	9,558
Series F1	1,589	1,296
Redemption of redeemable units		
Series A	(241,183)	(110,044)
Series A1	(35,775)	(132,388)
Series D	(825)	(90)
Series F	(86,187)	(51,261)
Series F1	(3,997)	(14,745)
	135,608	(11,339)
Units, end of year		
Series A	966,697	905,088
Series A1	149,499	180,790
Series D	22,252	5,478
Series F	458,235	387,320
Series F1	96,547	78,946
	1,693,230	1,557,622

Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
	\$	\$
Cash flows from operating activities		
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations	(1,822,283)	2,846,391
Adjustments for:		
Foreign exchange (gains) losses on cash	(634)	1,957
Net realized (gains) losses on sales of investments	152,649	(2,958,470)
Change in unrealized (appreciation) depreciation in the value of investments	1,507,422	(233,581)
Purchases of investments	(39,105,466)	(39,807,114)
Proceeds from sale of investments	38,659,766	41,026,409
Net increase (decrease) in other assets and liabilities	5,237	45,336
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities	(603,309)	920,928
Cash flows from financing activities	444.460	(425.050)
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable units, net of reinvested distributions	(164,466)	(137,078)
Proceeds from redeemable units issued	3,714,194	3,040,130
Redemption of redeemable units	(2,766,008)	(3,719,465)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities	783,720	(816,413)
Foreign exchange gains (losses) on cash	634	(1,957)
Net increase (decrease) in cash	180,411	104,515
Cash (Bank indebtedness), beginning of year	141,654	39,096
Cash (Bank indebtedness), end of year	322,699	141,654
Supplemental Information*		
Interest paid	616	1,648
Dividends received, net of withholding taxes	340.075	280,019
*Information provided relates to the operating activities of the Fund	340,073	200,017

*Information provided relates to the operating activities of the Fundamental

Schedule of Investment Portfolio

at December 31, 2022		Average Cost	Fair Valu
SHARES	EQUITIES [98.47%]	\$	
SHARES	HEALTH CARE [18.56%]		
1,628	Danaher Corporation	593,330	585,06
890	Elevance Health Inc.	573,532	618,16
2,656	Johnson & Johnson	589,137	635,27
1,162	McKesson Corporation	604,193	590,19
789	Thermo Fisher Scientific Inc.	597,780	588,30
863	UnitedHealth Group Inc.	470,261	619,51
		3,428,233	3,636,51
	INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY [17.62%]		
867	Broadcom Inc.	604,000	656,37
1,424	Mastercard Inc.	588,765	670,45
2,654	Microsoft Corporation	544,001	861,79
1,043	Roper Technologies Inc.	601,602	610,20
2,319	Visa Inc.	662,614	652,35
2,317	YEU IIIC.	3,000,982	3,451,18
	CONSTRUCTOR DISCONSTRUCTION AND THE OWN I		
689	CONSUMER DISCRETIONARY [13.94%] LVMH Moet Hennessy-Louis Vuitton SE	603,042	678,96
1,778	McDonald's Corporation	576,546	634,42
624	O'Reilly Automotive Inc.	510,875	713,11
1,109	Ulta Beauty Inc.	580,050	704,34
1,109	Una Deauty Inc.	2,270,513	2,730,85
	CONSUMER STAPLES [12.52%]		
5,189	Archer-Daniels-Midland Company	599,534	652,35
948	Costco Wholesale Corporation	500,031	585,96
4,919	Loblaw Companies Limited	600,764	588,90
7,258	The Coca-Cola Company	559,674 2,260,003	625,11
		2,200,003	2,452,33
	INDUSTRIALS [10.48%]		
6,279	Canadian Pacific Railway Limited	537,147	633,86
5,133	Raytheon Technologies Corporation	555,641	701,40
3,999	Waste Connections Inc.	621,122	717,74
		1,713,911	2,053,00
	FINANCIALS [9.67%]		
3,884	JPMorgan Chase & Company	591,256	705,22
6,158	MetLife Inc.	596,250	603,41
1,291	S&P Global Inc.	633,867	585,48
		1,821,373	1,894,11
	ENERGY [9.64%]		
8,126	Canadian Natural Resources Limited	611,282	610,99
22,114	Cenovus Energy Inc.	440,302	580,93
4,665	Exxon Mobil Corporation	541,111	696,70
4,005	Exxon Moon Corporation	1,592,695	1,888,62
	AVENUE VENEZIO DE ARROY.		
5,757	UTILITIES [3.33%] NextEra Energy Inc.	619,199	651,66
3,737	Nextera energy inc.	619,199	651,66
		7,177	
20.20-	COMMUNICATION SERVICES [2.71%]		### · · ·
20,288	TELUS Corporation	627,680 627,680	530,12 530,12
al equities		17,334,589	19,288,43
nsaction costs (note 3)		(7,337)	17,200,13
al investments [98.47%		17,327,252	19,288,43
sh and other assets less lia			299,71
	ole to holders of redeemable units [100.00%]		19,588,15

Financial Risk Management (note 6)

Investment Objective

The Fund seeks to provide consistent income and capital appreciation by investing primarily in a diversified portfolio of dividend yielding global equities.

The Schedule of Investment Portfolio represents the securities held by the Fund as at December 31, 2022. Significant risks that are relevant to the Fund are discussed here. General information on risks and risk management is described in *Note 6 Financial Risk Management* of the Generic Notes.

Market Risk

a) Other Price Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, if the S&P Global 1200 Total Return Index were to fluctuate by 10%, with all other variables held constant, Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units would increase or decrease by the amounts shown in the table below. This is a measure based on the historical relationship of the Fund's performance against the noted index. The composition of this calculation contains several subjective components that, although reasonably estimated, could alter the resulting estimate should these components be modified based on revised assumptions.

December 31, 2022			December 31, 2021	
As a % of Net Assets			As a % of Net Assets	
attributable to holders			attributable to holders	
Impact	of redeemable units	Impact	of redeemable units	
\$	%	\$	%	
1,728,493	8.82	1,312,713	6.36	

b) Currency Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's direct exposure to currency risk and potential impact to the Fund's Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units as a result of a 1% change in these currencies relative to the Canadian dollar, with all other variables held constant, are shown in the tables below.

December 31, 2022

		% of Net Assets	Impact on Net Assets	
		attributable to holders	attributable to holders	
Currency	Fair Value	of redeemable units	of redeemable units	
	\$	%	\$	
U.S. Dollar	14,947,375	76.31	149,474	
Euro	679,465	3.47	6,794	
Total	15,626,840	79.78	156,268	
D				
December 31, 2021				
		% of Net Assets	Impact on Net Assets	
		attributable to holders	attributable to holders	
Currency	Fair Value	of redeemable units	of redeemable units	
	\$	%	\$	
U.S. Dollar	17,994,906	87.24	179,949	
Euro	565,108	2.74	5,651	
Total	18,560,014	89.98	185,600	

c) Interest Rate Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund did not have a significant exposure to interest rate risk.

Credit Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund did not have a significant exposure to credit risk.

Concentration Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's concentration risk as a percentage of Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units is shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	9/0	%
Equities:		
Health Care	18.56	13.47
Information Technology	17.62	26.59
Consumer Discretionary	13.94	13.16
Consumer Staples	12.52	7.16
Industrials	10.48	9.34
Financials	9.67	14.27
Energy	9.64	2.69
Utilities	3.33	3.41
Communication Services	2.71	6.22
Real Estate	_	3.09
Cash and other assets less liabilities	1.53	0.60
Total Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	100.00	100.00

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's investment portfolio is concentrated in the geographic segments as shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	%	%
United States	79.95	90.55
Canada	15.05	6.11
France	3.47	_
Spain	_	2.74
Cash and other assets less liabilities	1.53	0.60
Total Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	100.00	100.00

Fair Value Measurements (note 5)

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's financial assets and liabilities, which are measured at fair value, have been categorized based upon the fair value hierarchy as shown in the tables below.

December 31, 2022	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
	\$	S	\$	\$
Equities	19,288,435	_	_	19,288,435
December 31, 2021	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
	\$	\$	\$	\$
Equities	20,502,806	_	_	20,502,806

During the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, there were no significant transfers between levels.

Management Fees (note 11)

Management fees differ among the series of units of the Fund as shown in the table below.

Series	Management Fees (Up to)
Series A	2.00%
Series A1	1.95%
Series D	1.00%
Series F	1.00%
Series F1	0.95%
Series I*	Negotiated by the Unitholder
Series P	1.80%
Series PF	0.80%
Series Q	1.70%
Series QF	0.70%

^{*} The management fee for Series I units of the Fund is negotiated by the investor and paid directly by the investor or by the Fund, and would not exceed the management fee for Series A units of the Fund.

Tax Loss Carryforwards (note 3)

For the taxation year ended December 15, 2022, the Fund had capital and non-capital losses available for tax purposes as shown in the table below.

Capital losses	Non-capital losses	Non-capital losses year of expiry
\$	\$	_
_	5,556	2041
_	61,760	2042

Related Party Holdings

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, Ninepoint Financial Group Inc., the parent company of the Manager, and its respective subsidiaries, held the following investments shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
Units held		
Series A	118	113
Series F	115	112
Value of units held (\$)	2,722	3,010

Securities Lending (note 3)

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the market values of securities loaned and related collateral amounts are shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	\$	\$
Securities loaned	535,780	_
Collateral	562,569	_
Collateral as a percentage of securities loaned (%)	105	-

During the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, securities lending income and charges are shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	\$	\$
Gross securities lending income	279	750
Securities lending charges	(111)	(328)
Net securities lending income	168	422
Withholding taxes on securities lending income	_	
Net securities lending income received by the Fund	168	422
Net securities lending income as a percentage of gross securities lending income (%)	60	56

Sharing Arrangements (note 13)

During the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, total transaction costs incurred to certain brokers for research provided to the portfolio manager are shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	\$	\$
Soft dollar broker commissions	6,589	8,091

Fund Merger

On December 10, 2021, Ninepoint Focused Global Dividend Class transferred its assets to the Fund, which is its trust fund equivalent on a 1:1 basis. The Fund has a substantially similar investment objective, investment portfolio, fee structure as well as valuation procedure, and is managed by the same portfolio management team as Ninepoint Focused Global Dividend Class. The merger occurred on a tax-deferred basis.

Statements of Financial Position

As at December 31	2022	2021
	\$	\$
Assets		
Current assets		
Investments (note 3, 5, 10)	29,909,842	62,846,915
Cash (note 10)	1,886,656	5,160,940
Broker margin (note 10)	1,036,487	909,468
Options purchased (note 3, 5)	339	17,077
Subscriptions receivable	9,772	3,074
Dividends receivable	39,112	13,282
Interest receivable	16,550	5,267
Total assets	32,898,758	68,956,023
Liabilities		
Current liabilities		
Options written (note 3, 5)	6,535	18,342
Unrealized depreciation on forward currency contracts (note 3, 5)	-	14,504
Due to broker	248,305	961
Redemptions payable	22,958	40,048
Accrued expenses	52,200	67,285
Total liabilities	329,998	141,140
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	32,568,760	68,814,883
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per series	15 407 102	20.268.006
Series A	15,497,183 322,406	30,368,006 1,167,589
Series D Series F		34,730,094
ETF Series	15,622,622	
ETF Series	1,126,549	2,549,194
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per series per unit (note 3)		
Series A	11.89	19.06
Series D	8.02	12.70
Series F	12.43	19.71
ETF Series	10.73	16.99

 $See\ accompanying\ notes\ which\ are\ an\ integral\ part\ of\ these\ financial\ statements$

On behalf of the Manager, Ninepoint Partners LP, by its General Partner, Ninepoint Partners GP Inc.

John Wilson DIRECTOR James Fox DIRECTOR

Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
	s	\$
Income		
Interest income for distribution purposes (note 3)	109,824	153,268
Distribution income (note 3)	6,732	19,772
Dividends (note 3)	408,000	511,685
Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investments	(4,766,468)	4,103,438
Net realized gains (losses) on option contracts	369,379	755,191
Net realized gains (losses) on forward currency contracts	(530,925)	130,020
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) in the value of investments	(18,372,470)	(10,590,266)
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on option contracts	(31,766)	(15,101)
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on forward currency contracts	(1,051)	(52,047)
Net realized gains (losses) on foreign exchange	726,738	(63,353)
Securities lending income	94,524	386,615
Total income (loss)	(21,987,483)	(4,660,778)
Expenses (note 11, 12)		
	997 927	1 500 112
Management fees	886,027	1,508,112
Unitholder reporting fees	144,372	135,666
Withholding taxes	51,818	49,954
Transaction costs (note 3, 13)	46,178	66,069
Administrative fees	36,163	45,939
Filing fees	21,039	20,767
Legal fees	19,576	32,117
Audit fees	16,752	16,492
Custodial fees	6,250	8,625
Independent Review Committee fees (note 14)	5,074	5,009
Interest expense and bank charges	-	17
Total expenses	1,233,249	1,888,767
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations	(23,220,732)	(6,549,545)
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series		
Series A	(10,557,453)	(2,773,521)
Series D	(342,162)	(100,149)
Series F	(11,744,734)	(3,189,261)
ETF Series	(576,383)	(486,614)
ETF SCHES	(370,363)	(480,014)
Weighted average number of redeemable units		
Series A	1,433,492	1,637,978
Series D	63,305	100,640
Series F	1,595,995	1,791,162
ETF Series	74,354	159,402
Increase (Decrease) in Not Accept attributable to holders of redocumble units from an entities and continuous and the continuou		
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3)	(7.26)	(1.60)
Series A	(7.36)	(1.69)
Series D	(5.40)	(1.00)
Series F	(7.36)	(1.78)
ETF Series	(7.75)	(3.05)

Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
	s	\$
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, beginning of year		
Series A	30,368,006	30,405,151
Series D	1,167,589	1,247,068
Series F	34,730,094	31,751,237
ETF Series	2,549,194	
	68,814,883	63,403,456
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations		
Series A	(10,557,453)	(2,773,521)
Series D	(342,162)	(100,149)
Series F	(11,744,734)	(3,189,261)
ETF Series	(576,383)	(486,614)
Ell Solid	(23,220,732)	(6,549,545)
Redeemable unit transactions (note 8)		
Proceeds from redeemable units issued	1,861,311	14,214,720
Series A		
Series D	238,011	404,978
Series F	2,598,544	24,164,220
ETF Series	643,511	4,488,809
Redemption of redeemable units		
Series A	(6,174,681)	(11,478,344)
Series D	(741,032)	(384,308)
Series F	(9,961,282)	(17,996,102)
ETF Series	(1,489,773)	(1,453,001)
	(13,025,391)	11,960,972
Net increase (decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units		
Series A	(14,870,823)	(37,145)
Series D	(845,183)	(79,479)
Series F	(19,107,472)	2,978,857
ETF Series	(1,422,645)	2,549,194
	(36,246,123)	5,411,427
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, end of year	15 405 403	20.260.005
Series A	15,497,183	30,368,006
Series D	322,406	1,167,589
Series F	15,622,622	34,730,094
ETF Series	1,126,549	2,549,194
	32,568,760	68,814,883

Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units continued

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
Units, beginning of year		
Series A	1,593,621	1,498,854
Series D	91,912	93,136
Series F	1,762,393	1,530,203
ETF Series	150,000	-
	3,597,926	3,122,193
Redeemable unit transactions (note 8)		
Redeemable units issued		
Series A	119,273	629,485
Series D	21,302	25,663
Series F	159,093	1,019,520
ETF Series	55,000	225,000
Redemption of redeemable units		
Series A	(409,374)	(534,718)
Series D	(73,009)	(26,887)
Series F	(664,568)	(787,330)
ETF Series	(100,000)	(75,000)
	(892,283)	475,733
Units, end of year	4 202 500	
Series A	1,303,520	1,593,621
Series D	40,205	91,912
Series F	1,256,918	1,762,393
ETF Series	105,000	150,000
	2,705,643	3,597,926

Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
<u> </u>	\$	\$
Cash flows from operating activities		
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations	(23,220,732)	(6,549,545)
Adjustments for:		
Foreign exchange (gains) losses on cash	(782,309)	55,461
Distribution income	(6,732)	(19,772)
Net realized (gains) losses on sales of investments	4,766,468	(4,103,438)
Net realized (gains) losses on option contracts	(369,379)	(755,191)
Change in unrealized (appreciation) depreciation in the value of investments	18,372,470	10,590,266
Change in unrealized (appreciation) depreciation on option contracts	31,766	15,101
Change in unrealized (appreciation) depreciation on forward currency contracts	1,051	52,047
Purchases of investments	(23,173,334)	(42,283,891)
Proceeds from sale of investments	33,552,534	31,829,285
Net increase (decrease) in other assets and liabilities	(179,217)	(133,875)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities	8,992,586	(11,303,552)
Cash flows from financing activities		
Proceeds from redeemable units issued	5,210,497	40,989,371
Redemption of redeemable units	(18,259,676)	(28,952,215)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities	(13,049,179)	12,037,156
Foreign exchange gains (losses) on cash	782,309	(55,461)
Net increase (decrease) in cash	(4,056,593)	733,604
Cash (Bank indebtedness), beginning of year	5,160,940	4,482,797
Cash (Bank indebtedness), end of year	1,886,656	5,160,940
Supplemental Information*		
Interest received	98,541	208,672
Interest paid	-	17
Dividends received, net of withholding taxes	330,352	474,419
*Information annual dealers to the annual or a division of the Found		

^{*}Information provided relates to the operating activities of the Fund

Schedule of Investment Portfolio

As at December 31, 2022		Maturity/Expiry Date	Average Cost	Fair Value
SHARES	EQUITIES [90.15%]		\$	
	PHARMACEUTICALS & HEALTH TECHNOOGY [32.94%]			
8,900	Abbott Laboratories		912,252	1,323,03
7,800	Andlauer Healthcare Group Inc.		388,214	369,33
12,000	AstraZeneca PLC		949,394	1,101,61
12,500	Cardiol Therapeutics Inc.		40,625	8,62
6,465	Cellibre Inc.**		309,400	236,96
1,500	Eli Lilly and Company		744,763	743,02
62,500	Eupraxia Pharmaceuticals Inc.		500,000	228,12
8,071	Jazz Pharmaceuticals PLC		1,714,351	1,740,96
14,000	Johnson & Johnson		2,797,196	3,348,57
3,000 300,000	Merck & Company Inc. OG DNA Genetics Inc.**		384,070 400,305	450,679 24,372
4,800	Pfizer Inc.		249,675	333,01
4,000	The Procter & Gamble Company		718,813	820,849
.,,			10,109,058	10,729,16
	CANNABIS [27.91%]			
43,000	Ayr Wellness Inc.		1,489,501	70,52
195,000	Cansortium Inc.		190,249	31,68
377,200	Columbia Care Inc.		2,648,229	380,972
60,000	Cronos Group Inc.		240,336	222,00
115,000	Curaleaf Holdings Inc.		878,006	670,450
20,899	Fire & Flower Holdings Corporation		201,019	24,66
244,300	Green Thumb Industries Inc.		4,001,046	2,926,71
745,098	Hemp Hydrate Brands Corporation**		134,305	135,389
1,000,000	Hemp Hydrate International Holdings Limited**		500,000	
10,500	IM Cannabis Corporation (USD)		740,892	14,075
2,481	IM Cannabis Corporation (CAD)		120,715	3,225
400,000	Segra International Corporation**		300,000	4,000
5,000,000	Segra International Corporation**, preferred shares		50,000	50,000
298,172	Steep Hill Inc.		202,500	1,491
430,036	TerrAscend Corporation		2,848,042	666,556
70,000	Tilray Brands Inc		306,384	267,481
216,782 188,000	Trulieve Cannabis Corporation		3,930,373	2,224,183
44,500	Verano Holdings Corporation Village Farms International Inc.		2,463,706 498,989	808,400 80,739
150,000	Willow Biosciences Inc.		245,250	17,250
50,000	WM Technology Inc.		831,397	68,377
400,000	XS Financial Inc.		120,000	23,000
250,000	ZYUS Life Sciences Inc.**		250,000	400,000
			23,190,939	9,091,172
	OTHER WELLNESS [19.84%]			
5,000	Alexandria Real Estate Equities Inc		1,309,656	986,186
2,800	Costco Wholesale Corporation		1,630,323	1,730,683
5,000	Innovative Industrial Properties Inc.		884,444	686,140
13,800	Perrigo Company PLC.		703,649	636,978
13,000	PLBY Group Inc.		518,679	48,400
22,594	PLBY Group Inc. Rights		-	
2,100	UnitedHealth Group Inc		1,094,191	1,507,514
4,500	Walmart Inc.		843,431	863,926
			6,984,373	6,459,833
	ORGANICS, SUPPLEMENTS & NEUTRACEUTICALS [9.46%]			
55,200	Jamieson Wellness Inc.		1,513,201	1,936,968
100,000	SunOpta Inc.		1,699,568	1,142,776
Total equities			3,212,769 43,497,139	3,079,74 ² 29,359,916
PAR VALUE* USD 344,382	CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES [1.28%] Leef Brands Company Inc. **,11.000%	Sep 9, 2024	478,106	418,265
Total convertible debenture		Sep 7, 2024	478,106	418,265
	FUNDS [0.39%]			
PTINII	FUNDS 10.39%1			
UNITS 12,679	Ninepoint High Interest Savings Fund, Series I		126,640	
			126,640 126,640	
12,679				
12,679 Total funds	Ninepoint High Interest Savings Fund, Series I			
12,679 Total funds	Ninepoint High Interest Savings Fund, Series I WARRANTS [0.02%]	Mar 9, 2026		125,516 125,516 5,625 5,625

Schedule of Investment Portfolio continued

As at December 31, 2022		Expiry Date	Average Cost	Fair Value
			\$	\$
SHARES	WARRANTS [0.02%] continued			
	CANNABIS [0.00%]			
26,000	Columbia Care Inc.	Apr 26, 2024	51,282	520
7,000	IM Canabis Corporation	May 7, 2026	-	-
375	Leef Holdings Inc.**	Apr 24, 2024	-	-
32,500	Planet 13 Holdings Inc.	Feb 2, 2023	-	-
8,333	Valens Company Inc.	Jun 4, 2024	-	-
400,000	XS Financial Inc.	Mar 3, 2023	-	-
			51,282	520
Total warrants			51,282	6,145
Transaction costs (note 3)			(27,509)	-
Total investments [91.846	%]		44,125,658	29,909,842
Options purchased [0.00%]	(Schedule 1)			339
Options written [-0.02%] (Schedule 1)			(6,535)
Cash and other assets less l	iabilities [8.18%]			2,665,114
Total Net Assets attributa	able to holders of redeemable units [100.00%]			32,568,760

^{*} All par values are in Canadian Dollars unless otherwise noted
** Private company

Option Contracts (Schedule 1)

As at December 31, 2022						
Options Purchased						
					Premium	Fair
		Number of	Expiration	Strike	Paid	Value
Option Details	Option Type	Contracts	Date	Price (\$)	\$(CAD)	\$(CAD)
Cronos Group Inc.	Call	250	21-Jan-23	10.00 USD	62,059	339
Total					62,059	339
Options Written						
					Premium	Fair
		Number of	Expiration	Strike	Received	Value
Option Details	Option Type	Contracts	Date	Price (\$)	\$(CAD)	\$(CAD)
Eli Lilly & Co	Put	(8)	6-Jan-23	350.00 USD	(5,174)	(1,089)
SunOpta Inc.	Put	(100)	20-Jan-23	7.50 USD	(2,785)	(1,354)
Costco Wholesale Corporation	Call	(8)	13-Jan-23	480.00 USD	(4,110)	(2,020)
Walmart Inc	Call	(20)	20-Jan-23	147.00 USD	(4,322)	(2,072)
Total					(16.391)	(6.535)

Ninepoint Alternative Health Fund Notes to financial statements — Fund specific information December 31, 2022

Financial Risk Management (note 6)

Investment Objective

The investment objective of the Fund is to achieve growth by investing primarily in equity securities of companies engaged in nutrition, nutraceuticals and new forms of medicines and pharmaceutical solutions.

The Schedule of Investment Portfolio presents the securities held by the Fund as at December 31, 2022. Significant risks that are relevant to the Fund are discussed here. The Fund also invests in redeemable units of Ninepoint High Interest Savings Fund (the "Underlying Fund"), managed by Ninepoint Partners LP, to gain exposure to its investment objective and strategies. As a result, the Fund may be indirectly exposed to other price risk, currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and concentration risk of the Underlying Fund. As at December 31, 2022, 0.39% (December 31, 2021 – 2.35%) of the Fund's Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units were invested in units of the Underlying Fund. Only direct exposure to significant risks that are relevant to the Fund are discussed here. For more information regarding the risks of the Underlying Fund, refer to its financial statements. General information on risks and risk management is described in *Note 6 Financial Risk Management* of the Generic Notes.

Market Risk

a) Other Price Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, if a blended index of Thomson Reuters Canada Health Care Total Return Index and Thomson Reuters United States Healthcare Total Return Index were to fluctuate by 10%, with all other variables held constant, Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units would increase or decrease by amounts shown in the table below. This is a measure based on the historical relationship of the Fund's performance against the indices noted above. The composition of this calculation contains several subjective components that, although reasonably estimated, could alter the resulting estimate should these components be modified based on revised assumptions.

December	31, 2022	December	31, 2021
	As a % of Net Assets		As a % of Net Assets
	attributable to holders		attributable to holders
Impact	of redeemable units	Impact	of redeemable units
\$	%	\$	%
2,492,176	7.65	5,103,174	7.42

b) Currency Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's direct exposure to currency risk and potential impact to the Fund's Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units as a result of a 1% change in these currencies relative to the Canadian dollar, with all other variables held constant, are shown in the tables below.

December 31, 2022

				% of Net Assets	Impact on Net Assets
		Forward Currency		attributable to holders	attributable to holders
Currency	Fair Value	Contracts	Net Exposure	of redeemable units	of redeemable units
	S	\$	S	9/0	\$
U.S. Dollar	21,451,935		21,451,935	65.87	214,519
December 31, 2021					
				% of Net Assets	Impact on Net Assets
		Forward Currency		attributable to holders	attributable to holders
Currency	Fair Value	Contracts	Net Exposure	of redeemable units	of redeemable units
	\$	\$	\$	%	\$
U.S. Dollar	35,165,474	(13,915,304)	21,250,170	30.88	212,502

Ninepoint Alternative Health Fund Notes to financial statements — Fund specific information December 31, 2022

c) Interest Risk

As at December 31, 2022, 1.28% (December 31, 2021 – 0.72%) of the Fund's Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units were invested in fixed income securities, 100.00% of which were private convertible debentures (December 31, 2021 – private loans, 100.00%). As a result, a 1% change in interest rates would not have a significant impact on the Fund.

Credit Risk

As at December 31, 2022, 1.28% (December 31, 2021 – 0.72%) of the Fund's Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units were invested in fixed income securities, 100.00% of which were private convertible debentures (December 31, 2021 – private loans, 100.00%). The maximum credit risk of the private loans and/or private convertible debenture is limited to the carrying value of these investments and is moderated through various means. Prior to investing into a private loan and/or private convertible debenture, thorough due diligence is executed by the Manager. The Manager also maintains continuous monitoring of the credit quality of the borrower to assess and evaluate the credit risk of these private loans.

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund was also exposed to credit risk from over-the-counter derivative contracts with counterparties. The credit risk is considered minimal as these counterparties have a minimum credit rating of A by Standard & Poor's or equivalent.

Concentration Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's concentration risk as a percentage of Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units is shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	9/0	%
Equities:		
Pharmaceuticals & Health Technology	32.94	21.64
Cannabis	27.91	42.79
Other Wellness	19.84	17.51
Organics, Supplements & Nutraceuticals	9.46	5.93
Convertible Debenture	1.28	_
Funds	0.39	2.35
Warrants	0.02	0.39
Loans	_	0.72
Options written	(0.02)	(0.03)
Unrealized depreciation on forward currency contracts	_	(0.02)
Cash and other assets less liabilities	8.18	8.70
Total Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	100.00	100.00

Ninepoint Alternative Health Fund Notes to financial statements — Fund specific information December 31, 2022

Fair Value Measurements (note 5)

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's financial assets and liabilities, which are measured at fair value, have been categorized based upon the fair value hierarchy as shown in the tables below.

December 31, 2022	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
	\$	\$	\$	\$
Equities	28,428,456	80,739	850,721	29,359,916
Funds	_	125,516	_	125,516
Convertible Debentures	_	_	418,265	418,265
Loans	_	_	_	_
Warrants	6,145	_	_	6,145
Options purchased	339	_	_	339
Options written	(6,535)	_	_	(6,535)
Total	28,428,405	206,255	1,268,986	29,903,646
December 31, 2021	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
	\$	\$	\$	\$
Equities	59,403,476	7,991	1,056,110	60,467,577
Funds	1,619,095	_	_	1,619,095
Loans	_	_	495,109	495,109
Warrants	45,388	_	219,746	265,134
Options purchased	17,077	_	_	17,077
Options written	(18,342)	_	_	(18,342)
Forward currency contracts	_	(14,504)	_	(14,504)
Total	61,066,694	(6,513)	1,770,965	62,831,146

During the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, there were no significant transfers between levels other than the transfers indicated below.

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the reconciliation of investments measured at fair value using unobservable inputs (Level 3) are shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022			December 31, 2021			1	
				Convertible				Convertible
	Equities	Warrants	Loans	Debentures	Equities	Warrants	Loans	Debenture
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
Balance, beginning of period	1,056,110	219,746	495,109	_	1,449,685	337,318	841,609	_
Purchases	184,306	_		478,106	309,400	_	60,125	_
Sales	_	_	(581,417)	_	_	_	(451,817)	_
Transfer in/out	_	(32,786)	88,965	_	(202,500)	_	_	_
Realized gains (losses)	_	_	(30,753)	_	_	(60,800)	(2,883)	_
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) in the value of investments	(389,695)	(186,960)	28,096	(59,841)	(500,475)	(56,772)	48,075	
Balance, end of period	850,721	-	_	418,265	1,056,110	219,746	495,109	_
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) during the period for investments held at end of period	(389,695)	-	-	(59,841)	(633,675)	218,156	47,209	-

The Fund's Level 3 securities consist of private equity, private warrant, private loans and/or private convertible debenture positions. The Manager determines their fair value by utilizing a variety of valuation techniques such as the use of comparable recent transactions, discounted cash flows and other techniques used by market participants. As at December 31, 2022 and 2021 these positions were not significant to the Fund and any changes in reasonable possible assumptions used in their valuation would not have a significant impact to the Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units of the Fund.

Ninepoint Alternative Health Fund Notes to financial statements — Fund specific information December 31, 2022

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

In the normal course of business, the Fund enters into various master netting arrangements or other similar agreements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting in the Statements of Financial Position but still allow for the related amounts to be set off in certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or termination of the contracts. As at December 31 2022, the Fund did not hold over-the-counter derivatives that were offset. As at December 31, 2021, the following tables present the over-the-counter derivatives that are offset, or subject to enforceable master netting agreements or other similar agreements but that are not offset. The "Net" column shows what the impact on the Fund's Statements of Financial Position would be if all set-off rights were exercised.

Financial assets and liabilities	Α	Amounts offset		Amounts not offset		Net
		Gross	Net	Subject to	Cash	
	Gross	assets/liabilities	amounts	master netting	collateral	
December 31, 2021	assets/liabilities	offset	presented	arrangements	received	
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
Forward currency contracts:						
Derivative assets	58,660	(58,660)	_	_	_	_
Derivative liabilities	(73,164)	58,660	(14,504)	_	_	(14,504)

Investments in Underlying Funds

The Underlying Fund invests in a portfolio of assets to generate returns in the form of investment income and capital appreciation for its unitholders. The Underlying Fund finances its operations primarily through the issuance of redeemable units, which are puttable at the unitholder's option and entitle the unitholder to a proportionate share of the Underlying Fund's net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units. The Fund's interest in the Underlying Fund, held in the form of redeemable units, is reported in its Schedule of Investments at fair value, which represent the Fund's maximum exposure to these investments. Distributions earned from the Underlying Fund are included in "Distribution income" in the Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss). The total realized losses and change in unrealized appreciation arising from the Underlying Fund as included in the Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the year ended December 31, 2022 were \$(503) and \$192, respectively (December 31, 2021 – realized gain of \$641 and change in unrealized appreciation of \$327). The Fund does not provide any additional significant financial or other support to the Underlying Fund. The interest held by the Fund in the Underlying Fund is shown in the tables below.

December 31, 2022

	Country of establishment and principal	Ownership	Total Net Assets of Underlying	Carrying amount included in Statement
Underlying Fund	place of business	interest	Fund	of Financial Position
		%	\$	\$
Ninepoint High Interest Savings Fund, Series I	Canada	0.04	284,487,340	125,516
December 31, 2021				
	Country of establishment		Total Net Assets	Carrying amount
	and principal	Ownership	of Underlying	included in Statement of
Underlying Fund	place of business	interest	Fund	Financial Position
		%	\$	\$
Ninepoint High Interest Savings Fund, Series I	Canada	0.91	178,010,697	1,619,095

Ninepoint Alternative Health Fund Notes to financial statements — Fund specific information December 31, 2022

Management Fees (note 11)

Management fees differ among the series of units of the Fund as shown in the table below.

Series	Management Fees (Up to)
Series A	2.25%
Series D	1.25%
Series F	1.25%
Series I*	Negotiated by the Unitholder
ETF Series	1.25%

^{*}The management fee for Series I of the Fund is negotiated by the unitholder and may be paid directly by the Fund or by the unitholder.

Tax Loss Carryforwards (note 3)

As of the taxation year ended December 15, 2022, the Fund had capital and non-capital losses available for tax purposes as shown in the table below.

Capital losses	Non-capital losses	Non-capital losses year of expiry
\$	S	
5,769,650	591,379	2039
_	70,913	2040
<u>– </u>	618,786	2042

Restricted Cash and Investments (note 10)

As at December 31, 2022, restricted cash and investments held for the Fund were \$2,000,914 (December 31, 2021-\$909,468).

Related Party Holdings

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, Ninepoint Financial Group Inc., the parent company of the Manager, and its respective subsidiaries, held the following investments as shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
Units held		
ETF Series	200	_
Value of units held (\$)	2,134	_

Securities Lending (note 3)

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the market values of securities loaned and related collateral amounts are shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	\$	\$
Securities loaned	7,183,385	12,447,496
Collateral	9,132,470	13,410,240
Collateral as a percentage of securities loaned (%)	127.13	108

During the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, securities lending income and charges are shown in the table below.

Ninepoint Alternative Health Fund Notes to financial statements — Fund specific information December 31, 2022

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	\$	\$
Gross securities lending income	157,539	691,442
Securities lending charges	(63,015)	(304,827)
Net securities lending income	94,524	386,615
Withholding taxes on securities lending income	-	_
Net securities lending income received by the Fund	94,524	386,615
Net securities lending income as a percentage of gross securities lending income (%)	60	56

Statements of Financial Position

As at December 31	2022	2021
	\$	\$
Assets		
Current assets		
Cash	4,977,681	3,976,902
Broker margin (note 10)	2,969,901	1,850,875
Subscriptions receivable	5,585	-
Total assets	7,953,167	5,827,777
Liabilities		
Current liabilities		
Unrealized depreciation on futures contracts (note 3, 5)	324,330	178,277
Redemptions payable	57,720	4,302
Total liabilities	382,050	182,579
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	7,571,117	5,645,198
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per series		
Series A	1,338,401	1,661,117
Series A1	306,461	225,952
Series D	379,582	213,028
Series F	1,070,735	1,473,164
Series F1	4,475,938	2,071,937
Series I	<u> </u>	<u> </u>
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per series per unit (note 3)		
Series A	9.65	8.48
Series A1	10.89	9.83
Series D	9.78	8.52
Series F	9.70	8.55
Series F1	10.81	9.75
Series I	-	-

See accompanying notes which are an integral part of these financial statements

On behalf of the Manager, Ninepoint Partners LP, by its General Partner, Ninepoint Partners GP Inc.

DIRECTOR

DIRECTOR

Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Income 1 1.00 5.00 Ranked gains (lossed) on fidures contracts (14,60%) 157,40% Change in unrealed gains (lossed) on fidures contracts (14,60%) 158,34 Note classed (lossed) on foreign exchange (36,35) 1,60% Other income 34,05 36,03 Total (lossed) on foreign exchange 30,03 7,00% Experimence (see 111,58 121,32 Managemel five 111,58 121,32 Light (See) 21,00 7,00 Light (See) 11,00 2,00 Light (See) 12,00 7,00	For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
Realing gians (losses) on fittings contrains (1,46,85) 18,348 Otter gian gians (losses) on fittings contrains (16,465) 18,349 Other income (3,45) 4,043 4,043 Other income 38,09 7,043 Telepin Classes) 80,000 7,043 Experience (losses) 30,000 7,043 Experience (losses) 11,129 20,000 Experience (losses) 11,458 11,234 Mean growth (losses) 11,458 11,234 Plance (losses) 11,458 11,234 Mean growth (losses) 11,458 11,234 Mean (losses) 11,458 11,234 12,000 Mean (losses) 11,458 11,234 12,000 <		s	s
Gunge inwelled gain (plosen) en fierique change (14,685) (18,384) Ober isone 34,59 78,108 Expesse (mir 1, 1, 2) 34,50 78,108 Personance fies 20,304 1-1, 20 Augument for 20,304 1-2, 20 Gauge (mir 1, 2) 21,102 20,303 2-2, 20 Ling (see 21,102 20,303 2-2, 20 Ling (see 21,102 20,403 2-2, 20			
Met claige fairs (bases) in foreign exchange (5.45) (5.40) Ober income (34,50) (5.40) Telepist (38,70) (7.40) Reposit (bit (1,7)) (30,34) (30,34) Reposit (bit (1,7)) (30,34) (30,34) Management for (14,58) (32,44) Guillauffer (proteing fee) (14,66) (30,46) (30,40) United (10) (14,56) (20,46) (30,46) <t< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td></t<>			
Observation 34,459 36,130 Total income (box) 98,098 76,092 Repeases (most 1), 1/2) 2 Performance fees 30,334 - Amangement fees 31,458 12,234 Unabloble reporting fees 27,149 29,553 Legal fees 11,658 22,648 Administrative fees 11,234 52,648 Administrative fees 12,032 52,648 Administrative fees 12,032 52,658 Administrative fees (most 1) 15,058 24,548 Administrative fees (most 1) 3,588 3,458 3,458 Infectors expose and base charges 2,123 3,575 4,575 Interest exposes and base charges 55,634 22,276 3,588 3,586			
Performance fees	Net realized gains (losses) on foreign exchange		
Performance force			
Performe Res 134,38 12,234 Managamen Res 114,58 12,234 Liga Res 27,149 29,833 Liga Res 16,905 21,002 7,000 Admit Res 112,312 35,003 16,904 16,903 16,904 16,904 16,904 16,904 16,904 16,904 16,904 16,904 16,904 16,904 16,904 16,904<	Total income (loss)	980,989	740,947
Performe Res 134,38 12,234 Managamen Res 114,58 12,234 Liga Res 27,149 29,833 Liga Res 16,905 21,002 7,000 Admit Res 112,312 35,003 16,904 16,903 16,904 16,904 16,904 16,904 16,904 16,904 16,904 16,904 16,904 16,904 16,904 16,904<	Expenses (note 11, 12)		
Unithed reporting fees 27,149 29,855 Legal fees 10,802 20,004 Himing fees 18,965 20,468 Adminstrative fees 12,312 9,90 Admin fees 12,335 14,953 Indication of J. 19 5,335 4,675 Transaction cost nots J. 19 5,335 4,675 Instruction of J. 19 3,16 3,16 Instruction of J. 19 3,18 3,175 Cated all fees 2,123 9,755 Cated all fees 3,18 2,276 Standard Fees 1,18 3,18 Total Capters 58,34 22,276 Expense wavel or obsorbed by the Manager (note 12) 38,36 23,870 Expense Support Cheerase in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemble units from operations ex reserver 497,316 88,870 Exica Sa 20,407 22,407 22,407 22,407 Series A 15,409 22,411 22,407 22,407 22,407 22,407 22,407 22,407 22,407 22,407		320,334	-
Unithed reporting fees 27,149 29,855 Legal fees 10,802 20,004 Himing fees 18,965 20,468 Adminstrative fees 12,312 9,90 Admin fees 12,335 14,953 Indication of J. 19 5,335 4,675 Transaction cost nots J. 19 5,335 4,675 Instruction of J. 19 3,16 3,16 Instruction of J. 19 3,18 3,175 Cated all fees 2,123 9,755 Cated all fees 3,18 2,276 Standard Fees 1,18 3,18 Total Capters 58,34 22,276 Expense wavel or obsorbed by the Manager (note 12) 38,36 23,870 Expense Support Cheerase in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemble units from operations ex reserver 497,316 88,870 Exica Sa 20,407 22,407 22,407 22,407 Series A 15,409 22,411 22,407 22,407 22,407 22,407 22,407 22,407 22,407 22,407	Management fees	114,588	121,234
Legal fees 21,082 7,000 Fling fees 18,065 23,648 Administrative fees 11,212 9,549 Administrative fees 10,700 12,932 Add fees 10,500 13,535 4,675 Transaction costs (note 3, 1.3] 3,535 4,675 Interest expense and bank changes 1,123 2,975 Clusted fees 16 3,136 2,132 Use places 15,628 2,213 2,013 Populses 15,628 2,226 2,016 2,016 Expenses varied or absorbed by the Manager (note 1.2) 3,836 2,227 2,027	· ·		29,853
Filing fee 18,965 23,468 Administrative fees 12,12 3,540 Admin fees 10,570 12,933 Independer Review Committee fees (note 1-1) 5,355 4,675 Transaction costs (note 3, 13) 3,688 3,875 Transaction costs (note 3, 13) 3,688 3,875 Interest expense and bank charges 2,123 9,755 Custodial Res 168 3,168 3,875 Chall expense 536,284 222,766 Expense waved or absorbed by the Manager (note 12) 3,889 7,872 Reverses (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations 483,673 52,207 Revision S 2,907			
Administrative fees 13,12 9,540 Admit fees 10,570 12,933 Admit fees 10,570 12,933 Admit fees 3,068 3,167 Transcion costs (note 3, 13) 3,688 3,812 Interest expense and bank charges 168 3,168 Stocked 168 3,18 Expense 36,534 22,276 Expense 497,316 18,8870 Accrease (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series 24,933 32,207 Series A 266,935 19,007 Series A 266,935 19,200 Series A 266,935 19,200 Series A 266,935 19,200 Series A 266,935 19,200 Series A 168,935 22,073 Series A 168,935 22,073 Series A 168,935 22,073 Series A 168,935 22,073 Series A 168,035 22,233 23,237	· ·	18.965	
Audit fees 10,570 12,933 Independer Review Committee (sonte 14) 55,335 46,75 Transaction costs (note 3, 13) 3,688 3,812 Interest expense and bank charges 12,123 9,755 Stockafile See 188 3,16 Total captures 188,281 22,276 Expenses waived or absorbed by the Manager (note 12) 38,863 33,800 Net expense say in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations 483,673 55,277 Series A 20,035 92,007 Series A1 15,409 24,116 Series A2 20,633 12,734 Series A3 20,035 23,732 Series A3 160,864 225,895 Series A2 160,864 225,895 Series A3 160,864 225,895 Series A5 160,864 225,895 Series A6 160,864 225,895 Series A7 40,510 20,707 Series A7 40,510 20,707 Series A7			
Independent Review Committee fees (note 1, 13) 5,335 4,675 Transaction costs (note 3, 13) 3,688 3,812 Interest expense and bank charges 2,123 7,755 Clusted 168 316 Total expense 5,824 22,276 Expenses varied or absorbed by the Manager (note 12) (38,968) 3,3896 Net capense 497,316 88,870 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations 26,935 192,007 Series A 26,935 192,007 Series A 15,49 24,116 Series F 202,633 123,734 Series F 1,46 210,639 Series A 1,64 22,835 Series A 1,64 22,835 Series A 1,64 22,835 Series A 1,64 22,83		,	
Transaction costs (note 3, 13) 3,658 3,812 Interest expense and bank charges 2,123 9,755 Clustodial fees 168 316 Expenses 536,284 222,766 Expenses 497,316 38,897 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations 483,673 352,077 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series 26,935 19,007 Series A 26,935 29,107 Series I 15,409 24,116 Series I 12,40 21,000 Series I 12,40 21,000 Series I 1,60 22,000 Series A 16,08 22,000 Series A 16,00 22,000 Series F 20,00			
Interest expense and bank charges 2,123 9,755 Custodia fees 168 316 Citate (pees) 356,284 222,766 Expense waived or absorbed by the Manager (note 1.2) 35,895 3,895 Net regress (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations 483,673 552,077 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series 206,935 192,007 Series A.1 206,335 122,007 Series A.1 202,033 123,723 Series F. 202,033 123,723 Series F. 202,033 123,723 Series A.1 16,084 222,855 Series A.2 16,084 222,855 Series A.2 16,084 222,855 Series A.2 16,084 222,855 Series A.2 16,084 223,855 Series A.2 16,084 223,855 Series F.2 22,085 21,204 Series F.3 16,084 24,232 Series A.3 16,084 2			
Custodial fees 168 3.16 Total repenses 53,634 222,766 Expenses waived or absorbed by the Manager (note 12) (38,968) (33,896) Net sepanses 497,316 188,870 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations 36,00 192,007 Feries A 206,935 192,007 Series A 15,409 24,116 Series IF 202,633 123,734 Series IF 1,464 210,639 Series IR 1,464 210,639 Series A 16,864 225,895 Series F 216,541 24,792 Series F 216,541 24,792 Series F 210,400 24,792 <th< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td></th<>			
Total expenses \$36,284 222,766 Expenses waived or absorbed by the Manager (note 12) (38,968) (33,8968) (34,8968) (34,9968)			
Expenses waived or absorbed by the Manager (note 12) (38,968) (33,896) Net expenses (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations 483,673 (52,077)			
Net expenses 497,316 188,870 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations 483,673 552,077 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series 206,935 192,007 Scries A 206,935 192,007 24,116 27,232 23,172 24,116 202,633 123,734 202,633 123,734 202,633 123,734 202,633 123,734 202,633 123,734 202,633 123,734 202,633 123,734 202,633 123,734 202,633 123,734 202,633 123,734 202,633 123,734 202,633 123,734 202,633 123,734 207,633 212,734 202,7		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations Per series Series A 206,935 192,007 Series A 206,935 192,007 Series A 15,409 24,116 Series D 57,232 23,172 Series F 202,633 123,734 Series A 206,935 192,007 Series F 202,633 123,734 Series F 1,464 210,639 Series A 16,864 225,895 Series A 16,864 225,895 Series A 16,864 225,895 Series A 20,834 22,845 Series F 316,624 249,232 Series F 316,624 249,232 Series F 216,541 214,782 Series F 216,541 214,782 Series F 216,541 214,782 Series A 10,866 12,979 Series F 216,541 214,782 Series F 216,541 214,782 Series A 10,867 1.14 Series A 1.14 0.92 Series A 1.14 0.92 Series A 1.14 0.92 Series B 1.14 0.92 Series F 1.14 0			
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series 206,935 192,007 Series A1 15,409 24,116 Series D 57,232 23,172 23,2734 27,172 20,633 123,734 20,635 20,633 123,734 20,635 2	*		
Scries A 206,935 192,007 Scries A1 15,409 24,116 Scries D 57,232 23,172 Scries F 202,633 123,734 Scries I 1,464 210,639 Scries I 1 160,864 225,895 Scries A1 160,864 225,895 21,204 Scries D 40,510 25,895 22,845 21,204 Scries F 136,624 249,232 249,232 22,815 21,204 Scries F 216,541 214,782 249,232 22,815 210,406 249,232 22,815 210,406 249,232 22,815 210,406 249,232 22,815 210,406 249,232 22,815 210,406 249,232 22,815 210,406 249,232 22,815 210,406 249,232 22,815 210,406 249,232 22,815 22,815 22,815 22,815 22,815 22,815 22,815 22,815 22,815 22,815 22,815 22,815 22,815 22,81		100,070	552,077
Scries A 206,935 192,007 Scries A1 15,409 24,116 Scries D 57,232 23,172 Scries F 202,633 123,734 Scries I 1,464 210,639 Scries I 1 160,864 225,895 Scries A1 160,864 225,895 21,204 Scries D 40,510 25,895 22,845 21,204 Scries F 136,624 249,232 249,232 22,815 21,204 Scries F 216,541 214,782 249,232 22,815 210,406 249,232 22,815 210,406 249,232 22,815 210,406 249,232 22,815 210,406 249,232 22,815 210,406 249,232 22,815 210,406 249,232 22,815 210,406 249,232 22,815 210,406 249,232 22,815 22,815 22,815 22,815 22,815 22,815 22,815 22,815 22,815 22,815 22,815 22,815 22,815 22,81	Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series		
Series A1 15,409 24,116 Series D 57,232 23,172 Series F 202,633 123,734 Series F1 1,464 210,639 Series I - (21,591) Weighted average number of redeemable units Series A 160,864 225,895 Series A1 160,864 255,895 Series B0 40,510 25,079 Series F2 136,624 249,232 Series F1 21,4782 214,782 Series Queerease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3) 12,29 0.85 Series A1 0.67 1.14 0.92 Series B 1.21 0.85 1.14 0.92 Series B 1.24 0.85 1.14 0.92 0.85 Series B 1.24 0.85 1.14 0.92 0.85 1.14 0.92 0.85 1.14 0.92 0.85 1.14 0.92 0.85 1.14 0.92 0.85 <td></td> <td>206.935</td> <td>192.007</td>		206.935	192.007
Scries D 57,232 23,172 Scries F 202,633 123,734 Scries FI 1,464 210,639 Scries I 1,6086 225,895 Scries A 160,864 225,895 Scries AI 40,510 25,079 Scries FI 136,624 249,232 Scries FI 216,541 214,782 Scries Q'Occrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3) 1.29 0.85 Scries AI 0.67 1.14 Scries AI 0.67 1.14 Scries AI 0.67 1.14 Scries AI 0.67 1.14 Scries FI 0.67 1.14 Scries FI 0.67 0.67 Scries FI 0.67 0.67 <			
Scries F1 1,464 210,639 Scries I 1,464 210,639 Scries I - (21,591) Weighted average number of redeemable units Scries A 160,864 225,895 Scries A1 136,624 225,895 Scries F 136,624 249,232 Scries F1 216,541 214,782 Scries A1 216,541 214,782 Scries Querease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3) 1.29 0.85 Scries A1 0.67 1.14 0.92 Scries D 1.48 0.50 Scries F1 1.48 0.50 Scries F1 0.01 0.98			
Series F1 1,464 210,639 Series I 2 (21,591) Weighted average number of redeemable units 160,864 225,895 Series A1 160,864 225,895 Series D 40,510 25,079 Series F2 136,624 249,232 Series F3 216,541 214,782 Series A1 2 101,406 Series A2 1.29 0.85 Series A3 1.29 0.85 Series A1 0.67 1.14 Series D 1.41 0.92 Series F4 1.48 0.50 Series F6 1.48 0.50 Series F1 0.01 0.09			
Series I (21,591) Weighted average number of redeemable units 160,864 225,895 Series A 160,864 225,895 21,204 Series D 40,510 225,079 25,079 26,079 26,079 27,079			
Weighted average number of redeemable units Series A 160,864 225,895 Series AI 22,845 21,204 Series D 40,510 25,079 Series F 136,624 249,232 Series FI 216,541 214,782 Series I - 101,460 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3) Series A 1.29 0.85 Series AI 0.67 1.14 Series D 0.67 1.41 0.92 Series F 1.41 0.92 Series F 0.50 0.50 Series FI 0.01 0.98		-	
Series A 160,864 225,895 Series A1 22,845 21,204 Series D 40,510 25,079 Series F 136,624 249,232 Series F1 216,541 214,782 Series I 1.04 1.04 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3) 8 Series A1 0.67 1.14 Series B1 0.67 1.14 Series F1 1.14 0.92 Series F1 0.01 0.98	ee.		
Scries A1 22,845 21,204 Scries D 40,510 25,079 Scries F 136,624 249,232 Scries F1 216,541 214,782 Scries I 1.04 0.04 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3) Scries A 1.29 0.85 Scries A1 0.67 1.14 Scries D 1.41 0.92 Scries F 1.48 0.50 Scries F1 0.01 0.98	Weighted average number of redeemable units		
Scries D 40,510 25,079 Scries F 136,624 249,232 Scries F1 216,541 214,782 Scries I - 101,460 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3) Scries A 1.29 0.85 Scries A1 0.67 1.14 Scries D 1.41 0.92 Scries F 1.48 0.50 Scries F1 0.01 0.98	Series A	160,864	225,895
Scries F 136,624 249,232 Scries F1 216,541 214,782 Scries I - 101,460 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3) Scries A 1.29 0.85 Scries A1 0.67 1.14 Scries D 1.41 0.92 Scries F 1.48 0.50 Scries F1 0.01 0.98	Series A1	22,845	21,204
Scries F1 216,541 214,782 Scries I 2 101,460 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3) 1.29 0.85 Scries Al 0.67 1.14 0.92 Scries D 1.41 0.92 Scries F1 0.50 1.48 0.50 Scries F1 0.01 0.98	Series D	40,510	25,079
Series I - 101,460 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3) 1.29 0.85 Series A 0.67 1.14 0.92 Series D 1.41 0.92 Series F 1.48 0.50 Series F1 0.01 0.98	Series F	136,624	249,232
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3) Series A 1.29 0.85 Series A 0.67 1.14 Series D 1.41 0.92 Series F 1.48 0.50 Series F 0.01 0.98 Se	Series F1	216,541	214,782
Scries A 1.29 0.85 Scries AI 0.67 1.14 Scries D 1.41 0.92 Scries F 1.48 0.50 Scries FI 0.01 0.98	Series I	-	101,460
Scries A 1.29 0.85 Scries AI 0.67 1.14 Scries D 1.41 0.92 Scries F 1.48 0.50 Scries FI 0.01 0.98	Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 2)		
Series AI 0.67 1.14 Series D 1.41 0.92 Series F 1.48 0.50 Series FI 0.01 0.98		1.29	0.85
Scries D 1.41 0.92 Scries F 1.48 0.50 Scries F1 0.01 0.98			
Series F 1.48 0.50 Series F1 0.01 0.98			
Series F1 0.01 0.98			
	Series I		(0.21)

Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
	s	S
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, beginning of year		
Series A	1,661,117	1,965,429
Series A1	225,952	206,728
Series D	213,028	191,365
Series F	1,473,164	3,615,749
Series F1	2,071,937	2,282,649
Series I	-	782,123
	5,645,198	9,044,043
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations	207.025	192,007
Series A	206,935 15,409	
Series A1		24,116
Series D	57,232	23,172
Series F	202,633	123,734
Series F1	1,464	210,639
Series I	483,673	(21,591)
	463,073	552,077
Redeemable unit transactions (note 8)		
Proceeds from redeemable units issued		
Series A	1,027	375
Series A1	125,773	53,749
Series D	366,098	-
Series F	35,528	98,527
Series F1	2,936,445	602,950
Series I	-	
Redemption of redeemable units		
Series A	(530,678)	(496,694)
Series A1	(60,673)	(58,641)
Series D	(256,776)	(1,509)
Series F	(640,590)	(2,364,846)
Series F1	(533,908)	(1,024,301)
Series I	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	(760,532)
	1,442,246	(3,950,922)
Net increase (decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units		
Series A	(322,716)	(304,312)
Series A1	80,509	19,224
Series D	166,554	21,663
Series F	(402,429)	(2,142,585)
Series F1	2,404,001	(210,712)
Series I		(782,123)
	1,925,919	(3,398,845)
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, end of year		
Series A	1,338,401	1,661,117
Series A1	306,461	225,952
Series D	379,582	213,028
Series F	1,070,735	1,473,164
Series F1	4,475,938	2,071,937
Series I	-	-,0,1,737
	7,571,117	5,645,198
	, ,	

Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units continued

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
Units, beginning of year		
Series A	195,774	259,115
Series A1	22,989	23,477
Series D	25,000	25,210
Series F	172,326	475,329
Series F1	212,438	262,529
Series I	•	101,460
	628,527	1,147,120
Redeemable unit transactions (note 8)		
Redeemable units issued		
Series A	95	49
Series A1	10,206	6,167
Series D	38,053	-
Series F	3,775	13,211
Series F1	251,786	68,167
Series I	-	-
Redemption of redeemable units		
Series A	(57,183)	(63,390)
Series A1	(5,057)	(6,655)
Series D	(24,237)	(210)
Series F	(65,744)	(316,214)
Series F1	(50,295)	(118,258)
Series I	· · ·	(101,460)
	101,399	(518,593)
T. % 1. 6		
Units, end of year	120 (0)	105 774
Series A	138,686	195,774
Series A1	28,138	22,989
Series D	38,816	25,000
Series F	110,357	172,326
Series F1	413,929	212,438
Series I	#40.00 <i>c</i>	
	729,926	628,527

Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31	2022	2021
	s	5
Cash flows from operating activities		
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations	483,673	552,077
Adjustments for:		
Foreign exchange (gains) losses on cash	(2,243)	20
Net realized (gains) losses on future contracts	(1,128,900)	(517,044
Change in unrealized (appreciation) depreciation on future contracts	146,055	(185,814
Futures margin paid	1,128,898	517,044
Net increase (decrease) in other assets and liabilities	(1,119,029)	(505,503)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities	(491,546)	(139,214)
Cash flows from financing activities Proceeds from redeemable units issued Redemption of redeemable units	3,410,477 (1,920,398)	729,54° (4,652,536
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities	1,490,079	(3,922,989
Foreign exchange gains (losses) on cash	2,243	(26)
Net increase (decrease) in cash	998,533	(4,062,203)
Cash (Bank indebtedness), beginning of the year	3,976,902	8,039,131
Cash (Bank indebtedness), end of the year	4,977,681	3,976,902
Supplemental Information*		
Interest paid	2,123	9,755

^{*}Information provided relates to the operating activities of the Fund

Schedule of Investment Portfolio

As at December 31, 2022	Fair Value
	\$
Currency Futures [-4.55%] (Schedule 1)	(344,451)
Gold Futures [0.27%] (Schedule 1)	20,121
Total futures contracts [-4.28%]	(324,330)
Cash and other assets less liabilities [104.28%]	7,895,447
Total Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units [100.00%]	7,571,117

Futures Contracts (Schedule 1)

As at December 31, 2022

Currency Futures Contracts	Number of	Expiration	Notional Average Cost	Fair Value	Unrealized Appreciation (Depreciation)
Currency Sold/Currency Bought	Contracts	Date	\$(CAD)	\$(CAD)	\$(CAD)
British Pound/U.S. Dollars	(12)	13-Mar-2023	(1,249,541)	(1,227,130)	22,411
Mexican Peso/U.S. Dollars	2	13-Mar-2023	67,104	68,539	1,435
New Zealand Dollar/U.S. Dollars	(1)	13-Mar-2023	(85,171)	(85,898)	(727)
U.S. Dollar/Norwegian Krone	1	13-Mar-2023	137,191	135,286	(1,905)
Australian Dollar/U.S. Dollars	(78)	13-Mar-2023	(7,155,893)	(7,211,714)	(55,821)
Euro/U.S. Dollars	(35)	13-Mar-2023	(6,291,333)	(6,370,401)	(79,068)
Japanese Yen/U.S. Dollars	(39)	13-Mar-2023	(4,859,406)	(5,087,198)	(227,791)
Canadian Dollar/U.S. Dollars	(4)	14-Mar-2023	(397,366)	(400,351)	(2,985)
Total	·		(19,834,415)	(20,178,867)	(344,451)

Gold Futures Contracts					Unrealized
			Notional		Appreciation
	Number of	Expiration	Average Cost	Fair Value	(Depreciation)
Future Details Information	Contracts	Date	\$(CAD)	\$(CAD)	\$(CAD)
Gold 100 oz futures	3	24-Feb-2023	721,681	741,802	20,121
Total			721,681	741,802	20.121

Ninepoint FX Strategy Fund Notes to financial statements — Fund specific information December 31, 2022

Financial Risk Management (note 6)

Investment Objective

The objective of the Fund is to generate long term total returns by investing globally in FX futures on a long/short basis. To achieve the Fund's investment objective, the Fund will utilize several investment trading methodologies at the standard level of risk to invest in foreign currency futures utilizing a Bayesian statistical model to identify current drivers of currency returns. The Fund may also have exposure to gold through investment in future contracts.

The Schedule of Investment Portfolio presents the holdings of the Fund as at December 31, 2022. Significant risks that are relevant to the Fund are discussed here. General information on risks and risk management is described in *Note 6 Financial Risk Management* of the Generic Notes.

Market Risk

a) Other Price Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund did not have a significant exposure to other price risk.

b) Currency Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's direct exposure to currency risk and potential impact to the Fund's Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units as a result of a 1% change in these currencies relative to the Canadian dollar, with all other variables held constant, are shown in the tables below.

December 31, 2022

		% of Net Assets	Impact on Net Assets
Currency	Fair Value	attributable to holders of redeemable units	attributable to holders of redeemable units
Currency	ran value	%	of redeemable units
U.S. Dollar	34,108	0.45	341
December 31, 2021			
		% of Net Assets	Impact on Net Assets
		attributable to holders	attributable to holders
Currency	Fair Value	of redeemable units	of redeemable units
	\$	%	\$
U.S. Dollar	(146,412)	(2.59)	(1,464)

c) Interest Rate Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund did not have a significant exposure to interest rate risk.

Credit Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund was exposed to credit risk from over-the-counter derivative contracts with counterparties. The credit risk was considered minimal as these counterparties have a minimum credit rating of A by Standard & Poor's or equivalent.

Ninepoint FX Strategy Fund Notes to financial statements — Fund specific information December 31, 2022

Concentration Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's concentration risk as a percentage of Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units is shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	º/ ₀	9/0
Unrealized depreciation on currency futures contracts	(4.55)	(3.16)
Unrealized appreciation gold futures contracts	0.27	_
Cash and other assets less liabilities	104.28	103.16
Total Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	100.00	100.00

Fair Value Measurements (note 5)

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's financial assets and liabilities, which are measured at fair value, have been categorized based upon the fair value hierarchy as shown in the tables below.

December 31, 2022	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
	\$	\$	\$	\$
Currency futures contracts	(344,451)	_	_	(344,451)
Gold futures contracts	20,121	_	_	20,121
Total	(324,330)	_	_	(324,330)
December 31, 2021	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
-	\$	\$	\$	\$
Currency futures contracts	(178,277)	_	_	(178,277)
Total	(178,277)	_	_	(178,277)

During the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, there were no significant transfers between levels.

Management Fees (note 11)

Management fees differ among the series of units of the Fund as shown in the table below.

Series	Management Fees (Up to)
Series A	2.05%
Series A1	2.25%
Series D	1.75%
Series F	1.55%
Series F1	1.75%
Series I*	Negotiated by the Unitholder
Series QF	1.55%

^{*} The management fee for Series I units of the Fund is negotiated by the investor and paid directly by the investor or by the Fund, and would not exceed the management fee for Series A1 units of the Fund.

Tax Loss Carryforwards (note 3)

For the taxation year ended December 15, 2022, the Fund had capital and non-capital losses available for tax purposes as shown in the table below.

Capital losses	Non-capital losses	Non-capital losses year of expiry
\$	\$	
22,731	1,645,030	2040

Ninepoint FX Strategy Fund Notes to financial statements — Fund specific information December 31, 2022

Restricted Cash and Investments (note 10)

As at December 31, 2022, restricted cash and investments held for the Fund were \$2,969,901 (December 31, 2021 – \$356,859).

Related Party Holdings

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, Ninepoint Financial Group Inc., the parent company of the Manager, and its respective subsidiaries, held the following investments as shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
Units held		
Series F	_	13,099
Value of units held (\$)	_	127,755

Statements of Financial Position

As at December 31	2022	2021
	s	\$
Assets		
Current assets		
Investments (note 3, 5, 10)	252,326,424	221,301,976
Cash (note 10)	-	13,302,736
Broker margin (note 10)	-	417,607
Options purchased (note 3, 5)	2,031	-
Unrealized appreciation on forward currency contracts (note 3, 5)	9,076	41,929
Unrealized appreciation on swap contracts (note 3, 5)	-	4,084
Due from broker	3,305,534	_
Subscriptions receivable	61,632	1,199,415
Dividends receivable	15,410	4,239
Interest receivable	2,315,041	1,551,524
Total assets	258,035,148	237,823,510
Liabilities		
Current liabilities		
Investments sold short (note 3, 5)	135,039,918	120,040,684
Bank indebtedness	547,272	_
Options written (note 3, 5)	1,016	10,271
Unrealized depreciation on swap contracts (note 3, 5)	5,205	_
Distribution payable to unitholders	486,872	154,184
Redemptions payable	3,037,582	50,892
Interest payable on securities sold short	247,635	179,639
Accrued expenses	47,561	60,766
Total liabilities	139,413,061	120,496,436
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	118,622,087	117,327,074
	-7. 7.	. , ,
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per series		
Series A	5,443,979	8,650,447
Series F	75,042,718	93,860,619
Series QF	7,299,323	7,917,374
ETF Series	30,836,067	6,898,634
	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per series per unit (note 3)		
Series A	8.32	9.91
Series F	8.33	9.90
Series OF	8.32	9.94
ETF Series	16.58	19.71

See accompanying notes which are an integral part of these financial statements

On behalf of the Manager, Ninepoint Partners LP, by its General Partner, Ninepoint Partners GP Inc.

John Wilson DIRECTOR

James Fox DIRECTOR

Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

For the year ended December 31, 2022 and the period from May 11, 2021 to December 31, 2021	2022	2021
	s	s
Income		
Interest income for distribution purposes (note 3)	13,446,323	2,664,038
Dividends (note 3)	103,213	44,462
Interest received on swap contracts	-	8,689
Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investments	(7,507,106)	95,787
Net realized gains (losses) on option contracts	(431,878)	3,632
Net realized gains (losses) on forward currency contracts	(520,958)	(118,419)
Net realized gains (losses) on swap contracts	1,907,332	-
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) in the value of investments	(16,223,746)	(1,518,097)
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on option contracts	(160,412)	111,823
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on forward currency contracts	(32,853)	41,929
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on swap contracts	9,289	5,324
Net realized gains (losses) on foreign exchange	(7,797)	10,740
Total income (loss)	(9,418,593)	1,349,908
Expenses (note 11, 12)		
Interest on short positions	2,787,767	587,215
Management fees	1,590,687	403,407
Securities borrowing fees	962,440	164,141
Administrative fees	101,513	40,848
Unitholder reporting fees	81,606	18,294
Interest paid on swap contracts	79,230	-
Transaction costs (note 3, 13)	33,195	34,254
Filing fees	28,720	20,693
Legal fees	19,338	8,166
Audit fees	17,829	13,352
Independent Review Committee fees (note 14)	5,013	2,400
Withholding taxes	1,916	2,417
Interest expense and bank charges	1,460	158
Custodial fees	661	371
Performance fees	-	11,020
Total expenses	5,711,375	1,306,736
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations	(15,129,968)	43,172
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series	(707.07.)	(4.5.455)
Series A	(785,954)	(16,477)
Series F	(9,416,600)	69,585
Series QF	(830,916)	(15,491)
ETF Series	(4,096,498)	5,555
Without a supply of advantal surface		
Weighted average number of redeemable units	700 422	201 140
Series A	790,433	391,140
Series F	10,523,480	5,120,931
Series QF	968,121	793,287 190,278
ETF Series	2,522,266	190,276
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3)		
Series A	(0.99)	(0.04)
Series F	(0.89)	0.04
Series OF	(0.86)	(0.02)
ETF Series	(1.62)	0.02)
EAT OFFICE	(1.02)	0.03

Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units

For the year ended December 31, 2022 and the period from May 11, 2021 to December 31, 2021	2022	2021
	s	\$
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, beginning of year		
Series A	8,650,447	-
Series F	93,860,619	-
Series QF	7,917,374	-
ETF Series	6,898,634	-
	117,327,074	<u> </u>
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations		
Series A	(785,954)	(16,477)
Series F	(9,416,600)	69,585
Series QF	(830,916)	(15,491)
ETF Series	(4,096,498)	5,555
	(15,129,968)	43,172
Distributions to holders of redeemable units		
From net investment income	4404 4050	444040
Series A	(491,495)	(114,846)
Series F	(6,987,348)	(1,663,426)
Series QF	(652,443)	(35,516)
ETF Series	(3,369,991)	(123,615)
From return of capital		
ETF Series		(2,975)
	(11,501,277)	(1,940,378)
Redeemable unit transactions (note 8)		
Proceeds from redeemable units issued	2.550.220	0.105.050
Series A	2,750,229	9,195,870
Series F	43,273,949	117,155,223
Series QF	7,928,540	7,932,865
ETF Series	61,683,944	7,019,669
Reinvestments of distributions to holders of redeemable units	240.045	60.270
Series A	240,845	69,370
Series F	5,561,120	1,438,666
Series QF	652,443	35,516
ETF Series	-	-
Redemption of redeemable units		
Series A	(4,920,093)	(483,470)
Series F	(51,249,022)	(23,139,429)
Series QF	(7,715,675)	-
ETF Series	(30,280,022)	-
	27,926,258	119,224,280
Net increase (decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	(3,206,468)	8,650,447
Series A		
Series F	(18,817,901)	93,860,619
Series QF	(618,051)	7,917,374
ETF Series	23,937,433	6,898,634
	1,295,013	117,327,074
Not Access attributable to heldow of redormable units, and of navied		
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, end of period	5,443,979	8,650,447
Series A Series F		
	75,042,718	93,860,619
Series QF	7,299,323 30,836,067	7,917,374
ETF Series	118,622,087	6,898,634
	118,022,08/	117,327,074

Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units continued

\mathcal{E}		
For the year ended December 31, 2022 and the period from May 11, 2021 to December 31, 2021	2022	2021
Unite beginning of negled		
Units, beginning of period	873,115	
Series A		-
Series F	9,478,487	-
Series QF	796,861	-
ETF Series	350,000	-
	11,498,463	-
Redeemable unit transactions (note 8)		
Redeemable units issued		
Series A	293,932	914,342
Series F	4,734,148	11,636,434
Series QF	873,770	793,286
ETF Series	3,270,000	350,000
Reinvestments of distributions to holders of redeemable units		
Series A	27,269	6,957
Series F	633,040	144,006
Series QF	74,193	3,575
ETF Series	-	_
Redemption of redeemable units		
Series A	(539,804)	(48,184)
Series F	(5,836,378)	(2,301,953)
Series QF	(867,824)	-
ETF Series	(1,760,000)	-
	902,346	11,498,463
Units, end of period		
Series A	654,512	873,115
Series F	9,009,297	9,478,487
Series QF	877,000	796,861
ETF Series	1,860,000	350,000
	12,400,809	11,498,463

Statements of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31, 2022 and the period from May 11, 2021 to December 31, 2021	2022	2021
	S	
Cash flows from operating activities		
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations	(15,129,968)	43,172
Adjustments for:		
Foreign exchange (gains) losses on cash	(33,014)	(442,616
Net realized (gains) losses on sales of investments	7,507,106	(95,787
Net realized (gains) losses on option contracts	431,878	(3,632
Net realized (gains) losses on swap contracts	(1,907,332)	
Change in unrealized (appreciation) depreciation in the value of investments	16,223,746	1,518,097
Change in unrealized (appreciation) depreciation on option contracts	160,412	(111,823
Change in unrealized (appreciation) depreciation on forward currency contracts	32,853	(41,929)
Change in unrealized (appreciation) depreciation on swap contracts	(9,289)	(5,324)
Purchases of investments	(125,234,298)	(89,444,710)
Proceeds from sale of investments	83,495,032	(13,111,926)
Net increase (decrease) in other assets and liabilities	(302,290)	(1,732,965)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities	(34,765,164)	(103,429,443)
Cash flows from financing activities		
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable units, net of reinvested distributions	(4,714,181)	(242,642)
Proceeds from redeemable units issued	112,445,715	140,084,197
Redemption of redeemable units	(86,849,392)	(23,551,992)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities	20,882,142	116,289,563
Foreign exchange gains (losses) on cash	33,014	442,616
Net increase (decrease) in cash	(13,883,022)	12,860,120
Cash (Bank indebtedness), beginning of period	13,302,736	
Cash (Bank indebtedness), end of period	(547,272)	13,302,736
Supplemental Information*		
Interest received	12,680,890	2,743,133
Interest paid	2,620,822	1,042,399
Dividends received, net of withholding taxes	92,042	40,223
*Information provided relates to the operating activities of the Fund		

^{*}Information provided relates to the operating activities of the Fund

Schedule of Investment Portfolio

December 31, 2022		Maturity Date	Average Cost	Fair V
DAD VALUE	PONIDS [170 200/.]		\$	
PAR VALUE*	BONDS [179.29%] INVESTMENT GRADE BONDS [139.74%]			
1,500,000	. ,	Dec 5, 2024	1,533,515	1,414
2,000,000		Sep 18, 2025	2,100,480	1,869
2,100,000		* '		2,057
		Sep 18, 2023	2,159,050	
2,500,000		Apr 29, 2025	2,500,200	2,419
4,000,000	•	Jun 9, 2028	3,987,375	3,410
3,100,000		Oct 2, 2030	3,316,906	2,761
2,950,000		Apr 4, 2029	2,903,341	2,596
3,000,000		Jun 17, 2030	2,946,990	2,76
4,000,000		Jun 23, 2027	3,837,810	3,50
150,000		Apr 17, 2026	196,343	16
2,500,000	BNP Paribas SA, Callable, 2.538%	Jul 13, 2029	2,383,700	2,09
1,000,000	Bonterra Energy Corporation, Callable, 9.000%	Oct 20, 2025	1,000,000	1,00
3,300,000	Brookfield Infrastructure Finance ULC, Callable, 4.193%	Sep 11, 2028	3,224,006	3,13
2,000,000	Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce, Callable, 4.000%	Jan 28, 2082	1,866,000	1,57
3,000,000	Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce, Callable, 4.200%	Apr 7, 2032	3,000,000	2,82
4,347,000	Canadian Western Bank, Callable, 3.668%	Jun 11, 2029	4,407,134	4,19
2,000,000		Feb 8, 2030	2,109,854	1,88
1,500,000		Feb 7, 2028	1,588,242	1,41
1,000,000		Mar 10, 2027	1,061,320	95
	-			
1,100,000		Dec 15, 2045	1,102,824	98
2,000,000	•	Mar 4, 2030	1,997,600	1,7
3,100,000		May 13, 2030	3,054,511	2,65
2,000,000		Aug 12, 2031	1,909,340	1,62
300,000		Jun 21, 2027	324,003	28
1,000,000		Feb 5, 2029	1,000,000	8
1,000,000		Sep 20, 2027	999,950	99
1,000,000	Empire Life Insurance Company, Callable, 2.024%	Sep 24, 2031	1,000,000	87
700,000	Enbridge Inc., Callable, 4.100%	Sep 21, 2051	563,087	53
2,000,000	Enbridge Inc., Callable, 5.375%	Sep 27, 2077	2,101,923	1,82
D 500,000		Jan 15, 2077	694,613	62
1,000,000		Nov 26, 2025	994,481	89
3,200,000		Mar 3, 2031	3,256,734	2,80
D 1,500,000		Feb 26, 2028	1,854,911	1,8
, ,				
1,000,000		Jun 17, 2025	1,060,600	90
2,900,000		May 28, 2031	2,799,986	2,50
2,000,000		Aug 23, 2032	1,991,320	1,9
1,400,000	1	Oct 30, 2023	1,473,054	1,3
1,000,000	*	Aug 30, 2024	1,019,000	91
2,100,000	First National Financial Corporation, 3.582%	Nov 25, 2024	2,192,834	2,00
750,000	First National Financial Corporation, Callable, 2.961%	Nov 17, 2025	771,168	68
900,000	General Motors Financial of Canada Limited, Callable, 1.750%	Apr 15, 2026	894,210	79
2,500,000	General Motors Financial of Canada Limited, Callable, 3.150%	Feb 8, 2027	2,475,835	2,2
2,000,000	George Weston Limited, 6.690%	Mar 1, 2033	2,575,840	2,12
100,000		Feb 5, 2032	130,157	10
3,500,000		Dec 31, 2081	3,308,375	2,62
2,000,000		Jun 13, 2024	2,000,000	1,90
3,500,000	± **	Feb 16, 2027	3,439,835	3,1
2,009,000		Mar 31, 2081		
	1 / /		2,066,809	1,68
3,500,000		Jun 1, 2027	3,644,565	3,3:
1,500,000		Nov 27, 2051	1,500,000	1,2
3,250,000		Mar 5, 2028	2,850,705	2,8
300,000		Feb 9, 2028	373,302	3
4,400,000	Macquarie Group Limited, Callable, 2.723%	Aug 21, 2029	4,120,810	3,7
1,000,000	Manulife Financial Corporation, Callable, 4.100%	Mar 19, 2082	972,500	7:
1,500,000	MCAP Commercial L.P., 3.743%	Aug 25, 2025	1,523,835	1,40
1,200,000	MCAP Commercial L.P., 4.151%	Jun 17, 2024	1,267,185	1,10
1,959,000		Nov 26, 2027	1,913,456	1,7
5,550,000		Jun 12, 2030	5,570,551	5,1:
1,000,000		Mar 18, 2024	998,434	9.
2,500,000		Sep 22, 2025		2,2
1,000,000		Dec 10, 2051	2,457,130	7,2
			1,000,000	
1,000,000		Mar 30, 2025	988,200	9
2,500,000		Mar 30, 2027	2,483,592	2,3
2,000,000	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Jan 28, 2033	1,639,180	1,6
2,500,000	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	May 3, 2032	2,499,450	2,2
1,700,000		Nov 24, 2081	1,660,150	1,2
2,000,000	Royal Bank of Canada, Callable, 4.200%	Dec 31, 2049	2,000,000	1,5
1,900,000	Sagen MI Canada Inc., Callable, 2.955%	Mar 1, 2027	1,813,624	1,6
2,000,000		Mar 5, 2031	1,912,747	1,6
100,000		Mar 24, 2081	100,750	1,0
1,000,000		Mar 31, 2027	1,016,653	89
1,600,000		Dec 18, 2028	1,562,752	1,3
2,800,000		Jun 11, 2027	2,561,888	2,5
		Jun 30, 2081	2,752,800	2,20
3,000,000				
3,500,000 3,500,000 2,000,000		Jul 27, 2081 May 3, 2032	3,312,560 1,909,180	2,64 1,86

Schedule of Investment Portfolio continued

s at December	r 31, 2022		Maturity Date	Average Cost	Fair Valu
D.	AR VALUE*	INVESTMENT GRADE BONDS [139.74%] continued		\$	
USD	150,000	The Boeing Company, Callable, 2.196%	Feb 4, 2026	182,008	184,95
USD	3,200,000	The Empire Life Insurance Company, Callable, 3.625%	Apr 17, 2081	3,124,350	2,556,85
	4,500,000	The Goldman Sachs Group Inc., Callable, 2.599%	Nov 30, 2027	4,277,100	4,070,28
	3,000,000	The Independent Order of Foresters, Callable, 2.885%	Oct 15, 2035	2,948,157	2,463,64
	2,700,000	The Manufacturers Life Insurance Company, Callable, 3.375%	Jun 19, 2081	2,665,134	2,031,28
	4,250,000	The Toronto-Dominion Bank, Callable, 3.060%	Jan 26, 2032	4,099,247	3,865,11
	4,000,000	The Toronto-Dominion Bank, Callable, 3.600%	Oct 31, 2081	3,689,750	3,033,49
	300,000	TransCanada PipeLines Limited, 7.310%	Jan 15, 2027	372,882	319,44
	500,000	TransCanada PipeLines Limited, 7.900%	Apr 15, 2027	647,580	546,14
	150,000	TransCanada PipeLines Limited, Callable, 3.800%	Apr 5, 2027	163,409	143,13
	700,000	TransCanada PipeLines Limited, Callable, 4.180%	Jul 3, 2048	581,014	548,65
	700,000	TransCanada PipeLines Limited, Callable, 5.920%	May 12, 2052	750,253	710,17
	1,000,000	TransCanada Trust, Callable, 4.200%	Mar 4, 2081	993,160	798,69
	3,000,000	TransCanada Trust, Callable, 4.650%	May 18, 2077	3,015,740	2,684,88
	1,500,000	Transcontinental Inc., 2.667%	Feb 3, 2025	1,500,000	1,408,10
	2,000,000	Transcontinental Inc., Callable, 2.280%	Jul 13, 2026	1,985,020	1,794,79
	2,000,000	Wells Fargo & Company, 2.493%	Feb 18, 2027	2,023,180	1,800,17
	250,000	Wells Fargo & Company, 3.874%	May 21, 2025	251,369	241,18
				184,850,618	165,760,64
		HIGH YIELD BONDS [39.20%]			
	1,500,000	Algonquin Power & Utilities Corporation, Callable, 5.250%	Jan 18, 2082	1,500,000	1,172,62
	1,850,000	Algonquin Power & Utilities Corporation, Callable, 2.850%	Jul 15, 2031	1,705,431	1,505,78
	1,000,000	Allied Properties Real Estate Investment Trust, Callable, 1.726%	Feb 12, 2026	991,936	887,0
	1,000,000	AltaGas Limited, Callable, 5.250%	Jan 11, 2082	1,000,000	815,7
	1,150,000	Brookfield Property Finance ULC, Callable, 3.926%	Aug 24, 2025	1,175,456	1,079,1
	2,500,000	Brookfield Property Finance ULC, Callable, 4.300%	Mar 1, 2024	2,563,730	2,435,6
	1,000,000	Brookfield Property Finance ULC, Callable, 4.346%	Jul 3, 2023	996,230	989,43
	3,000,000	Brookfield Finance II Inc., Callable, 5.431%	Dec 14, 2032	3,000,000	2,941,42
	2,000,000	Cameco Corporation, Callable, 2.950%	Oct 21, 2027	1,963,897	1,811,44
	1,000,000	Canadian Western Bank, Callable, 5.000%	Jul 31, 2081	972,500	794,99
	1,000,000	CCL Industries Inc., Callable, 3.864%	Apr 13, 2028	1,100,280	941,5
	2,000,000	Central 1 Credit Union, Callable, 2.391%	Jun 30, 2031	2,004,405	1,776,4
	2,500,000	Chartwell Retirement Residences, Callable, 4.211%	Apr 28, 2025	2,606,720	2,404,2
	1,150,000	CI Financial Corporation, Callable, 3.759%	May 26, 2025	1,233,296	1,083,4
	1,150,000	Citigroup Inc., 4.090%	Jun 9, 2025	1,191,287	1,113,52
	1,500,000	CNH Industrial Capital Canada Limited, 1.500%	Oct 1, 2024	1,499,040	1,404,99
	1,500,000	Cominar Real Estate Investment Trust, 4.247%	May 23, 2023	1,505,625	1,480,89
	2,000,000	CT Real Estate Investment Trust, Callable, 2.371%	Jan 6, 2031	1,899,325	1,575,66
	1,900,000	Ford Credit Canada Company, 4.460%	Nov 13, 2024	1,976,175	1,832,89
	2,200,000	Gibson Energy Inc., Callable, 2.850%	Jul 14, 2027	2,185,691	1,993,40
USD	600,000	Hudbay Minerals Inc., Callable, 6.125%	Apr 1, 2029	785,437	736,50
	1,000,000	Inter Pipeline Limited, Callable, 6.625%	Nov 19, 2079	1,090,000	930,4
	1,250,000	Laurentian Bank of Canada, Callable, 5.095%	Jun 15, 2032	1,250,100	1,183,50
	2,100,000	Laurentian Bank of Canada, Callable, 5.300%	Jun 15, 2081	2,055,416	1,707,5
	100,000	Morguard Corporation, 4.402%	Sep 28, 2023	101,548	97,7
	1,150,000	Morguard Corporation, Callable, 4.204%	Nov 27, 2024	1,162,027	1,082,1
	1,500,000	National Bank of Canada, Callable, 4.050%	Aug 15, 2081	1,427,289	1,152,5
	4,000,000	National Bank of Canada, Callable, 5.426%	Aug 16, 2032	3,999,800	3,957,0
	1,600,000	Pembina Pipeline Corporation, Callable, 4.800%	Jan 25, 2081	1,582,583	1,311,4
	1,000,000	SNC-Lavalin Group Inc., Callable, 7.000%	Jun 12, 2026	1,000,000	1,015,0
	3,000,000	Tamarack Valley Energy Limited, Callable, 7.250%	Feb 10, 2022***, May 10, 2027	3,000,000	2,814,3
	500,000	Tamarack Valley Energy Limited, Callable, 7.250%	Sep 22, 2022***, May 10, 2027	470,000 50,995,224	470,6 46,499,2
				30,773,424	+0,477,2
		GOVERNMENT BONDS [0.35%]			
	430,000	Government of Canada, 0.250%	Aug 1, 2023	428,056 428,056	419,56

Schedule of Investment Portfolio continued

As at December 31, 2022		Maturity/Expiry Date	Average Cost	Fair Value
PAR VALUE*	ACCET DACKED CECUDIFIEC (22 010/1		\$	\$
3,500,000	ASSET-BACKED SECURITIES [23.81%] CARDS II Trust, 3.609%	Jan 15, 2025	3,458,450	3,313,484
1,346,000	CARDS II Trust, 6.080%	May 15, 2025	1,346,000	1,337,803
130,950	Classic RMBS Trust, Callable, 1.433%	Nov 15, 2025	130,950	1,337,803
1,178,139	Classic RMBS Trust, Callable, 2.630%	Aug 15, 2052	1,178,139	1,123,120
1,000,000	Coast Capital Savings Federal Credit Union, 6.131%	Nov 25, 2024	1,000,000	1,003,471
	1 0			
3,000,000	Cologix Canadian Issuer L.P., Callable, 5.680%	Jan 25, 2052	2,999,710	2,723,040
650,000 500,000	Cologix Data Centers Issuer LL, Callable, 7.740%	Jan 25, 2052 Jun 17, 2026	649,768 500,000	595,095 445,198
500,000	Eagle Credit Card Trust, 2.026% Eagle Credit Card Trust, 2.876%	Jun 17, 2026 Jun 17, 2026	500,000	446,265
1,500,000	Fairstone Financial Issuance Trust I, Callable, 2.509%	Oct 20, 2039	1,516,500	1,420,380
1,000,000	Fairstone Financial Issuance Trust I, Callable, 3.735%	Oct 20, 2039 Oct 20, 2039	948,500	915,820
2,000,000	Ford Auto Securitization Trust, Callable, 2.763%		2,033,270	1,888,240
		Apr 15, 2028		
1,000,000	Fortified Trust, 4.460%	Jun 23, 2025	999,920	988,990
2,000,000	Glacier Credit Card Trust, 2.438%	Sep 22, 2025	1,941,540	1,811,460
1,760,000	Glacier Credit Card Trust, 3.430%	Jun 6, 2024	1,759,985	1,693,736
1,500,000	Glacier Credit Card Trust, 4.138%	Sep 20, 2023	1,509,795	1,477,055
1,000,000	Glacier Credit Card Trust, 6.108%	Sep 20, 2027	1,000,000	1,048,830
1,513,000	GMF Canada Leasing Trust, Callable, 1.685%	Nov 20, 2025	1,503,922	1,504,536
1,452,721	Ford Auto Securitization Trust II, Callable, 4.956%	Oct 15, 2024	1,452,721	1,452,962
1,928,097	Real Estate Asset Liquidity Trust, Callable, 2.395%	Jan 12, 2030	1,928,020	1,727,707
236,747	Real Estate Asset Liquidity Trust, Callable, 3.641%	Jun 14, 2061	239,592	229,066
1,000,000	Silver Arrow Canada L.P., Callable, 3.728%	May 15, 2029	1,000,000	968,210
Total asset-backed securiti	es		29,596,782	28,239,428
PAR VALUE*	LOANS [3.88%]			
USD 500,000	Bunker Hill Mining Corporation, 7.500%**	Jul 7, 2023	638,850	656,013
1,500,000	Location d-Autos All-Star Inc., 9.750%**	Dec 18, 2023	1,500,000	1,479,000
1,500,000	Quality Rugs of Canada, 10.000%**	May 31, 2024	1,500,000	1,479,000
1,000,000	R.G.T. Clouthier Construction Limited, 11.500%**	Jun 30, 2023	1,000,000	992,000
Total loans			4,638,850	4,606,013
PAR VALUE*	MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES [2.58%]			
402,000	New Latitude Mortgage Trust, 12.000%**	Dec 15, 2023	402,000	386,965
2,750,000	New Latitude Mortgage Trust, 3.250%**	Dec 15, 2023	2,750,000	2,673,275
Total mortgage-backed sec		200 10, 2023	3,152,000	3,060,240
PAR VALUE*	CUADANTEED I DIVED NOTES (2 200/)			
USD 2,000,000	GUARANTEED LINKED NOTES [2.28%]	N 10, 2027	2.752.400	2 700 012
Total guaranteed linked no	Manitoulin USD Ltd., Muskoka Series 2022-1 Class E	Nov 10, 2027	2,753,400 2,753,400	2,708,812 2,708,812
Total guaranteed finked no	ics		2,733,400	2,700,812
PAR VALUE*	SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS [0.84%]			
1,000,000	Enbridge Pipelines Inc.	Jan 10, 2023	998,487	998,440
Total short-term investmer	ıts		998,487	998,440
SHARES	EQUITIES [0.03%]			
	MATERIALS [0.03%]			
200,009	Bunker Hill Mining Corporation		37,244	34,002
Total equities			37,244	34,002
SHARES	WARRANTS [0.00%]			
SHAKES	ENERGY [0.00%]			
56,000	Bonterra Energy Corporation	Oct 20, 2025		
Total warrants			-	
Transaction costs (note 3)			(2,029)	
Total investment owned [212.71%		277,448,632	252,326,424
1 otai investment owned [414./1/0]		211,440,032	252,

Schedule of Investment Portfolio continued

As at December 31, 2022		Maturity Date	Average Cost	Fair Valu
			S	
	SHORT POSITIONS			
PAR VALUE*	BONDS [(113.84%)]			
	GOVERNMENT BONDS [(113.84%)]			
(4,734,050) Government of Canada, 0.250%	Mar 1, 2026	(4,451,329)	(4,250,337
(7,795,200) Government of Canada, 0.500%	Dec 1, 2030	(6,998,418)	(6,288,611
(29,758,100) Government of Canada, 1.000%	Jun 1, 2027	(27,714,170)	(26,933,868
(10,052,700	Government of Canada, 1.250%	Jun 1, 2030	(9,676,562)	(8,715,690
(18,794,000) Government of Canada, 1.500%	Jun 1, 2026	(18,650,687)	(17,554,235
(2,174,000) Government of Canada, 1.500%	Sep 1, 2024	(2,110,904)	(2,085,441
(4,102,000) Government of Canada, 1.500%	Jun 1, 2031	(3,827,995)	(3,558,884
(19,423,200) Government of Canada, 2.000%	Jun 1, 2028	(19,440,284)	(18,203,396
(1,671,500) Government of Canada, 2.000%	Dec 1, 2051	(1,400,876)	(1,270,904
(10,333,900) Government of Canada, 2.250%	Jun 1, 2025	(10,726,752)	(9,973,240
(3,311,200) Government of Canada, 2.250%	Jun 1, 2029	(3,305,130)	(3,117,916
(6,081,400) Government of Canada., 0.500%	Sep 1, 2025	(5,766,816)	(5,575,15)
(14,563,500) Government of Canada., 1.000%	Sep 1, 2026	(13,841,880)	(13,282,528
(7,457,500) Government of Canada., 1.250%	Mar 1, 2027	(6,945,998)	(6,818,002
(1,631,000) Government of Canada., 1.750%	Dec 1, 2053	(1,231,181)	(1,149,434
(2,910,000) Government of Canada., 2.000%	Jun 1, 2032	(2,692,332)	(2,606,319
(1,970,000) Government of Canada., 2.500%	Jun 1, 2024	(1,938,086)	(1,925,322
USD (1,500,000	United States Treasury Notes, 0.750%	Jan 31, 2028	(1,721,217)	(1,730,634
Total investment sold sl	nort [-113.84%]		(142,440,617)	(135,039,918
Net Investment [98.87%			135,008,015	117,286,50
Options purchased [0.00	%] (Schedule 1)			2,03
Options written [-0.00%]	(Schedule 1)			(1,010
	ation on swap contracts [-0.00%] (Schedule 2)			(5,205
	ation on forward currency contracts [0.01%] (Schedule 3)			9,07
Cash and other assets les	L J			1,330,69
Total Net Assets attribu	table to holders of redeemable units [100.00%]			118,622,08

^{*} All par values are in Canadian Dollars unless otherwise noted
** Private company
*** Issue date of bonds

Option Contracts (Schedule 1)

As at December 31, 2022

Options Purchased						
		NIbc	E	64.21.	Premium	Fair
Option Details	Option Type	Number of Contracts	Expiration Date	Strike Price (\$)	Paid \$(CAD)	Value \$(CAD)
•						
iShares 20 Plus Year Treasury Bond ETF	Call	750	20-Jan-23	125.00 USD	88,891	2,031
Total					88,891	2,031
Options Written					Premium	Fair
		Number of	Expiration	Strike	Received	Value
Option Details	Option Type	Contracts	Date	Price (\$)	\$(CAD)	\$(CAD)
iShares 20 Plus Year Treasury Bond ETF	Call	(750)	20-Jan-23	135.00 USD	(37,531)	(1,016)
Total					(37,531)	(1,016)

Swap Contracts (Schedule 2)

As at December 31, 2022

Reference Entity	Fixed Received Rate (%)	Expiration Date	Notional Amount \$(CAD)	Cost \$(CAD)	Fair Value \$(CAD)
Virgin Media Finance PLC	1.00	20-Jun-23	1,500,000	(1,217)	(5,205)
Total				(1,217)	(5,205)

Forward Currency Contracts (Schedule 3)

As at December 31, 2022

					Unrealized Appreciation
		Settlement	Contract Cost	Forward Value	(Depreciation)
Bought (\$)	Sold (\$)	Date	\$(CAD)	\$(CAD)	\$(CAD)
5,154,149 Canadian Dollar	(3,800,000) US Dollar	9-Jan-23	(5,154,149)	(5,145,073)	9,076
Total					9,076

Ninepoint Alternative Credit Opportunities Fund Notes to financial statements – Fund specific information December 31, 2022

Financial Risk Management (note 6)

Investment Objective

The investment objective of the Fund is to provide investors with income and capital appreciation. The Fund seeks to achieve its investment objectives by primarily investing in a diverse mix of Canadian, U.S. and international fixed income securities for short-term and long-term gain.

The Schedule of Investment Portfolio presents the securities held by the Fund as at December 31, 2022. Significant risks that are relevant to the Fund are discussed here. General information on risks and risk management is described in *Note 6 Financial Risk Management* of the Generic Notes.

Market Risk

a) Other Price Risk

The Fund's most significant exposure to market price risk arises from its investments in equity, preferred equity and/or warrant securities. As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, if equity, preferred equity and/or warrant securities were to fluctuate by 10%, with all other variables held constant, Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units would increase or decrease by the amounts shown in the table below.

1	December 31, 2022	D	ecember 31, 2021
	As a % of Net Assets		As a % of Net Assets
	attributable to holders		attributable to holders
Impact	of redeemable units	Impact	of redeemable units
\$	%	\$	%
306	0.00	210,749	0.18

b) Currency Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's direct exposure to currency risk and potential impact to the Fund's Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units as a result of a 1% change in these currencies relative to the Canadian dollar, with all other variables held constant, are shown in the tables below.

December 31, 2022

				% of Net Assets	Impact on Net Assets
	For	ward Currency		attributable to holders	attributable to holders
Currency	Fair Value	Contracts	Net Exposure	of redeemable units	of redeemable units
	\$	\$	\$	%	\$
U.S. Dollar	5,071,275	(5,145,073)	(73,798)	(0.06)	(738)
Euro	(4,540)	_	(4,540)	(0.00)	(45)
Total	5,066,735	(5,145,073)	(78,338)	(0.06)	(783)

December 31, 2021

				% of Net Assets	Impact on Net Assets
		Forward Currency		attributable to holders	attributable to holders
Currency	Fair Value	Contracts	Net Exposure	of redeemable units	of redeemable units
	\$	\$	\$	%	\$
U.S. Dollar	4,985,317	(4,870,582)	114,735	0.10	1,147
Euro	13,873	_	13,873	0.01	139
Total	4,999,190	(4,870,582)	128,608	0.11	1,286

Ninepoint Alternative Credit Opportunities Fund Notes to financial statements — Fund specific information December 31, 2022

c) Interest Rate Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's exposure to interest rate risk categorized by the earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturity dates, and potential impact to the Fund's Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units had interest rates increased or decreased by 1%, with all other variables remaining constant, are shown in the table below. In practice, the actual results may differ from this sensitivity analysis and the difference could be material. The Fund's short-term assets and liabilities are not subject to a significant amount of risk due to fluctuations in the prevailing level of market interest rates.

	Total Exposure		
Term to Maturity	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021	
	\$	\$	
Less than 1 year	15,079,932	5,464,466	
1-5 years	8,411,352	18,003,406	
>5 years	93,761,220	75,685,926	
Total	117,252,504	99,153,798	
Impact on Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	2,814,060	2,677,153	
Impact on Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units (%)	2.37	2.28	

Credit Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund held debt instruments, which have a credit rating as rated primarily by Dominion Bond Rating Services, Standard & Poor's or Moody's. The Fund generally invests in fixed income securities issued or generated by the Canadian government or its agencies, other Canadian issuers, foreign governments or their agencies, other foreign issuers, and supranational organizations. The ratings of securities that subject the Fund to credit risk, as a percentage of Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, are shown in the table below.

Ratings	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	%	%
AAA	(106.41)	(99.40)
AA	1.25	1.24
A	72.68	46.23
BBB	110.35	107.14
BB	9.21	20.88
В	2.99	2.51
Not Rated	8.77	5.91
Total	98.84	84.51

As at December 31, 2022, 6.46% (December 31, 2021 – 6.03%) of the Fund's Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units were invested in private loans. The maximum credit risk of the private loans is limited to the carrying value of these investments and is moderated through various means. Prior to investing into a private loan, thorough due diligence is executed by the Manager. The Manager also maintains continuous monitoring of the credit quality of the borrower to assess and evaluate the credit risk of these private loans and private mortgage-backed securities.

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund was also exposed to credit risk from over-the-counter derivative contracts with counterparties. The credit risk is considered minimal as these counterparties have a minimum credit rating of A by Standard & Poor's or equivalent.

Ninepoint Alternative Credit Opportunities Fund Notes to financial statements – Fund specific information December 31, 2022

Concentration Risk

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's concentration risk as a percentage of Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units is shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	%	%
Bonds – Long:		
Investment Grade Bonds	139.74	145.37
High Yield Bonds	39.20	27.39
Government Bonds	0.35	0.36
Asset-Backed Securities	23.81	7.67
Loans	3.88	3.35
Mortgage-Backed Securities	2.58	2.68
Guaranteed linked notes	2.28	0.00
Short-term investments	0.84	_
Equities	0.03	_
Warrants	0.00	0.00
Preferred Equities	_	1.80
Bonds – Short:		
Government Bonds	(113.84)	(102.31)
Options purchased	0.00	_
Options written	(0.00)	(0.01)
Unrealized appreciation on forward currency contracts	0.01	0.04
Unrealized depreciation on swap contracts	_	0.00
Cash and other assets less liabilities	1.12	13.66
Total Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	100.00	100.00

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's investment portfolio is concentrated in the geographic segments as shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	%	%
Canada	68.73	63.94
United States	14.01	12.71
United Kingdom	5.28	4.53
Australia	7.50	4.28
France	1.77	0.85
Luxembourg	1.58	_
Options purchased	0.00	_
Options written	(0.00)	(0.01)
Unrealized appreciation on forward currency contracts	0.01	0.04
Unrealized depreciation on swap contracts	_	0.00
Cash and other assets less liabilities	1.12	13.66
Total Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	100.00	100.00

Ninepoint Alternative Credit Opportunities Fund Notes to financial statements – Fund specific information December 31, 2022

Fair Value Measurements (note 5)

Options Written

Total

Forward Currency Contracts

Credit Default Swap Contracts

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund's financial assets and liabilities, which are measured at fair value, have been categorized based upon the fair value hierarchy as shown in the tables below.

December 31, 2022	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
	\$	\$	\$	\$
Bonds – Long	_	212,679,489	_	212,679,489
Bonds – Short	_	(135,039,918)	_	(135,039,918)
Loans	_	_	4,606,013	4,606,013
Short-term investments	_	998,440	_	998,440
Asset-Backed Securities	_	28,239,428	_	28,239,428
Mortgage-Backed Securities	_	_	3,060,240	3,060,240
Guaranteed linked notes	_	_	2,708,812	2,708,812
Equities	34,002	_	_	34,002
Warrants	_	_	_	_
Options Purchased	2,031	_	_	2,031
Options Written	(1,016)	_	_	(1,016)
Forward Currency Contracts	_	9,076	_	9,076
Swap Contracts	_	(5,205)	_	(5,205)
Total	35,017	106,881,310	10,375,065	117,291,392
December 31, 2021	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
	\$	\$	\$	\$
Preferred Equities	2,107,494	_	_	2,107,494
Bonds – Long	_	203,114,997	_	203,114,997
Bonds – Short	_	(120,040,684)	_	(120,040,684)
Loans	_	_	3,930,000	3,930,000
Asset-Backed Securities	_	9,002,647	_	9,002,647
Mortgage-Backed Securities	_	_	3,146,838	3,146,838

During the year ended December 31, 2022 and the period from May 11, 2021 to December 31, 2021, there were no significant transfers between levels.

(10.271)

2,097,223

41,929

4,084

7,076,838

92,122,973

(10,271)

101,297,034

41,929

4,084

For the year ended December 31, 2022 and the period from May 11, 2021 to December 31, 2021, the reconciliation of investments measured at fair value using unobservable inputs (Level 3) are shown in the table below.

		Decen	nber 31, 20)22		Dec	ember 31, 2	2021
	Mortgage				Mortgage			
	-backed			Guaranteed	-backed			Guaranteed
	securities	Warrants	Loans	link notes	securities	Warrants	Loans	link notes
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
Balance, beginning of period	3,146,838	_	3,930,000	_	_	_	_	_
Purchases	_	_	638,850	2,753,400	3,152,000	_	4,000,000	_
Transfer in/out	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_
Sales and paydowns	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_
Realized gains (losses)	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) in the	(0.6.500)							_
value of investments	(86,598)	_	37,163	(44,588)	(5,162)	_	(70,000)	
Balance, end of period	3,060,240	_	4,606,013	2,708,812	3,146,838	_	3,930,000	_
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) during								
the period for investments held at end of period	(86,598)	_	(49,453)	(44,588)	_	_	(75,162)	_

Ninepoint Alternative Credit Opportunities Fund Notes to financial statements — Fund specific information December 31, 2022

The Fund's Level 3 securities consist of private loan, private guaranteed linked notes and/or private warrant positions. The Manager determines the fair value by utilizing a variety of valuation techniques such as the use of comparable recent transactions, discounted cash flows and other techniques used by market participants. As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, these positions were significant to the Fund and the significant unobservable input used in these valuation techniques can vary considerably over time depending on company specific factors and economic or market conditions. The potential impacts of applying reasonable possible alternative assumptions for valuing material Level 3 financial assets or liabilities are shown in the tables below.

December 31, 2022

Description	Fair Value	Valuation Technique	Unobservable Inputs	Weighted average input	Reasonable possible shift +/- (absolute value)	Change in Valuation +/-
Guaranteed Linked Notes	2,708,812	Discounted cash flows	Cost of capital	0.28%	1%	(32,506) / 32,506
Mortgage-Backed Securities	3,060,240	Discounted cash flows	Cost of capital	7.57%	1%	(22,139) / 22,139
Loans	4,606,013	Discounted cash flows	Cost of capital	12.40%	1%	(13,105) / 12,703
December 31, 2021					Increase	Decrease
Impact on Net assets attributab	ole to holders of re	edeemable units			0.11%	(0.11%)

Management Fees (note 11)

Management fees differ among the series of units of the Fund as shown in the table below.

Series	Management Fees (Up to)
Series A	1.40%
Series D	0.90%
Series F	0.90%
Series I*	Negotiated by the Shareholder
Series QF	0.80%
ETF Series	0.90%

^{*} The management fee for Series I shares of the Fund is negotiated by the investor and paid directly by the investor or by the Fund and would not exceed management fee for Series A units of the Fund.

Tax Loss Carryforwards (note 3)

For the taxation year ended December 15, 2022, the Fund had capital and non-capital losses available for tax purposes as shown in the table below.

Capital losses	Non-capital losses	Non-capital losses year of expiry
\$	\$	
4,483,939	_	_

Restricted Cash and Investments (note 10)

As at December, 2022, restricted cash and investments held for the Fund were \$135,306,366 (December 31, 2021–\$121,760,816).

Ninepoint Alternative Credit Opportunities Fund Notes to financial statements — Fund specific information December 31, 2022

Related Party Holdings

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, Ninepoint Financial Group Inc., the parent company of the Manager, and its respective subsidiaries, held the following investments as shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
Units held		
Series F	_	15,338
Value of units held (\$)	_	151,891

Related Party Syndicated Loans

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Fund holds loans which were syndicated by an investment fund, for which Ninepoint Partners LP is also the Manager, as shown in the table below.

Loan	December 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
	\$	\$
Location d-Autos All-Star Inc.	1,500,000	1,500,000
Quality Rugs of Canada	1,500,000	1,500,000
R.G.T. Clothier Construction Limited	1,000,000	1,000,000

Leverage and Short-Selling Risk

In 2022, the Fund exercised leverage through participating in short-selling transactions, which expose the Fund to short-selling risk. During the year ended December 31, 2022, the lowest aggregated fair value amount of the short-selling leverage exercised by the Fund was \$135,039,918 (113.8% of NAV) and the highest aggregated fair value amount of the short-selling leverage used during the year was \$213,630,927 (180.1% of NAV).

Statement of Financial Position

(in US Dollars)

As at December 31, 2022	2022
	\$
Assets	
Current assets	
Investments (note 3, 5, 10)	7,992,572
Cash (note 10)	678,423
Broker margin (note 10)	168,247
Subscriptions receivable	69,752
Total assets	8,908,994
Liabilities	
Current liabilities	
Unrealized depreciation on futures contracts (note 3, 5)	168,389
Accrued expenses	41,533
Total liabilities	209,922
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	8,699,072
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per series	
Series A	222,498
Series D	105,250
Series F	4,475,522
Series S	33,519
Series SF	2,860,131
ETF Series	1,002,152
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per series per unit (note 3)	
Series A	9.02
Series D	9.11
Series F	9.11
Series S	9.04
Series SF	9.13

See accompanying notes which are an integral part of these financial statements

On behalf of the Manager, Ninepoint Partners LP, by its General Partner, Ninepoint Partners GP Inc.

John Wilson

DIRECTOR

James Fox DIRECTOR

Statement of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

(in US Dollars)

For the period from February 16, 2022 to December 31, 2022	2022
	\$
Income	
Interest income for distribution purposes (note 3)	98,983
Net realized gains (losses) on sales of short-term investments	(456)
Net realized gains (losses) on future contracts	(512,290)
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) in the value of short-term investments	3,228
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on future contracts	(168,389)
Net realized gains (losses) on foreign exchange	(25,826)
Total income (loss)	(604,750)
Expenses (note 11, 12)	
Management fees	56,522
Administrative fees	30,552
Unitholder reporting fees	29,020
Audit fees	14,273
Filing fees	9,586
Transaction costs (note 3, 13)	7,357
Legal fees	5,845
Interest expense and bank charges	4,147
Independent Review Committee fees (note 14)	2,346
Custodial fees	1,699
Total expenses	161,347
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redcemable units from operations	(766,097)
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series	
Series A	(18,405)
Series D	(1,330)
Series F	(309,259)
Series S	(2,434)
Series SF	(245,048)
ETF Series	(189,621)
Weighted average number of redeemable units	
Series A	17,657
Series D	11,056
Series F	332,901
Series S	4,439
Series SF	316,337
ETF Series	99,527
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3)	
Series A	(1.04)
Series D	(0.12)
Series F	(0.93)
Series S	(0.55)
Series SF	(0.77)
ETF Series	(1.91)

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units

(in US Dollars)

For the period from February 16, 2022 to December 31, 2022	2022
	\$
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, beginning of period	
Series A	-
Series D	-
Series F	-
Series S	-
Series SF	-
ETF Series	<u> </u>
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations	
Series A	(18,405)
Series D	(1,330)
Series F	(309,259)
Series S	(2,434)
Series SF	(245,048)
ETF Series	(189,621)
	(766,097)
Redeemable unit transactions (note 8) Proceeds from redeemable units issued	
Series A	245,318
Series D	106,580
Series F	4,880,980
Series S	49,960
Series SF	3,254,119
Strike Siries	3,444,603
Redemption of redeemable units	5,,555
Series A	(4,415)
Series D	-
Series F	(96,199)
Series S	(14,007)
Series SF	(148,940)
ETF Scries	(2,252,830)
	9,465,169
Net increase (decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	
Series A	222,498
Series D	105,250
Series F	4,475,522
Series S	33,519
Series SF	2,860,131
ETF Series	1,002,152 8,699,072
	0,099,072
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, end of period	
Series A	222,498
Series D	105,250
Series F	4,475,522
Series S	33,519
Series SF	2,860,131
ETF Series	1,002,152
	8,699,072

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units continued

For the period from February 16, 2022 to December 31, 2022	2022
Holle Australia of code d	
Units, beginning of period Series A	
Series D	•
	•
Series F	•
Series S	-
Series SF	-
ETF Series	-
	<u>-</u>
Redeemable unit transactions (note 8)	
Redeemable units issued	
Series A	25,152
Series D	11,552
Series F	501,779
Series S	5,012
Series SF	328,001
ETF Series	175,000
Redemption of redeemable units	
Series A	(493)
Series D	-
Series F	(10,724)
Series S	(1,305)
Series SF	(14,687)
ETF Series	(120,000)
	899,287
Units, end of period	24.650
Series A	24,659
Series D	11,552
Series F	491,055
Series S	3,707
Series SF	313,314
ETF Series	55,000
	899,287

Statement of Cash Flows

(in US Dollars)

For the period from February 16, 2022 to December 31, 2022	2022
	8
Cash flows from operating activities	
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations	(766,097)
Adjustments for:	
Foreign exchange (gains) losses on cash	(5,724)
Net realized (gains) losses on sales of short-term investments	456
Net realized (gains) losses on future contracts	512,290
Change in unrealized (appreciation) depreciation in the value of short-term investments	(3,228)
Change in unrealized (appreciation) depreciation on future contracts	168,389
Purchases of investments	(39,351,628)
Proceeds from sale of investments	30,849,538
Futures margin paid	(168,247)
Net increase (decrease) in other assets and liabilities	41,533
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities	(8,722,718)
Cash flows from financing activities	
Proceeds from redeemable units issued	11,911,808
Redemption of redeemable units	(2,516,391)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities	9,395,417
Foreign exchange gains (losses) on cash	5,724
Net increase (decrease) in cash	672,699
Cash (Bank indebtedness), beginning of period	<u>-</u>
Cash (Bank indebtedness), end of period	678,423
Supplemental Information*	
Interest received	98,983
Interest paid	4,147

^{*}Information provided relates to the operating activities of the Fund

Schedule of Investment Portfolio

(in U.S. Dollars)

As at December 31, 2022		Maturity Date	Average Cost	Fair Value
			S	\$
PAR VALUE*	SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS [91.88%]			
3,000,000	U.S. Treasury Bill, 4.040%	Jan 26, 2023	2,991,427	2,992,572
5,000,000	U.S. Treasury Bill, 5.100%	Jan 3, 2023	4,997,917	5,000,000
Total short-term investm	nents [91.88%]		7,989,344	7,992,572
Commodity Futures [-1.94	4%] (Schedule 1)			(168,389)
Cash and other assets less	liabilities [10.06%]			874,889
Total Net Assets attribut	table to holders of redeemable units [100.00%]			8,699,072

^{*} All par values are in U.S. Dollars unless otherwise noted

Futures Contracts (Schedule 1)

As at December 31, 2022

Commodity Futures Contracts	Number of	Expiration	Notional Average Cost	Fair Value	Unrealized Appreciaion (Depreciaion)
Commodity Bought	Contracts	Date	\$(CAD)	\$(CAD)	\$(CAD)
UK Emissions Allowances Energy	25	Dec 18, 2023	2,456,768	2,213,901	(242,867)
European Union Allowance (EUA)	24	Dec 18, 2023	1,956,414	2,157,248	200,834
California Carbon Allowance Vintage	72	Dec 22, 2023	2,294,766	2,185,200	(109,566)
Regional Greenhouse Gas Initiative Vintage	156	Dec 22, 2023	2,239,790	2,223,000	(16,790)
Total			8,947,738	8,779,349	(168,389)

Ninepoint Carbon Credit ETF Notes to financial statements — Fund specific information December 31, 2022

(in U.S. Dollars)

Financial Risk Management (note 6)

Investment Objective

The objective of the Fund is to provide unitholders with long-term capital appreciation by investing primarily in global carbon emissions allowance futures.

The Schedule of Investment Portfolio presents the holdings of the Fund as at December 31, 2022. Significant risks that are relevant to the Fund are discussed here. General information on risks and risk management is described in *Note 6 Financial Risk Management* of the Generic Notes.

Market Risk

a) Other Price Risk

As at December 31, 2022, the Fund did not have a significant exposure to other price risk.

b) Currency Risk

As at December 31, 2022, the Fund's direct exposure to currency risk and potential impact to the Fund's Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units as a result of a 1% change in these currencies relative to the Canadian dollar, with all other variables held constant, are shown in the table below.

December 31, 2022

		% of Net Assets attributable to holders	Impact on Net Assets attributable to holders
Currency	Fair Value	of redeemable units	of redeemable units
-	\$	0/0	\$
U.S. Dollar	8,563,374	98.44	85,634
Euro	463	0.01	5
Total	8,563,837	98.45	85,639

c) Interest Rate Risk

As at December 31, 2022, the Fund did have exposure to interest rate risk from its short-term investments. Assuming the same debt levels as December 31, 2022, a 0.5% change in interest rates would result in an increase or decrease of approximately \$39,963 to Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units on an annual basis.

Credit Risk

As at December 31, 2022, the Fund held debt instruments, which have a credit rating as rated primarily by Dominion Bond Rating Services, Standard & Poor's or Moody's. The Fund generally invests in fixed income securities issued or generated by the Canadian government or its agencies, other Canadian issuers, foreign governments or their agencies, other foreign issuers, and supranational organizations. The ratings of securities that subject the Fund to credit risk, as a percentage of Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, are shown in the table below.

Ratings	December 31, 2022
	%
AA	91.88
Total	91.88

As at December 31, 2022, the Fund was also exposed to credit risk from over-the-counter derivative contracts with counterparties. The credit risk is considered minimal as these counterparties have a minimum credit rating of A by Standard & Poor's or equivalent.

Ninepoint Carbon Credit ETF Notes to financial statements — Fund specific information December 31, 2022

(in U.S. Dollars)

Concentration Risk

As at December 31, 2022, the Fund's concentration risk as a percentage of Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units is shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022
	%
Short-term investments	91.88
Unrealized depreciation on commodity futures contracts	(1.94)
Cash and other assets less liabilities	10.06
Total Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	100.00

Fair Value Measurements (note 5)

As at December 31, 2022, the Fund's financial assets and liabilities, which are measured at fair value, have been categorized based upon the fair value hierarchy as shown in the table below.

December 31, 2022	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
	\$	\$	S	\$
Short-term investments	_	7,992,572	_	7,992,572
Unrealized depreciation on commodity futures contracts	_	(168,389)	_	(168,389)
Total	_	7,824,183	_	7,824,183

During the period from February 16, 2022 to December 31, 2022, there were no significant transfers between levels.

Management Fees (note 11)

Management fees differ among the series of units of the Fund as shown in the table below.

Series	Management Fees (Up to)
Series A	1.75%
Series D	0.75%
Series F	0.75%
Series I*	Negotiated by the Unitholder
Series QF	0.65%
Series S	1.55%
Series SF	0.55%
ETF Series	0.75%

^{*} The management fee for Series I units of the Fund is negotiated by the unitholder and may be paid directly by the Fund or by the unitholder.

Tax Loss Carryforwards (note 3)

As of the taxation year ended December 15, 2022, the Fund had capital and non-capital losses available for tax purposes as shown in the table below.

Capital losses	Non-capital losses	Non-capital losses year of expiry
\$	S	
_	598,087	2042

Restricted Cash and Investments (note 10)

As at December 31, 2022, restricted cash and investments held for the Fund were \$2,152,686.

Ninepoint Carbon Credit ETF Notes to financial statements — Fund specific information December 31, 2022

(in U.S. Dollars)

Related Party Holdings

As at December 31, 2022, Ninepoint Financial Group Inc., the parent company of the Manager, and its respective subsidiaries, held the following investments as shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022
Units held	
Series A	3,000
Series D	3,000
Series S	3,000
ETF Series	500
Value of units held (\$)	93,700

See accompanying generic notes which are an integral part of these financial statements

Statement of Financial Position

As at December 31	2022
	S
Assets	
Current assets	
Investments (note 3, 5, 10)	295,104,114
Cash (note 10)	5,832,830
Unrealized appreciation on forward currency contracts (note 3, 5)	290,434
Subscriptions receivable	628,986
Total assets	301,856,364
Liabilities	
Current liabilities	
Options written (note 3, 5)	1,376,007
Distribution payable to unitholders	704,871
Redemptions payable	1,837
Performance fees payable (note 11)	2,322,927
Accrued expenses	89,811
Total liabilities	4,495,453
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	297,360,911
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per series	
Series A	36,869,337
Series D	300,486
Series F	111,337,709
Series S	3,095,902
Series SF	21,657,125
ETF Series	124,100,352
Not have attributed to be later of subscribed and the subscribed are subscribed at 12	
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per series per unit (note 3) Series A	10.23
Series D	10.25
Series F	10.36
Series S	10.25
Series S Series SF	10.28
ETF Series	20.65
ETF Series	20.05

See accompanying notes which are an integral part of these financial statements

On behalf of the Manager, Ninepoint Partners LP, by its General Partner, Ninepoint Partners GP Inc.

John Wilson

James Fox DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

Statement of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

For the period from March 7, 2022 to December 31, 2022	2022
Income	•
Dividends (note 3)	12,192,604
Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investments	2,913,387
Net realized gains (losses) on option contracts	14,423,628
Net realized gains (losses) on forward currency contracts	(12,102,448)
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) in the value of investments	(1,010,569)
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on option contracts	303,709
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on forward currency contracts	290,434
Net realized gains (losses) on foreign exchange	(100,602)
Securities lending income	78
Total income (loss)	16,910,221
E(
Expenses (note 11, 12) Management fees	2,656,885
·	2,505,595
Performance fees Withholding taxes	1,439,357
Transaction costs (note 3, 13)	968,193
Administrative fees Unitholder reporting fees	130,336 82,496
	14,275
Legal fees Audit fees	13,987
Custodial fees	7,815
Filing fees	2,938
Interest expense and bank charges	2,357
Independent Review Committee fees (note 14)	2,299
Total expenses	7,826,533
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations	9,083,688
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series	
Series A	598,214
Series D	13,573
Series F	(1,864,930)
Series S	272,182
Series SF	2,090,460
ETF Series	7,974,189
Weighted average number of redeemable units	
Series A	2,100,624
Series D	24,445
Series F	5,033,672
Series S	313,473
Series SF	2,239,616
ETF Series	4,444,614
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3)	
Series A	0.28
Series D	0.28
Series F	(0.37)
Series S	0.87
Series SF	0.93
ETF Series	1.79
and the second s	1.79

See accompanying notes which are an integral part of these financial statements

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units

For the period from March 7, 2022 to December 31, 2022	2022
Not heave attailutable to heldow of undermoble units heginning of united	,
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, beginning of period Series A	
Series D	
Series F	_
Series S	_
Series SF	-
ETF Series	-
	-
Lawrence (Downson) in New Acade (deflectable to helder of male could be seen as of many	
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations Series A	598,214
Series D	13,573
Series F	(1,864,930)
Series S	272,182
Series SF	2,090,460
ETF Series	7,974,189
	9,083,688
Distributions to holders of redeemable units	
From net investment income Series A	(733,844)
Series D	(9,218)
Series F	(1,688,471)
Series S	(137,548)
Series SF	(989,372)
ETF Series	(3,391,052)
From net capital gains on investments	()))
Series A	(441,053)
Series D	(3,381)
Series F	(1,333,792)
Series S	(37,841)
Series SF	(270,835)
ETF Series	(1,697,086)
From return of capital	
Series A	(1,713)
Series D	(408)
Series F	-
Series S	-
Series SF	and a
ETF Series	(586) (10,736,200)
	(10,700,200)
Redeemable unit transactions (note 8)	
Proceeds from redeemable units issued	40 415 605
Series A	40,417,607
Series D Series F	418,611 136,843,669
Series S	3,184,350
Series SF	23,065,415
ETF Series	132,933,037
Reinvestments of distributions to holders of redeemable units	102,750,007
Series A	122,255
Series D	795
Series F	117,323
Series S	6,378
Series SF	19,065
ETF Series	318,420
Redemption of redeemable units	
Series A	(3,092,129)
Series D	(119,486)
Series F	(20,736,090)
Series S	(191,619)
Series SF	(2,257,608)
ETF Series	(12,036,570)
	299,013,423

See accompanying notes which are an integral part of these financial statements

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units continued

For the period from March 7, 2022 to December 31, 2022	2022
	S
Net increase (decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	
Series A	36,869,337
Series D	300,486
Series F	111,337,709
Series S	3,095,902
Series SF	21,657,125
ETF Series	124,100,352
	297,360,911
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, end of period	
Series A	36,869,337
Series D	300,486
Series F	111,337,709
Series S	3,095,902
Series SF	21,657,125
ETF Series	124,100,352
	297,360,911

See accompanying notes which are an integral part of these financial statement

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units continued

For the period from March 7, 2022 to December 31, 2022	2022
Units, beginning of period	
Series A Series D	-
Series F	
Series S	-
Series SF	-
ETF Series	
ETF Series	
Redeemable unit transactions (note 8)	
Redeemable units issued	
Series A	3,897,400
Series D	40,636
Series F	12,978,464
Series S	318,456
Series SF	2,306,580
ETF Series	6,585,000
Reinvestments of distributions to holders of redeemable units	
Series A	11,768
Series D	81
Series F	11,298
Series S	619
Series SF	1,841
ETF Series	-
Redemption of redeemable units	
Series A	(303,571)
Series D	(11,715)
Series F	(2,130,572)
Series S	(17,908)
Series SF	(214,005)
ETF Series	(575,000)
	22,899,372
Units, end of period	
Series A	3,605,597
Series D	29,002
Series F	10,859,190
Series S	301,167
Series SF	2,094,416
ETF Series	6,010,000
	22,899,372

See accompanying notes which are an integral part of these financial statements

Statement of Cash Flows

For the period from March 7, 2022 to December 31, 2022	2022
	\$
Cash flows from operating activities	
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations	9,083,688
Adjustments for:	
Foreign exchange (gains) losses on cash	38,770
Net realized (gains) losses on sales of investments	(2,913,387)
Net realized (gains) losses on option contracts	(14,423,628)
Change in unrealized (appreciation) depreciation in the value of investments	1,010,569
Change in unrealized (appreciation) depreciation on option contracts	(303,709)
Change in unrealized (appreciation) depreciation on forward currency contracts	(290,434)
Purchases of investments	(421,499,781)
Proceeds from sale of investments	144,401,828
Net increase (decrease) in other assets and liabilities	2,412,738
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities	(282,483,346)
Cash flows from financing activities	
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable units, net of reinvested distributions	(9,447,093)
Proceeds from redeemable units issued	335,590,079
Redemption of redeemable units	(37,788,040)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities	288,354,946
Foreign exchange gains (losses) on cash	(38,770)
Net increase (decrease) in cash	5,871,600
Cash (Bank indebtedness), beginning of period	<u> </u>
Cash (Bank indebtedness), end of period	5,832,830
Supplemental Information*	
Interest paid	2,357
Dividends received, net of withholding taxes	10,753,247

^{*}Information provided relates to the operating activities of the Fund

 $See\ accompanying\ notes\ which\ are\ an\ integral\ part\ of\ these\ financial\ statements$

Schedule of Investment Portfolio

As at December 31, 2022		Average Cost	Fair Value
		\$	
SHARES	EQUITIES [99.24%]		
	ENERGY [99.24%]		
1,150,000	Cenovus Energy Inc.	28,147,830	30,210,500
185,000	Chesapeake Energy Corporation	22,425,071	23,638,741
95,000	Chord Energy Corporation	15,449,393	17,597,870
870,000	Coterra Energy Inc.	32,416,170	28,942,969
350,000	Devon Energy Corporation	28,797,796	29,149,589
160,000	Diamondback Energy Inc.	31,342,671	29,632,019
155,000	EOG Resources Inc.	27,721,920	27,182,362
1,000,000	MEG Energy Corporation	17,256,037	18,850,000
170,000	Ovintiv Inc.	11,826,339	11,672,428
95,000	Pioneer Natural Resources Company	30,557,477	29,377,806
400,000	Tourmaline Oil Corporation	30,496,095	27,328,000
500,000	Viper Energy Partners L.P.	19,979,675	21,521,830
Total equities		296,416,474	295,104,114
Transaction costs (note 3)		(301,789)	
Total investments [99.246		296,114,685	295,104,114
Options written [-0.46%] (, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,		(1,376,007)
- 11	on on forward currency contracts [0.10%] (Schedule 2)		290,434
Cash and other assets less l	iabilities [1.12%]		3,342,370
Total Net Assets attributa	able to holders of redeemable units [100.00%]		297,360,911

 $See\ accompanying\ notes\ which\ are\ an\ integral\ part\ of\ these\ financial\ statements$

Option Contracts (Schedule 1)

As at December 31, 2022

Options Written						
		Number of	Expiration	Strike	Premium Received	Fair Value
Option Details	Option Type	Contracts	Date	Price (\$)	\$(CAD)	\$(CAD)
Pioneer Natural Resources	Call	(500)	20-Jan-23	250.00 USD	(64,783)	(77,855)
Diamondback Energy Inc.	Call	(1,200)	20-Jan-23	155.00 USD	(105,618)	(69,054)
Chord Energy Corporation	Call	(300)	20-Jan-23	155.00 USD	(35,028)	(74,132)
Diamondback Energy Inc.	Call	(200)	20-Jan-23	150.00 USD	(27,175)	(23,695)
Chord Energy Corporation	Call	(350)	20-Jan-23	150.00 USD	(78,145)	(81,748)
EOG Resources Inc.	Call	(1,350)	20-Jan-23	144.20 USD	(115,071)	(91,395)
EOG Resources Inc.	Call	(200)	20-Jan-23	142.00 USD	(19,391)	(19,633)
Chesapeake Energy Corporation	Call	(1,800)	20-Jan-23	110.00 USD	(199,767)	(54,837)
Tourmaline Oil Corporation	Call	(3,700)	20-Jan-23	80.00 CAD	(265,800)	(66,600)
Devon Energy Corporation	Call	(2,000)	20-Jan-23	70.00 USD	(115,165)	(66,346)
Ovintiv Inc.	Call	(1,611)	20-Jan-23	60.00 USD	(82,453)	(54,532)
Viper Energy Partners L.P.	Call	(3,000)	20-Jan-23	35.00 USD	(72,135)	(81,240)
Viper Energy Partners L.P.	Call	(2,000)	20-Jan-23	34.00 USD	(69,303)	(108,320)
Cenovus Energy Inc.	Call	(7,000)	20-Jan-23	29.00 CAD	(101,500)	(108,500)
Cenovus Energy Inc.	Call	(1,500)	20-Jan-23	28.00 CAD	(33,000)	(48,750)
Coterra Energy Inc.	Call	(3,000)	20-Jan-23	27.50 USD	(71,614)	(40,620)
MEG Energy Corporation	Call	(9,500)	20-Jan-23	20.00 CAD	(191,000)	(308,750)
Total	<u> </u>				(1,646,948)	(1,376,007)

Forward Currency Contracts (Schedule 2)

As at December 31, 2022

						Unrealized
			Settlement	Contract Cost	Forward Value	Appreciation (Depreciation)
	Bought (\$)	Sold (\$)	Date	\$(CAD)	\$(CAD)	\$(CAD)
	216,224,580 Canadian Dollar	(159,500,000) US Dollar	31-Jan-23	(216,224,580)	(215,934,146)	290,434
Total						290,434

See accompanying notes which are an integral part of these financial statements

Ninepoint Energy Income Fund Notes to financial statements – Fund specific information

December 31, 2022

Financial Risk Management (note 6)

Investment Objective

The investment objective of the Fund is to provide unitholders with income and capital appreciation by investing in dividend paying energy companies.

The Schedule of Investment Portfolio presents the securities held by the Fund as at December 31, 2022. Significant risks that are relevant to the Fund are discussed here. General information on risks and risk management is described in *Note 6 Financial Risk Management* of the Generic Notes.

Market Risk

a) Other Price Risk

The Fund's most significant exposure to market price risk arises from its investments in equity securities. As at December 31, 2022, if the equity securities were to fluctuate by 10%, with all other variables held constant, Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units would increase or decrease by the amounts shown in the table below.

December 31, 2022

	1,
	As a % of Net Assets
	attributable to holders
Impact	of redeemable units
\$	%
29,510,411	9.92

b) Currency Risk

As at December 31, 2022, the Fund's direct exposure to currency risk and potential impact to the Fund's Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units as a result of a 1% change in these currencies relative to the Canadian dollar, with all other variables held constant, are shown in the table below.

December 31, 2022

		Forward Currency		% of Net Assets attributable to holders	Impact on Net Assets attributable to holders
Currency	Fair Value	Contracts	Net Exposure	of redeemable units	of redeemable units
	\$	\$	S	%	\$
U.S. Dollar	217,872,208	(215,934,146)	1,938,062	0.65	19,381

c) Interest Risk

As at December 31, 2022, the Fund did not have a significant exposure to interest rate risk.

Credit Risk

As at December 31, 2022, the Fund was exposed to credit risk from over-the-counter derivative contracts with counterparties. The credit risk is considered minimal as these counterparties have a minimum credit rating of A by Standard & Poor's or equivalent.

Ninepoint Energy Income Fund Notes to financial statements – Fund specific information

December 31, 2022

Concentration Risk

As at December 31, 2022, the Fund's concentration risk as a percentage of Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units is shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022
	%
Equities	
Energy	99.24
Options Written	(0.46)
Unrealized appreciation on forward currency contracts	0.10
Cash and other assets less liabilities	1.12
Total Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	100.00

Fair Value Measurements (note 5)

As at December 31, 2022, the Fund's financial assets and liabilities, which are measured at fair value, have been categorized based upon the fair value hierarchy as shown in the table below.

December 31, 2022	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
	\$	\$	\$	\$
Equities	295,104,114	_	_	295,104,114
Options Written	(1,376,007)	_	_	(1,376,007)
Unrealized appreciation on forward currency contracts	_	290,434	_	290,434
Total	293,728,107	290,434	_	294,018,541

During the period from March 7, 2022 to December 31, 2022, there were no significant transfers between levels.

Management Fees (note 11)

Management fees differ among the series of units of the Fund as shown in the table below.

Series	Management Fees (Up to)
Series A	2.50%
Series D	1.50%
Series F	1.50%
Series I*	Negotiated by the Unitholder
Series S	1.75%
Series SF	0.75%
ETF Series	1.50%

^{*}The management fee for Series I of the Fund is negotiated by the unitholder and may be paid directly by the Fund or by the unitholder.

Tax Loss Carryforwards (note 3)

For the taxation year ended December 15, 2022, the Fund had no capital and non-capital losses available for tax purposes.

Restricted Cash and Investments (note 10)

As at December 31, 2022, restricted cash and investments held for the Fund were \$228,348,701.

Ninepoint Energy Income Fund Notes to financial statements – Fund specific information

December 31, 2022

Related Party Broker Commissions

During the period ended December 31, 2022, brokerage commissions paid by the Fund to Sightline Wealth Management ("Sightline"), a related party of Ninepoint Financial Group Inc., the parent company of the Manager, for brokerage services provided to the Fund is shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022
	\$
Broker commissions to Sightline	28,436

Securities Lending (note 3)

As at December 31, 2022 the market values of securities loaned and related collateral amounts are shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022
	\$
Securities loaned	641,654
Collateral	675,051
Collateral as a percentage of securities loaned (%)	105

During the period ended December 31, 2022 securities lending income and charges are shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022
	\$
Gross securities lending income	130
Securities lending charges	(52)
Net securities lending income	78
Withholding taxes on securities lending income	_
Net securities lending income received by the Fund	78
Net securities lending income as a percentage of gross securities lending income (%)	60

Sharing Arrangements (note 13)

During the period ended December 31, 2022, total transaction costs incurred to certain brokers for research provided to the portfolio manager is shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022
	\$
Soft dollar broker commissions	375

See accompanying generic notes which are an integral part of these financial statements

Statement of Financial Position

As at December 31, 2022	2022
	8
Assets	
Current assets	
Investments (note 3, 5, 10)	32,740,166
Cash (note 10)	423,272
Unrealized appreciation on swap contracts (note 3, 5)	8,383
Due from broker	690
Subscriptions receivable	12,001
Interest receivable	131,145
Total assets	33,315,657
Liabilities	
Current liabilities	
Distribution payable to unitholders	16,000
Due to broker	256
Redemptions payable	1,640
Accrued expenses	28,098
Total liabilities	45,994
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	33,269,663
No Acade at the Ac	
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per series Series A	704,514
Series F	11,382,915
Series S	1,313,017
Series SF	1,515,017
ETF Series	3,202,170
ETF Jenes	3,202,170
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per series per unit (note 3)	
Series A	9.89
Series F	9.94
Series S	9.97
Series SF	10.03
ETF Series	20.01

 $See\ accompanying\ notes\ which\ are\ an\ integral\ part\ of\ these\ financial\ statements$

On behalf of the Manager, Ninepoint Partners LP, by its General Partner, Ninepoint Partners GP Inc.

John Wilson

DIRECTOR

James Fox DIRECTOR

Statement of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Isoma Image: Increase income for distribution purpose forest: Income forest:	For the period from June 29, 2022 to December 31, 2022	2022
Internation find distribution purposes (100 d.) 378.35 Ke reader gians (loose) on subse of investments 46.56 Chang is ameralized appreciation (perceitation) in the value of investments 9.08 Change is ameralized appreciation (perceitation) in the value of investments 9.08 And reader gians (loose) on require certains 9.08 Cate along (loose) on require certains 9.08 Cate along (loose) on require certains 9.08 Cate along (loose) on require certains 14.72 Management fees 9.08 Cate (loose) 14.72 Marcia See 14.72 Loose (loose) 14.72 Loose (loose) 14.02 Stric		
Net realized gains (loses) on selsor (investments) 16,65 Cheage in surcollicod approciation (depreciation) into value of investments 9,80 Albage in surcollicod approciation (depreciation) in the value of investments 2,94 Albage in surcollicod approciation (depreciation) in the value of investments 2,00 Act realized gains (loses) on foreigne scelange 2,00 Total focus (lose) 2,00 Total focus (lose) 6,03 Value (lose) 6,03 Uniform (lose) 1,02 Value (lose) 1,02 Admit (lose) 1,04 Value (lose) 3,04 Value (lose) 4,07 Value (lose)		
Not realized gains (bases) on swap contracts 46.34 cm Change in ameralized appreciation (depreciation) in the value of investments 9.84 cm Note ratio (dispreciation) on swap contracts 20.85 cm Not realized gains (bases) on foring exchange 20.85 cm Total income Caperalized (hiperciation) on swap contracts 80.85 cm Final production (subsect) 60.80 cm Repairs (since 11, 12) 40.80 cm Management fies 60.80 cm Audit fee 14.70 cm Audit fees 14.70 cm Legal fee 5.84 cm Legal fees 5.84 cm Ling fees 5.84 cm Ling fees 6.95 cm Ling fees 5.84 cm Ling fees 2.94 cm Inference (some 14) 2.94 cm Inference (some 14) 5.94 cm Inference (some 14) 5.94 cm Inference (some 14) 5.94 cm Inference (some 14) 6.94 cm	Interest income for distribution purposes (note 3)	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Cauge in uraniford appreciation (depreciation) in the value of favestments 9,88 Change in uraniford appreciation (depreciation) wany contracts 3,87 Act realized given (bosses) on foreign exchange 1,00 Expenses (inter II, 12) 5 Expenses (inter II, 12) 6 Management 6s 60,88 Unit bodier reporting fees 14,27 Admit fees 11,427 Cape file 2,44 Cape file 3,44 Cape file 2,44 Cape file 4,47 Cape file 4,47 Cape file 4,47 Cape file 3,31 Cape file 4,47 Series F 4,47 Series F 4,47 Series F 4,47 Series F 4,47	Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investments	10,659
Change in urrealized appreciation (depreciation) on wap contracts 2,087 Internating (losses) on foringine exchange 36,352 Experse, finite II, 12) ————————————————————————————————————		463,542
Net realized gains (losses) on foreign exchanges 20.067. Total income (loss) 86.522. Expenses (note 11, 12) Amounted field Management fies 60.382. Units deer reporting fees 14.278. Admit fees 14.278. Admits artive fees 11.457. Legal fees 5.847. Cast old fies 5.847. Cling fies 3.615. Fling fees 2.409. Independent Review Committee fees (note 14) 2.437. Interest expens and bank charges 1.615. Mibbolishing taxes 2.449. Total expense and bank charges 1.615. Total expense and pank charges 1.615. Total feers (forereas) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series 2.427. Series A 1.615. 2.437. Series A 1.625. 2.437		
Page Page	Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on swap contracts	9,457
Expenses (note 11, 12) Aumagement fees 60,882 Unithode reporting fees 14,927 Admis fees 14,927 Admis frative fees 11,457 Legal fees 5,847 Custodial fees 3,615 Fling fees 2,490 Independent Review Committee fees (note 14) 2,247 Independent Review Committee fees (note 14) 2,347 Interest expense and bank charges 1,653 Withholding taxes 2,44 Interest (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations 75,282 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series 3,344 Series S 194,972 Series SF 483,070 ETF Series 3,200 Veighted average number of redeemable units 9,200 Series S 679,440 Series S 1,566 Series S 1,566 Series S 1,566 Series S 1,566 Series S 1,566 Series S 1,566	Net realized gains (losses) on foreign exchange	
Managementées 60,382 Uniholder reportingées 14,278 Admistrative fées 14,278 Cisal fées 58,487 Cisal fées 3,615 Cisal fées 3,615 Filling fées 2,407 Interest expense and bank changes 1,655 Witholding actes 1,656 Total expense and bank changes 1,656 Witholding actes 2,247 Total expense and bank changes 1,656 Witholding actes 2,247 Total expense and bank changes 1,656 Witholding actes 2,247 Total expense and bank changes 1,656 Witholding actes 2,627 Total expense and bank changes 1,656 Brica Se 3,615 Series Se 1,657 Series Se 1,650 Series Se 1,65	Total income (loss)	869,522
Managemethees 60,382 Uniholder reportingees 14,278 Admistrative fees 14,278 Clay Idea 5,544 Clay Idea 3,615 Clay Idea 3,615 Filling Fees 3,615 Idea person 1,615 Interest expense and bank charges 1,615 Withholding acts 2,247 Interest expense and bank charges 116,640 Withholding acts 2,248 Total expense 116,640 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations 2,242 Series A 1,947 Series S 19,472 Series S 19,472 <		
Unith blder reporting fees 14,927 Audif fees 14,157 Legal fees 5,847 Custodia fees 3,615 Filing fees 2,408 Independent Review Committee fees (note 14) 2,409 Inderest expense and bank charges 1,405 Without Company for the Section of 1,400 1,105 With Company for the Section of 1,400 2,400 Whether Section of the Section of 1,400 1,405 With Company for Section of 1,400 1,405 We present for the Section of 1,400 1,405 Review For Experiment Of Section of		
Admits fees 14,278 Admistrative fees 11,157 Legal Fees 3,615 Usus failes 2,647 Class fees 2,647 Inchependem Review Committee fees (note 14) 2,447 Inchependem Review Committee fees (note 14) 1,053 Withbolding taxes 2,44 Total expense and bank charges 116,640 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations 75,282 Reries A 4,477 Series A 19,407 Series S 31,432 Series SF 31,422 Series A 19,407 Series A 9,616 Series SF 1,606 Series SF 1,606 Series SF 1,606 Series SF 1,608 Series S 1,608 Series S 1,608 Series S 1,608 </td <td></td> <td></td>		
Administrative fee 11,457 Legal fees 3,647 Clusted fiees 3,615 Filing fees 2,490 Independent Review Committee fiees (note 14) 2,347 Interest expense and bank charges 116,60 Without four review Committee fiees (note 14) 116,60 Total expense 14,477 Series A 14,477 Series S 13,413 Series S F 15,40 Series A 15,40 Series S 16,50 Series S 16,50 Series S 1,50 Series S 1,50 Total expense for the Contractive Interest Expense for the Contractive Interest Expense for the Contractive Interest Expense for the Contrac		,
Legal fees 5.847 Custodia fees 3.615 Fling fees 2.449 Independent Review Committee fees (note 14) 2.347 Interest expense and bank charges 1.05 Withholding taxes 2.44 Total expenses 116.640 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations 75.282 Reries F 19.407 Series S 3.014 Series S 3.014 Series S 3.02 Every Series S 3.02 Series S 3.02 Series S 3.02 Every Series A 19.610 Series S 1,656.354 Series S 2.23 Series S 2.24 <t< td=""><td></td><td></td></t<>		
Custodial fees 3,615 Filing fees 2,409 Independent Review Committee fees (note 14) 2,347 Interest expense and bank charges 11,633 Without factures 244 Total expense 116,640 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations 752,825 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series 4,477 Series A 14,477 Series S 483,070 ETF Series 33,240 Weighted average number of redeemable units 37,220 Series A 19,00 Series A 10,00 Series A 10,00 Series A 10,00 Series A 10,00 Increase (Decre		,
Filing fees 2,490 Independent Review Committee fees (note 14) 2,37 Interest expeas and bank charges 1,603 Withholding taxes 244 Total expense 16,003 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations 75,288 Beries S 4,477 Series S F 94,972 Series S S 33,143 Series S P 33,203 Series S S 19,000 Series S S 19,000 Series S S 19,000 Series S S 15,000 Series S S 15,000 <td></td> <td></td>		
Independent Review Committee fees (note 14) 2,447 Interest expense and bank charges 1,653 Withholding taxes 116,640 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations 752,882 Beries A 194,972 Series S 194,972 Series SF 33,143 Series SF 37,220 Evil S 37,220 Series SF 483,070 Evil S 37,220 Series SF 483,070 Evil S 37,220 Series SF 483,070 Evil S 19,610 Series S 679,440 Series S 19,610 Series S 19,610 Series S 19,610 Series S 19,610 Series S 15,653,54 Eries A 54,757 Brices (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3) Series S 60,27 Series S 60,27 Series S 60,27 <t< td=""><td></td><td>,</td></t<>		,
Interest expense and bank charges 1,053 Withholding taxes 244 Total expenses 116,640 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations 752,885 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series 4,477 Series F 194,972 Series S 33,143 Series SP 483,070 ETF Series 37,220 Weighted average number of redeemable units 486,070 Series S 19,610 Series S 679,440 Series S 124,953 Series S 124,953 Series S 124,953 Series S 1,565,545 ETF Series 54,757 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3) 20,23 Series S 0,23 Series S 0,27 Series S 0,27 Series S 0,27 Series S 0,27 Series S 0,27 <t< td=""><td></td><td></td></t<>		
Withholding taxes 244 Total expenses 116,649 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series 752,882 Series S 194,972 Series S 33,143 Series S 33,143 Series S 483,070 ETF Series 19,610 Series F 679,440 Series S 124,63 Series S 124,63 Series S 124,63 Series S 54,757 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3) 57,226 Series S 60,23 Series S <td>•</td> <td></td>	•	
Total expenses 116.640 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series 752,882 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series 4,477 Series A 19,4972 Series S 483,070 ETF Series 37,220 Weighted average number of redeemable units Series A 19,610 Series F 679,440 Series S 679,440 Series S 11,656,354 ETF Series 1,656,354 ETF Series 54,757 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3) 5 Series A 0.23 Series F 0.25 Series F 0.27 Series S 0.27		
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations 752,882 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series 4,477 Series F 194,972 Series S 33,143 Series SF 483,070 ETF Series 37,220 Weighted average number of redeemable units 19,610 Series A 19,610 Series S 679,440 Series S 124,963 Series SF 1,656,354 ETF Series 54,757 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3) 5 Series S 0.23 Series F 0.29 Series S 0.27 Series S 0.27 Series SF 0.29 Series S 0.20 Series S 0.29		
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series Series A		
Scries A 4,477 Scries F 194,972 Scries S 33,143 Scries SF 483,070 ETF Scries 37,220 Weighted average number of redeemable units Scries A 19,610 Scries F 679,440 Scries S 124,963 Scries SF 1,656,544 ETF Scries 54,757 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per scries per unit (note 3) 0.23 Scries S 0.27 Scries S 0.28 Scries S 0.29 <td>Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations</td> <td>752,882</td>	Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations	752,882
Scries A 4,477 Scries F 194,972 Scries S 33,143 Scries SF 483,070 ETF Scries 37,220 Weighted average number of redeemable units Scries A 19,610 Scries F 679,440 Scries S 124,963 Scries SF 1,656,544 ETF Scries 54,757 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per scries per unit (note 3) 0.23 Scries S 0.27 Scries S 0.28 Scries S 0.29 <td>Incomes (Decrease) in Net Acrete attributable to helders of redemable units from an arctions are excited</td> <td></td>	Incomes (Decrease) in Net Acrete attributable to helders of redemable units from an arctions are excited	
Series F 194,972 Series SF 33,143 Series SF 483,070 ETF Series 37,220 Weighted average number of redeemable units 19,610 Series A 19,610 Series F 679,440 Series SF 124,963 Series SF 1,656,354 ETF Series 54,757 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3) 0.23 Series F 0.29 Series SF 0.29 Series SF 0.27 Series SF		4 477
Scries SF 483,070 ETF Scries 483,070 ETF Scries 37,220 Weighted average number of redeemable units Scries A 19,610 Scries F 679,440 Scries SF 124,963 Scries SF 1,656,354 ETF Scries 54,757 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3) Scries A 0.23 Scries F 0.29 Scries SF 0.27		,
Scries SF 483,070 ETF Scries 37,220 Weighted average number of redeemable units 19,610 Scries A 19,610 Scries F 679,440 Scries SF 124,963 Scries SF 1,656,354 ETF Scries 54,757 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3) 5 Scries A 0.23 Scries F 0.23 Scries SF 0.27		,
ETF Series 37,220 Weighted average number of redeemable units 19,610 Series A 19,610 Series F 679,440 Series SF 124,963 Series SF 1,656,354 ETF Series 54,757 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3) 0.23 Series A 0.23 Series F 0.29 Series SF 0.27		
Weighted average number of redeemable units Series A 19,610 Series F 679,440 Series S 124,963 Series SF 1,656,354 ETF Series 54,757 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3) 0.23 Series A 0.23 Series F 0.29 Series S 0.27 Series SF 0.27 Series SF 0.29		,
Scries A 19,610 Scries F 679,440 Scries S 124,963 Scries SF 1,656,354 ETF Scries 54,757 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3) 0.23 Scries A 0.23 Scries F 0.29 Scries SF 0.27 Scries SF 0.27 Scries SF 0.27	LT Select	51,220
Scries A 19,610 Scries F 679,440 Scries SF 124,963 ETF Scries 1,656,354 ETF Scries 54,757 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3) 0.23 Scries A 0.23 Scries F 0.29 Scries S 0.27 Scries SF 0.27 Scries SF 0.27	Weighted average number of redeemable units	
Scries F 679,440 Scries S 124,963 Scries SF 1,656,354 ETF Scries 54,757 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3) Scries A 0.23 Scries F 0.29 Scries S 0.27 Scries SF 0.27 Scries SF 0.29		19,610
Scries S 124,963 Scries SF 1,656,354 ETF Scries 54,757 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3) 0.23 Scries A 0.29 Scries SF 0.27 Scries SF 0.27 Scries SF 0.27 Scries SF 0.27		,
Scries SF 1,656,354 ETF Scries 54,757 Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3) 0.23 Scries A 0.23 Scries F 0.29 Scries S 0.27 Scries SF 0.29 Scries SF 0.29		
ETF SeriesIncrease (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3)Series A0.23Series F0.29Series S0.27Series SF0.29		
Series A 0.23 Series F 0.29 Series S 0.27 Series SF 0.29		
Series A 0.23 Series F 0.29 Series S 0.27 Series SF 0.29		<u> </u>
Series F 0.29 Series S 0.27 Series SF 0.29	Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit (note 3)	
Scries S 0.27 Scries SF 0.29	Series A	0.23
Scries S 0.27 Scries SF 0.29	Series F	0.29
		0.27
	Series SF	0.29
	ETF Series	0.68

 $See\ accompanying\ notes\ which\ are\ an\ integral\ part\ of\ these\ financial\ statements$

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units

For the period from June 29, 2022 to December 31, 2022	2022
	S
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, beginning of period	
Series A	
Series F	
Series S	•
Series SF	•
ETF Series	<u> </u>
	-
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations	
Series A	4,477
Series F	194,972
Series S	33,143
Series SF	483,070
ETF Series	37,220
III della	752,882
	- 7
Distributions to holders of redeemable units	
From net investment income	
Series A	(3,941)
Series F	(180,968)
Series S	(29,750)
Series SF	(456,317)
ETF Series	(28,196)
From net capital gains on investments	
Series A	(82)
Series F	(650)
Series S	(509)
Series SF	(4,164)
ETF Series	(639)
From return of capital	
Series A	(1,566)
Series F	(12,378)
Series S	(9,704)
Series SF	(79,340)
ETF Series	(12,165)
	(820,369)
Redeemable unit transactions (note 8)	
Proceeds from redeemable units issued	
Series A	840,971
Series F	11,666,608
Series S	1,366,108
Series SF	19,515,116
ETF Series	3,205,950
Reinvestments of distributions to holders of redeemable units	
Series A	2,918
Series F	43,732
Series S	33,783
Series SF	119,962
ETF Series	-
Redemption of redeemable units	
Series A	(138,263)
Series F	(328,401)
	(80,054)
Series S	(00,034)
Series S Series SF	(2,911,280)

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units continued

For the period from June 29, 2022 to December 31, 2022	2022
	\$
Net increase (decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	
Series A	704,514
Series F	11,382,915
Series S	1,313,017
Series SF	16,667,047
ETF Series	3,202,170
	33,269,663
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, end of period	
Series A	704,514
Series F	11,382,915
Series S	1,313,017
Series SF	16,667,047
ETF Series	3,202,170
	33,269,663

See accompanying notes which are an integral part of these financial statements

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units continued

For the period from June 29, 2022 to December 31, 2022	2022
Units, beginning of period	
Series A	-
Series F	-
Series S	-
Series SF	-
ETF Series	<u>-</u>
	<u>-</u>
Redeemable unit transactions (note 8)	
Redeemable units issued	
Series A	84,867
Series F	1,173,557
Series S	136,309
Series SF	1,942,139
ETF Series	160,000
Reinvestments of distributions to holders of redeemable units	
Series A	295
Series F	4,418
Series S	3,393
Series SF	12,008
ETF Series	
Redemption of redeemable units	
Series A	(13,962)
Series F	(33,126)
Series S	(7,977)
Series SF	(291,617)
ETF Series	<u>-</u>
	3,170,304
Units, end of period	
Series A	71,200
Series F	1,144,849
Series S	131,725
Series SF	1,662,530
ETF Series	160,000
	3,170,304

 $See\ accompanying\ notes\ which\ are\ an\ integral\ part\ of\ these\ financial\ statements$

Statement of Cash Flows

For the period from June 29, 2022 to December 31, 2022	2022
	\$
Cash flows from operating activities	
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations	752,882
Adjustments for:	
Foreign exchange (gains) losses on cash	13,305
Net realized (gains) losses on sales of investments	(10,659)
Net realized (gains) losses on swap contracts	(463,542)
Change in unrealized (appreciation) depreciation in the value of investments	(9,680)
Change in unrealized (appreciation) depreciation on swap contracts	(9,457)
Purchases of investments	(56,998,203)
Proceeds from sale of investments	24,742,557
Net increase (decrease) in other assets and liabilities	(103,047)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities	(32,085,844)
Cash flows from financing activities	
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable units, net of reinvested distributions	(603,974)
Proceeds from redeemable units issued	36,407,373
Redemption of redeemable units	(3,280,978)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities	32,522,421
Foreign exchange gains (losses) on cash	(13,305)
Net increase (decrease) in cash	436,577
Cash (Bank indebtedness), beginning of period	-
Cash (Bank indebtedness), end of period	423,272
Supplemental Information*	
Interest received	246,862
Interest paid	1,053

^{*}Information provided relates to the operating activities of the Fund

See accompanying notes which are an integral part of these financial statements

Schedule of Investment Portfolio

December 31, 2022		Maturity Date	Average Cost	Fair V
B.B	DOUBLE MAN		S	
PAR VALUE*	BONDS [51.54%] INVESTMENT GRADE BONDS [51.54%]			
1 100 000		1 20 2022	1 000 522	1.00
1,100,000	Bank of Montreal, 2.890%	Jun 20, 2023	1,090,523	1,08
400,000	Bank of Montreal, Callable, 3.940%	Jun 30, 2023	398,732	39
600,000	BHP Billiton Finance Limited, 3.230%	May 15, 2023	595,842	59
1,100,000	Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce, 2.430%	Jun 9, 2023	1,083,691	1,08
1,750,000	HSBC Bank Canada, 2.542%	Jan 31, 2023	1,742,180	1,74
700,000	Ivanhoe Cambridge II Inc., Callable, 2.909%	Jun 27, 2023	692,439	69
800,000	Manulife Bank of Canada, 2.844%	Jan 12, 2023	798,039	79
500,000	Mercedes-Benz Canada Finance Inc. and Mercedes-Benz Finance North America LLC, 2.540%	Aug 21, 2023	490,740	4
1,000,000	National Bank of Canada, Callable, 3.183%	Feb 1, 2028	997,870	9
800,000	OMERS Realty Corporation, 3.358%	Jun 5, 2023	796,744	79
1,150,000	Royal Bank of Canada, 2.949%	May 1, 2023	1,142,363	1,1
1,550,000	TELUS Corporation, Callable, 3.350%	Mar 15, 2023	1,545,475	1,5
1,650,000	The Bank of Nova Scotia, 2.380%	May 1, 2023	1,629,163	1,6
750,000	The Toronto-Dominion Bank, 3.005%	May 30, 2023	745,088	7-
400,000	Toyota Credit Canada Inc., 2.700%	Jan 25, 2023	398,348	3
1,150,000	TransCanada PipeLines Limited, Callable, 3.690%	Jul 19, 2023	1,141,839	1,1
600,000	VW Credit Canada Inc., 3.250%	Mar 29, 2023	596,988	5
1,250,000	Wells Fargo Canada Corporation., 3.460%	Jan 24, 2023	1,249,910	1,2
bonds			17,135,974	17,14
PAR VALUE*	SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS [46.87%]			
1,000,000	Bank of Montreal, 4.32%	Feb 13, 2023	994,847	99
1,000,000	Bank of Montreal, 4.59%	Feb 21, 2023	993,505	9
1,200,000	Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce, 4.53%	Mar 1, 2023	1,191,147	1,19
800,000	Enbridge Inc., 5.44%	Jan 20, 2023	797,626	79
1,500,000	Enbridge Pipelines Inc., 5.57%	Jan 10, 2023	1,497,723	1,49
600,000	Fortisbe Energy Inc., 4.52%	Feb 27, 2023	595,740	5
1,800,000	Government of Canada, 4.18%	Jan 19, 2023	1,796,104	1,79
900,000	Honda Canada Finance Inc., 4.63%	Feb 13, 2023	895,023	89
1,000,000	Hydro One Inc., 4.54%	Feb 9, 2023	995,070	9
800,000	National Bank of Canada, 4.51%	Feb 6, 2023	796,379	7
1,400,000	Royal Bank of Canada, 4.39%	Feb 6, 2023	1,393,835	1,39
1,600,000	The Bank of Nova Scotia, 5.01%	Jan 6, 2023	1,598,688	1,59
2,050,000	The Toronto-Dominion Bank, 5.26%	Jan 4, 2023	2,048,825	2,04
short-term investmen	ts	,	15,594,512	15,59
investments [98.41°	%		32,730,486	32,7
	on on swap contracts [0.03%] (Schedule 1)			
and other assets less l	iabilities [1.56%]			52
Net Assets attributa	able to holders of redeemable units [100.00%]			33,20

^{*} All par values are in Canadian Dollars unless otherwise noted

 $See\ accompanying\ notes\ which\ are\ an\ integral\ part\ of\ these\ financial\ statements$

Swap Contracts (Schedule 1)

Total Return Swap Contracts

As at December 31, 2022

	Maturity	Notional Amount	Fair Value
Swap Details (Pay)	Date	\$(CAD)	\$(CAD)
RBC US Equity 70% Put Write Index	28-Jun-24	9,047,381.47	11,897
RBC US Equity 75% Put Write Index	28-Jun-24	17,935,747.52	1,321
RBC EU Equity 75% Put Write Index	28-Jun-24	623,961.91	345
RBC US Equity 85% Put Write Index	28-Jun-24	160,491.73	(920)
RBC US Equity 80% Put Write Index	28-Jun-24	3,969,533.80	(4,260)
Total			8,383

Ninepoint Target Income Fund Notes to financial statements — Fund specific information December 31, 2022

Financial Risk Management (note 6)

Investment Objective

The investment objective of the Fund is to provide unitholders with stable, monthly distributions and lower volatility than a direct investment in the broad equity markets by investing primarily in a diversified portfolio of equity index-based investments that generates income and using derivatives strategies to moderate the market volatility of those investments.

The Schedule of Investment Portfolio presents the securities held by the Fund as at December 31, 2022. Significant risks that are relevant to the Fund are discussed here. General information on risks and risk management is described in *Note 6 Financial Risk Management* of the Generic Notes.

Market Risk

a) Other Price Risk

As at December 31, 2022, the Fund did not have a significant exposure to other price risk.

b) Currency Risk

As at December 31, 2022, the Fund's direct exposure to currency risk and potential impact to the Fund's Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units as a result of a 1% change in these currencies relative to the Canadian dollar, with all other variables held constant, are shown in the table below.

December 31, 2022

		% of Net Assets	Impact on Net Assets
		attributable to holders	attributable to holders
Currency	Fair Value	of redeemable units	of redeemable units
	\$	%	\$
U.S. Dollar	9,130	0.03	91
Euro	345	0.00	3
Total	9,475	0.03	94

c) Interest Risk

As at December 31, 2022, the Fund's exposure to interest rate risk categorized by the earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturity dates, and potential impact to the Fund's Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units had interest rates increased or decreased by 1%, with all other variables remaining constant, are shown in the table below. In practice, the actual results may differ from this sensitivity analysis and the difference could be material. The Fund's short-term assets and liabilities are not subject to a significant amount of risk due to fluctuations in the prevailing level of market interest rates.

	Total Exposure
Term to Maturity	December 31, 2022
	\$
Less than 1 year	31,741,742
1-5 years	_
>5 years	998,424
Total	32,740,166
Impact on Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	61,798
Impact on Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units (%)	0.19

Ninepoint Target Income Fund Notes to financial statements — Fund specific information December 31, 2022

Credit Risk

As at December 31, 2022, the Fund held debt instruments, which have a credit rating as rated primarily by Dominion Bond Rating Services, Standard & Poor's or Moody's. The Fund generally invests in fixed income securities issued or generated by the Canadian government or its agencies, other Canadian issuers, foreign governments or their agencies, other foreign issuers, and supranational organizations. The ratings of securities that subject the Fund to credit risk, as a percentage of Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, are shown in the table below.

Ratings	December 31, 2022
	%
AA	33.16
A	57.01
BBB	8.24
Total	98.41

As at December 31, 2022, the Fund was also exposed to credit risk from over-the-counter derivative contracts with counterparties. The credit risk is considered minimal as these counterparties have a minimum credit rating of A by Standard & Poor's or equivalent.

Concentration Risk

As at December 31, 2022, the Fund's concentration risk as a percentage of Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units is shown in the table below.

	December 31, 2022
	%
Bonds	
Investment Grade Bonds	51.54
Short-term Investment	46.87
Unrealized appreciation on swap contracts	0.03
Cash and other assets less liabilities	1.56
Total Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	100.00

Fair Value Measurements (note 5)

As at December 31, 2022, the Fund's financial assets and liabilities, which are measured at fair value, have been categorized based upon the fair value hierarchy as shown in the table below.

December 31, 2022	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
	\$	\$	\$	\$
Bonds	_	17,147,858	_	17,147,858
Short-term investments	_	15,592,308	_	15,592,308
Swap Contracts	_	8,383	_	8,383
Total	_	32,748,549	_	32,748,549

During the period from June 29, 2022 to December 31, 2022, there were no significant transfers between levels.

Ninepoint Target Income Fund Notes to financial statements — Fund specific information December 31, 2022

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

In the normal course of business, the Fund enters into various master netting arrangements or other similar agreements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting in the Statements of Financial Position but still allow for the related amounts to be set off in certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or termination of the contracts. The following tables present the over-the-counter derivatives that are offset, or subject to enforceable master netting agreements or other similar agreements but that are not offset, as at December 31, 2022. The "Net" column shows what the impact on the Fund's Statements of Financial Position would be if all set-off rights were exercised.

Financial assets and liabilities	I	Amounts offset		Amounts not offset		Net
				Subject to		
		Gross	Net	master	Cash	
	Gross	assets/liabilities	amounts	netting	collateral	
December 30, 2022	assets/liabilities	offset	set presented arrangements received		received	
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	s
Swap contracts						
Derivative assets	13,562	(5,178)	8,383	_	_	8,383
Derivative liabilities	(5,178)	5,178	_	_	_	_

Management Fees (note 11)

Management fees differ among the series of units of the Fund as shown in the table below.

Series	Management Fees (Up to)
Series A	1.60%
Series F	0.60%
Series I*	Negotiated by the Unitholder
Series S	1.30%
Series SF	0.30%
ETF Series	0.60%

^{*}The management fee for Series I of the Fund is negotiated by the unitholder and may be paid directly by the Fund or by the unitholder.

Tax Loss Carryforwards (note 3)

For the taxation year ended December 15, 2022, the Fund had no capital and non-capital losses available for tax purposes.

See accompanying generic notes which are an integral part of these financial statements

1. Establishment of the Funds

Ninepoint Gold and Precious Minerals Fund, Ninepoint Energy Fund, Ninepoint Gold Bullion Fund, Ninepoint Diversified Bond Fund, Ninepoint High Interest Savings Funds, Ninepoint Silver Bullion Fund, Ninepoint Global Infrastructure Fund, Ninepoint Resource Fund (formerly, Ninepoint Resource Class), Ninepoint Silver Equities Fund (formerly, Ninepoint Silver Equities Class), Ninepoint Risk Advantaged U.S. Equity Index Fund (formerly, Ninepoint Risk Advantaged U.S. Equity Index Class), Ninepoint Global Real Estate Fund, Ninepoint Focused Global Dividend Fund (formerly, Ninepoint Focused Global Dividend Class), Ninepoint Alternative Health Fund, Ninepoint FX Strategy Fund, Ninepoint Alternative Credit Opportunities Fund, Ninepoint Carbon Credit ETF, Ninepoint Energy Income Fund, and Ninepoint Target Income Fund are open-ended mutual fund trusts (collectively, the "Funds" and each, a "Fund"). The Funds, other than Ninepoint Alternative Health Fund, were established under the laws of the Province of Ontario pursuant to a trust agreement dated September 9, 1997, as amended and restated on October 16, 2001 and February 13, 2004, and as further amended on November 1, 2007, January 16, 2009, July 16, 2010, August 5, 2010, August 24, 2011, March 27, 2012, January 2, 2013, April 10, 2014, April 16, 2018 and April 30, 2021, together with amended and restated Schedule "A" dated as of January 26, 2018, July 30, 2018, March 6, 2019, November 8, 2019, October 28, 2020, November 29, 2021, February 4, 2022, February 18, 2022, and May 9, 2022. Ninepoint Alternative Health Fund was established under the laws of the Province of Ontario pursuant to a trust agreement dated September 16, 2016, as amended and restated on April 16, 2018. Ninepoint Partners LP (the "Manager") is the manager and portfolio advisor of the Funds. CIBC Mellon Trust Company is the custodian of the Funds. The Manager has retained Sprott Asset Management LP as the sub-advisor of Ninepoint Gold and Precious Minerals Fund, Ninepoint Gold Bullion Fund, Ninepoint Silver Bullion Fund, Ninepoint Resource Fund and Ninepoint Silver Equities Fund, Faircourt Asset Management Inc. as the sub-advisor of Ninepoint Alternative Health Fund, and P/E Global LLC as the sub-advisor of Ninepoint FX Strategy Fund. The address of the Funds' registered office is 200 Bay Street, Toronto, Ontario.

The date of inception and series structure of each of the Funds are as follows:

Name of the Fund	Date of Inception	Series Information
Ninepoint Gold and Precious Minerals Fund	October 16, 2001 (publicly launched on November 15, 2001)	Became a multi-series fund in October 2004. The existing units were designated as Series A and new Series F and I were introduced. On April 23, 2018, Series D was introduced. On November 26, 2018, Series QF was introduced. On November 17, 2020, ETF Series was introduced.
Ninepoint Energy Fund	March 24, 2004 (publicly launched on April 15, 2004)	A multi-series fund since inception, having three series, Series A, F and I. On April 23, 2018, Series D was introduced. On November 30, 2018, Series PTF was introduced and it was terminated in April 2020. On May 12, 2021, ETF Series was introduced.
Ninepoint Gold Bullion Fund	March 10, 2009 (publicly launched on March 17, 2009)	A multi-series fund since inception, having three series, Series A, F and I. On April 26, 2019, Series D was introduced.
Ninepoint Diversified Bond Fund	July 16, 2010 (publicly launched on August 5, 2010)	A multi-series fund since inception, having four series, Series A, F, I and T. On August 24, 2011, Series FT were introduced. On May 28, 2015, Series P, PT, PF, PFT, Q, QT, QF and QFT were introduced. On April 23, 2018, Series D was introduced. On November 17, 2020, ETF Series was introduced.
Ninepoint High Interest Savings Fund	July 16, 2010 (publicly launched on August 5, 2010)	A multi-series fund since inception, having three series, Series A, F and I. On November 16, 2017, Series II was introduced. On April 26, 2019, Series D was introduced. On November 17, 2020, ETF Series was introduced.
Ninepoint Silver Bullion Fund	May 3, 2011 (publicly launched on May 10, 2011)	A multi-series fund since inception, having three series, Series A, F and I. On April 26, 2019, Series D was introduced.
Ninepoint Global Infrastructure Fund	September 1, 2011 (publicly launched on September 1, 2011)	A multi-series fund since inception, having three series, Series A, F and I. On April 23, 2018, Series D was introduced.
Ninepoint Resource Fund	September 23, 2011 (publicly launched on October 17, 2011)	A multi-series fund since inception, having three series, Series A, F and I. On April 23, 2018, Series D was introduced.
Ninepoint Silver Equities Fund	January 31, 2012 (publicly launched on February 28, 2012)	A multi-series fund since inception, having three series, Series A, F and I. On April 23, 2018, Series D was introduced. On November 17, 2020, ETF Series was introduced.
Ninepoint Risk Advantaged U.S. Equity Index Fund	March 27, 2012 (publicly launched on April 16, 2012)	A multi-series fund since inception, having five series, Series A, A1, F, F1 and I. On September 30, 2013, Series FT and T were introduced. On April 23, 2018, Series D was introduced. On July 26, 2018, Series QF and PF were introduced. In August 2020, Series A1, F1, FT and T were terminated.
Ninepoint Global Real Estate Fund	June 29, 2015 (publicly launched on August 5, 2015)	A multi-series fund since inception, having three series, Series A, F and I. On February 7, 2017, Series T and FT were introduced. On April 23, 2018, Series D was introduced.
Ninepoint Focused Global Dividend Fund	October 8, 2015 (publicly launched on November 26, 2015)	A multi-series fund since inception, having nine series, Series A, A1, F, F1, I, P, PF, Q and QF. On April 23, 2018, new Series D was introduced.
Ninepoint Alternative Health Fund	September 16, 2016 (publicly launched on March 30, 2017)	A single series fund at inception; Series A. Became a multi- series fund on June 28, 2017 when Series F was introduced. On April 23, 2018, Series D and I were introduced. On October 17, 2018, Series PTF was introduced and it was terminated in April 2020. On May 12, 2021, ETF Series was introduced.

Name of the Fund	Date of Inception	Series Information
Ninepoint FX Strategy Fund	November 8, 2019 (publicly launched on April 9, 2020)	A multi-series fund since inception, having five series, Series A, D, F, I and QF. On May 1, 2020, Series A1 and F1 were introduced.
Ninepoint Alternative Credit Opportunities Fund	April 30, 2021 (publicly launched on May 11, 2021)	A multi-series fund since inception, having six series, Series A, D, F, I, QF and ETF Series.
Ninepoint Carbon Credit ETF	February 16, 2022 (publicly launched on February 17, 2022)	A multi-series fund since inception, having eight series, Series A, D, F, I, QF, S, SF and ETF Series.
Ninepoint Energy Income Fund	February 18, 2022 (publicly launched on March 8, 2022)	A multi-series fund since inception, having seven series, Series A, D, F, I, S, SF and ETF Series.
Ninepoint Target Income Fund	May 9, 2022 (publicly launched on June 28, 2022)	A multi-series fund since inception, having six series, Series A, F, I, S, SF and ETF Series.

Ninepoint Diversified Bond Fund, Ninepoint High Interest Savings Fund, Ninepoint Energy Fund, Ninepoint Alternative Credit Opportunities Fund, Ninepoint Carbon Credit ETF, Ninepoint Energy Income Fund, and Ninepoint Target Income Fund offer ETF Series units. "ETF Series" refers to the exchange-traded series of securities offered by a Fund and "Mutual Fund Series" refers to all other series of securities offered by a Fund. The differences among the series of units are the different eligibility criteria, fee structures and administrative expenses associated with each series.

The Statements of Financial Position of each of the Funds are as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, unless otherwise noted. The Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss), Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units and Statements of Cash Flows for each Fund are for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, except for Funds or series of a Fund established during either period, in which case the information for that Fund or applicable series of a Fund is provided for the period from the start date of that Fund or series of a Fund to December 31 of the applicable period. The Schedule of Investment Portfolio for each Fund is as at December 31, 2022.

These financial statements were approved for issuance by the Manager on March 30, 2023.

2. Basis of Presentation

These financial statements have been prepared in compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as published by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") and include estimates and assumptions made by the Manager that may affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and the reported amounts of changes in Net Assets during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using the historical cost convention. However, each Fund is an investment entity and primarily all financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value in accordance with IFRS.

The financial statements of each Fund are presented in Canadian dollars, which is each Fund's functional currency, except for the financial statements of Ninepoint Carbon Credit ETF, which are presented in U.S. dollars, which is that Fund's functional currency.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies followed by the Funds:

CLASSIFICATION AND MEASUREMENT OF INVESTMENTS

The Funds classify and measure financial instruments in accordance with IFRS 9, *Financial Instruments* ("IFRS 9"). Based on the Funds' business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of these assets, it requires financial assets to be classified as amortized cost, fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL"), or fair value through other comprehensive income ("FVOCI").

The Funds' investments, investments sold short and derivative assets and liabilities are measured at FVTPL.

The Funds' accounting policies for measuring the fair value of its investments and derivatives are identical to those used in measuring its Net Asset Value ("NAV") for transactions with unitholders, except as described in Note 8. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Financial assets and liabilities are recorded in the Statements of Financial Position at fair value upon initial recognition. All transaction costs such as brokerage commissions incurred in the purchase and sale of such securities are recognized directly in the Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss). Subsequent to initial measurement, financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL are recorded at fair value which, as at the financial reporting year end is determined as follows:

- 1. Securities listed upon a recognized public stock exchange are valued at the closing price recorded by the exchange on which the security is principally traded, where the last traded price falls within that day's bid-ask spread. In circumstances where the closing price is not within the bid-ask spread, the Manager determines the point within the bid-ask spread that is most representative of fair value based on the specific facts and circumstances.
- 2. Common shares of unlisted companies and warrants that are not traded on an exchange are valued using valuation techniques established by the Manager. Restricted securities are valued in a manner that the Manager determines represents fair value.
- 3. Short-term notes and treasury bills are valued at their cost. The cost, together with accrued interest, approximates fair value using closing prices.
- 4. Bonds, debentures and other debt obligations are valued at the mean of bid/ask prices provided by recognized fixed income vendors. Listed convertible debentures are priced using the last traded or closing sale price from a primary publicly recognized exchange however, if the last traded or closing sale price is not available, the mean of the bid price and ask price (evaluated mean) provided by fixed income vendors is used. Unlisted bonds, debentures and convertible debentures are valued using valuation techniques established by the Manager.
- 5. Private loans are valued through an income-based approach utilizing a discounted cashflow methodology.
- 6. Mutual fund units held as investments are fair valued using their respective NAV per unit on the relevant valuation dates, as these values are most readily and regularly available.

Physical gold bullion and silver bullion are measured at fair value determined by reference to published price quotations, with unrealized and realized gains and losses recorded in income.

The difference between the fair value of investments and the cost of investments represents the unrealized appreciation or depreciation in the value of investments. The cost of investments for each security is determined on an average cost basis.

All other financial assets and financial liabilities are classified at amortized cost. They are recognized at fair value upon initial recognition and subsequently measured at amortized cost. IFRS 9 requires that an entity recognize a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets which are measured at amortized cost or FVOCI. The Funds consider both historical analysis and forward-looking information in determining any expected credit loss. The Funds' obligation for Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units is presented at the redemption amount.

TRANSACTION COSTS

Transaction costs are expensed and are included in "Transaction costs" in the Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss). Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of an investment, which include fees and commissions paid to agents, advisors, brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies and securities exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties.

INVESTMENT TRANSACTIONS AND INCOME RECOGNITION

Investment transactions are accounted for on the business day following the date the order to buy or sell is executed, with the exception of short-term investments, which are accounted for on the date the order to buy or sell is executed. Realized gains and losses arising from the sale of investments and unrealized appreciation and depreciation on investments are calculated with reference to the average cost of the related investments and are recorded in the Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss).

Interest income for distribution purposes represents the coupon interest recognized on an accrual basis. Interest income for distribution purposes represents the coupon interest recognized daily on an accrual basis. It also includes paid-in-kind ("PIK") interest on certain loans, which allows for interest payment in additional debt rather than cash.

Dividend income is recognized on the ex-dividend date, presented gross of any non-recoverable withholding taxes, which are disclosed separately in the Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss). Distributions from underlying funds are recognized on the distribution date.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

The fair values of foreign-currency-denominated investments are translated into Canadian dollars (or U.S. dollars for Ninepoint Carbon Credit ETF) using the prevailing rate of exchange on each valuation date. Income, expenses and investment transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Canadian dollars (or U.S. dollars for Ninepoint Carbon Credit ETF) at the rate of exchange prevailing on the respective dates of such transactions.

The Funds do not separately report the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates from changes in market prices on securities held. Such changes are included in "Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) in the value of investments" in the Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss). Realized foreign exchange gains or losses from sales of investments and cash in foreign currencies are included in "Net realized gains (losses) on foreign exchange" in the Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss). Any difference between the recorded amounts of dividends, interest and foreign withholding taxes and the Canadian dollar (or U.S. dollars for Ninepoint Carbon Credit ETF) equivalent of the amounts actually received is reported as part of the investment income in the Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss).

CASH

Cash is comprised of cash on deposit with financial institutions.

FORWARD CURRENCY CONTRACTS

The value of a forward currency contract is the gain or loss that would be realized if, on the date that valuation is made, the position was closed out. It is reflected in the Statements of Financial Position as part of "Unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on forward currency contracts" and the change in value over the year is reflected in the Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) as part of "Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on forward currency contracts". When the forward currency contracts are closed out, gains and losses are realized and included in "Net realized gains (losses) on forward currency contracts" in the Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss).

OPTION CONTRACTS

When the Funds purchase options, the premiums paid for purchasing options are included as an asset and are subsequently adjusted each valuation day to the fair value of the option contract. Premiums received from writing options are included as a liability and are subsequently adjusted each valuation day to the fair value of the option contract. These amounts are reflected in the Statements of Financial Position as part of "Options purchased" or "Options written". Option contracts are valued each valuation day according to the gain or loss that would be realized if the contracts were closed out on that day. All unrealized gains (losses) arising from option contracts are recorded as "Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on option contracts" in the Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss), until the contracts are closed out or expire, at which time the gains (losses) are realized and reflected in the Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) as "Net realized gains (losses) on option contracts".

TOTAL RETURN SWAP CONTRACTS, INTEREST RATE SWAP CONTRACTS & CREDIT DEFAULT SWAP CONTRACTS

The fair value of total return swap contracts is determined based on agreements between the Fund and another party to exchange the return from an underlying asset. In the agreement, one party makes payments based on an agreed upon rate that may be fixed or variable, while the other party makes payments based on total returns of the underlying asset. The underlying asset may be a basket of bonds and/or equities.

The fair value of interest rate swap contracts is determined based on agreements that involve the exchange by the Fund with another party for their respective commitment to pay or receive interest on the notional amount of principal.

The fair value of credit default swap contracts with exposures to underlying marketable issuers is determined using indicative values obtained by vendors from third party-broker dealers. Pricing vendors determine the fair value using valuation models that are based on assumptions that are supported by observable market inputs such as credit spreads. The fair value is independently assessed by valuation specialists to ensure that they are reasonable. The fair values of credit default swaps are affected by the perceived credit risk of the underlying issuers, movements in credit spreads and the length of time to maturity.

The fair value of interest rate swap contracts, total return swap contracts and credit default swap contracts are reflected in the Statements of Financial Position as part of "Unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on swap contracts".

Any interest paid or received on the swap contracts is recorded as "Interest received (paid) on swap contracts" in the Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss). The unrealized gain or loss on swaps contracts is reflected in the Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) as part of "Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on swap contracts". When the swap contracts are closed out, any gains (losses) are recorded as "Net realized gain (loss) on swap contracts" in the Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss).

FUTURES CONTRACTS

Currency futures contracts are exchange-traded futures contracts that specify the price in one currency at which another currency can be bought or sold at a future date. Gold futures contracts are exchange-traded futures contracts that specify the price that gold can be bought or sold at a future date. Carbon credit futures, which are commodity futures contracts linked to the value of carbon allowance or carbon credits, are exchange-traded futures contracts that specify the price that carbon credits can be bought or sold at a future date. The fair value of currency future contracts, gold future contracts and carbon credit future contracts is based on settlement price. They are reflected in the Statements of Financial Position as part of "Unrealized appreciation on futures contracts" and the change in value over the year is reflected in the Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) as part of "Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on futures contracts". When the futures contracts are closed out, gains and losses are realized and included in "Net realized gains (losses) on futures contracts" in the Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss).

SWAPTION CONTRACTS

Swaption contracts are options to enter into a pre-defined swap agreement or to shorten, extend, cancel or otherwise modify an existing swap agreement, by some specified date in the future. The writer of the swaption contract becomes the counterparty to the swap if the buyer exercises. The swaption contract will specify whether the buyer will be a fixed-rate receiver or a fixed-rate payer upon exercise.

The fair value of swaption contracts are reflected in the Statements of Financial Position as part of "Swaptions purchased" or "Swaptions written".

All unrealized gains (losses) arising from swaptions are recorded as "Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on swaption contracts" in the Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss), until the contracts are closed out or expire, at which time the gains (losses) are realized and reflected in the Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) as "Net realized gains (losses) on swaption contracts".

CALCULATION OF NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE UNITS PER SERIES PER UNIT

The Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per unit of a series is based on the fair value of the series' proportionate share of the assets and liabilities of the Fund common to all series, less any liabilities of the Fund attributable only to that series, divided by the total outstanding units of that series. Income, non-series-specific expenses, realized and unrealized gains (losses) on investments and transaction costs are allocated to each series of a Fund based on the series' pro-rata share of Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units of that Fund. Expenses directly attributable to a series are charged directly to that series.

INCOME TAXES

The Funds are not taxed on that portion of income and net realized capital gains that is paid or payable to unitholders. No provision for income taxes has been recorded in the Funds as sufficient income and net realized capital gains are paid to unitholders. Non-capital losses may be carried forward for up to 20 years, and can be offset against future taxable income. Capital losses may be carried forward indefinitely to be applied against future capital gains.

The Funds qualify as mutual fund trusts under the *Income Tax Act* (Canada), and accordingly these Funds may also retain some net capital gains by utilizing the capital gains refund mechanism available to mutual fund trusts without incurring any income taxes.

For tax purposes, certain Funds generally treat gains from the disposition of gold bullion and silver bullion as capital gains, rather than income, as they intend to be long-term passive holders of gold bullion and silver bullion, and generally dispose of their holdings in bullion only for the purposes of meeting redemptions. The Canada Revenue Agency has, however, expressed its opinion that gains or losses of mutual fund trusts resulting from transactions in commodities should generally be treated for tax purposes as ordinary income rather than as capital gains, although the treatment in each particular case remains a question of fact to be determined having regard to all the circumstances.

The Funds incur withholding taxes imposed by certain countries on investment income and capital gains. Such income and gains are recorded on a gross basis and the related withholding taxes are shown separately in the Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss).

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE UNITS FROM OPERATIONS PER UNIT

"Increase (decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series per unit" in the Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) represents the increase (decrease) in Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations per series, divided by the weighted average number of units of the series outstanding during the year, which is presented in the Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss).

SHORT SELLING

When a Fund engages in a short sale, it borrows that security from a prime broker to complete the sale. The cost of entering into short positions is recorded in the Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) under "Securities borrowing expense". Short selling can provide the Fund with opportunities for gains when markets are volatile or declining. A Fund will engage in short selling only within certain limits and conditions including: (i) the Fund will short sell only liquid securities that are traded on a stock exchange, (ii) the Fund will limit its short sale exposure to any single issuer to 5% of the Fund's total NAV and an aggregate short exposure to 20% of its total NAV, and (iii) the Fund will hold cash cover in an amount (including the Fund's assets deposited with lenders and short-term investments) that is at least 150% of the aggregate fair value of all securities sold short. The Fund can realize a gain on a short sale if the price of the security decreases from the date the security was sold short until the date at which the Fund closes out its short position, by buying that security at a lower price. A loss will be incurred if the price of the security increases.

OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and liabilities are disclosed net if there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and liability simultaneously. Where applicable, additional information is disclosed in the Offsetting of Financial Instruments section of the *Notes to Financial Statements – Fund Specific Information*.

SECURITIES LENDING

The Funds may enter into securities lending transactions. These transactions involve the temporary exchange of securities as collateral with a commitment to deliver the same securities on a future date. Income is earned from these transactions in the form of fees paid by the counterparty and, in certain circumstances, interest paid on securities held as collateral. Income earned from these transactions is recognized on an accrual basis and included in the Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss).

Certain Funds entered into a securities lending program with their custodian, CIBC Mellon Trust Company, and lending agent, The Bank of New York Mellon. Securities lending income reported in the Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) is net of a securities lending charge which the Funds' custodians are entitled to receive. The aggregate market value of all securities loaned by a Fund cannot exceed 50% of the assets of that Fund. The Fund will receive collateral of at least 105% of the value of the securities on loan. Collateral will generally be comprised of cash and obligations of, or guaranteed by, the Government of Canada or a province thereof, or the United States Government or its agencies, or a permitted supranational agency as defined in National Instrument 81-102, *Investment Funds*.

STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Funds have determined there are no IFRS standards that are issued but not yet effective that could materially impact the Funds' financial statements.

4. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires management to use judgment in applying its accounting policies and to make estimates and assumptions about the future. The following discusses the most significant accounting judgments and estimates that the Funds have made in preparing the financial statements:

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF DERIVATIVES AND SECURITIES NOT QUOTED IN AN ACTIVE MARKET

The Funds hold financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets, including derivatives. Fair values of such instruments are determined using valuation techniques and may be determined using reputable pricing sources (such as pricing agencies) or indicative prices from market makers. Where no market data is available, the Funds may value investments using valuation models, which are usually based on methods and techniques generally recognized as standard within the industry. The models used to determine fair values are validated and periodically reviewed by experienced personnel of the Manager, independent of the party that created them. Models use observable data, to the extent practicable. However, areas such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), volatilities and correlations require the Manager to make estimates. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair values of financial instruments. The Funds consider observable data to be market data that is readily available, regularly distributed and updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market. Common shares of unlisted companies may be valued at cost and adjusted based on the last known transaction. Refer to *Note 5: Fair Value Measurement* for further information about the fair value measurement of the Funds' financial instruments.

CLASSIFICATION AND MEASUREMENT OF INVESTMENTS AND APPLICATION OF THE FAIR VALUE OPTION

In classifying and measuring financial instruments held by the Funds, the Manager is required to make significant judgments in determining the most appropriate classification in accordance with IFRS 9. The Manager has assessed the Funds' business models and concluded that FVTPL, in accordance with IFRS 9, provides the most appropriate classification of the Funds' financial instruments.

ASSESSMENT AS AN INVESTMENT ENTITY

Entities that meet the definition of an investment entity within IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements are required to measure their subsidiaries at FVTPL rather than consolidate them. The criteria which define an investment entity are as follows:

- an entity that obtains funds from one or more investors for the purpose of providing those investors with investment services;
- an entity that commits to its investors that its business purpose is to invest funds solely for returns from capital appreciation, investment income or both; and
- an entity that measures and evaluates the performance of substantially all of its investments on a fair value basis.

The Manager has assessed the characteristics of an investment entity as they apply to the Funds, and such assessment requires significant judgments. Based on the assessment, the Manager concluded that each Fund meets the definition of an investment entity.

5. Fair Value Measurements

The Funds use a three-tier hierarchy as a framework for disclosing fair value based on inputs used to value the Funds' investments. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities that the Funds have the ability to access at the measurement date;
- Level 2 Quoted prices which are not active, or inputs that are observable (either directly or indirectly) for substantially the full term of the asset or liability; and
- Level 3 Prices, inputs or complex modeling techniques that are both significant to the fair value measurement and unobservable (supported by little or no market activity).

The hierarchy of investments and derivatives for each Fund is included in the *Notes to Financial Statements – Fund Specific Information* of each Fund.

All fair value measurements are recurring. The carrying values of cash, subscriptions receivable, interest receivable, payable for investments purchased, redemptions payable, distributions payable, accrued expenses and each Fund's obligations for Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units approximate their fair values due to their short-term nature. Fair values are classified as Level 1 when the related security or derivative is actively traded and a quoted price is available. If an instrument classified as Level 1 subsequently ceases to be actively traded, it is transferred out of Level 1. In such cases, instruments are reclassified into Level 2, unless the measurement of its fair value requires the use of significant unobservable inputs, in which case it is classified as Level 3.

The following provides details of the categorization in the fair value hierarchy by asset classes:

Level 1 securities include:

- Equity securities, exchange-traded futures contracts, and options using quoted market prices (unadjusted).
- Investments in other mutual funds valued at their respective NAV per unit on relevant valuation dates.

Level 2 securities include:

- Equity securities that are not frequently traded in active markets. In such cases, fair value is determined based on observable market data (e.g., transactions for similar securities of the same issuer).
- Fixed-income securities valued at evaluated bid prices provided by recognized investment dealers (i.e. third-party pricing vendor based on a variety of factors including broker input, financial information on the issuer and other observable market inputs).
- Derivative assets and liabilities such as forward currency contracts, and swaps, which are valued based on observable inputs such as the notional amount, forward market rate, contract rates, interest and credit spreads. To the extent that the inputs used are observable and reliable, these derivatives are included in Level 2.

Level 3 securities include:

Investments valued using valuation techniques that are based on unobservable market data. These techniques are determined pursuant
to procedures established by the Manager. Quantitative information about unobservable inputs and related sensitivity of the fair value
measurement are disclosed in the Notes to Financial Statements – Fund Specific Information.

Additional disclosures relating to transfers between levels and a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances in Level 3 are also disclosed in the Notes to financial statements – Fund specific information.

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the majority of Level 2 securities consisted of private placement common shares subject to a hold period following the closing date of the purchase, and warrants received in consideration of the private placement purchase. Upon the passing of the hold period on the private placement common shares during the year, the shares would be moved from Level 2 to Level 1. The warrants would be Level 2 until either the warrant expired, at which time the security would be removed from the Level 2 balance, or the warrant was exercised, at which time the warrant would be converted into a Level 1 security to the extent that the security is traded in an active market. There were no other material transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the years.

6. Financial Risk Management

Each Fund is exposed to risks that are associated with its investment strategies, financial instruments and markets in which it invests. The extent of risk within a Fund is largely contingent upon the Fund's investment policy and guidelines as stated in its prospectus, and the management of such risks is contingent upon the qualification and diligence of the portfolio manager designated to manage the Fund. The Schedule of Investment Portfolio groups securities by asset type, sector or geographic region. Significant risks that are relevant to the Funds are discussed below. Refer to the *Notes to Financial Statements – Fund Specific Information* of each Fund for specific risk disclosures.

MARKET RISK

The Funds' investments are subject to market risk, which is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market variables such as equity prices, currency rates and interest rates.

a) Other Price Risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to a change in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk). The sensitivity analysis disclosed is estimated based on the historical correlation between the return of a Fund as compared to the return of a Fund's benchmark. The analysis assumes that all other variables remain unchanged. The historical correlation may not be representative of future correlation and accordingly, the impact on net assets could be materially different. The investments of a Fund are subject to normal market fluctuations and the risks inherent in the financial markets. The maximum risk resulting from purchased securities held by the Funds is limited to the fair value of these investments. The Manager moderates this risk through a careful selection of securities within specified limits, as well as through the diversification of the investment portfolio.

b) Currency Risk

Currency risk is the risk that arises from the change in the price of one currency against another. The Funds hold securities that are denominated in currencies other than the Canadian dollar (or U.S. dollars for Ninepoint Carbon Credit ETF). These securities are converted to the Funds' functional currency (Canadian or U.S. dollar) in determining fair value, and fair values are subject to fluctuations relative to the strengthening or weakening of the functional currency.

c) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk borne by an interest-bearing financial instrument that is attributed to interest rate fluctuations. Cash does not expose the Funds to significant amounts of interest rate risk. Excess cash amounts and amounts held as collateral for securities sold short may be invested in Government of Canada treasury bills with maturities of less than three months.

Interbank offered rate transition effective December 31, 2021, the publication of London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) has ceased for all Pound Sterling, Japanese Yen, Swiss Franc, and Euro settings as well as the 1-week and 2-month U.S. LIBOR settings. In addition, the overnight one-month, three-month, six-month and twelve-month U.S. LIBOR settings will cease to be published after June 30, 2023.

On May 16, 2022, Refinitiv Benchmark Services (UK) Limited, the administrator of Canadian Dollar Offered Rate (CDOR), announced that the calculation and publication of all tenors of CDOR will permanently cease following a final publication on June 28, 2024.

The global benchmark rate reform initiative to transition from LIBOR or CDOR to alternative reference rates may impact a Fund that holds investments that are referenced to LIBOR or CDOR. Market risks arise as the new reference rates are likely to differ from the existing U.S. LIBOR or CDOR rates, which may impact the volatility or liquidity in markets for instruments that currently rely on U.S. LIBOR or CDOR settings. In order to manage these risks, the Manager continues to closely monitor the industry development and is taking all necessary steps to identify, measure and manage the risks relating to the Fund's U.S. LIBOR or CDOR exposure from its portfolio holdings.

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk of loss due to the failure of a counterparty to satisfy its obligations. The credit risk relating to issuers of debt securities is reviewed periodically and adjustments may be made, as appropriate, to reflect an allowance for possible default. The credit risk relating to issuers of the secured debt is managed by the terms of agreements; in particular, the notes are secured and the issuers are subject to a number of financial covenants, which are monitored on a regular basis.

The Funds may also be exposed to credit risk from the counterparties to the derivative instruments they hold. Credit risk associated with these transactions is considered minimal as all counterparties have an approved credit rating equivalent to a Standard & Poor's credit rating of A or higher on their long-term debt.

All transactions executed by a Fund in listed securities are settled upon delivery using approved brokers. The risk of default is considered minimal, as the delivery of those securities sold is made only when the broker has received payment. Payment is made on purchases only when the security is received by the broker. The trade will fail to consummate if either party fails to meet its obligations.

LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that a Fund will not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to fulfill its payment obligations. The Funds predominantly invest in liquid securities that are readily tradable in an active market. Consequently, the Funds are able to readily dispose of securities, if necessary, to fund redemptions in the course of operations. The Funds traditionally maintain a cash reserve in anticipation of normal redemption activity. Although each Fund may, from time to time, invest in illiquid or restricted securities such as private placements, private companies and warrants which are identified in the applicable Fund's Schedule of Investment Portfolio, such investments do not comprise a significant portion of a Fund's investment portfolio.

With the exception of derivative contracts and investments sold short, where applicable, all of the Funds' financial liabilities are short-term liabilities maturing within 90 days after the year end. For Funds that hold investments sold short, these investments have no specific maturity date. For Funds that hold derivative contracts with a term to maturity that exceeds 90 days from the year end, further information related to those contracts can be found in the derivatives schedules included in the Schedule of Investment Portfolio of those Funds.

CONCENTRATION RISK

Concentration risk arises as a result of the concentration of financial instrument exposures within the same category, whether it is geographic region, asset type or industry sector.

7. Capital Management

The capital of a Fund is represented by the issued and outstanding units and the net assets attributable to participating unitholders. The Manager utilizes the capital of the Funds in accordance with each Fund's investment objectives, strategies and restrictions, as outlined in the Fund's prospectus, while maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet normal redemptions. The Funds do not have any externally imposed capital requirements.

8. Redeemable Units

Each Fund is permitted to issue an unlimited number of series of redeemable units and an unlimited number of redeemable units in each series.

Redeemable units of the Funds' Mutual Fund Series are redeemable at the option of the unitholders, in accordance with the offering documents of each Fund, at their NAV per unit. Redeemable units of the Fund's ETF Series are redeemable at the option of the unitholders, in accordance with the offering documents of each Fund, on any Valuation Date for cash at a redemption price per ETF Series unit equal to 95% of the closing exchange price of the ETF Series unit on the effective date of redemption, subject to a maximum redemption price of the applicable net asset value per ETF Series security. ETF Series securities may be sold at the market price.

For the series available to each of the Funds, refer to *Note 1: Establishment of the Funds*.

The Funds have multiple classes of redeemable units that do not have identical features and therefore, the units do not qualify as equity under IAS 32, *Financial Instruments: Presentation* ("IAS 32").

The various series that may be offered by the Funds are described below:

Series	Series Description
Series A	Available to all investors. For Ninepoint FX Strategy Fund, it is available to all investors until the earlier of the Fund's net asset value exceeding \$20 million and August 5, 2020.
Series A1	Available to all investors of Ninepoint FX Strategy Fund. Available to all investors who purchased this series on or before December 31, 2016 for Ninepoint Focused Global Dividend Fund and has the same features of Series A.
Series D	Available to investors who acquire securities through a discount brokerage account or other account approved by the Manager and whose dealer has signed a Series D agreement with the Manager relating to the distribution of these securities.
Series F	Available to investors who participate in fee-based programs through their dealers and whose dealer has signed a Series F agreement with the Manager, or individual investors approved by the Manager. For Ninepoint FX Strategy Fund, it is available until the earlier of the Fund's net asset value exceeding \$20 million and August 5, 2020.
Series F1	Available to investors of Ninepoint FX Strategy Fund who participate in fee-based programs through their dealers and whose dealer has signed a Series F agreement with the Manager, or individual investors approved by the Manager. Available to all investors who purchased this series on or before December 31, 2016 for Ninepoint Focused Global Dividend Fund and has the same features of Series F.
Series FT	Available to investors who participate in fee-based programs and who seek monthly distributions at a target annual distribution rate. Other than the distribution policy, this series of a Fund has the same features as Series F of the same Fund and the distribution policy of this series of a Fund is the same as that of Series T of the same Fund.
Series I	Available to institutional investors or to other investors on a case-by-case basis, all at the discretion of the Manager.
Series I1	Available to institutional investors or to other investors on a case-by-case basis, all at the discretion of the Manager in Ninepoint Energy Fund.
Series I2	Available to institutional investors or to other investors on a case-by-case basis, all at the discretion of the Manager in Ninepoint Energy Fund.
Series I3	Available to institutional investors or to other investors on a case-by-case basis, all at the discretion of the Manager in Ninepoint Energy Fund.
Series P	Available to an investor, discretionary accounts of an advisor or existing participants in a "household group", holding in aggregate at least a \$1 million investment and whose dealer has signed a Series P Agreement with the Manager or a former manager of the Funds.
Series PF	Available to an investor, discretionary accounts of an advisor or existing participants in a "household group", holding in aggregate at least a \$1 million investment and who participate in fee-based programs through their dealer and whose dealer has signed a Series F Agreement with the Manager or a former manager of the Funds, investors for whom the Manager does not incur distribution costs, or individual investors approved by the Manager and whose dealer has signed a Series P Agreement with the Manager or a former manager of the Funds.
Series PT	Available to an investor, discretionary accounts of an advisor or existing participants in a "household group", holding in aggregate at least a \$1 million investment and whose dealer has signed a Series P Agreement with the Manager or a former manager of the Funds. The distribution policy of this series is the same as that of Series T of the same Fund.
Series PFT	Available to an investor, discretionary accounts of an advisor or existing participants in a "household group", holding in aggregate at least a \$1 million investment and whose dealer has signed a Series P Agreement with the Manager or a former manager of the Funds. Other than the distribution policy, this series has the same features as Series PF of the same Fund. The distribution policy of this series is the same as that of Series PT of the same Fund.
Series PTF	Available to investors who participate in fee-based programs through their dealer and whose dealer has signed a Series PTF Agreement with the Manager. Series PTF is only available through dealers who have met certain infrastructure requirements. As of April 2020, Series PTF has been terminated.
Series Q	Available to an investor, discretionary accounts of an advisor or existing participants in a "household group", holding in aggregate at least a \$5 million investment and whose dealer has signed a Series Q Agreement with the Manager or a former manager of the Funds.

Series	Series Description
Series QF	Available to an investor or discretionary accounts of an advisor or existing participants in a "household group", holding in aggregate at least a \$5 million investment and who participate in fee-based programs through their dealer and whose dealer has signed a Series F Agreement with the Manager or a former manager of the Funds, investors for whom the Manager does not incur distribution costs, or individual investors approved by the Manager and whose dealer has signed a Series Q Agreement with the Manager or a former manager of the Funds.
Series QT	Available to an investor, discretionary accounts of an advisor or existing participants in a "household group", holding in aggregate at least a \$5 million investment and whose dealer has signed a Series Q Agreement with the Manager or a former manager of the Funds. The distribution policy of this series is the same as that of Series T of the same Fund.
Series QFT	Available to an investor, discretionary accounts of an advisor or existing participants in a "household group", holding in aggregate at least a \$5 million investment and whose dealer has signed a Series Q Agreement with the Manager or a former manager of the Funds. Other than the distribution policy, it has the same features as Series QF of the same Fund. The distribution policy of the series is the same as that of Series QT of the same Fund.
Series S	Available to all investors. Its management fees are lower than its related Series A. For Ninepoint Carbon Credit ETF, it is available until the earlier of the Fund's net asset value exceeding \$20 million and February 28, 2022 and for Ninepoint Energy Income Fund, it is available until the earlier of the Fund's net asset value exceeding \$20 million and June 30, 2022. For Ninepoint Target Income Fund, it is available until the Fund's net asset value exceeds \$20 million.
Series SF	Available to investors who participate in fee-based programs through their dealers and whose dealer has signed a Series F agreement with the Manager, or individual investors approved by the Manager. Its management fees are lower than its related Series F. For Ninepoint Carbon Credit ETF, it is available until the earlier of the Fund's net asset value exceeding \$20 million and February 28, 2022 and for Ninepoint Energy Income Fund, it is available until the earlier of the Fund's net asset value exceeding \$20 million and June 30, 2022. For Ninepoint Target Income Fund, it is available until the Fund's net asset value exceeds \$20 million.
Series T	Available to all investors and designed to provide cash flow to investors by making monthly distributions of cash comprising a return of capital, net income and/or capital gains and the composition of the monthly distributions may vary from month to month.
ETF Series	Available to all investors. Investors purchase ETF Series securities on the NEO Exchange or another exchange or marketplace where the ETF Series securities are traded through a registered broker or dealer in the province or territory where the investor resides.

UNIT VALUATION

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, there were no differences between the NAV used for transactions with unitholders and the net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units used for reporting purposes under IFRS, except as noted below.

For financial reporting purposes, the fair value of warrants is measured using the Black-Scholes model in accordance with IFRS, whereas the valuation of warrants for Transactional NAV purposes does not require such adjustments. The table below provides a comparison of Transactional NAV per unit and Net Assets per unit on the financial statements as at December 31, 2022:

Fund Name	Series	Transactional NAV per unit	Net Assets per unit as per the financial statements
Ninepoint Silver Equities Fund	Series A	6.80	6.87
Ninepoint Silver Equities Fund	Series D	12.59	12.75
Ninepoint Silver Equities Fund	Series F	7.53	7.61
Ninepoint Silver Equities Fund	ETF Series	13.87	14.02

9. Distribution of Income and Capital Gains

The following Funds and their series make monthly distributions, as applicable:

Fund	Monthly Distributing Series		
Ninepoint Diversified Bond Fund	Series A units, Series D units, Series F units, Series FT units, Series I units, Series P units, Series PF		
	units, Series PFT units, Series PT units, Series Q units, Series QF units Series QFT units, Series QT		
	units, Series T units and ETF Series units.		
Ninepoint Global Infrastrucutre Fund	Series A units, Series D units, Series F units, and Series I units.		
Ninepoint Global Real Estate Fund	Series A units, Series D units, Series F units, Series FT units, Series I units, and Series T units.		
Ninepoint Focused Global Dividend	Series A units, Series A1 units, Series D units, Series F units, and Series F1 units.		
Fund			
Ninepoint High Interest Savings Fund	Series A units, Series D units, Series F units, Series I units, Series I1 units and Series ETF units.		
Ninepoint Alternative Credit	Series A units, Series D units, Series F units, Series I units, Series QF units and Series ETF units.		
Opportunities Fund			
Ninepoint Energy Income Fund	Series A units, Series D units, Series F units, Series I units, Series S units, Series SF units Series		
	ETF units.		
Ninepoint Target Income Fund	Series A units, Series F units, Series I units, Series S units, Series SF units Series ETF units.		

All other Funds and series make annual distributions of net investment income and net realized capital gains to unitholders at the end of the December 15th taxation year. All distributions allocated to unitholders are either paid in cash or reinvested automatically in additional units of the Funds. These amounts are reflected on the Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units as part of "Distributions to unitholders" and/or "Units issued from reinvested distributions".

10. Restricted Cash and Investments

Cash, investments and broker margin include balances with prime brokers held as collateral for securities sold short and other derivatives. This collateral is not available for general use by the Funds. The value of any restricted cash and investments held for each of the Funds is disclosed in the Notes to financial statements – Fund specific information, if applicable.

11. Related-Party Transactions

MANAGEMENT FEES

Each Fund pays the Manager an annual management fee to cover management expenses. Management fees are unique to each Fund and each series and are subject to applicable taxes. The management fee is calculated and accrued daily and is paid on the last business day of each month based on the daily NAV of each Fund.

INCENTIVE FEES

The Funds listed below pay the Manager an incentive fee annually that is equal to 10%, of the difference by which the percentage return in the unit value of the applicable series of the Fund from January 1 to December 31 exceeds the percentage return of the benchmark index. The benchmark indices are as follows:

Name of the Fund	Benchmark
Ninepoint Gold and Precious Minerals Fund	S&P TSX Global Gold Total Return Index
Ninepoint Energy Fund	S&P TSX Capped Energy Total Return Index
Ninepoint Silver Equities Fund	MSCI ACWI Select Silver Miners IMI Net Return Index
	50% of the daily return of the S&P/TSX Capped Materials Total Return Index and
Ninepoint Resource Fund	50% of the daily return of the S&P/TSX Capped Energy Total Return Index

If the performance of a series of a Fund in any year is less than the performance of the applicable index described above (the "Deficiency"), then no incentive fee will be payable in any subsequent year until the performance of the applicable series of the applicable Fund, on a cumulative basis calculated from the first of such subsequent years, has exceeded the amount of the Deficiency. The Manager may reduce the incentive fee payable by a Fund with respect to a particular investor.

Ninepoint FX Strategy Fund pays the Manager a quarterly performance fee, subject to applicable taxes including HST, equal to a percentage of the daily NAV of the applicable series of the Fund. The percentage will be equal to 20% of the difference by which the return in the NAV per unit of the applicable series from the first business day of the calendar quarter (or from inception if any series commences on a date other than the beginning of the quarter) to the last business day of the calendar quarter exceeds the high water mark per unit of such series. The NAV includes all expenses and is calculated before income and capital gains are distributed. The performance fee is calculated and accrued daily and paid quarterly on a calendar quarter basis. For each series of the Fund, the "high water mark" means the greater of (i) the initial NAV per unit, or (ii) the NAV at the end of the most recent calendar quarter for which a performance fee was paid after giving effect to all distributions in, and payments of performance fees for, such calendar quarter. If any units of the Fund are redeemed prior to the end of a calendar quarter, a performance fee will be payable on the redemption date in respect of each unit, as if the redemption date were the end of the calendar quarter, in the same manner as described above.

Ninepoint Alternative Credit Opportunities Fund pays the Manager a quarterly performance fee, subject to applicable taxes including HST, equal to a percentage of the daily net asset value of the applicable series of the Fund. The percentage will be equal to 10% of the difference by which the return in the NAV per unit of the applicable series from the first business day of the calendar quarter (or from inception if any series commences on a date other than the beginning of the quarter) to the last business day of the calendar quarter exceeds the high water mark per unit of such series. The NAV includes all expenses and is calculated before income and capital gains are distributed. The performance fee is calculated and accrued daily and paid quarterly on a calendar quarter basis. For each series of the Fund, the "high water mark" means the greater of (i) the initial NAV per unit, or (ii) the NAV at the end of the most recent calendar quarter for which a performance fee was paid after giving effect to all distributions in, and payments of performance fees for, such calendar quarter, plus 0.75% for the same period (the "Hurdle Rate"). If the performance of a particular series of units of the Fund in any calendar quarter is negative, such negative return will be added to the subsequent calendar quarter's high water mark for that series of units. If the performance of a particular series of units in any calendar quarter is positive, but below the Hurdle Rate, the subsequent calendar quarter's high water mark will be the prior calendar quarter's ending NAV per unit of that particular series. If any units of the Fund are redeemed prior to the end of a calendar quarter, a performance fee will be payable on the redemption date in respect of each unit, as if the redemption date were the end of the calendar quarter, in the same manner as described above.

Ninepoint Energy Income Fund pays the Manager a quarterly performance fee equal to 15% of the amount by which the return in the net asset value per unit of the series at the calendar quarter exceeds the previous High Water Mark. The High Water Mark is the greater of (i) the initial net asset value per unit, or (ii) the net asset value per unit at the end of the most recent calendar quarter for which a performance fee was paid after giving effect to all distributions in, and payments of performance fees for, such calendar quarter, and 1.5% for the same period (the "Hurdle Rate"). If the performance of a particular series of units in any calendar quarter is positive, but below the Hurdle Rate, the High Water Mark for the subsequent calendar quarter will be adjusted upwards to reflect such increase in the net asset value per unit of that particular series, until such time as a performance fee is paid and the High Water Mark is reset. If the performance of a particular series of units in any calendar quarter is negative, there will be no adjustment to the High Water Mark in the subsequent calendar quarter, such that it will remain the same as it was in the prior calendar quarter. The performance fee, plus applicable taxes, is calculated and accrued daily and paid quarterly on a calendar quarter basis.

12. Operating Expenses and Sales Charges

Each Fund pays its own operating expenses, other than marketing costs and costs of dealer compensation programs, which are paid by the Manager. Operating expenses include, but are not limited to, audit, legal, safekeeping, trustee, custodial, fund administration expenses, preparation costs of financial statements and other reports to investors and Independent Review Committee ("IRC") member fees and expenses. Operating expenses are charged to all Funds pro-rata, on the basis of NAV or another measure that provides a fair and reasonable allocation.

At its sole discretion, the Manager may waive or absorb a portion of the operating expenses of certain Funds. Amounts waived or absorbed by the Manager are reported in the Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss). Waivers or absorptions can be terminated at any time without notice.

13. Sharing Arrangements

In addition to paying for the cost of brokerage services in respect of securities transactions, commissions paid to certain brokers may also cover research services provided to the portfolio manager. Sharing arrangements for each Fund are disclosed in the Notes to financial statements – Fund specific information, if applicable.

14. Independent Review Committee

In accordance with National Instrument 81-107, *Independent Review Committee for Investment Funds*, the Manager has established an IRC for all of the Funds. The mandate of the IRC is to consider and provide recommendations to the Manager on conflicts of interest to which the Manager is subject when managing the Funds. The IRC reports annually to unitholders of the Funds on its activities, and the annual report is available on or after March 31 in each year. The Manager charges compensation paid to the IRC members and the costs of the ongoing administration of the IRC to the Funds. These amounts are recorded in the Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss).

15. Economic Conditions

RUSSIA AND UKRAINE CONFLICT

The escalating conflict between Russia and Ukraine has continued to increase financial market uncertainties and volatility which have greatly impacted the markets around the world. The impacts of these circumstances on the global economy, especially in terms of geopolitical norms, supply chains and investment valuations are still being felt. Although, the ultimate extent of the effects from this on the Funds is uncertain, the Manager has and will continually assess the performance of the portfolio and make investment decisions that are aligned with each Fund's mandate and the best interests of its unitholders.

16. Subsequent Events

TERMINATION AND DELISTING OF ETF SERIES

On January 17, 2023 (the Termination Date), the Manager terminated the ETF series units of each of Ninepoint Gold & Precious Minerals Fund (GLDE), Ninepoint Silver Equities Fund (SLVE) and Ninepoint Alternative Health Fund (NAHF). The ETF series units of the Funds were delisted from the NEO Exchange, at the request of the Manager, at the close of business on January 13, 2023, and investors still holding ETF series units of the Funds received redemption proceeds following the Termination Date.

FUND MERGERS

On February 10, 2023, the Funds below (the "Continuing Funds") acquired all the assets of the corresponding Funds listed below (the "Acquired Funds"), and in exchange, the Continuing Funds issued to the Acquired Funds which in turn were distribute to the unitholders of the Acquired Funds. The Manager was the investment advisor to Acquired Funds.

		Fair Value of assets	Number of shares
		acquired by the	issued by the
Continuing Fund	Acquired Fund	Continuing Fund	Continuing Fund
Ninepoint Global Infrastructure Fund	Ninepoint Convertible Securities Fund	\$15,434,280	1,364,780
Ninepoint Focused Global Dividend Fund	Ninepoint International Small Cap Fund	\$7,853,524	679,914
Ninepoint Target Income Fund	Ninepoint Return Advantaged U.S. Equity Index Fund	\$2,279,933	228,934

Corporate Information

Corporate Address

Ninepoint Partners LP
Royal Bank Plaza, South Tower
200 Bay Street, Suite 2700, P.O. Box 27
Toronto, Ontario M5J 2J1
T 416.362.7172
TOLL-FREE 1.888.362.7172
F 416.628.2397
E invest@ninepoint.com
For additional information visit our website:
www.ninepoint.com
Call our mutual fund information line for daily closing prices:
416.362.7172 or 1.888.362.7172

Auditors

Ernst & Young LLP EY Tower 100 Adelaide Street West Toronto, Ontario M5H 0B3

Legal Counsel

Borden Ladner Gervais LLP Bay Adelaide Centre, East Tower 22 Adelaide Street West Suite 3400 Toronto, Ontario M5H 4E3